
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

March 26, 2024
Tray Payne, Mayor
Shelia Patterson Harris, Mayor Pro Tem, District 2
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Councilwoman, District 1
Mark W. McBrayer, Councilman, District 3
Steve Massengale, Councilman, District 4
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Latrelle Joy, Councilwoman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Mitchell Satterwhite, Interim City Attorney

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.

 

9:00 a.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers, and immediately recesses into
Executive Session.
           
1. Executive Session   

 

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

1. 1. 1. Dan Wilson Homes, Inc. v. Kristen Sager, in her official capacity as Director of
Planning and Zoning for the City of Lubbock, Egenbacher Real Estate LC, and 11601
Slide LP, Cause No. DC-2024-CV-0167, in the 99th District Court, Lubbock County,
Texas

  

 

1. 1. 2. Vital Statistics   

 

1. 1. 3. Cybersecurity   

 

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Lake Alan Henry Board of Appeals.

  

 

1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section   

http://www.mylubbock.us


1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section
551.074, to discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation or
reassignment of the following:

  

 

1. 3. 1. City Attorney   

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

2:00 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

2. Ceremonial Items   

 

2. 1. Invocation   

 

2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided
at the meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on March 26, 2024. Citizen Comments provide
an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda
items. 

  

 

4. Minutes   

 

4. 1. January 24, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development
Alliance
February 12, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
February 27, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting

 

5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

5. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2024-O0024, Amendment 15, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Parks Capital Projects Fund; providing for filing; and providing
for a savings clause.



 

5. 1. 1. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 17786, with Thunder Pump Service, for installation of a new water well
system at the Berl Huffman Athletic Complex. 

 

5. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 14, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes regarding the
reallocation of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding for the Internal Service Capital
Project Fund, General Capital Project Fund, and the Water Capital Project Fund; providing
for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 16, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Donations Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 3. 1. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
accept a donation in the amount of $47,398.72 from Lubbock Experience, Inc., for the
maintenance and repairs of the Tornado Memorial located at the corner of Avenue Q and
Glenna Goodacre Boulevard.

 

5. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 17, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Grant Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 18, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Capital Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 6. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 19, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Grant Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 7. Budget Amendment Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 20, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Water Capital Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 8. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City
Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, airport and non-owned
aircraft liability insurance coverage from Ace Property and Casualty Insurance Company,
for which the premium amount shall not exceed $41,490.00.

 

5. 9. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City
Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, workers’ compensation
coverage from the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool, for which the
total amount shall not exceed $1,970,994.44.



 

5. 10. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City
Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, layered excess liability
insurance coverage (the Program) from Texas Insurance Company (35.714% of the
Program) and Upland Specialty Insurance Company (64.286% of the Program), for which
the premium amount shall not exceed $422,928.01 and $761,280.09, respectively.

 

5. 11. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City
Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, boiler and machinery
insurance coverage from Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, for which the premium
amount shall not exceed a rate of $0.0036 per $100 equipment valuation.

 

5. 12. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City
Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, property terrorism
insurance coverage from Underwriters at Lloyd’s of London, for which the premium
amount shall not exceed a rate of $0.0033 per $100 valuation.

 

5. 13. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City
Manager, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, to purchase property insurance
coverage with Lloyd’s – HCC Insurance; Lloyds-Fidelis Insurance; StarStone Specialty
Insurance; Sutton Specialty Insurance; Lexington Insurance; Fidelis; Arch Specialty
Insurance; Palms Specialty Insurance; Evanston Insurance Company; Kinsale Insurance
Company; Axis Surplus Insurance Company; James River Insurance; Texas Insurance
Company; Trisura Specialty; Harleysville Insurance Company of New York; Mitsui
Sumitomo; Landmark American Insurance and AXA XL Insurance Companies, for which
the premium shall not exceed a rate of $0.3016 per $100 of valuation.

 

5. 14. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City
Manager to purchase for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Network Security and
Privacy Insurance coverage from Crum & Forster Insurance Company, for which the
premium amount shall not exceed $110,500.

 

5. 15. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
contract with Kroll, LLC, for appraisal services of City-owned property.

 

5. 16. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant
Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Duncan Bradley
Green, located at 504 Avenue G, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and
Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

 

5. 17. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant
Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Duncan
Bradley Green, located at 504 Avenue G, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

 



5. 18. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Downtown
Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Q-505 dba
Double Tree Lubbock University Area, located at 505 Avenue Q, pursuant to Article IV,
Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development
Corporation. 

 

5. 19. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial
Revitalization Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be
provided to Chuck Chapman Electric, Inc., dba CC Electric, located at 1219 Avenue A,
pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market
Lubbock Development Corporation. 

 

5. 20. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial
Revitalization Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be
provided to Woodberry Investments, LLC, located at 3532 34th Street, pursuant to Article
IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development
Corporation. 

 

5. 21. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a program or
expenditure of the Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, to be provided to Vulpes
Group Holding Corporation, pursuant to Section 501.073 of the Texas Local Government
Code. 

 

5. 22. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 17662, with West Texas Services, Inc. dba Tom's Tree Place, for
installation of water well and electrical equipment protective coverings for Public
Improvement Districts.

 

5. 23. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager
to approve an Extension of Construction Time in connection with that certain City Tax
Abatement Agreement No. 17471, with Dura-Line, LLC.

 

5. 24. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing
portions of alley right-of-way abutting Lot 8, Block 4, Clutter Addition to the City of
Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

 

5. 25. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing
portions of alley right-of-way abutting, Block 10, Morning Side Addition to the City of
Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

 

5. 26. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing
portions of street and alley right-of-way abutting, Block 136 and 137, Original Town of
Lubbock Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

 

5. 27. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the mayor to execute a



5. 27. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the mayor to execute a
Street Use License Agreement, and related documents, by and between the City of
Lubbock and NBB Investments LLC, regarding property located on the north side of 50th
Street, between Gary Avenue and Flint Avenue.

 

5. 28. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public
Works Contract 17870, and all related documents, with Utility Contractors of America,
Inc., for Water Line Change Out Phase 6.

 

5. 29. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 17967, with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for providing professional
services for the Unpaved Roads Improvements Project.

 

5. 30. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Development Agreement Contract 17488, with Red Canyon Development, LLC, 146th &
Quaker, LLC, Chad Michael Henthorn, 14th Texas Real Estate, LLC., and Bushland
Springs, LLC., for the construction of a portion of Quaker Avenue, from 146th Street to
Woodrow Road.

 

5. 31. Resolution - Water Utilities: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the City
Manager, in executing Purchase Order 22105341, for the emergency purchase of 720
Memcor Membrane Modules from Du Pont (FilmTec Corporation), to replace failed
membrane modules and to restore full production capability of the South Water Treatment
Plant.

 

5. 32. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No.
2024-O0025, amending Article 28.09 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with
adoption of the 2021 International Building Code.

 

5. 33. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0026,
amending Article 28.10 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the
2021 International Plumbing Code.

 

5. 34. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0027,
amending Article 28.11 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the
2021 International Mechanical Code.

 

5. 35. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0028,
amending Article 28.12 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the
2020 National Electrical Code.

 

5. 36. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0029,
amending Article 28.14 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the
2021 International Residential Code.

 



5. 37. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0030,
amending Article 28.15 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the
2021 International Fuel Gas Code.

 

5. 38. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0031,
amending Article 28.16 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the
2021 International Energy Conservation Code.

 

5. 39. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0032, adding
Article 28.17 to the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the 2021
International Existing Building Code.

 

5. 40. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0033, adding
Article 28.18 to the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the 2021
International Swimming Pool and Spa Code.

 

5. 41. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0034,
amending Chapter 28 "Building Regulations" Articles 28.01 - 28.08 of the City of
Lubbock Code of Ordinances to reflect adoption of the 2021 International Codes and 2020
National Electrical Code.

 

5. 42. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Lubbock Fire Rescue: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0035,
amending Article 10.01 and Article 10.03 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with
the adoption of the 2021 International Fire Code.

 

5. 43. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution, pursuant to Chapter 42, Subchapter D, of
the Texas Local Government Code, releasing the area described as Property I.D. R135889
by the Lubbock County Appraisal District, otherwise known as 5127 Woodrow Road,
from the Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City of Lubbock.

 

5. 44. Resolution - Code Enforcement: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 17769, with Matthews Backhoe, Inc., for the demolition of the Coronado
Apartments located at 1714 East Broadway. 

 

5. 45. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Professional Services Agreement 17844, with PondMedics, Inc., for Cattail
Removal and Control throughout the Jim Bertram Canyon Lakes System.

 

5. 46. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 17817 with Green Plains Design, for turf management and mowing of
Group 5 & 10 - Class C Parks and Properties.

 

5. 47. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a



5. 47. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Memorandum of Understanding between the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and
Explosives (ATF) and the City of Lubbock, on behalf of the Lubbock Police Department,
as it relates to the Lubbock Regional ATF Task Force.

 

5. 48. Ordinance 1st Reading - City Secretary: Consider an ordinance declaring the unopposed
candidate in the May 4, 2024, Special Election to fill a vacancy in City Council District
No. 3, to be elected to office and canceling said Special Election, providing a savings
clause, and providing an effective date.

 

5. 49. Ordinance 2nd Reading - City Manager: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0036,
amending Chapter 18, "Taxation", of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock,
Texas by adding Article 18.05 to provide for an exemption from property taxation for
qualifying child-care facilities in accordance with Section 11.36 of the Texas Tax Code.

 

5. 50. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution ratifying the acts of the City Manager
in executing an application for the Texas State and Local Cybersecurity Grant Program.

 

5. 51. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution establishing a policy to permit
developers to be credited for impact fees assessed in a service area for all developments
being constructed by a developer within that service area.  

 

6. Regular Agenda   

 

6. 1. Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 0804-C, a
request of Westar Commercial Realty for Cross Timber Land Holdings, LLC, for a zone
change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District
(HC), at 219 and 301 Regis Street, located south of Regis Street and west of North
Interstate 27, on 3.524 acres of land including Teal Addition, the south portion of the east
173.17 feet of Lot 5, and Teal Addition, the south portion of Lot 8, and the South portion
of the west 86.73 feet of Lot 5 and approximately 2.40 acres of unplatted land out of Block
A, Section 9, and consider an ordinance.

 

6. 2. Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 2565-G, a
request of DLC Designs, LLC for JGK, LLC, for a zone change from Heavy Commercial
District (HC) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), at 2728 and 2730 Texas
Avenue, located west of Texas Avenue and north of 29th Street, Texas Avenue Addition,
Block 1, Lots 1 and 2, and consider an ordinance.

 

6. 3. Public Hearing - Planning (District 2): Consider a request for Zone Case 3497, a request
of Martin Meza for Beatriz Torres, for a Neighborhood Infill Overlay District (NIO) on
property zoned Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2), at 2402 East 29th Street,
located south of East 29th Street and east of Walnut Avenue, Manhattan Heights Addition,
Lot 249, and consider an ordinance.

 



6. 4. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 3298-E, a
request of Hugo Reed & Associates for Ford Development, for a zone change from
Industrial Park District (IP) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), at 14202, 14204,
14206, 14208, 14210, 14212, 14214 and 14216 Indiana Avenue, south of 141st Street and
west of Indiana Avenue, Eastwick Commercial Addition, Tracts B-1-A through B-3-C, and
consider an ordinance.

 

6. 5. Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Consider a request for Zone Case 2985-E, a
request of Seventeen Services, LLC for Cody Craig Custom Homes, LLC, for a zone
change from High Density Residential District (HDR) to Neighborhood Commercial
District (NC) and Low Density Single-Family (SF-2), generally located North
of 114th Street and west of Elkhart Avenue, on 7.44 acres of unplatted land out of Block
E2, Section 25, and consider an ordinance.

 

6. 6. Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Consider a request for Zone Case 3498, a request
of Hot and Juicy Seafood, LLC for Texas Brothers, LLC, for a zone change from Industrial
Park District (IP) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 5004 Frankford Avenue, Suite
460-A, located west of Frankford Avenue and south of 50th Street, Frankford Business
Park Addition, Lots 4-A and 5, and consider an ordinance.

 

6. 7. Public Hearing - Planning (District 6): Consider a request for Zone Case 2573-T, a
request of Parkhill for UMC Health System, for a zone change from High Density
Residential District (HDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 5406 Colgate
Street, located north of Colgate Street and west of North Slide Road, North Park Addition,
Tract K-1, and consider an ordinance.

 

6. 8. Ordinance 1st Reading - City Council: Consider an ordinance amending the City of
Lubbock Code of Ordinances, Chapter 22, "UTILITIES", Article 22.04 "Wastewater
System" of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, Texas, in order to delineate
sewer line repair and maintenance responsibilities.

 



 AI# 12383 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 4. 1. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
January 24, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development Alliance
February 12, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
February 27, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting

Item Summary
January 24, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development Alliance
February 12, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
February 27, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

Attachments
1.24.2024 S LEDA 
2.12.2024 S EUB 
2.27.2024 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

January 24, 2024
11:00 A.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 24th of January, 2024, at
the McDougal Companies Building, 1500 Broadway, 5th Floor, Suite 501, Lubbock, Texas at 8:30 a.m.

8:33 A.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
McDougal Companies Building, 1500 Broadway, 5th Floor, Suite 501, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Tray Payne; Council Member Latrelle Joy; Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia;
Council Member Steve Massengale; Council Member Mark W. McBrayer; City Manager W.
Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Courtney Paz; Senior Assistant City Attorney Kelli Leisure 

Absent:  Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson 

This was a meeting of the Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) Board of Directors. A
quorum of Council Members attended and participated in discussions during the meeting in which the
board considered the following topics as shown below:

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
Executive Session
No quorum, of City Council, was present for all other items.

1. MINUTES

*This item was deleted.

1. 1. The Board will approve the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors of November 29, 2023. 

2. EXECUTIVE SESSION

This meeting was called into a closed session at 8:34 a.m. under the provisions of Section 551,
Texas Government Code. The meeting was called back into a public session at 9:22 a.m. and
adjourned.

2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.087 to (1)
discuss or deliberate in regard to commercial or financial information that LEDA has received from
business prospects seeking to locate, stay or expand, in the Lubbock area, or, (2) to deliberate the
offer of a financial or other incentive to business prospects described in (1) above. This will include
the project and goals update, and monthly activity reports of Carolyn Rowley, Director of Business
Retention & Innovation, David Rushing, Director of Business Recruitment, and reports related to
financial, budget, audit reports, and matters related to the Lubbock Business Park, Lubbock Rail



financial, budget, audit reports, and matters related to the Lubbock Business Park, Lubbock Rail
Port, and neighboring properties and workforce/training projects. Others may also participate in this
report including, but not limited to, John Osborne, Jana Johnston, Christine Allen, Katherine White,
Katy Christy, Jorge Quirino, Chris Rankin, Morgan Finney, Mayor Tray Payne, Mr. Jarrett Atkinson,
City Manager, members of City Council and Brianna Brown, Director of Business Development
with the City of Lubbock.

 
2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.072 to deliberate

the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property.
 
2. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.071 to discuss

legal matters.
 
2. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074 to deliberate

the appointment, employment, goals, compensation, evaluation, reassignment of duties, discipline or
dismissal of employee(s) or to hear a complaint or charge against an employee(s).

 
3. REGULAR SESSION
 
3. 1. The Board will consider a resolution to approve the November and December 2023 LEDA Financial

Report.
 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 2. The Board will consider a resolution to approve Fiscal Year 2022-2023 LEDA Financial Audit

prepared by accounting firm, Bolinger, Segars, Gilbert & Moss, L. L. P.
 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 3. Presentation of project update and monthly activity reports for Workforce Development.

 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 4. Presentation of project update and monthly reports of Marketing and Communication activities.

 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 5. The Board will consider action, if needed, including the adoption of resolutions to offer financial and

other incentives to business prospects or other matters considered in Executive Session and
ratification of performance agreements that have been approved by the Board.
 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 5. 1. Ratify Addendum to Dura-Line Performance Agreement. 

 
*This item was deleted.

 

Special City Council Meeting 
January 24, 2024 Page 2 of 4



 
3. 6. Discuss and the Board will consider action, if needed, on matters relating to the Lubbock Business

Park, Lubbock Rail Port and active projects, including but not limited to plans for current and
possible future uses of the land, zoning, platting, mapping, marketing, services and utilities to and
from the properties, and any other matters related to the possible uses of the land. This discussion and
the Board's possible action on matters involving the properties may include but not be limited to the
following items:
 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 6. 1. Discussion of maintenance contract and the Board's recommendation to award the Lubbock

Business Park Maintenance Contract for the Medians.
 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 6. 2. Discuss the current status of the plans for developing the parks.

 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 6. 3. Discuss the current status of efforts to use the properties by businesses.

 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 6. 4. Update on the progress of the properties and any matters related to contractors and/or contracts.

 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 6. 5. Discuss and the Board will consider action, if needed, on possible financing options

for improvements to the properties.
 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 6. 6. Discuss and the Board will consider action, if needed, on proposed future development of

the properties with construction and engineering projects and related contracts, regarding
projects and the development at LEDA properties.
 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 6. 7. Discuss and the Board will consider action, if needed, on property to be used for

future economic development opportunities.
 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 7. Architectural Review Committee Report

 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 8. CEO Report

Special City Council Meeting 
January 24, 2024 Page 3 of 4



3. 8. CEO Report
 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 8. 1. LEDA Dashboard

 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 8. 2. Employment Data Report

 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. 9. Chairman’s Report

 
*This item was deleted.

 

9:22 A.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Payne adjourned the meeting.

 
The January 24, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 26th
day of March, 2024.

  
  ____________________________________

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

 
 
*This item was discussed, by the Board, without a quorum of Council Members present.

Special City Council Meeting 
January 24, 2024 Page 4 of 4



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

February 12, 2024
11:00 A.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 12th of February, 2024, at
the Overton Hotel & Conference Center, 2322 Mac Davis Ln, 2nd Floor, Horizon Ballroom B,
Lubbock, Texas at 11:00 a.m.

11:05 A.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
Overton Hotel & Conference Center, 2322 Mac Davis Ln, 2nd Floor, Horizon Ballroom B,
Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Tray Payne; Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Steve Massengale; Council
Member Mark W. McBrayer; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Courtney Paz;
City Attorney Chad Weaver 

Absent:  Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson 

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
Public Comment 1; and 2.1-2.1.10.

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

Public comment is an opportunity for the public to make comments and express a position on
agenda items. This period, of up to thirty minutes, is dedicated to public comment. Each member of
the public will have three minutes to speak. Any member of the public that requires the assistance
of a translator will have six minutes to speak. Comments must be limited to only those items posted
on the Electric Utility Board agenda. Any member of the public wishing to speak shall sign up on
the public comment sheet on the day of the Electric Utility Board meeting. The Electric Utility
Board shall follow the order of persons wishing to speak as listed on the sign-up sheet. If everyone
who signed up to speak has been given an opportunity to speak and the thirty minutes designated for
public comment has not been exhausted, the Electric Utility Board may, at its discretion, open the
floor to anyone else wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, subject to all the same procedures
and guidelines.

No one appeared to speak.

2. REGULAR SESSION

2. 1. Presentation and discussion by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, regarding strategic



2. 1. Presentation and discussion by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, regarding strategic
planning for Lubbock Power & Light before, during, and after its transition to competitive retail
choice, covering all aspects and facets of the utility, including but not limited to, organizational and
resource needs and changes, rate structure modifications, strategic goals for transmission and
distribution service in the competitive market, occupational, performance, and safety metric goals,
and other needs and changes of the electric utility as it exists today, and as it transitions to and after
operates in the competitive retail market. Topics included in the foregoing discussion may include,
but are not limited to, the following:

 
2. 1. 1. Director of Electric Utilities strategic goals and objectives
 
2. 1. 2. Marketing and public relations
 
2. 1. 3. Key performance indicators, accountability standards, and goals related thereto
 
2. 1. 4. Community involvement and engagement
 
2. 1. 5. LP&L’s goals for its budget during and after it transitions to retail competition
 
2. 1. 6. Education and training of staff during and after the transition to retail competition
 
2. 1. 7. Interaction with and customer service for Retail Electric Providers
 
2. 1. 8. Goals for outages and response times as part of the planning process
 
2. 1. 9. Other opportunities to increase LP&L’s value
 
2. 1. 10. Next steps related to Strategic Planning

 
Joel Ivy, director of electric utilities; Harvey Hall, chief financial officer for LP&L; Carolyn
Shellman, interim general counsel for LP&L; Blaire McGinnis, chief operating officer for
LP&L; Clint Gardner, chief customer officer for LP&L; Matt Rose, public affairs and
government relations manager for LP&L; and Chris Sims, chief performance officer for
LP&L, gave presentations and answered questions from the Board: 
 
Blu Kostelich, chief financial officer for the City of Lubbock; and Luke Miller, engineering
manager for LP&L, gave comments and answered questions from the Board.

 
11:00 a.m. – Approximately - The Electric Utility Board will convene in open session to discuss the items
listed above in item 2. It is anticipated that the open session will begin and then the Electric Utility Board will
break at approximately 12:00 p.m. to the stairwell located in the Overton Convention Center for a photo then
reconvene into open session. No public business will be discussed during this break. It is anticipated that the
Electric Utility Board will reconvene in open session at approximately 12:30 p.m. to continue the topics listed
above in item 2. However, this is an approximation and the Board may begin the open session earlier or later
depending on when the break is complete.
 

1:21 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

Special City Council Meeting 
February 12, 2024 Page 2 of 3



1:21 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 
The February 12, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 26th
day of March, 2024.

  
  ____________________________________

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
February 12, 2024 Page 3 of 3



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

February 27, 2024
8:30 A. M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 27th of February, 2024, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 8:30 a.m.

8:30 A.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Tray Payne, Mayor; Shelia Patterson Harris, Mayor Pro Tem; Latrelle Joy, Council Member;
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Council Member; Steve Massengale, Council Member; Mark W.
McBrayer, Council Member; Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Council Member; W. Jarrett Atkinson, City
Manager; Courtney Paz, City Secretary; Mitch Satterwhite, First Assistant City Attorney 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Executive Session; Citizen Comments 2; 3.1; 4.1-4.2; Citizen Comments 5; 6.1; 7.1-7.29; and
8.1-8.2.

1. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 8:31 a.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 1:30 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 2:02 p.m.

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with
legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on
matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

1. 1. 1. Memorial Center, Block 7, Lot 2A

1. 1. 2. Original Town Lubbock, Block 87, Lots 1-20

1. 1. 3. Original Town Lubbock, Block 7, Lots 9-12

1. 1. 4. 5102 29th Drive, Lubbock, Texas 79407

1. 1. 5. Lake 7

1. 1. 6. Discuss Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code and applicable City ordinances



 
1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to

deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.
 
1. 2. 1. Memorial Center, Block 7, Lot 2A
 
1. 2. 2. Original Town Lubbock, Block 87, Lots 1-20
 
1. 2. 3. Original Town Lubbock, Block 7, Lots 9-12
 
1. 2. 4. 5102 29th Drive, Lubbock, Texas 79407
 
1. 2. 5. Lake 7
 
1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, to

discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation or reassignment of the
following:

 
1. 3. 1. City Attorney
 
 
 
1:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items
for presentation and discussion on such issues that may require in-depth consideration by the City
Council. No action will be taken by the City Council in Work Session. 
 
City Council reconvened at 1:30 p.m.
 
 
2. Citizen Comments - Any citizen wishing to address the City Council in person,

regarding Item 3.1., as posted on the City Council Work Session, shall complete the
sign-up form provided at the meeting, no later than 1:30 p.m. on February 27,
2024. Citizen Comments provide an opportunity for citizens to make comments and
express a position on agenda items. 
 
No one appeared to speak.

 
3. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as

appropriate.
 
3. 1. Presentation of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

 
Blu Kostelich, chief financial officer, introduced the item, gave comments, answered questions
from City Council.
 
Jennifer Ripka, engagement partner with Weaver, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council on the FY 2022-23 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report as it relates to

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2024 Page 2 of 8



the audit process, audit cycle, and audit results and communications. 
 
Mr. Kostelich gave a presentation on the FY 2022-23 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
as it relates to General Fund revenues, expenditures, fund balance and current ratios; Enterprise
Funds including water/wastewater, the airport, and stormwater; and the City of Lubock debt
profile, pensions, and investments results.

 
2:00 p.m. - Regular Session 
 
City Council reconvened at 2:00 p.m.
 
4. Ceremonial Items
 
4. 1. Invocation

 
Becky Robertson, executive director of Lubbock Impact, Inc., led the invocation.

 
4. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

 
Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Shelia
Patterson Harris.

 
Call to Order
 
The meeting was called to order at 2:02 p.m.
 
5. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on February 27, 2024. Citizen Comments provide an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 
 
No one appeared to speak. 

 
6. Minutes
 
6. 1. January 23, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting    

 
  Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve the January 23, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2024 Page 3 of 8



 
  Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Steve

Massengale, to approve items 7.1-7.29.  
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No.

2024-O0017, Amendment 10, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the General Fund Capital Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause. 

  

 
7. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0018,

Amendment 11, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

  

 
7. 2. 1. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0083 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 3 to the Department of State Health Services (DSHS) Contract No.
HHS001019500024, and all related documents, under the Vaccination Capacity Grant Program,
by and between the City of Lubbock, and the State of Texas, acting by and through DSHS. 

  

 
7. 2. 2. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0084 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract No. 2024-011610, and all related documents, by and between the City of
Lubbock and the National Association of County and City Health Officials, to enhance the
programmatic activities of the Centers for Disease Control Grant #6 NU38OT000306-04-01. 

  

 
7. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0019,

Amendment 12, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Gateway Streets Capital Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

  

 
7. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0023,

Amendment 13, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Streets
Capital Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

  

 
7. 5. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2024-R0085 accepting the City of Lubbock Annual

Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2023. 
  

 
7. 6. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0086 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 17710, with Playgrounds, Etc., for engineered wood fiber mulch for Public
Improvement District playgrounds.  

  

 
7. 7. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2024-O0020 abandoning and closing

portions of a Water Line Easement located south of 98th Street and east of Orlando Avenue in
Tract A, James Morgan Offices Addition, City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas. 

  

 
7. 8. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2024-O0021 abandoning and closing   

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2024 Page 4 of 8



7. 8. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2024-O0021 abandoning and closing
portions of an Underground Streetlight Cable Easement located at the southwest corner of 8th
Street and Frankford Avenue, in Lot A, Travis Tubbs Addition, Lubbock County, Texas. 

  

 
7. 9. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2024-O0022 abandoning and closing

portions of Street Right-of-Way located at 8th Street, east of Avenue G, and north of Lots 1 and
2, Block 74, of the Original Town of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas. 

  

 
7. 10. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0087 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for

and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Dedication
Deed, and all related items, in connection with certain real property located in the Section 38,
Block AK, GC & SF R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for the Upland
Avenue, from 34th Street to 50th Street Roadway Project. 

  

 
7. 11. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0088 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for

and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Dedication
Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 39,
Block AK, GC & SF R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for the Upland
Avenue, from 34th Street to 50th Street Roadway Project. 

  

 
7. 12. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0089 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

assignment by T-Mobile USA, Inc. to Victory Bank, of the Lease and the Amendment thereto,
and related documents, regarding a parcel of land located on the west side of Quaker Avenue
between 22nd Place and 23rd Street. 

  

 
7. 13. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0090 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 17035, by and between the
City and Parkhill, for engineering services for the design of 146th Street, from Quaker Avenue to
Indiana Avenue-22B Capital Improvements Project. 

  

 
7. 14. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Resolution No. 2024-R0091 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 17747, with Lone Star Dirt and Paving, Ltd., for the 2024 Street Maintenance
Program, Asphalt Repair and Patching Project. 

  

 
7. 15. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Resolution No. 2024-R0092 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 17751, with Digg Commercial, LLC, for the 2024 Street Maintenance
Program, Concrete Repair and Patching Project. 

  

 
7. 16. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0093 rejecting any and all bids

received for the demolition of the Coronado Site pursuant to ITB-24-17818-TF, and ordering
that no contract be entered into, pursuant to said invitation to bid. 

  

 
7. 17. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2024-R0094, recommendation authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 25101683, with Runway Safe, Inc., for the Continuous Friction Testing
Equipment at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport. 

  

 
7. 18. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2024-R0095 authorizing the Mayor to execute an   

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2024 Page 5 of 8



7. 18. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2024-R0095 authorizing the Mayor to execute an
agreement with Turo, Inc., for Peer-to-Peer Vehicle Sharing at Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport. 
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council. Kelly
Campbell, executive director of aviation, introduced Aaron Baza. Aaron Baza, airports team
with Turo, Inc., gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
7. 19. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2024-R0096 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 33001825, with Mythics, Inc, for a three-year renewal of Oracle
software licenses, maintenance, and support, for JD Edwards Enterprise One Capital Asset
Management. 

  

 
7. 20. Resolution - Fleet: Resolution No. 2024-R0097 authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase

Order 31079901, with Romco Paving Equipment, for the purchase of a low-profile cement silo
for the Water Distribution & Maintenance Department. 

  

 
7. 21. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2024-R0098 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

Amendment to the current Commercial Lease dated March 23, 2017, and all related documents,
with BR Griffin Oil & Gas, LTD, for the use of property and structures. 

  

 
7. 22. Resolution - Lubbock Power and Light: Resolution No. 2024-R0099 authorizing the Chief

Administrative Officer, or his designee, to execute the Seventh Amendment to the Professional
Services Agreement dated May 29, 2018, by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and
through Lubbock Power and Light (LP&L), and TMG Utility Advisory Services, Inc., for an
additional year to support staffing services, to sustain certain LP&L software programs. 

  

 
7. 23. Resolution - City Council: Resolution No. 2024-R0100 appointing Mitchell Satterwhite as

Interim City Attorney for the City of Lubbock, effective March 1, 2024. 
  

 
7. 24. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2024-R0101 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

ARPA Funding Agreement between the City of Lubbock and Ending Community Homelessness
Organization West Texas (ECHO WTX) for the purpose of enhancing supportive services for
the homeless community and service providers.  

  

 
7. 25. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 2): Ordinance No. 2024-O0011, for Zone Case

3111-A, a request of Parkhill for Starcare Specialty Health System, for a zone change from High
Density Residential District (HDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 3002 East
19th Street and 1950 Aspen Avenue, located south of East 19th Street and east of Aspen
Avenue, on 87 acres of land out of Block B, Section 3, including MHMR Addition, Tract A. 

  

 
7. 26. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2024-O0012, for Zone Case

3493, a request of R2M Engineering, LLC for Landshark Commercial Properties, LLC, for a
zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial
District (NC), generally located north and south of 151st Street and west of University Avenue,
on 8.71 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 2. 

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2024 Page 6 of 8



7. 27. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2024-O0013, for Zone Case
3496, a request of OJD Engineering, LLC for Toot’ N Totum, for a zone change from Low
Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 2416
130th Street, located east of University Avenue and north of 130th Street, on 2.71 acres of
unplatted land out of Block E, Section 15. 

  

 
7. 28. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2024-O0014, for Zone Case

2923-A, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Tom and Brenda Jones, for a zone
change from High Density Residential District (HDR), to Neighborhood Commercial District
(NC), generally located south of 87th Street, and east of Upland Avenue, Westwood Addition,
Tract A-2-A, and a portion of Tract A-1-A. 

  

 
7. 29. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2024-O0015, for Zone Case

3495, a request of Mark and Deborah Clark Trust, for a zone change from Low Density
Single-Family District (SF-2), to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 7109 Marsha Sharp
Freeway, located south of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of Rochester Avenue, on 0.43 acres
of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 30. 

  

 
8. Regular Agenda
 
8. 1. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2024-O0016, for Zone Case

3494, a request of the City of Lubbock, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family
District (SF-2) to Industrial Park District (IP), at 7401 Alcove Avenue, located north of Marsha
Sharp Freeway and east of Alcove Avenue, on 70.65 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK,
Section 31. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Mark W. McBrayer, seconded by Council Member Latrelle

Joy, to postpone this item to the August 27, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting. 
  Vote: 1 - 6 Failed

  NAY:  Mayor Tray Payne 
  Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris 
  Council Member Latrelle Joy 
  Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia 
  Council Member Steve Massengale 
  Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson 

 
  Motion by Council Member Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0016. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member Mark W. McBrayer 

 
8. 2. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Resolution No. 2024-R0102 amending the Fiscal Year   

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2024 Page 7 of 8



8. 2. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Resolution No. 2024-R0102 amending the Fiscal Year
2023-24 Delivery Service Rate/Tariff Schedule pursuant to §2.03.415(a) of the City of Lubbock
Code of Ordinances.
 
Harvey Hall, chief financial officer for LP&L, gave comments and answered questions from
City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Steve

Massengale, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0102. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

2:29 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Payne adjourned the meeting.

 
The February 27, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
26th day of March, 2024.

  
  ____________________________________

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2024 Page 8 of 8



 AI# 12370 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2024-O0024, Amendment 15, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Parks Capital Projects Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.
  

I. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92855, Berl Huffman Water Well, and appropriate
$215,000 to install a water well for the Berl Huffman Athletic Complex. The funding is from the
fund balance of the General Fund.
II. Amend the General Fund Transfer to Capital Improvement Project 92855 by increasing the
appropriation by $215,000, from $17,136,190 to $17,351,190.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 15 







 AI# 12357 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 1. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
17786, with Thunder Pump Service, for installation of a new water well system at the Berl Huffman
Athletic Complex. 

Item Summary
The intent of this contract will be to install a reliable water source for the irrigation system at the Berl
Huffman Athletic Complex to produce water for 194 watering zones, with 6 heads in each zone over 96
acres of land. This irrigation system waters 4 softball fields and 45 soccer fields. The contractor is
responsible for drilling the wells, installing the wells in their entirety, and connecting the wells to the
irrigation system.

The City advertised a Request for Proposals (RFP), and in response to RFP 24-17786-YB, one proposal
was received. The following criteria was considered for the proposal: 50 maximum points for Cost,
20 points for Qualifications, 15 points for References, and 15 points for Time Line. The score for the sole
proposal is as follows:
  

Contractor Scores
Thunder Pump Services, Lubbock, Texas 100

Staff recommends awarding Contract 17786 to Thunder Pump Services of Lubbock, Texas, for $214,058.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 17786, for $214,058 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92855 - Berl Huffman Water
Well.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
CIP Budget Detail 
Project Summary 







City of Lubbock

Parks & Recreation

RFP 24-17786-YB

Well at Berl Huffman

# Items

QTY

+/-

U/M

+/-

Unit 

Price

Extended 

Cost

#0-1 Drilling/Installing a Well & 

Connecting the Well to the Irrigation 

System - Per Specifications.

1 LS 214,058.48$    214,058.48$   

Thunder Pump Service of Shallowater, TX







Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

$

Agenda Item March 26, 2024

Thunder Pump Service - 17786 214,058                      

  Encumbered/Expended To Date 214,058                      

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Engineering and Design 942                             

  Remaining Appropriation 942                             

Total Appropriation 215,000$                    

Berl Huffman Water Well

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

March 26, 2024

92855



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 24-17786-YB  

Well at Berl Huffman 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on January 28 & February 04, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from January 26 to February 21, 2024. 

7 individuals attended the pre-proposal meeting. 

24 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

5 vendors were notified separately.  

1 vendor submitted proposal. 

 



 AI# 12332 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 2. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 14,
amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes regarding the reallocation of American
Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding for the Internal Service Capital Project Fund, General Capital Project
Fund, and the Water Capital Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
I. Amend Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 8669, Job Training - American Rescue Plan Act
(ARPA), by reducing the funding and appropriation by $280,000. 
II. Amend CIP 8672, Arts - ARPA, by reducing the funding and appropriation by $208,230 and
close CIP 8672.
III. Amend CIP 92806, West Lubbock Water System Expansion by increasing the appropriation
and funding by $3,918,917. The funding is ARPA funds remaining of $208,230 from CIP 8672
Arts - ARPA, $280,000 from CIP 8669 Job Training - ARPA, $500,000 from ARPA contingency,
and $2,930,687 from undesignated ARPA funds.
IV. Amend CIP 92759, Public Safety Improvements - ARPA, by increasing funding and
appropriation by $72,346, from $3,850,000 to $3,922,346.  The funding is from undesignated
ARPA funds.
V. Amend CIP 92754, Cyber Security Infrastructure - ARPA, by increasing funding and
appropriation by $9,500, from $2,240,500 to 2,250,000.  The funding is from undesignated ARPA
funds.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 14 







 AI# 12391 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 3. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 16,
amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Donations Fund; providing for
filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary

Accept and appropriate a $43,398.72 donation for the Tornado Memorial for repair of the fountain.
This will be in the Donations Fund.

I.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 16 







 AI# 12380 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 3. 1. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept a donation
in the amount of $47,398.72 from Lubbock Experience, Inc., for the maintenance and repairs of the
Tornado Memorial located at the corner of Avenue Q and Glenna Goodacre Boulevard.

Item Summary
As part of the Downtown Revitalization Action Plan, the City Council approved a capital project in
February 2016, to construct a Downtown Gateway Tornado Memorial, and they appropriated funding for
the construction of the project. In June 2019, the City Council authorized the Mayor to execute a License
Agreement with Lubbock Experience, Inc., a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization, for the construction of the
Tornado Memorial. 

Lubbock Experience, Inc., assumed responsibility for the construction of the Memorial, with the opening
date occurring on May 11, 2021. Significant private funds were raised for the project as well as a prior
approval of funds from the Central Business District Tax Increment Financing zone.  Upon completion
of the Memorial, the license agreement expired and future maintenance of the site reverted to the City
for long-term care and operation.  
 
This resolution authorizes the remaining funds held by Lubbock Experience, Inc., to be transferred to the
Parks Department for needed maintenance and repairs to the Tornado Memorial.

Fiscal Impact
The donation of $47,398.72 to the Parks and Recreation Donation Account is to assist with costs
associated with the maintenance of the Tornado Memorial.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Donation Form 



RESOLUTION

WhEREAS, Lubbock Experience. Inc., wishes to donate the amount of Forty-Seven
Thousand l’hree hundred Ninety-Eight Dollars and Seventy-two Cents ($47,398.72) (the
1)onation”) in order to facilitate and assist the City in performing maintenance and repairs to
the lubbock lornado Memorial located at the corner of Avenue Q and (ulenna Goodacre

• lioulevard; and

WhEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lubbock, as the governing body of the City

101 Lubbock, believes that it is in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare oFthe citizens
of Lubbock to accept the Donation; and

WHEREAS. the Cily wishes to accept the Donation in order to carry out a public
purpose that benefits the public interest: NOW TI IEREFORE:

BE IT RESOLVEI) BY I] Il CRY COUNCil. OF TIlE CITY OF LtJIffiOCK:

lI IAT the City Council of the City of Lubbock hereby accepts for and on behalf of the
City of Lubbock a donation in the amount of Forty-Seven Thousand three hundred Ninety
Eight Dollars and Seventy-Two Cents ($47,398.72) for the purpose of providing maintenance
and repairs to the Lubbock lornado Memorial for the benefit of the citizens of the City; and

THAT the City Council shall approve any expenditures required to Facilitate the
acceptance and use of the Donation; and

TI hAT the City Council finds it to be in the best interest of the eitiens of the City of
Lubbock in order to expedite the perlbrmance of city business, to delegate authority to execute
any necessary or related documents associated with the Donation to the City Manager of the
City of Lubbock, or his designee.

Passed by the City Council on

___________________________-

, 2024.

TRAY PAYNE. MAYOR

jVITESl:

Courtney Paz. City Secretary



APPROVED AS ‘10 CONIENI’:

tcdte uj*ut
I3rookc Witcher, Assi;tant City Manager

APPROVEI) AS 10 FORM:

Rachaci Foster,Assistant City Attorney

cedocs! I/k ES .1 ubbock Experience. ljic.-I’ornado Memorial l)onation

3.7.24

2





 AI# 12392 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 4. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 17,
amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant Fund; providing for
filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
I. Accept and appropriate $220,509 from the Texas Department of State Health Services for the
Immunization Locals Grant.
II. Accept and appropriate $77,938.70 from the Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC)
for the Treatment for Adults Grant.
III. Accept and appropriate $219.33 from the Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) for
the Treatment of Youth Grant.
IV. Accept and appropriate $8,881.66 from the Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC)
for the Treatment for the Specialized Female Grant.
V. Accept and appropriate $695.79 from the Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) for
the Co-occurring Psychiatric and Substance Use Disorders Grant.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 17 







 AI# 12400 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 5. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 18,
amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the General Capital Project Fund;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
I. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92856, Municipal Museum Improvements, and
appropriate funding in the amount of $126,537. Funding will be from the General Capital Project
Fund.

Fiscal Impact
Included In Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 18 







 AI# 12399 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 6. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 19,
amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant Fund; providing for
filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
I. Accept and appropriate $274,430 from the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) for the Energy
Efficiency Community Block Grant (EECBG) Equipment Rebate Voucher Program.

Fiscal Impact
Included In Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment #19 







 AI# 12408 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 7. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Amendment Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 20,
amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Water Capital Project Fund;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary

Establish Capital Improvement Project 92857, Loop 88 Segment 3D Water Line Relocation, and
appropriate $1,953,403. The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) will reimburse the City
in the amount of $1,905,154. Funding in the amount of $48,249 will be from the Water Capital
Project Fund.

I.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 20 







 AI# 12340 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 8. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to
purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, airport and non-owned aircraft liability insurance
coverage from Ace Property and Casualty Insurance Company, for which the premium amount shall not
exceed $41,490.00.

Item Summary
Airport liability insurance covers liability claims that the City is legally obligated to pay for bodily injury
and property damage resulting from airport operations. Non-owned aircraft liability covers liability
claims that the City is legally obligated to pay for bodily injury and property damage resulting from the
occupancy or operation of a non-owned aircraft, including general liability, automobile liability, products
and completed operations, fire legal liability, and hangar keepers liability for both commercial or private
aircraft.
 
The City purchases airport and non-owned aircraft liability insurance separately from its package
liability insurance program, which specifically excludes aircraft operations except for law enforcement
liability.
 
The current insurance policy is with Ace Property and Casualty Insurance Company, with a premium
of $37,537, and it has $50,000,000 in coverage for airport liability insurance and non-owned aircraft
liability insurance. This policy is not subject to a deductible.
 
The renewal quote from Ace Property and Casualty Insurance Company, the only quote submitted,
includes the same coverage as the current policy with a renewal premium of $41,490.00, an increase of
10.53%.
 
Carriers bind insurance coverage on April 1, 2024, after notification of City Council approval. Insurance
policies are issued after premiums are received from the City. The policy for the insurance coverage is
approved by the Texas Department of Insurance as to content and may not be modified. Current
insurance policies are available in Risk Management.

Fiscal Impact
Funds are included in the FY 2023-24 Risk Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - Airport 



Airport Coverage 









 AI# 12347 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 9. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to
purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, workers’ compensation coverage from the Texas
Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool, for which the total amount shall not exceed
$1,970,994.44.

Item Summary
The City is required by the Labor Code to provide workers' compensation benefits to all municipal
employees. The City extends workers' compensation benefits to elected officials, board members, and
volunteers, to limit liability exposure. Workers' compensation provides medical care and lost wages, on a
no-fault basis.
 
The City currently purchases workers' compensation coverage from the Texas Municipal League
Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TMLIRP) on a deductible plan, in which the City pays a discounted
premium of $1,682,288 for a one-time payment, plus a $100,000 deductible deposit. At the end of each
month, the City reimburses TMLIRP for any claims that do not meet the deductible of $25,000. The
current year's contribution for workers' compensation insurance is $1,782,288, a 10.6% increase over the
expiring policy.
 
Staff recommends TMLIRP continuing this plan of a $25,000 deductible plan with a single annual
payment of $1,870,997.44, plus the $100,000 deductible deposit and monthly reconciliation for claims
which do not meet the $25,000 threshold.  The total proposed contribution for workers' compensation
insurance is $1,970,994.44.
 
Carriers bind coverage on April 1, 2024, after notification of City Council approval. The inter-local
agreement will be issued after premiums are received from the City. Current insurance policies are
available in Risk Management.

Fiscal Impact
Funds are included in the approved FY 2023-24 Risk Management Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - Workers' Comp 
Workers' Comp Coverage 



















 AI# 12343 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 10. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to
purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, layered excess liability insurance coverage (the
Program) from Texas Insurance Company (35.714% of the Program) and Upland Specialty Insurance
Company (64.286% of the Program), for which the premium amount shall not exceed $422,928.01 and
$761,280.09, respectively.

Item Summary
Excess liability insurance provides additional liability limits that are in excess of the package liability
policies for the following: General liability; Auto liability; Employment practices liability; Employee
benefits liability; Law enforcement liability; and Public officials errors and omissions liability.
 
This is a continuation of the City’s current layered coverage; 35.714% from Texas Insurance Company
for an expiring premium of $388,443.89, and 64.286% from Upland Specialty Insurance Company for an
expiring premium of $699.208.66, for $7,000,000 of coverage per occurrence and an aggregate limit of
$14,000,000. This program also includes additional abuse and molestation coverage as well as pollutant
coverage. Staff recommends renewal of this layered coverage program for a premium not to exceed
$1,184,208.10, which is an increase of 8.88%.
 
Carriers bind insurance coverage on April 1, 2024, after notification of City Council approval. Insurance
policies are issued after premiums are received from the City. The policy for the insurance coverage is
approved by the Texas Department of Insurance as to content. Current insurance policies are available in
Risk Management.

Fiscal Impact
Funds are included in the FY 2023-24 Risk Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - Layered Excess Coverage 
Layered Excess Coverage 















 AI# 12348 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 11. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to
purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, boiler and machinery insurance coverage from
Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, for which the premium amount shall not exceed a rate of $0.0036
per $100 equipment valuation.

Item Summary
Boiler and machinery insurance provides coverage for the mechanical failure and damage of generating
equipment, boilers, heating, ventilating, air conditioning equipment, pumps and other mechanical
equipment, excluding wear and tear. Rates are determined by the total insured value of City properties,
currently appraised at $989,932,789. The quote includes loss prevention services for mandatory state
inspections of boilers and infrared thermographic testing for electrical boxes in City-owned facilities.
Approving this insurance coverage on a rate basis allows the City Manager the ability to add and remove
equipment, as necessary, to maintain an accurate equipment valuation. This policy excludes Lubbock
Power & Light as they are insured by a different carrier.
 
The City's current boiler and machinery insurance coverage is provided by Liberty Mutual Insurance
Company. The expiring premium is $34,276.90.
 
Staff recommends renewal of boiler and machinery coverage with Liberty Mutual Insurance Company
for a premium of $33,674. This policy is subject to a deductible of $25,000 per occurrence and
$100,000,000 in annual aggregate limit.
 
Carriers bind insurance coverage on April 1, 2024, after notification of City Council approval. Insurance
policies are issued after premiums are received from the City. The policy for the insurance coverage is
approved by the Texas Department of Insurance as to content.
 
Current insurance policies are available in Risk Management.

Fiscal Impact
Funds are budgeted in the FY 2023-24 Risk Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - Boiler and Machinery 
Boiler and Machinery Coverage 















 AI# 12349 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 12. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to
purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, property terrorism insurance coverage from
Underwriters at Lloyd’s of London, for which the premium amount shall not exceed a rate of $0.0033 per
$100 valuation.

Item Summary
Property terrorism insurance provides coverage which protects against the financial ramifications of
foreign and domestic threats. In previous years, this coverage has been included in the City’s property
coverage. However, this stand-alone policy with a $50,000,000 per occurrence limit and no deductible is
more fiscally beneficial to the organization. The City’s current coverage had a premium of $36,724,
based on the City’s total insured value of $989,932,289 and covers an 18-month policy period.
 
Staff recommends continuation of property terrorism insurance coverage from Underwriters at Lloyd’s
of London with a policy limit of $50,000,000, same terms for an annual premium of $33,116.92, an
increase of 35.27%. Approving this insurance coverage on a rate basis allows the City Manager the
ability to add and remove property, as necessary, to maintain an accurate property valuation.
 
Carriers bind insurance coverage on April 1, 2024, after notification of City Council approval. Insurance
policies are issued after premiums are received from the City. The premium for the insurance coverage
and the policy are approved by the Texas Department of Insurance as to content. Current insurance
policies are available in Risk Management.

Fiscal Impact
Funds are budgeted in the FY 2023-24 Risk Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - Terrorism 
Terrorism Coverage 











 AI# 12350 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 13. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, to purchase property insurance coverage with Lloyd’s – HCC
Insurance; Lloyds-Fidelis Insurance; StarStone Specialty Insurance; Sutton Specialty Insurance;
Lexington Insurance; Fidelis; Arch Specialty Insurance; Palms Specialty Insurance; Evanston Insurance
Company; Kinsale Insurance Company; Axis Surplus Insurance Company; James River Insurance;
Texas Insurance Company; Trisura Specialty; Harleysville Insurance Company of New York; Mitsui
Sumitomo; Landmark American Insurance and AXA XL Insurance Companies, for which the premium
shall not exceed a rate of $0.3016 per $100 of valuation.

Item Summary
The City purchases property insurance for its structures, contents, and equipment, excluding Lubbock
Power and Light because they are covered under a separate policy. The coverage includes, but is not
limited to: 

Special Form Property Policy, formerly known as All Risk, covers direct physical loss up to
$400,000,000. The estimated total value of all City structures, contents, and equipment is
$989,932,789. A total loss is considered unlikely; therefore, $400,000,000 in coverage is
recommended.
Flood and earthquake coverage is limited to $50,000,000 for moderate hazard zones and $5,000,000
for high hazard zones.
All property and contents, excluding mobile equipment and vehicles, are covered at replacement
cost.
Mobile equipment and vehicles parked at a covered location are covered at actual cash value.
Windstorm and hail coverage has a deductible of $500,000 per occurrence.
Mobile equipment and vehicles valued at $100,000 or greater will be covered at actual cash value
for physical damage while in use, subject to a $2,500,000 limit annually, and a per occurrence
deductible of $250,000.

The City currently utilizes a layered coverage program, including Lloyd’s of London, Hallmark
Specialty Ins Company, Kemah, Zurich Ins Group, Fidelis Ins Company, Arch Specialty Ins Company,
Rivington, Markel Ins Company, StarStone/Core Specialty Ins Company, James River Ins Company,
Harleysville Ins Company, Mitsui Sumitomo Ins Company, RSUI Group, Intact Ins Group, Liberty Ins
Company and Hiscox Ins Group, for a premium of $4,182,472, a rate of $0.2817 per $100 of valuation
for an 18-month policy period.
 
The proposed coverage is also a layered program from Lloyd’s – HCC Insurance; Lloyds-Fidelis
Insurance; StarStone Specialty Insurance; Sutton Specialty Insurance; Lexington Insurance; Fidelis;
Arch Specialty Insurance; Palms Specialty Insurance; Evanston Insurance Company; Kinsale Insurance
Company; Axis Surplus Insurance Company; James River Insurance; Texas Insurance Company;
Trisura Specialty; Harleysville Insurance Company of New York; Mitsui Sumitomo; Landmark
American Insurance and AXA XL Insurance Companies consisting, for a premium of $2,985,295.70, at
a rate of $0.3016 per $100 of valuation for an annual policy period. This is a 7.06% increase from the



current year. Approving this insurance coverage on a rate basis allows the City Manager the ability to
add and remove properties, as necessary, to maintain an accurate property valuation.
 
Carriers bind insurance coverage on April 1, 2024, after notification of City Council approval. Insurance
policies are issued once the insurance company receives from the City the contribution for the insurance
coverage. Current coverage documents are available in Risk Management.

Fiscal Impact
Funds are budgeted in the FY 2023-24 Risk Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - COL Property 
COL Property Coverage 















 AI# 12351 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 14. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to
purchase for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Network Security and Privacy Insurance coverage
from Crum & Forster Insurance Company, for which the premium amount shall not exceed $110,500.

Item Summary
In addition to the City’s internal methods of data breach prevention, Network Security and Privacy
Insurance coverage would further protect the City from information privacy and network security
breaches by providing coverage for Privacy Liability, Network Security, and Media Liability and
Regulatory action.
 
The City’s current coverage is written by Cowbell Cyber, at an 18-month policy premium of $235,129
for a $1,000,000 limit, with a self-insurance retention of $100,000. It includes coverage for cyber
incident response, voluntary shutdown, digital asset destruction data retrieval and system restoration, and
reputational harm.
 
The City’s broker was able to secure a renewal with Crum & Forster Insurance Company for an annual
premium not to exceed $110,500 a decrease of 29.51% over the expiring premium. This policy offers
$100,000 retention and a $2,000,000 aggregate limit. It covers business interruption coverage, cyber
liability and incident response, cyber extortion, as well as bricking coverage.
 
Carriers bind insurance coverage on April 1, 2024, after notification of City Council approval. Insurance
policies are issued after premiums are received from the City. The policy for the insurance coverage is
approved by the Texas Department of Insurance as to content. Current insurance policies are available in
Risk Management.

Fiscal Impact
Funds are budgeted in the FY 2023-24 Risk Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - Cyber 
Cyber Coverage 





 

This proposal is merely a descriptive summary of coverage provided by the insurance companies being proposed and should be used for 

reference purposes only; it is not a binder and does not amend or alter the insurance contract. Please refer to the policy contract for specific 

terms, conditions, limitations, and exclusions. 
 

Proposal date: 03/12/2024 Prepared for City of Lubbock 

Confidential. © 2021 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved.                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                                                                                  | 44 

Cyber Liability 
 

 

Insurance Company: Crum & Forster Insurance Company 

Policy Term: 04/01/2024 to 04/01/2025 

Coverage: Provides coverage for claims arising from an insured’s liability due to damage 

or injury to others during performance of their duties or business.  The loss can 

be reported years later, but the key is when it happened. 

Annual Premium: $110,500.00 Including Fees 
 

 

  



 

This proposal is merely a descriptive summary of coverage provided by the insurance companies being proposed and should be used for 

reference purposes only; it is not a binder and does not amend or alter the insurance contract. Please refer to the policy contract for specific 

terms, conditions, limitations, and exclusions. 
 

Proposal date: 03/12/2024 Prepared for City of Lubbock 

Confidential. © 2021 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved.                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                                                                                  | 45 

 
 

Key Endorsements, Limitations, Warranties and Exclusions include, but are not limited to, the following: 

Description 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Excluded coverage may be available for an additional premium.  

 

Other exclusions and policy limitations may apply.  Please refer to the actual policies for specific terms, 

conditions, limitations and exclusions that will govern in the event of a loss. 

 



 AI# 12410 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 15. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a contract with
Kroll, LLC, for appraisal services of City-owned property.

Item Summary
Each year, Risk Management procures insurance coverage for the organization. Numerous natural
disasters have caused unprecedented losses to insurance carriers over the last several years, resulting in a
‘hardening’ of the property insurance market and increasing premiums.
 
The insurance industry standard for property appraisals is three to five years in order to remain current.
The City conducted property appraisals in 2020; therefore, in order to maintain the City’s marketability
to prospective carriers, physical inspections and detailed appraisals of City-owned properties are needed
to provide a true evaluation of assets for underwriters to base future premiums on.
 
Kroll, LLC, will verify and document the perimeter and square footage of each building, identify and
report construction type(s), GPS coordinates, occupancy, building designation, roof type and age, heating
and cooling systems, story height of each floor, electric wiring, intrusion systems, and fire protection
systems.

Fiscal Impact
Funds are included in the FY 2023-24 Risk Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resoution - Property Appraisals 
Contract - Property Appraisals 





































 AI# 12365 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 16. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant Program
(Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Duncan Bradley Green, located at 504
Avenue G, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market
Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
Duncan Bradley Green is renovating his property at 504 Avenue G, which is located within the
Downtown Tax Increment Financing District Boundary, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The
scope of the facade project includes exterior painting, landscaping and signage. 

The cost of the project is estimated to be $50,000, and the requested grant amount is $25,000. The
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their February 28, 2024 Board
Meeting, and recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $50,000, with $25,000 to be paid upon completion by
Market Lubbock, Inc. with the requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer 
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







MARKET LUBBOCK, INC. – DOWNTOWN GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

504 Avenue G 

(Duncan Bradley Green, Property Owner) 

 
TOTAL SCOPE OF WORK = $548,000 

GRANT TOTAL = $74,800 

 

TOTAL FAÇADE SCOPE OF WORK = $50,000 

FAÇADE GRANT = $25,000 

 

TOTAL PERMITTABLE SCOPE OF WORK = $498,000 

PERMITTABLE GRANT = $49,800 

 



 
 

Downtown Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

February 28, 2024 
 
 

Project 504 Ave G (Façade & Permittable) 
Duncan Bradley Green, owner of 504 Ave G, is making improvements to both the interior and the exterior 
of his property, located in the Downtown TIF.  
 
Duncan Bradley (Brad) Green has been an avid supporter of the revitalization of the downtown Lubbock 
area for more than 30 years.  Brad purchased the property at 504 Avenue G in 1993 with a dream of 
developing the old warehouse into a vibrant event space for the arts, music, and family gatherings. The 
planned renovation of this 504 G warehouse is the culmination of Brad’s dream for an event center in the 
downtown warehouse area. Brad and his business partner Bill Morris continued to purchase more 
properties in downtown Lubbock in 1997.  The property located at 601-607 Main Street has now been 
redeveloped into professional office space and is home to their CPA practices and Brad’s financial 
planning practice. Brad and Bill also redeveloped portions of these downtown properties into upscale loft 
and studio apartments adjacent to their offices. (611-619 Main Street). 
 
The scope of façade work will include exterior painting, landscaping, and signage totaling $50,000 in 
façade expenses. Permittable expenses will include electrical, plumbing, HVAC, and demolition totaling 
$498,000 in permittable expenses. $548,000 in total expenses.  
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Downtown Façade Grant for Duncan Bradley Green, property 
owner, totaling $25,000 and a Downtown Permittable Grant of $49,800 at 504 Ave G. 
 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Director of Downtown & Special Projects Phone: 806.749.4500
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION
Contact

Title
Phone
Email 

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT
Property Ownership: Own Lease Permittable Façade 

Project Summary Scope 

COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Percent
100%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? No �
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? Yes 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No �
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? No 

If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.
Downtown Grant - Application

806-305-9600 office/ cell 806-535-5585
Brad.green@gm-cpa.com

Remodel and update warehouse building to become an event center for art, music, and private events. New roof, new 
plumbing, new HVAC, new electrical, exterior improvements of landscaping, porches, awnings, windows, doors, concrete 

Street Address

Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

City, State, Zip

Company Name

02/04/22

03/01/22

504 Avenue G, Lubbock, TX (Event Center) JQ
R91646

Duncan Bradley Green
601 Main Street

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached) Projected MLI Approved 

$49,800Permittable $498,000

Percent

Lubbock, TX 79401

Brad Green
Owner

Façade $25,000$50,000

Grant Type: 

TOTAL $548,000 $74,800
Final bids will be used to calculate the project cost and grant amount.

Duncan Bradley Green
Name Name

Building is owned by an individual. There is no sole proprietor registration required with the TX SOS office.

1 MLI 3.8.21

mailto:jorge@marketlubbock.org
mailto:Brad.green@gm-cpa.com
mailto:Brad.green@gm-cpa.com
mailto:Brad.green@gm-cpa.com
mailto:Brad.green@gm-cpa.com


Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No �

After Completion of Construction

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)

Brad Green

2/3/22 per email

Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving 
Completion (Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching 
approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements 
matching PAID invoices (legible copies)

Date:

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

APPLICANT'S CHECKLIST:

Initial application received by MLI prior to the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application packet presented to the MLI Board no 
more than three months after the initial application is received by MLI.

Contact Brianna Gerardi, City Director of Development bgerardi@mylubbock.us , to determine:

Documents Required for Final Grant Application

Does the scope of work meet downtown standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?

Architectural Plans (if applicable)

Copy of building's current certificate of occupancy (request at 
orr@mylubbock.us)

Copies of City permits, if applicable
Detailed/Itemized Bids
Before Pictures

Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

2 MLI 3.8.21



504 Ave G 

 

Jorge.Quirino
Pencil



Jorge.Quirino
Highlight



504 Ave G – Architectural Plans 

 

 



 AI# 12366 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 17. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant Program
(Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Duncan Bradley Green, located at
504 Avenue G, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market
Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
Duncan Bradley Green is renovating his property at 504 Avenue G, which is located within the
Downtown Tax Increment Financing District Boundary, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The
scope of the permittable project includes heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC), electrical,
plumbing, and demolition. 

The cost of the project is estimated to be $498,000, and the requested grant amount is $49,800. The
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their February 28, 2024 Board
Meeting, and recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $498,000, with $49,800 to be paid upon completion by
Market Lubbock, Inc. with the requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer 
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







MARKET LUBBOCK, INC. – DOWNTOWN GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

504 Avenue G 

(Duncan Bradley Green, Property Owner) 

 
TOTAL SCOPE OF WORK = $548,000 

GRANT TOTAL = $74,800 

 

TOTAL FAÇADE SCOPE OF WORK = $50,000 

FAÇADE GRANT = $25,000 

 

TOTAL PERMITTABLE SCOPE OF WORK = $498,000 

PERMITTABLE GRANT = $49,800 

 



 
 

Downtown Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

February 28, 2024 
 
 

Project 504 Ave G (Façade & Permittable) 
Duncan Bradley Green, owner of 504 Ave G, is making improvements to both the interior and the exterior 
of his property, located in the Downtown TIF.  
 
Duncan Bradley (Brad) Green has been an avid supporter of the revitalization of the downtown Lubbock 
area for more than 30 years.  Brad purchased the property at 504 Avenue G in 1993 with a dream of 
developing the old warehouse into a vibrant event space for the arts, music, and family gatherings. The 
planned renovation of this 504 G warehouse is the culmination of Brad’s dream for an event center in the 
downtown warehouse area. Brad and his business partner Bill Morris continued to purchase more 
properties in downtown Lubbock in 1997.  The property located at 601-607 Main Street has now been 
redeveloped into professional office space and is home to their CPA practices and Brad’s financial 
planning practice. Brad and Bill also redeveloped portions of these downtown properties into upscale loft 
and studio apartments adjacent to their offices. (611-619 Main Street). 
 
The scope of façade work will include exterior painting, landscaping, and signage totaling $50,000 in 
façade expenses. Permittable expenses will include electrical, plumbing, HVAC, and demolition totaling 
$498,000 in permittable expenses. $548,000 in total expenses.  
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Downtown Façade Grant for Duncan Bradley Green, property 
owner, totaling $25,000 and a Downtown Permittable Grant of $49,800 at 504 Ave G. 
 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Director of Downtown & Special Projects Phone: 806.749.4500
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION
Contact

Title
Phone
Email 

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT
Property Ownership: Own Lease Permittable Façade 

Project Summary Scope 

COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Percent
100%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? No �
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? Yes 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No �
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? No 

If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.
Downtown Grant - Application

806-305-9600 office/ cell 806-535-5585
Brad.green@gm-cpa.com

Remodel and update warehouse building to become an event center for art, music, and private events. New roof, new 
plumbing, new HVAC, new electrical, exterior improvements of landscaping, porches, awnings, windows, doors, concrete 

Street Address

Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

City, State, Zip

Company Name

02/04/22

03/01/22

504 Avenue G, Lubbock, TX (Event Center) JQ
R91646

Duncan Bradley Green
601 Main Street

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached) Projected MLI Approved 

$49,800Permittable $498,000

Percent

Lubbock, TX 79401

Brad Green
Owner

Façade $25,000$50,000

Grant Type: 

TOTAL $548,000 $74,800
Final bids will be used to calculate the project cost and grant amount.

Duncan Bradley Green
Name Name

Building is owned by an individual. There is no sole proprietor registration required with the TX SOS office.

1 MLI 3.8.21

mailto:jorge@marketlubbock.org
mailto:Brad.green@gm-cpa.com
mailto:Brad.green@gm-cpa.com
mailto:Brad.green@gm-cpa.com
mailto:Brad.green@gm-cpa.com


Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No �

After Completion of Construction

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)

Brad Green

2/3/22 per email

Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving 
Completion (Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching 
approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements 
matching PAID invoices (legible copies)

Date:

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

APPLICANT'S CHECKLIST:

Initial application received by MLI prior to the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application packet presented to the MLI Board no 
more than three months after the initial application is received by MLI.

Contact Brianna Gerardi, City Director of Development bgerardi@mylubbock.us , to determine:

Documents Required for Final Grant Application

Does the scope of work meet downtown standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?

Architectural Plans (if applicable)

Copy of building's current certificate of occupancy (request at 
orr@mylubbock.us)

Copies of City permits, if applicable
Detailed/Itemized Bids
Before Pictures

Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

2 MLI 3.8.21



504 Ave G 

 

Jorge.Quirino
Pencil



Jorge.Quirino
Highlight



504 Ave G – Architectural Plans 

 

 



 AI# 12367 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 18. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Downtown Grant Program
(Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Q-505 dba Double Tree Lubbock
University Area, located at 505 Avenue Q, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and
Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
Double Tree Lubbock University Area is renovating their property at 505 Avenue Q, which is located
within the Downtown Tax Increment Financing District Boundary, as designated by the City of
Lubbock. The scope of the facade project includes repairing the north and east parking lots. 

The cost of the project is estimated to be $50,533, and the requested grant amount is $25,000. The
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their February 28, 2024 Board
Meeting, and recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $50,533, with $25,000 to be paid upon completion by
Market Lubbock, Inc. with the requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer 
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







MARKET LUBBOCK, INC. – DOWNTOWN GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

505 Ave Q 

(Q-505, LLC – dba Double Tree Lubbock University Area) 

 
TOTAL SCOPE OF WORK = $50,533 

FACADE GRANT = $25,000 



 
 

Downtown Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

February 28, 2024 
 
 

Project 505 Ave Q (Façade) 
Q-505, LLC, dba Double Tree Lubbock University Area, is making improvements to the north and east 
parking lot areas 505 Ave Q, located within the Downtown TIF. The scope of work will include repairing 
the north and east parking lots totaling $50,533 in façade expenses.   
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Downtown Facade Grant for Q-505, LLC, totaling $25,000 at 
505 Ave Q. 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Director of Downtown & Special Projects Phone: 806.749.4500
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION
Contact

Title
Phone
Email 

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT
Property Ownership: Own Lease Permittable Façade 

Project Summary Scope 

COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Percent
>5%
>5%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? Yes �
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? Yes 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.
Downtown Grant - Application

832-453-6050
travisstribling@gmail.com

Street Address

Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

City, State, Zip

Company Name

02/08/24

02/12/24

505 Ave Q, Lubbock, TX 79410
73249

Q-505, LLC
119 S. Irving St.

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached) Projected

>5%

MLI Approved 

Percent

San Angelo, TX 76903

Travis Stribling
Owner

Grant Type: 

We are looking to continue with the replacement of parking lot surface around our building. The scope of this work is to focus 
initially on replacing asphalt drive lanes with concrete. The scope of this replacement is an area on the eastern boundary of 
our property that includes an access easement (formerly Pecos Ave). We will replace from the back of the new concrete 
approach on Mac Davis to the southern edge of the overflow parking spaces on the northern portion of our site. This 
driveway has seen a significant increase in traffic due to TxDOT/City of Lubbock improvements to Ave Q that includes a 
concrete center median, prohibiting Southbound traffic on Ave Q from turning onto our property. Rather, guests are forced to 
turn onto Mac Davis Lane and enter the property through our approach on the eastern side of the property. We are also 
replacing the drive lane that runs between our building and the Super 8 to the North of our property.

Final bids will be used to calculate the project cost and grant amount.

Travis Stribling
Ben Stribling

Bob Stribling
Name Name

$50,533 $25,000TOTAL

Façade - Northern Lot ($9,724 + $5,440)
Façade - Eastern Lot ($30,600 + $4,769)

$15,164
$35,369

$7,582
$17,418

1 MLI 11.17.23

mailto:jorge@marketlubbock.org
mailto:travisstribling@gmail.com
mailto:travisstribling@gmail.com
mailto:travisstribling@gmail.com
mailto:travisstribling@gmail.com


Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No �
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? Yes 

If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No �

Is the firm a non-profit entity? No �

After Completion of Construction

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)

Travis Stribling

per email 2/8/24

Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving 
Completion (Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching 
approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements 
matching PAID invoices (legible copies)

Date:

Q-505 LLC was involved in litigation with the contractor hired to remodel the hotel (WB General Contractors). That dispute 
has been resolved.

Initial application received by MLI prior to the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application packet presented to the MLI Board no 
more than three months after the initial application is received by MLI.

Contact Brianna Gerardi, City Director of Development bgerardi@mylubbock.us , to determine:

Documents Required for Final Grant Application

Does the scope of work meet downtown standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

APPLICANT'S CHECKLIST:

Architectural Plans (if applicable)

Copy of building's current certificate of occupancy (request at 
orr@mylubbock.us)

Copies of City permits, if applicable
Detailed/Itemized Bids
Before Pictures

Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

2 MLI 11.17.23



505 Ave Q – Before Pictures 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



505 Ave Q – Parking Lot Bids 

 



 



 AI# 12368 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 19. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial Revitalization
Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Chuck Chapman
Electric, Inc., dba CC Electric, located at 1219 Avenue A, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
In May 2023, the City Council authorized the continuation of the Lubbock East Neighborhood
Empowerment Zone, and the establishment of the 34th Street Empowerment Zone and the North
University Empowerment Zone. This action was taken to encourage redevelopment and revitalization
within the City of Lubbock, through the promotion of economic development within the Zones. Through
the establishment of the three Zones, Market Lubbock, Inc. has geographic boundaries within which it
can implement its Commercial Revitalization Grant Program. 

CC Electric is renovating their property at 1219 Avenue A, located within the Lubbock East
Neighborhood Empowerment Zone, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The scope of the facade
project includes new glass windows and doors, parking lot seal coat, new fencing and gates, and new
turf. The cost of the project is estimated to be $34,563, and the requested grant amount is $17,282. The
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their February 28, 2024 Board
Meeting, and recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $34,563, with $17,282 to be paid by Market Lubbock, Inc.
upon completion with the requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer 
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







MARKET LUBBOCK, INC.   COMMERCIAL REVITALIZATION 
GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

1219 Ave A 

(Chuck Chapman Electric, Inc., dba C C Electric) 

 
SCOPE OF FAÇADE WORK = $34,563 

FAÇADE GRANT = $17,282 

 

 



 
 

Commercial Revitalization Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

February 28, 2024 
 
 

Project 1219 Ave A (Façade) 
Chuck Chapman, owner of C C Electric is renovating the exterior of his property located at 1219 Ave A.  
 
With a legacy spanning over three decades, Chuck Chapman Electric Inc. (DBA CC Electric) stands as a 
cornerstone in the electrical industry, specializing in premium commercial, industrial, and residential 
services. Since 1992, their unwavering commitment to excellence has fueled their journey. 
 
From wiring the foundations of commercial spaces to illuminating industrial complexes, their expert 
electricians have seamlessly woven innovation and precision into every project. With a client-centric 
approach, they have cultivated enduring relationships, becoming a trusted partner for businesses across 
diverse sectors. 
 
C. C. Electric’s 30-year milestone is a testament to their adaptability and industry leadership. They’ve 
evolved with advancements, consistently integrating cutting-edge technologies to engineer solutions. 
Powering progress, they have contributed to the growth of countless enterprises. 
 
At C.C. Electric, their history fuels their future. As they celebrate their legacy, they continue to champion 
quality, safety, and client satisfaction. With gratitude to their patrons and a commitment to the road 
ahead, they’re excited to illuminate the next chapter together. 
 
The scope of work will include new glass windows/doors, parking lot seal coat, new fence and gate, and 
new turf totaling $34,563 in façade expenses.  
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Commercial Revitalization Grant Program Façade Grant for    
C C Electric totaling $17,282 at 1219 Ave A. 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Special Projects Phone: 806.23.8241
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY CONTACT

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT

Lease 
Owner Approved

Façade 

Detailed Project Summary (including projected start date) and Description of Work:

Projected

$34,563 $17,282

Grant Type (May choose both if applicable): 

Chuck Chapman

Permittable 

Fence and Gate

Replace windows, door, fencing, gate and seal coat parking lot.

$9,485
$6,425
$4,743

$1,608
$10,621 $5,311

TOTAL
Final bids will be used to calculate the project cost and grant amount.

Lubbock, TX 79401

Name
Title
Phone Number
Email

President
806-789-2293
chuckccelubbock@gmail.com

Commercial Revitalization Grant - Application

Turf

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached)
Seal Coat

$12,849

MLI Approved Reimbursement 

City, State, Zip

Property Ownership: Own 

Windows and Door
$804

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.

1219 Ave A

Company Name
Street Address

C C Electric
1219 Ave A

112530
Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

1.1.24

8.22.23

1 MLI 5.23.23

mailto:jorge@marketlubbock.org
mailto:chuckccelubbock@gmail.com
mailto:chuckccelubbock@gmail.com
mailto:chuckccelubbock@gmail.com
mailto:chuckccelubbock@gmail.com
mailto:chuckccelubbock@gmail.com
mailto:chuckccelubbock@gmail.com
mailto:chuckccelubbock@gmail.com
mailto:chuckccelubbock@gmail.com


COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Percent Percent
100%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? Yes �
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? Yes 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No �
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? No 

If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No 

City of Lubbock requirements:

Contact the City of Lubbock to determine the following:
Scope of work meets East Side/34th St./N. University standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?
Is there a current Certificate of Occupancy on file for this property?

Manager of Downtown & Special Projects (Jorge Quirino) 806-749-4500
Application Packet:

Copies of City permits or City approval
Copy of Current Certificate of Occupancy
Detailed Construction Bids or Schedule of Values
Before Picture (prior to construction beginning)
Architectural Plans (if applicable)
Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

After completion of construction:
Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving Completion
(Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)

Date Final Documents Received:________________________

Market Lubbock, Inc. (MLI) requirements:

Name Name

Initial application (page one of this document) must be received by MLI prior to 
the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application packet 
presented to the MLI Board no more than three months after the 
initial application is received by MLI.

Chuck Chapman

City of Lubbock - Planning Department 806-775-2108

APPLICANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES (PROPERTY OWNER OR LEASEE)

Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements matching PAID 
invoices (legible copies)

2 MLI 5.23.23



Overview

•         An Applicant must be a valid Owner or Tenant (Lessee) of the property needing improvements
•         Properties must fall within the East Side, 34th St., or N. Lubbock Neighborhood Empowerment Zones
•         Single-Family residences and duplexes are excluded.
•         An Applicant is eligible to receive a permittable grant and/or façade grant per property (LCAD R#  

•         Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to

•         MLI disbursements are characterized as "reimbursable grants" - Applicant pays expenses first
•         Expenses eligible for reimbursement must relate to reasonable costs or expenses.
•         Receipt of an application is not a guarantee of grant approval.

Grant Types

•         Permittable Projects
•       Improvements require a City of Lubbock permit
•       Improvements may be made to the exterior and/or interior of the property
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $5,000
•      The permittable grant reimburses 10% of approved expenses up to a $50,000 grant
•   Permittable scope of work that may be considered:

•   HVAC
•   Plumbing
•   Electrical
•   Structural
•   Any other work requring a City of Lubbock permit

•         Façade Projects
•       Improvements may or may not require a City of Lubbock permit
•       Improvements must be made to the exterior of the property facing the most prominent street
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $1,000
•      The façade grant reimburses 50% of approved expenses up to a $25,000 grant
•   Façade scope of work that may be considered:

•   Painting
•   New windows and doors
•   Signage
•   Landscaping
•   Parking lots
•   Awnings
•   Any other work that improves the appearnce of the façade

Chuck Chapman via email

8.22.23

     or Development Lot), per enterprise, per year. Must wait one year from approval to apply again for 
     the same property. (Expenses used in one application cannot be used in another application.)

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

Date:

     LCAD records - includes all LCAD properties listed in the applicant's name

3 MLI 5.23.23















1219 Ave A – C C Electric (Pictures) 
 

 

 



 

 



 AI# 12369 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 20. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial Revitalization
Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Woodberry
Investments, LLC, located at 3532 34th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and
Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
In May 2023, the City Council authorized the continuation of the Lubbock East Neighborhood
Empowerment Zone, and the establishment of the 34th Street Empowerment Zone and the North
University Empowerment Zone. This action was taken to encourage redevelopment and revitalization
within the City of Lubbock, through the promotion of economic development within the Zones. Through
the establishment of the three Zones, Market Lubbock, Inc. has geographic boundaries within which it
can implement its Commercial Revitalization Grant Program. 

Woodberry Investments, LLC is renovating their property at 3532 34th Street, which is located within
the 34th Street Empowerment Zone, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The scope of the facade
project includes an updated parking lot. The cost of the project is estimated to be $30,000, and the
requested grant amount is $15,000. The Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount
at their February 28, 2024 Board Meeting, and recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $30,000, with $15,000 to be paid by Market Lubbock, Inc.
upon completion with the requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer 
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







MARKET LUBBOCK, INC.    

COMMERCIAL REVITALIZATION GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

3532 34th St. 

(Woodberry Investments, LLC) 

 
TOTAL FAÇADE SCOPE OF WORK = $30,000 

FAÇADE GRANT = $15,000 

 



 
 

Commercial Revitalization Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

February 28, 2024 
 
 

Project 3532 34th St. (Façade) 
Woodberry Investments, LLC, is renovating its property at 3532 34th St., located within a Lubbock 
Neighborhood Empowerment Zone as designated by the City of Lubbock.  
 
Woodberry Investments, LLC owner, Chase Marberry, started his career in real estate before he even 
graduated from high-school, obtaining his real estate license 2 weeks after he turned 18. He bought his 
first investment property at just 19 years old and became a landlord and property manager at 20. He eats, 
sleeps and breathes real-estate and is passionate for helping others discover financial freedom through 
investing in it. Now as a husband and father Chase values his time more than ever and has successfully 
built a company that involves and revolves around his family. Building passive income and generational 
wealth is more than a job; it’s a lifestyle. 
 
The scope of façade work includes an updated parking lot totaling $30,000.  
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Commercial Revitalization Grant Program Façade Grant for 
Woodberry Investments, LLC totaling $15,000 at 3532 34th St. 
 
 
 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Special Projects Phone: 806.23.8241
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY CONTACT

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT

Lease 
Owner Approved

Façade 

Detailed Project Summary (including projected start date) and Description of Work:

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.

3532 34th St

Company Name
Street Address

Woodberry Investments, LLC
2619 34th #2

R138039
Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

04/01/24

02/23/24

Commercial Revitalization Grant - Application

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached)
Asphalt overcap and restriping

MLI Approved Reimbursement 

City, State, Zip

Property Ownership: Own 

$15,000

Lubbock, Tx 79410

Name
Title
Phone Number
Email

Owner
806-773-7050
chase@housechaser.com

Grant Type (May choose both if applicable): 

Chase Marberry

Permittable 

Add an asphalt cap to the parking lot to improve the parking.

$30,000

TOTAL
Final bids will be used to calculate the project cost and grant amount.

Projected

$30,000 $15,000

1 MLI 5.23.23



COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Percent Percent
100%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? Yes  
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? Yes 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No  
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? No 

If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No 

City of Lubbock requirements:

Contact the City of Lubbock to determine the following:
Scope of work meets East Side/34th St./N. University standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?
Is there a current Certificate of Occupancy on file for this property?

Manager of Downtown & Special Projects (Jorge Quirino) 806-749-4500
Application Packet:

Copies of City permits or City approval
Copy of Current Certificate of Occupancy
Detailed Construction Bids or Schedule of Values
Before Picture (prior to construction beginning)
Architectural Plans (if applicable)
Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

After completion of construction:
Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving Completion
(Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)
Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements matching PAID 
invoices (legible copies)

City of Lubbock - Planning Department 806-775-2108

APPLICANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES (PROPERTY OWNER OR LEASEE)

Chase Marberry

Date Final Documents Received:________________________

Market Lubbock, Inc. (MLI) requirements:

Name Name

Initial application (page one of this document) must be received by MLI prior to 
the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application packet 
presented to the MLI Board no more than three months after the 
initial application is received by MLI.

2 MLI 5.23.23



Overview

         An Applicant must be a valid Owner or Tenant (Lessee) of the property needing improvements
         Properties must fall within the East Side, 34th St., or N. Lubbock Neighborhood Empowerment Zones
         Single-Family residences and duplexes are excluded.
         An Applicant is eligible to receive a permittable grant and/or façade grant per property (LCAD R#  

         Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to

         MLI disbursements are characterized as "reimbursable grants" - Applicant pays expenses first
         Expenses eligible for reimbursement must relate to reasonable costs or expenses.
         Receipt of an application is not a guarantee of grant approval.

Grant Types

         Permittable Projects
•       Improvements require a City of Lubbock permit
•       Improvements may be made to the exterior and/or interior of the property
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $5,000
•      The permittable grant reimburses 10% of approved expenses up to a $50,000 grant
•   Permittable scope of work that may be considered:

•   HVAC
•   Plumbing
•   Electrical
•   Structural
•   Any other work requring a City of Lubbock permit

         Façade Projects
•       Improvements may or may not require a City of Lubbock permit
•       Improvements must be made to the exterior of the property facing the most prominent street
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $1,000
•      The façade grant reimburses 50% of approved expenses up to a $25,000 grant
•   Façade scope of work that may be considered:

•   Painting
•   New windows and doors
•   Signage
•   Landscaping
•   Parking lots
•   Awnings
•   Any other work that improves the appearnce of the façade

Chase Marberry

2/23/24 per email

     or Development Lot), per enterprise, per year. Must wait one year from approval to apply again for 
     the same property. (Expenses used in one application cannot be used in another application.)

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

Date:

     LCAD records - includes all LCAD properties listed in the applicant's name

3 MLI 5.23.23



                     P: (806) 744-2592 / F:(806) 702-8981 
Serving the Texas Panhandle, Permian Basin 

And Eastern New Mexico 
Office and Plant 420 E. Lehigh St. Lubbock, Texas 79403 

 
 

 
 

BID DATE: February 21, 2024 
ATTN:  Chase Marberry 
PHONE: 806-773-7050 
EMAIL:   chase@housechaser.com  
PROJECT LOCATION:  3532 34th Street, Lubbock Texas 79410 
 
 
 
INVOICE DETAILS 

• Clean and prepare area to begin 
• Apply tack coat 
• Overcap parking lot with Type D hot mix 
• Stripe 
• Complete cleanup of project site 

 
BID TOTAL: $30,000.00  
 

 
Daley’s Superior Asphalt Paving Inc thanks you for your business. Should you have 
questions please feel free to contact your sales rep Sean. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Sean Daley 

806-407-4766 

mailto:chase@housechaser.com


3532 34th St. – Before Pictures 

 

 



 

 



 

 



 AI# 12372 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 21. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a program or expenditure of the
Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, to be provided to Vulpes Group Holding Corporation,
pursuant to Section 501.073 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

Item Summary
Vulpes Group Holding Corporation is a for-profit company expanding into the City of Lubbock. They
are proposing to renovate an existing building for a manufacturing operation, where they will invest
$9,920,000 in new equipment and upgrades. They will create 62 new, full-time jobs with an average
salary of $59,167.

The Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) Board of Directors voted to incentivize Vulpes
Group Holding Corporation with the following:  

Job creation grant of $3,000 per full-time job created, to be paid out over a 3-year period, with an
estimated maximum value of $186,000

The LEDA Board of Directors approved these incentives at their February 28, 2024 Board Meeting, and
recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The LEDA Board of Directors voted to incentivize Vulpes Group Holding Corporation with a job
creation incentive of $186,000, as described in the Item Summary. The City of Lubbock does not have
financial responsibility for this incentive. 

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer 
Lubbock Economic Development Alliance Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
LEDA Resolution 
Project Summary 











 AI# 12377 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 22. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
17662, with West Texas Services, Inc. dba Tom's Tree Place, for installation of water well and electrical
equipment protective coverings for Public Improvement Districts.

Item Summary
Staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for installation of water well and electrical equipment
protective coverings for various Public Improvement Districts (PIDs) within the City of Lubbock.

In response to RFP 24-17662-KM, one proposal was received.

The proposal was evaluated using the following criteria: Price (40 Points), Contractor Experience and
Qualifications (30 Points) and Contractor Approach (30 Points). The maximum value is 100 points. After
the proposal was evaluated, the following ranking was obtained.
  

Vendor Points
Tom's Tree Place, Lubbock, Texas 92

Staff recommends award to the sole proposer, West Texas Services, Inc., dba Tom's Tree Place. 

This contract is for a term of one year, with optional 4, one-year extensions. The contract was awarded
based on an hourly rate. Actual expenditures will vary based on the needs of each PID. The following
PIDs have existing assets, and will be able to utilize this contract. 

• Bell Farms PID
• North Point PID
• Quincy Park PID
• Valencia PID

Fiscal Impact
These services will be funded through the PID's Annual Service and Assessment Plans, as approved by
the City Council.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 



Project Summary 





 

                                                                                                                                      Contract 17662 
City of Lubbock 

Installation of Water Well and Electrical Equipment Protective Coverings for Public Improvement 

Districts (PID)  

Agreement 

This Service Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of the      day of                          2024 

(“Effective Date”) by and between West Texas Services, Inc. dba Tom’s Tree Place (the Contractor), and 

the City of Lubbock (the “City”).     

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City has issued a Request for Proposals 24-17662-KM, Installation of Water Well 

and Electrical Equipment Protective Coverings for PID and 

WHEREAS, the proposal submitted by the Contractor has been selected as the proposal which best 

meets the needs of the City for this service; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor desires to perform as an independent contractor to provide Installation of 

Water Well and Electrical Equipment Protective Coverings for PID, upon terms and conditions maintained 

in this Agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the City and 

Contractor agree as follows:  

City and Contractor acknowledge the Agreement consists of the following exhibits which are 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, listed in their order of priority in the event of 

inconsistent or contradictory provisions: 

1. This Agreement 

2. Exhibit A – General Requirements        

3. Exhibit B – Best and Final Offer 

4. Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements 

Scope of Work 

Contractor shall provide the services that are specified in Exhibit A. The Contractor shall comply with all 

the applicable requirements set forth in Exhibit B and Exhibit C attached hereto. 

Article 1  

 

1.1 The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of four (4), one year extensions, said 

date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew automatically for the 

additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to terminate the Contract. 

1.2 All stated annual quantities are approximations of usage during the time period to be covered by 

pricing established by this bid.  Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be 

determined by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of 

compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and resulting 

contract.  

1.3 The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this contract 

including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that valid insurance is 



 

on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management Department as required by contract or contract 

may be terminated for non-compliance.  

 

1.4 A) Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. The rate 

may be adjusted at the City’s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price Index (CPI) or 

Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate. 

B) Further, if the Contractor can provide documentation for actual charges for material, labor, etc. 

that demonstrates that the change in CPI or PPI is not sufficient, the Contractor shall provide such 

documentation to the City, and at the City’s sole discretion, the contractual rate may be further 

adjusted. If agreement regarding a new rate cannot be reached, the City shall terminate at the end of 

the current contract period. 

 

C) If an adjustment to pricing is granted under this section, the Contractor must provide the Director 

of Purchasing and Contract Management written, quarterly documentation to justify the ongoing 

adjustment.  If no such documentation is timely received, the rate will automatically revert to the 

initial, awarded rate. 

 

1.5 This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration date, (2) 

performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day written notice. 

The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the next lowest and best 

bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city. 

Article 2 Miscellaneous. 

2.1 This Agreement is made in the State of Texas and shall for all purposes be construed in 

accordance with the laws of said State, without reference to choice of law provisions. 

2.2 This Agreement is performable in, and venue of any action related or pertaining to this 

Agreement shall lie in, Lubbock, Texas. 

2.3 This Agreement and its Exhibits contains the entire agreement between the City and 

Contractor and supersedes any and all previous agreements, written or oral, between the 

parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  No amendment or modification of the terms of 

this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties unless reduced to writing and signed by 

both parties. 

2.4       This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. 

2.5 In the event any provision of this Agreement is held illegal or invalid, the remaining 

provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

2.6 The waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by any parties or the failure of 

any parties otherwise to insist upon strict performance of any provision hereof shall not 

constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or of any subsequent failure to perform. 

2.7       This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their 

respective heirs, representatives and successors and may be assigned by Contractor or the 

City to any successor only on the written approval of the other party. 

2.8 All claims, disputes, and other matters in question between the Parties arising out of or 

relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof, shall be formally discussed and negotiated 

between the Parties for resolution.  In the event that the Parties are unable to resolve the 

claims, disputes, or other matters in question within 30 days of written notification from the 



 

aggrieved Party to the other Party, the aggrieved Party shall be free to pursue all remedies 

available at law or in equity. 

2.9 At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit 

representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, 

reserves the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to 

the City under this Contract.  In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or 

overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such 

overpayments within 30 days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the 

right to deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

    2.10 The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court 

of competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process 

prior to exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein 

are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any 

conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, this 

provision shall control. 

     2.11    The contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without 

written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management.  Should consent 

be given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof of insurance 

from the Subcontractor that complies with all contract insurance requirements document, this 

provision shall control.  

2.12 Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, 

fully understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the 

descriptive material contained herein and any additional associated documents and 

Amendments. The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless 

agreed upon in writing by the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions 

provided herein shall prevail. The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms 

agreed upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

2.13 Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist 

Organization Prohibited.  Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, 

prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The 

Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service with 

Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization. 

2.14 Texas Public Information Act.  The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be 

terminated if the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a 

requirement of that subchapter. To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code 

applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees to:  (1) preserve all contracting information 

related to the contract as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the 

governmental body for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental 

body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession 

of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, 

either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to 

the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting 

information related to the contract as provided by the records retention requirements 

applicable to the governmental body. 



 

2.15 No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This 

section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company 

with 10 or more full-time employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be 

paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity 

may not enter into a contract with a company for goods or services unless the contract 

contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) 

will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

 

2.16 Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) 

it does not, and will not for the duration  of  the  contract,  have  a  practice,  policy,  guidance,  

or  directive  that  discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) 

the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply 

to the contract.  If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this 

Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to 

Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or 

directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not 

discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade 

association. 

 

2.17 Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 

contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of 

the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If Contractor is a company with 

10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or 

more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does 

not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies during the term of the 

Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a governmental entity 

determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental entity’s 

constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt 

obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

 

2.18 Confidentiality. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or concerning the 

City and the City's business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to 

third parties without prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 
 

2.19 Indemnify. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the city of Lubbock and its 

elected officials, officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, 

claims, or liability of any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the 

generality of the foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for 

injury or death to any person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any person 

or persons or property, to the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent 

acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the 

performance, operations or omissions under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of 

city owned property. The indemnity obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration 

or termination of this agreement. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-----INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK-----





City of Lubbock, TX 

RFP 24-17662-KM 

Installation of Water Well and Electric Equipment Protective Coverings for Public Improvement 

Districts (PID) 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. INTENT

The Bell Farms, North Point, Quincy Park, and Valencia Public Improvement District (PID) Advisory

Boards intend to install protective coverings on water wells and electric equipment at community parks,

medians, a walking track, and other areas as applicable. The duration of this agreement is for twelve months,

with an optional extension of an additional six months. The standards to which these services are requested

are contained within these specifications. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to add or remove Public

Improvement Districts, equipment, and water wells to have protective coverings installed from the Scope of

Services at any time.

2. SCOPE OF WORK

The vendor shall purchase, deliver, and install protective coverings to prevent damage and vandalism to

water well and electrical equipment. The materials may include brick, concrete, metal, plastic, or other

materials recommended by the contractor and approved by the City of Lubbock. The specified locations are

shown in Exhibits A and B.

Pricing should include the purchase of the equipment, delivery, and installation, as well as any required 

electrical work or site preparation. All purchases must also be approved by City of Lubbock, Business 

Development Representative, by using Attachment A. 

All equipment covers should be; 

- easily opened

- able to be locked with a standard padlock

- a material rated for commercial outdoor use

- able to drain if submerged in flood water

Exhibit A



EXHIBIT A 

1. Bell Farms – 1-Acre Park 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

2. Bell Farms – Basin Park 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3. Bell Farms – Basin Park 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4. Bell Farms – Playa Lake Park 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
5. Bell Farms – Playa Lake Park 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

6. North Point – South Median 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
7. North Point – North Median 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8. North Point – Walking Track 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
9. Quincy Park – 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10. Quincy Park – 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
11. Valencia – 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12. Valencia – 2 
 



LUBBOCK-COOPER
EAST ELEMENTARY

A
V

E
 W

A
V

E
 P

133RD ST

140TH ST

137TH ST

134TH ST

B
O

S
T

O
N

 A
V

A
V

E
 Q

C
A

N
T

O
N

 A
V

A
V

E
 U

U
L

R
IC

H
 A

V

AV
E

R

146TH ST

A
V

E
 W

136TH ST

135TH ST

144TH ST

138TH PL

144TH ST

138TH ST

V
E

R
N

O
N

A
V

138TH ST

A
V

E
 T

143RD ST

D
E

T
R

O
IT

 A
V

138TH PL

137TH ST

T
E

R
R

E
L

L
 A

V

140TH ST

S
H

E
R

M
A

N
 A

V

141ST ST

A
V

E
 T

A
V

E
S141ST ST

U
V

A
L

D
E

 A
V

A
V

E
 R

140TH ST

A
V

E
 S

PA
R

IS
 A

V

134TH ST

145TH ST

139TH ST

A
V

E
 V

135TH ST

136TH ST

143RD ST

142ND ST

R
E

D
S

P
R

IN
G

S
A

V

W
A

C
O

 A
V

132ND ST

133RD ST

PA
R

IS
 A

V

A
V

E
 X

Q
U

A
N

A
H

 A
V139TH ST

133RD ST

0 450 900 1,350 1,800
Feet

As required by SECTION 1.  Chapter 2051, SUBCHAPTER D. GEOSPATIAL DATA PRODUCTS of the Government Code,
the City of Lubbock hereby provides notice that the data on this map was created by the City of Lubbock.  Any data that
appears to represent property boundaries is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate
relative location of property boundaries.

Bell Farms PID Current and Future Public Spaces

± Council District 4

PLAYA LAKE PARK

BASIN
PARK

1-ACRE
PARK

POCKET
PARK 2

POCKET
PARK 1

A
ve

 P
 S

o
u

th
F

en
ce

 L
in

e
A

ve
 P

 C
en

tr
al

F
en

ce
 L

in
e

A
ve

 P
 N

o
rt

h
F

en
ce

 L
in

e

Ave U Fence Line

Loop 88 Sign

University
Ave Sign

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 A
V

E

Schools
PID Boundary
Parks

Walking Trails
Sign
Fence

Well or Electrical Equiptment to be Covered

Exhibit B



N 
W

IN
ST

ON
 AV

CH
IC

AG
O 

AV
CH

IC
AG

O 
AV

MARSHALL ST

N LOOP 289

N 
BA

NG
OR

 AV

JARVIS ST JARVIS ST

ITASCA ST

N 
VI

NT
ON

 AV

N 
UT

IC
A A

V

N 
VA

LE
 AV

N 
VA

LE
 AV

N 
YO

RK

HARVARD ST

N 
W

IN
ST

ON
 AV

EMORY ST

N SALEM AV

KEMPER ST

N 
QU

AK
ER

 AV

VINTON AV

CLOVIS RD

LEHIGH ST

URSULINE ST URSULINE ST URSULINE ST

ITASCA ST

LEHIGH ST

KEMPER ST

N 
BE

AU
FO

RT HANOVER ST

ITASCA ST

MARSHALL ST

LEHIGH ST

EMORY ST UTICA DR

BR
EN

TW
OO

D 
AV

KEMPER ST

HARVARD ST

HARVARD ST

PRINCETON ST

JARVIS ST

GRINNELL ST

FORDHAM STN 
SL

ID
E 

RD
N 

SL
ID

E 
RD

ERSKINE STERSKINE ST

N 
RA

LE
IG

H

N 
BE

LM
ON

T A
V

N 
BR

EN
TW

OO
D 

AV N 
W

IN
ST

ON

N VINTON AV

KEMPER ST

MARSHALL ST

HARVARD ST

N 
AB

BE
VI

LL
E

N 
AB

ER
DE

EN

PRINCETON ST

N 
QU

IN
TO

N

CENTENNIAL
ELEMENTARY

0 490 980 1,470 1,960
Feet As required by SECTION 1.  Chapter 2051, SUBCHAPTER D. GEOSPATIAL DATA PRODUCTS of the Government Code, 

the City of Lubbock hereby provides notice that the data on this map was created by the City of Lubbock.  Any data that 
appears to represent property boundaries is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate 
relative location of property boundaries.

North Point PID

Public Improvement District Schools

Parcels ±
Council District 6

Walking Trails

Well or Electrical Equiptment to be Covered



94TH ST

93RD ST

QU
IN

CY
 AV

90TH ST

95TH ST

88TH ST

RO
SS

 AV

91ST ST

93RD ST

93RD ST

87TH ST

91ST PL

91ST ST
UP

LA
ND

 AV

87TH ST

88TH ST

89TH ST

89TH ST

96TH ST

93RD ST

90TH ST

89TH ST

91ST LN

RO
CH

ES
TE

R 
AV

PRIMROSE

92ND ST

94TH ST

PONTIAC AV

97TH ST 97TH ST

98TH ST98TH ST

ROCHEST
ER AV

SA
RAT

OGA A
V

96TH ST

QU
IT

M
AN

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

RI
DG

EL
Y

RE
M

IN
GT

ON

RO
SS

 AV

TR
EN

TO
N 

AV

TU
RN

ER
 AV

UR
BA

NA
 AV

VE
NI

TA
 AV

OA
KR

ID
GE

 AV

99TH ST

RO
CH

ES
TE

R 
AV

PO
NT

IA
C 

AV

SA
RA

TO
GA

TRENTON AV

UP
LA

ND
 AV

RO
SS

 AV

0 250 500 750 1,000
Feet

As required by SECTION 1.  Chapter 2051, SUBCHAPTER D. GEOSPATIAL DATA PRODUCTS of the Government Code, 
the City of Lubbock hereby provides notice that the data on this map was created by the City of Lubbock.  Any data that 
appears to represent property boundaries is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate 
relative location of property boundaries.

Quincy Park PID

Public Improvement District Parks
Parcels ±

Council District 5
Well or Electrical Equiptment to be Covered



89TH ST89TH ST
87T

H ST

IO
LA

 AV

87TH ST

88TH ST

88TH PL

87TH

86TH ST

85TH ST

84TH ST

88TH PL

88TH ST

KEWANEE AV

ST

ST87TH

IRONTON

IRONTON

86TH ST

87TH ST
KIRBY

89TH ST

M
IL

WA
UK

EE
 AV

0 150 300 450 600
Feet

As required by SECTION 1.  Chapter 2051, SUBCHAPTER D. GEOSPATIAL DATA PRODUCTS of the Government Code, 
the City of Lubbock hereby provides notice that the data on this map was created by the City of Lubbock.  Any data that 
appears to represent property boundaries is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate 
relative location of property boundaries.

Valencia PID

Public Improvement District Parks
Parcels ±

Council District 5
Well or Electrical Equiptment to be Covered



City of Lubbock, TX 

RFP 24-17662-KM

Installation of Water Well and Electric Equipment 
Protective Coverings 

ESTIMATING FORM – EQUIPMENT/MATERIALS PRICING SHEET

(PLEASE PRINT CLEARLY) 

LOCATION: ______________________________________________________________ SHEET NO. _____ OF _____ 

JOB/PROJECT WORK: 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

CONTRACTOR / ESTIMATE BY: ____________________________________________ DATE _____ / _____ / _____ 

EQUIPMENT/MATERIAL  DESCRIPTION ACTUAL 

COST 

% MARK UP AMOUNT 

TOTAL  MATERIALS  PRICING 

Materials – Materials are to be quoted on a cost-plus basis; percentage of markup to be based on 

net cost to Contractor. 

NOTE: TRANSFER AMOUNT OF TOTAL MATERIAL PRICING TO JOB SUMMARY SHEET 

Attachment A

APPROVED BY: _____________________________________________ DATE: ______________________



City of Lubbock, TX 

RFP 24-17662-KM

BAFO

Location:

Total Cost: 

# Items

Quantity

Required

(+/-) UOM

Unit

Price

Extended

Cost

#0-1 Installer Labor Rate 50 HR  $  200.00  $     10,000.00 

#0-2 Material Mark-Up Percentage 0 %      100.00 -   

West Texas Services, Inc. 

dba Tom's Tree Place

$10,000.00

Lubbock, TX

Exhibit B



INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a completed 

Insurance Certificate to the City, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to bind the 

named underwriter(s) to the coverages, limits, and termination provisions shown thereon, and 

which shall furnish and contain all required information referenced or indicated thereon.  THE 

CITY SHALL HAVE NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT 

UNTIL SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY. 

The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section during the 

effective period of the contract and to require adjustment of insurance coverages and their limits 

when deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes in statutory law, court 

decisions, or the claims history of the industry as well as the Contractor. 

Subject to the Contractor's right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts as are 

approved by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect for the 

duration of this contract, and any extension hereof, at Contractor's sole expense, insurance 

coverage written by companies approved by the State of Texas and acceptable to the City, in 

the following type(s) and amount(s): 

Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence / $2M aggregate (can be 
combined with an Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required in ALL contracts. It 
is perhaps the most important of all insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures 
the Contractor has broad liability coverage for contractual activities and for completed 
operations. 

Commercial General Liability to include Products – Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising 
Injury, Contractual Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses (any one 
person). 

Automobile Liability Requirements: $1M/occurrence is 
needed 

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability Requirements: Statutory. If the vendor is an 
independent contractor with no employees and are exempt from providing Workers' 
Compensation coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained from COL Purchasing) and 
include a copy of their driver's license. Employer Liability ($1M) is required with Workers 
Compensation. 

• The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be
afforded additional insured status on a primary and non-contributory basis on all
liability policies except professional liabilities and workers' comp.

• Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC.

• To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement.

• Carrier will provide a 30-day written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for
non- payment.

• Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better.

• Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above.

Exhibit C



IMPORTANT:  POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

The Contractor will provide copies of the policies without expense, to the City and all 

endorsements thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification 

of particular policy terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions 

are established by law or regulation binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter of 

any of such policies).  Upon such request by the City, the Contractor shall exercise reasonable 

efforts to accomplish such changes in policy coverages, and shall pay the cost thereof. Any costs 

will be paid by the Contractor.  

REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts 

and certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its attachment, 

the following required provisions: 

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected representatives as 

additional insureds, (as the interest of each insured may appear) as to all applicable 

coverage; 

b. Provide for 30 days’ notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material change; 

c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail; 

d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Lubbock, its officers, 

employees, and elected representatives for injuries, including death, property damage, or 

any other loss to the extent same may be covered by the proceeds of insurance; 

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and standard of care 

together with the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by contractual liability 

coverage sufficient to include such obligations within applicable policies. 

NOTICES 

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such 

notices not less than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 

All notices shall be given to the City at the following address: 

    Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

    City of Lubbock 

    1314 Avenue K, Floor 9 

    Lubbock, Texas  79401 

1.1. Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by 

the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility or liability for 

damages and accidents as set forth in the contract documents.  Neither shall the 

bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial of liability by the insurance company exonerate the 

Contractor from liability.  

 



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 24-17662-KM 

Installation of Water Well and Electric Equipment Protective Coverings for Public 

Improvement Districts (PID) 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on January 7 & January 14, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from January 5 to January 30, 2024. 

1 individual attended the pre-proposal meeting. 

29 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

56 vendors were notified separately.  

1 vendor submitted a proposal.  

 



 AI# 12396 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 23. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to approve an
Extension of Construction Time in connection with that certain City Tax Abatement Agreement No.
17471, with Dura-Line, LLC.

Item Summary
On July 25, 2023, the City Council approved Tax Abatement Agreement No. 17471 with Dura-Line,
LLC. The terms of the original contract stated the following:  

Construction Start Date: September 2023
Construction End Date: October 2024
Capital Investment: $46,700,000
Job Creation: 130 jobs 

Due to the rapidly changing economic environment, Dura-Line has had to evaluate the timing of their
allocation of resources. The company has requested an amendment to the original construction dates to
the following:  

Construction Start Date: February 2024
Construction End Date: December 2025

This request is for construction time only. Capital investment and job creation will remain the same. This
resolution would authorize the City Manager to execute this amendment. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer 

Attachments
Resolution 
Dura Line - Request for Extension (scan) 
Dura Line Request Letter (scan) 











 AI# 12385 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 24. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing portions of
alley right-of-way abutting Lot 8, Block 4, Clutter Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County,
Texas.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close portions of an alley abutting Lot 8
between 48th Street and 50th Street, east of Vanda Avenue, for String Enterprises LLC.
 
The total area of the alley being closed is 2,003.76 square feet. Based on adjacent land values, the
Right-of-Way Department valued the closure at $0.50 per square foot, for a total of $1,002. String
Enterprises desires to close the alley to expand their operations. The adjacent landowner has agreed in
writing with this closure.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
$1,002 revenue to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael Keenum, P.E., Division Manager of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Blk 4, Lot 8, Clutter Ordinance 
Blk 4, Lot 8, Clutter GIS Map 
Blk 4, Lot 8 Clutter Adjacent Land Owner Letter 







181649
Text Box
EXHIBIT "A"








 AI# 12386 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 25. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing portions of
alley right-of-way abutting, Block 10, Morning Side Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County,
Texas.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close the alley in Block 10, from 29th
Street to 30th Street, between I-27 and Avenue G, on behalf of RHP, LLC, Brison Properties and
Kristinek Turner Enterprises, LLC.
 
The total area of the alley being closed is 4,237 square feet. Based on adjacent land values, the
Right-of-Way Department valued the closure at $1.00 per square foot for a total of $4,237. Upon the
approval of the closure, the group will submit a final plat granting utility easements.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
$4,237 revenue to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael Keenum, P.E., Division Manager of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Block 10, Morning Side - ordinance 
Block 10, Morning Side - GIS Map 







181649
Text Box

181649
Text Box
EXHIBIT "A"






 AI# 12388 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 26. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing portions of
street and alley right-of-way abutting, Block 136 and 137, Original Town of Lubbock Addition to the
City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close portions of 3 alley segments inside
Block 136 and 137 and Avenue F, from Broadway to 13th Street, between Crickets Avenue and Avenue
E, on behalf of 9 property owners.
 
The total area of the alley being closed in Block 136 is 1,874 square feet. The total area of the 2 alley
segments being closed in Block 137 is 4,174 square feet. The total area of the Avenue F street
right-of-way being closed, is 19,501 square feet. Based on adjacent land values, the Right-of-Way
Department valued the closure at $1.50 per square foot, for a total of $38,324. Upon the approval of the
closures, the group will submit a final plat granting utility easements.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
$38,324 revenue to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael Keenum, P.E., Division Manager of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Blks 136 & 137 - Ordinance 
Blks 136 & 137 GIS Map 







181649
Text Box
EXHIBIT "A"












 AI# 12390 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 27. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the mayor to execute a Street Use
License Agreement, and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and NBB Investments
LLC, regarding property located on the north side of 50th Street, between Gary Avenue and Flint
Avenue.

Item Summary
NBB Investments LLC is requesting a Street Use License for the purpose of additional parking on 2,947
square feet of right-of-way, on the north side of 50th Street, west of Flint Avenue.
 
The term of the license is for 20 years, payable every 5 years in advance, and each successive 5-year
term not to exceed 20 years, unless either party gives written notice of termination to the other party. The
license fee for each 5-year period is $5,117.50 paid in advance, pursuant to current City policy.

Fiscal Impact
$5,117.50 revenue to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael Keenum, P.E., Division Manager of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 50th St. & Flint Ave. Hulen 
SUL 50th St. & Flint Ave. Hulen 
GIS Map SUL 50th St. & Flint Ave. Hulen 















181649
Text Box
EXHIBIT "A"




 AI# 12384 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 28. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public Works
Contract 17870, and all related documents, with Utility Contractors of America, Inc., for Water Line
Change Out Phase 6.

Item Summary
The purpose of this project is to replace aging water infrastructure in various areas of Lubbock in order
to prevent leaks, system failures, emergency maintenance, and customer inconvenience.

A Request for Proposal (RFP) for this replacement was issued. In response to RFP 24-17870-TF, the
following proposals were received and opened on February 14, 2024.
  

Supplier Time (days)
Utility Contractors of America, Lubbock, Texas 335
Rink’s Lease Service, Levelland, Texas 365
LA Fuller and Sons, Amarillo, Texas 365

The proposals were evaluated using the following criteria: 60 Points for Price, 30 Points for Contractor
Qualifications, and 10 Points for Construction Time. The maximum point value is 100 points. After the
proposals were evaluated, the following ranking was obtained.
  

Supplier Total/100 pts
Utility Contractors of America, Lubbock, Texas 96.75
Rink’s Lease Service, Levelland, Texas 94.69
LA Fuller and Sons, Amarillo, Texas 75.94

Staff recommends the award of Contract 17870, to Utility Contractors of America of Lubbock, Texas, in
the amount of $1,969,403.

The contract will be for a term of 335 calendar days from the date of the Notice to Proceed, with $300
per day of liquidated damages for each day that exceeds the 335 days. The contract is awarded by the
unit price. The total amount of the award is estimated based on expected quantities and actual
expenditures may be more or less depending on actual quantities. The price per unit will not change.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 17870 for $1,969,403 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92749 Water Line
Replacement FY 2021.



Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering 

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 17870 
Location Exhibit 
Budget Detail2 
CIP Detail 
17870 - Project Summary 







City of Lubbock, TX

Public Works

RFP 24-17870-TF

Water Line Change Out Phase 6

#

QTY

+/- U/M

Unit

Price

Extended

Cost

#1-1
Mobilization - Contractor mobilization including move-in and move-out cost from 

each site location.
1 LS    98,500.00           98,500.00 

#1-2
Provide and maintain a Traffic Control Plan - Preparation, approval from COL Traffic 

Engineering to all sites, and all other work considered incidental to this item.
1 LS      3,000.00             3,000.00 

#1-3
Provide and maintain a SWPPP - Including preparation, NOI, NOT, and all other work 

considered incidental to this item.
1 LS      2,500.00             2,500.00 

#1-4 Trench Safety 9693 LF             2.00           19,386.00 

#2-1

Furnish and install 6" C-900 DR-18 approved water pipe in open cut trench in alley 

ROW, backfilled to 95% compaction, and tested as herein specified, including all 

equipment, tools, fittings, and labor to perform work.

9693 LF           66.00          639,738.00 

#2-2
Furnish and install 6" gate valve and box as herein specified, including all equipment, 

tools, and labor to perform work.
19 EA      2,750.00           52,250.00 

#2-3
Furnish and install 8" gate valve and box as herein specified, including all equipment, 

tools, and labor to perform work.
1 EA      4,475.00             4,475.00 

#2-4
Furnish and install 6" insert-a-valve as herein specified, including all equipment, tools, 

and labor to perform work.
1 EA    12,000.00           12,000.00 

#2-5
Furnish and install 6"x4" Tapping Sleeve and valve as herein specified, including all 

equipment, tools, and labor to perform work.
1 EA      4,500.00             4,500.00 

#2-6
Furnish and install 8"x6" Tapping Sleeve and valve as herein specified, including all 

equipment, tools, and labor to perform work.
7 EA      4,600.00           32,200.00 

#2-7
Cut, plug, and abandon existing 2" water line, as herein specified, including all 

equipment, tools, and labor to perform work.
10 EA      1,600.00           16,000.00 

#2-8
Cut, plug, and abandon existing 4" water line, as herein specified, including all 

equipment, tools, and labor to perform work.
1 EA      1,700.00             1,700.00 

#2-9

Furnish and install Fire Hydrant and reconnect, as herein specified, including all 

equipment, tools, and labor to perform work. Remove and salvage existing Fire 

Hydrant.

4 EA      5,600.00           22,400.00 

#2-10 Tie in to existing water line, complete and in place per Specifications. 3 EA      3,900.00           11,700.00 

#2-11
Furnish and reconnect 3/4" - 2" service lines as herein specified, including all 

equipment, tools, and labor to perform work.
295 EA      2,600.00          767,000.00 

#2-12 Flowable backfill as approved, complete and in place per Specifications. 1452 CY         165.00          239,580.00 

#3-1

Saw cut and remove existing asphalt paving, including all material, equipment and 

labor to perform removal, disposal and all other work considered incidental to this 

item.

140 SY           65.00             9,100.00 

#3-2

Repair asphalt paving, including all material, equipment and labor to perform sub 

grade compaction and testing. HMAC installation per COL Specifications and all other 

work considered incidental to this item.

140 SY         110.00           15,400.00 

#3-3

Saw cut and remove existing concrete ally, sidewalk, curb and gutter, including all 

material, equipment and labor to perform removal, disposal and all other work 

considered incidental to this item.

128 SY           38.00             4,864.00 

#3-4

Repair concrete ally, sidewalk, curb and gutter, including all material, equipment and 

labor to perform sub grade compaction and testing. Installation per COL Specifications 

and all other work considered incidental to this item.

138 SY           95.00           13,110.00 

 $      123,386.00 

 $   1,803,543.00 

 $        42,474.00 

 $   1,969,403.00 Total (Items 1-1 through 3-4):

Total (Items 3-1 through 3-4):

Utility Contractors of America, Inc. of Lubbock, TX

General

Total (Items 1-1 through 1-4):

Paving Repair

Total (Items 2-1 through 2-11):

Water Improvements













Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time 96,429$                
Water System Improvments 242,764                
Professional Services 21,053                  
Advertisement 1,075                    
Contract 17332 - Rink's Lease Service (Final Amount) 680,270                
Water Line Change Out Cowan Addition Blocks 5 and 6 545,000                

Agenda Items, March 26, 2024
Water Line Change Out Phase 6 1,969,403             

Encumbered/Expended To Date 3,555,994             

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Water System Improvements 838,773                

Remaining Appropriation 838,773                

Total Appropriation 4,394,767$           

Water Line Replacement FY 2021

City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
March 26, 2024

92749



Project Scope

Replace substandard water l ines.  Th is is  an  on-going project  that replaces water l ines across the City of
Lubbock as they are needed throughout the year.

Project Justification

Replacing aging infrastructure reduces emergency maintenance expenditures, system failures, and
customer inconvenience. The lines are typically in the older areas of Lubbock and have a higher
incidence of leaks and lower water pressure.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement
Growth and Development
Redevelopment

FY 2021-22 $550,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2021-O0126
FY 2022-23 $550,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2022-O0136
FY 2022-23 $744,767 was transferred from CIP
92659 by BCR 2023 - 14
FY 2023-24 $2,550,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2023-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

City-wide

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $4,294,767 $1,000,000 $750,000 $800,000 $850,000 $900,000 $0

TOTAL $4,394,767 $1,000,000 $750,000 $800,000 $850,000 $900,000 $0

Project Funding

Funding to
Date

2024 - 25
Budget

2025 - 26
Budget

2026 - 27
Budget

2027 - 28
Budget

2028 - 29
Budget

2029 - 30
Budget

Wastewater Fund Cash $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Water/Wastewater Fund Cash $1,100,000 $1,000,000 $750,000 $800,000 $850,000 $900,000 $0

Wastewater Fund Revenue
Bonds $244,767 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ARPA Funding $2,550,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $4,394,767 $1,000,000 $750,000 $800,000 $850,000 $900,000 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

CIP 92749CIP 92749 Water Line Replacement FY Water Line Replacement FY
20212021

Replacement InfrastructureReplacement Infrastructure

Project Manager: Mike KeenumProject Manager: Mike Keenum  - Engineering- Engineering



Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 TotalDescription 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 24-17870-TF 

Water Line Change Out Phase 6 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on January 28 & February 4, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from January 28 to February 14, 2024. 

8 individuals attended the pre-proposal meeting. 

51 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

15 vendors were notified separately.  

3 vendors submitted proposals. 

 



 AI# 12395 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 29. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 17967, with
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for providing professional services for the Unpaved Roads
Improvements Project.

Item Summary
The purpose of this contract with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., is for professional engineering and
design services for the Unpaved Roads Improvements project. The work of the project will include
preparation of plans, specifications, and design of asphalt pavement of various gravel and dirt roads in
existing subdivisions.

Staff conducted contract negotiations with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., after establishing them as
qualified for providing engineering services for the Unpaved Roads Improvements Project. Fair and
reasonable hourly rates were agreed upon for a total contract amount of $220,500, with a 12-month
contract duration. Staff recommends Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., of Lubbock, Texas, be awarded
the contract that will provide the plans, specifications and estimates for the Unpaved Roads
Improvements Project.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 17967 of $220,500, is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92712, Transportation
Improvements/Unpaved.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering 

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 17967 
Location Exhibit 
CIP Spreadsheet - 92712 
92712 Budget Detail 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY TI-IE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 17967 for
the design of Unpaved Road Improvements, by and between the City of Lubbock and Kimley
Horn and Associates, Inc., and related documents. Said Contract is attached hereto and
incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of
the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

________________________________

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Erik Re’Assistant nager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Ke ii Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

ccdocs/RES.PSA-No. 17967 Ku Unpaved Roads
3. 19.24



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK §

This Professional Service Agreement (“Agreement”) Contract No. 17967 is entered into this

day of , 2024, is by and between the City of Lubbock (the “City”), a Texas home

rule municipal corporation, and Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., (the” Engineer”), a Texas corporation.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, The City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services for

the Design of Unpaved Road Improvements, (the “Activities”); and

WHEREAS, the Engineer has a professional staff experienced and is qualified to provide

professional engineering services related to Activities, and will provide the services, as defined below, for

the price provided herein, said price stipulated by the City and the Engineer to be a fair and reasonable

price; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services

related to the Activities, and Engineer desires to provide the Services related to same.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in

this Agreement, the City and the Engineer hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I. TERM

The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues without interruption

for a term of months. If the Engineer determines that additional time is required to complete the

Services, the City Engineer, may, but is not obligated to, in his or her discretion, execute an agreement to

grant up to an additional six (6) months of time so long as the amount of the consideration does not increase.

An amendment to this Agreement resulting in an increase in the amount of the consideration must be

approved by the City acting through its governing body.

Page 1 of 11



ARTICLE II. SERVICES AND COMPENSATION

A. The Engineer shall conduct all activities, and within such timeframes, as set forth on Exhibit

“A”, attached hereto (the “Services”).

B. The Engineer shall receive as consideration to be paid for the performance of the Services, in

an amount not to exceed $220,500, as set forth in Exhibit “B”.

ARTICLE III. TERMINATION

A. General. The City may terminate this Agreement, for any reason or convenience, upon thirty

(30) days written notice to the Engineer. In the event this Agreement is so terminated, the City shall only

pay the Engineer for services actually performed by the Engineer up to the date the Engineer is deemed to

have received notice of termination, as provided herein.

B. Termination and Remedies. In the event the Engineer breaches any term and/or provision of this

Agreement, the City shall be entitled to exercise any right or remedy available to it by this Agreement, at

law, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, termination of this Agreement and assertion of an

action for damages and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any right or remedy shall not preclude the

concurrent or subsequent exercise of any right or remedy and all rights and remedies shall be cumulative.

ARTICLE IV. NON - ARBITRATION

The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, equity,

or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising

its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive,

and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another

provision in, or related to, this Agreement, this provision shall control.

ARTICLE V. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

A. Existence. The Engineer is a corporation duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing

under the laws of the State of Texas and is qualified to carry on its business in the State of Texas.

B. Corporate Power. The Engineer has the corporate power to enter into and perform this

Agreement and all other activities contemplated hereby.

C. Authorization. Execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the activities

contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all the requisite corporate action on the part

Page 2 of 11



of the Engineer. This Agreement constitutes legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Engineer and is

enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof.

D. Engineer. The Engineer maintains a professional staff and employs, as needed, other qualified

specialists experienced in providing the Services, and is familiar with all laws, rules, and regulations, both

state and federal, including, without limitation the applicable laws, regarding the Activities contemplated

hereby.

E. Performance. The Engineer will and shall conduct all activities contemplated by this Agreement

in accordance with the standard of care, skill and diligence normally provided by a professional person in

performance of similar professional services, and comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations,

both state and federal, relating to professional services, as contemplated hereby.

F. Use of Copyrighted Material. The Engineer warrants that any materials provided by the Engineer

for use by City pursuant to this Agreement shall not contain any proprietary material owned by any other

party that is protected under the Copyright Act or any other law, statute, rule, order, regulation, ordinance

or contractual obligation relating to the use or reproduction of materials. The Engineer shall be solely

responsible for ensuring that any materials provided by the Engineer pursuant to this Agreement satisfy this

requirement and the Engineer agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from all liability or loss caused

to City or to which City is exposed on account of the Engineer’s failure to perform this duty.

ARTICLE VI. SCOPE OF WORK

The Engineer shall accomplish the following: Professional Services related to the Services, as

provided in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

ARTICLE VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS

The Engineer and the City agree that the Engineer shall perform the duties under this Agreement

as an independent contractor and shall be considered as independent contractor under this Agreement and/or

in its activities hereunder for all purposes. The Engineer has the sole discretion to determine the manner in

which the Services are to be performed. During the performance of the Services under this Agreement, the

Engineer and the Engineer’s employees and/or sub-consultants, will not be considered, for any purpose,

employees or agents of the City within the meaning or the application of any federal, state or local law or

regulation, including without limitation, laws, rules or regulations regarding or related to unemployment

insurance, old age benefits, workers compensation, labor, personal injury or taxes of any kind.

Page 3 of 11



ARTICLE VIII. INSURANCE

The Engineer shall procure and carry, at its sole cost and expense through the life of this Agreement,

except as otherwise provided herein, insurance protection as hereinafter specified, in form and substance

satisfactory to the City, carried with an insurance company authorized to transact business in the state of

Texas, covering all aspects and risks of loss of all operations in connection with this Agreement, including

without limitation, the indemnity obligations set forth herein. The Engineer shall obtain and maintain in

full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, and shall cause each approved subcontractor or sub-

consultant of the Engineer to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement,

commercial general liability, professional liability and automobile liability coverage for non-owned and

hired vehicles with insurance carriers admitted to do business in the state of Texas. The insurance

companies must carry a Best’s Rating of A-Vu or better. Except for Professional Liability, the policies will

be written on an occurrence basis, subject to the following minimum limits of liability:

Commercial General Liability:

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000

General Aggregate Limit: $2,000,000

Professional Liability:

Combined Single Limit: $2,000,000

Automobile Liability:

Combined Single Limit for any auto: $1,000,000 Per Occurrence

Employer’s Liability:

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000

Worker’s Compensation

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $500,000

The Engineer shall further cause any approved subcontractor or sub-consultant to procure and

carry, during the term of this Agreement, the insurance coverage required of Engineer herein, including

without limitation, Professional Liability coverage, protecting the City against losses caused by the

professional negligence of the approved subcontractor or sub-consultant. The City shall be listed as a

primary and noncontributory additional insured with respect to the Automobile Liability and Commercial

General Liability and shall be granted a waiver of subrogation under those policies. The Engineer shall

provide a Certificate of Insurance to the City as evidence of coverage.

The Certificate shall provide 30 days’ notice of cancellation. A copy of the additional insured

endorsement and waiver of subrogation attached to the policy shall be included in the Certificate. The

Engineer shall elect to obtain worker’s compensation coverage pursuant to Section 406.002 of the Texas

Labor Code. Further, the Engineer shall maintain said coverage throughout the term of this Agreement and

Page 4 of 11



shall comply with all provisions of Title 5 of the Texas Labor Code to ensure that the Engineer maintains

said coverage. The Engineer may maintain Occupational Accident and Disability Insurance in lieu of

Worker’s Compensation. In either event, the policy must be endorsed to include a waiver of subrogation in

favor of the City. If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension hereof, the Engineer fails

to maintain the required insurance in full force and effect, the Engineer shall be in breach hereof and all

work under the Agreement shall be discontinued immediately.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the professional liability policy shall be

maintained at the Engineer’s sole cost and expense. The retroactive date shall be no later than the

commencement of the performance of this Agreement and the discovery period (possibly through tail

coverage) shall be no less than 10 years after the completion of the Services provided for in this Agreement.

The provisions of this Article VIII shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE IX. EMPLOYMENT OF AGENTS/RETAINING OF CONSULTANTS

The Engineer may employ or retain consultants, contractors, or third parties (any of which are

referred to herein as “Sub-consultant”), to perform certain duties of Engineer, as set forth on Exhibit A

attached hereto, under this Agreement, provided that the City approves the retaining of Sub-consultants.

The Engineer is at all times responsible to the City to perform the Services as provided in this Agreement

and the Engineer is in no event relieved of any obligation under this Agreement upon retainage of any

approved Sub-consultant. Any agent and/or Sub-consultant retained and/or employed by the Engineer shall

be required by the Engineer to carry, for the protection and benefit of the City and the Engineer and naming

said third parties as additional insureds, insurance as described above required to be carried by the Engineer

in this Agreement.

The Engineer represents that such services are either under applicable value thresholds or are

otherwise exempt from notice and/or bid requirements under Texas Law.

ARTICLE X. CONFIDENTIALITY

The Engineer shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City’s

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without prior written

consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law.

ARTICLE XI. INDEMNITY

THE ENGINEER SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS THE CITY OF LUBBOCK

AND ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES FROM ALL SUITS,

ACTIONS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND, CHARACTER, TYPE,

OR DESCRIPTION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING,
Page 5 of 11



ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY’S FEES, FOR INJURY OR

DEATH TO ANY PERSON, OR INJURY TO ANY PROPERTY, RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY

ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR PROPERTY, TO THE EXTENT ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO

OR OCCASIONED BY, THE NEGLIGENT ACTS OF THE ENGINEER, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES,

AND/OR SUBCONSULTANTS, RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE, OPERATIONS OR

OMISSIONS TINDER THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE USE OR OCCUPATION OF CITY OWNED

PROPERTY. THE INDEMNITY OBLIGATION PROVIDED HEREIN SHALL SURVIVE THE

EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.

ARTICLE XII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

The Engineer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances,

rules and regulations relating, in any way, manner or form, to the activities under this Agreement, and any

amendments thereto.

ARTICLE XIII. NOTICE

A. General. Whenever notice from the Engineer to the City or the City to the Engineer is required

or permitted by this Agreement and no other method of notice is provided, such notice shall be given by

(1) actual delivery of the written notice to the other party by hand (in which case such notice shall be

effective upon delivery); (2) facsimile (in which case such notice shall be effective upon delivery); or (3)

by depositing the written notice in the United States mail, properly addressed to the other party at the

address provided in this article, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, in which case such

notice shall be effective on the third business day after such notice is so deposited.

B. Engineer’s Address. The Engineer’s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are:

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
Leslie Bruce, P.E.
1207 Ave F NW, Suite 1
Childress, TX 79201
Telephone: 940-226-4218
Email: Les1ie.Bruce(4Kimley-Horn.com

C. City’s Address. The City’s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are:

Joe Schaunaman
City of Lubbock
P.O. Box 2000
1314 Avenue K
Lubbock, Texas 79457
Telephone: 806-775-2173
Email: JSchaunaman@MyLubbock.us

Page 6 of 11



D. Change of Address. Either party may change its address or numbers for purposes of notice by

giving written notice to the other party as provided herein, referring specifically to this Agreement, and

setting forth such new address or numbers. The address or numbers shall become effective on the 15th day

after such notice is effective.

ARTICLE XIV. CITY-PROVIDED DATA AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Provision of Data. The City shall furnish the Engineer non-confidential studies, reports and other

available data in the possession of the City pertinent to the Engineer’s Services, so long as the City is

entitled to rely on such studies, reports and other data for the performance of the Engineer’s Services under

this Agreement (the “Provided Data”). The Engineer shall be entitled to use and rely, so long as such

reliance is reasonable, upon all such Provided Data.

ARTICLE XV. MISCELLANEOUS

A. Captions. The captions for the articles and sections in this Agreement are inserted in this

Agreement strictly for the parties’ convenience in identifying the provisions to this Agreement and shall not

be given any effect in construing this Agreement.

B. Audit. The Engineer shall provide access to its corporate books and records to the City. The City

may audit, at its expense and during normal business hours, the Engineer’s books and records with respect

to this Agreement between the Engineer and the City.

C. Records. The Engineer shall maintain records that are necessary to substantiate the services

provided by the Engineer.

D. Assignability. The Engineer may not assign this Agreement without the prior written approval

of the City.

E. Successor and Assigns. This Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the City and the

Engineer, and in the case of the City, its respective successors, legal representatives, and assigns, and in the

case of the Engineer, its permitted successors and assigns.

F. Construction and Venue.

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED TN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THIS AGREEMENT IS PERFORMABLE IN LUBBOCK

COUNTY, TEXAS. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY CONSENT TO THE SOLE

AND EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE COURTS OF COMPETENT

Page 7 of 11



JURISDICTION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, COUNTY OF LUBBOCK, FOR THE PURPOSES OF

ALL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE

ACTIONS THAT ARE CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

G. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is ever held to be invalid or ineffective by any

court of competent jurisdiction with respect to any person or circumstance, the remainder of this Agreement

and the application of such provision to persons and/or circumstances other than those with respect to which

it is held invalid or ineffective shall not be affected thereby.

H. Amendment. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this Agreement shall be

binding unless such amendment, modification, or alteration is in writing, dated subsequent to this

Agreement, and duly authorized and executed by the Engineer and the City.

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits “A” through “B” attached hereto, contains

the entire agreement between the City and the Engineer, and there are no other written or oral promises,

conditions, warranties, or representations relating to or affecting the matters contemplated herein.

J. No Joint Enterprise. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to imply a joint venture, joint

enterprise, partnership or principal — agent relationship between the Engineer and the City.

K. Documents Owned by City. Any and all documents, drawings and specifications prepared by

Engineer as part of the Services hereunder, shall become the property of the City when the Engineer has

been compensated as set forth in Article II, above. The Engineer shall make copies of any and all work

products for its files.

L. Notice of Waiver. A waiver by either the City or the Engineer of a breach of this Agreement

must be in writing and duly authorized to be effective. In the event either party shall execute and deliver

such waiver, such waiver shall not affect the waiving party’s rights with respect to any other or subsequent

breach.

M. Third Party Activities. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to provide any rights or

benefits whatsoever to any party other than the City and the Engineer.

N. Non-Appropriation. All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the

availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of

funds by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the services provided under the Agreement, the City

will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then

current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the services covered by this

Agreement is spent, whichever event occurs first (the “Non-Appropriation Date”). If at any time funds are

not appropriated for the continuance of this Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the Engineer on
Page 8 of 11



thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall

not be obligated under this Agreement beyond the Non-Appropriation Date.

0. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist

Organization Prohibited. Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City

from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to

have contracts with or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization

P. No Boycott of Israel. Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This

section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more

full-time employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public

funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company

for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does

not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Q. Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it

does not, and will not for the duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive

that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by

Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. If Contractor is a company

with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more,

Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice,

policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and

will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association.

R. Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the

contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas

Government Code does not apply to the contract. If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time

employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant

to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott

energy companies during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement

where a governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental

entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt

obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds.

S. Texas Public Information Act. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if

the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter.

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees

to: (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records retention

Page 9 of 11



requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to

the governmental body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or

possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, either:

(A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to the contract that is in

the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract

as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body.

T. Professional Responsibility. All architectural or engineering services to be performed shall be

done with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by competent architects or engineers practicing

under the same or similar circumstances and professional license.

EXECUTED as of the Effective Date hereof.

CITY OF LUBBOCK

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

c-Mi?hael G. Kum, P. CM,Di-vift Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Page 10 of 11



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney

Firm

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

By: L4zr/”
Bradley J. Hill Regional Contract Lead

Email: Bradley.Hil1(Kimley-Hom.com

Page 11 ofIl



EXHIBIT A

Engineering Scope of Services

Unpaved Street Improvements
City of Lubbock

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

1. Existing corridor:
a. Existing unpaved streets of variable width and usage located in City of Lubbock.
b. Existing surface typically dirt or caliche with some having minor upgrades with flex

base, millings, and paving.
c. Existing curb and gutter at intersections in some locations.
d. Limits of projects broken down to block by block segments.
e. Right of way varies based on project location.

2. Proposed improvements include:
a. City of Lubbock R-1A or Ri HMAC proposed roadway.
b. Pavement section

i. 2” City of Lubbock TY C HMAC Surface
ii. 8” Flex (Caliche) Base

iii. 12” Compacted Subgrade
c. Typical 24” curb and gutter (Type “A”, Rollover Curb Type “B”, Type “C”)
d. Tie to existing features at project limits to ensure positive drainage
e. 6” Concrete alley returns and driveways.
f. Manhole and valve adjustments.

3. Special considerations for this project:
a. Existing right of way will need to be confirmed for construction of proposed

improvements. In cases where parcels are needed, coordination with City will be
required to acquire this right of way.

b. Bid packages may include one street or multiple streets.
c. The bid will include all pay items and anticipated quantities for each project and the

entire project package.
4. The professional services generally will include:

a. Design survey
b. Existing Right-of-way (ROW) research
c. Roadway design
d. Bidding Phase support services
e. Construction Phase Engineer of Record support services

Unpaved Street Improvements Page 1 of 5
Exhibit A - Engineering Scope of Services February 23, 2024



1. Design Survey (by Subconsultant)
1.1. Survey Data — develop topographic data within the limits of this project.

1.1.1 Data Collection and Property Research — Subconsultant will collect available data
to determine the boundary ownership along the project limits.

1.1.2 Design Survey
• The limits of the survey will be on the limits defined for each unpaved

roadway segment. The survey will include topo survey at intersection tie ins
and extend a minimum of 50’ each way along roadways at each intersection.

• Place two (2) control monuments with aluminum cap in concrete at each
project site location. Establish horizontal state plane coordinates (NAD 83)
using GPS. Establish vertical control coordinates on NAVD 88. Monuments
will be set to accommodate the limits of construction where possible.

• Perform a field survey at the terminus of each project to identify and locate
existing topographic elements within the roadway corridor including, but not
limited to the following:
o Existing pavement, curbs, sidewalks, barrier free ramps, etc.
o Existing Driveways (including material) and swales
o Alleys (including material)
o Existing culvert sizes and invert elevations, including cross sections

approaching culvert crossings and headwalls/wingwalls
o Visible utilities including: manholes, vaults, water valves, water meters,

telephone poles, power poles, utility markers, water well features, other
public utilities, and franchise utilities

o Contact Texas 811 and request locates along corridors for additional
utility marking data collection

o Signs (excluding temporary signs)
o Fence/Wall limits and material types (excluding temporary fences)
o Other applicable physical features that could impact design
o Utilize City LiDAR data to infill each project and develop 3d models for

corridor design.
o Prepare a final topographic drawing in digital format (Open Roads

Designer) (including contours and break lines) showing the features
located in the field, an ASCII coordinate file of the points located in the
field, and a hard copy of the coordinates and feature descriptions.

2. Design Survey Processing (by Kimley-Horn)
2.1. Process Existing Survey

2.1.1 Develop topographic terrain drawing based on existing survey performed and
provided by the City for use in design.

3. Design
3.1. Project Management

3.1.1 Progress and Review Meetings:
• Schedule, prepare for, attend, and document three (3) Progress Meetings

and one (1) Review Meeting to monitor the development of the project(s).

Unpaved Street Improvements Page 2 of 5
Exhibit A - Engineering Scope of Services February 23, 2024



o Progress Meetings will be held to discuss design issues and progress of
plan production.

o Review Meetings will be conducted (one (1) at 60% Plan Submittal).
3.1.2 Site Visits - Attend up to five (5) site visits during the final design phase to take

photos, field measurements, and a plans-in-hand walk-through.
3.1.3 Coordinate with subconsultants
3.1.4 Prepare and e-mail monthly progress reports to City.
3.1.5 QA/QC

• ENGINEER will perform an internal review prior to all submittals (60% and
100%) in accordance with quality assurance standards established for this
project. QA/QC comments will be collected from each internal reviewer,
documented, and comments addressed prior to each plan submittal to the
City

• City review comments will be documented and addressed after 60% review
meeting. Engineer will create a “Comment Log” in spreadsheet format,
documenting the comment and the action taken to resolve the comment.

3.1.6 Project Administration
• Prepare project correspondence and invoicing documents

3.2. Roadway Design (PS&E)
3.2.1 Prepare plan / profile sheets on 11” x 17” plan sheets at a scale of 1” = 100’

horizontal, and 1” = 10’ vertical.
3.2.2 Include the following items in addition to those included in the preliminary design

submittal:
o Proposed residential and commercial driveways
o Horizontal Alignment Data
o Demolition plan
o Intersection layouts
o Standard design details

3.2.3 Locate and identify all driveways within the project limits.
3.2.4 Prepare roadway details to clarify intent of design
3.2.5 Compile applicable City standard details. Modify standard details as needed.

3.3. Utilities - Public
3.3.1 Water and Sewer Adjustments/Relocations

• Adjustments to existing water valves and manholes will not be specified in
the plans. Quantities will be determined for bidding purposes using
information available within City of Lubbock databases.

• Water and Sewer adjustment in excess of valve and manhole elevations
adjustments will be designed and constructed by City of Lubbock.

3.4. Interim Design Submittal (60%) Deliverables
3.4.1 Submit electronic PDF file of the 60% design to the City for review and comment.
3.4.2 This submittal will provide assurance that project scope is addressing project

issues, and will allow for design changes with sufficient lead time for minor
revisions. Deliverables to be provided with this submittal include:

Unpaved Street Improvements Page 3 of 5
Exhibit A - Engineering Scope of Services February 23, 2024



• Title Sheet
• General Notes/Index of Sheets Sheet
• Demolition Sheets
• Plan & Profile Sheets
• Intersection Layout Sheets
• Detail Sheets
• Bid Tab with items and quantities
• Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC) by individual project limits and

cumulative bid package.
3.5. Final Design Submittal (Bid Set) Deliverables

3.5.1 Submit electronic PDF file of Final submittal to the City.
3.5.2 Submittal will be complete except for addressing final comments, if any.
3.5.3 Submit an electronic PDF file submission to the City of the following:

• Sealed Plan Sheets
- Title Sheet
- General Notes/Index of Sheets Sheet
- Demolition Sheets
- Plan & Profile Sheets
- Intersection Layout Sheets
- Detail Sheets

• Sealed Project Specifications
• Final Bid Tab
• OPCC

3.6. Post Bid Submittal Deliverables
3.6.1 Submit one (1) PDF electronic copy of the plan set and specifications, including

addenda.

4. Bid Phase Support
4.1. Support City during the bid phase to address and respond to questions from prospective

bidders.
4.2. Prepare and submit addenda changes that are necessitated by questions during the bid

phase.
4.3. Incorporate addenda changes into the Final Plan Set.
4.4. Assist the City in evaluating the bids and prepare a recommendation letter.

5. Additional Services
Services not specifically identified in the Scope of Services above shall be considered additional
and shall be performed on an individual basis upon authorization by the City. Such services shall
include, but are not limited to, the following:

• Geotechnical investigation
• Right of Way acquisition services

Unpaved Street Improvements Page 4 of 5
Exhibit A - Engineering Scope of Services February 23, 2024



• SUE
• Franchise Utility Coordination/Relocations
• TxDOT Coordination
• Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan
• Drainage study and associated design of channel and culvert improvements
• Design of any offsite drainage improvements beyond the improvements identified in the

scope
• Design of Traffic Control Plan
• Traffic and Traffic Signal Design
• Development of 3D roadway model and design cross-sections
• Pavement marking and Marking Plans
• Construction staking
• Existing water or sanitary sewer relocations
• Proposed water or sanitary sewer installations
• Landscape design
• Irrigation design
• Illumination design
• Construction Contract Administration
• Construction Phase Engineer of Record support services
• Construction Phase RPR Services
• Design of structural retaining walls
• Preparation for and attendance at public meetings beyond what was identified in the

scope
• Furnish additional copies of review documents and/or bid documents more than the

number of the same identified above
• Assist the City as an expert witness in litigation about the project or in hearings before

approving and regulatory agencies
• Redesign to reflect project scope changes requested by the City or TxDOT, required to

address changed conditions or change in direction previously approved by the City,
mandated by changing governmental laws, or necessitated by the City’s acceptance of
substitutions proposed by the contractor

TIME OF COMPLETION

Consultant and Subconsultants are authorized to commence work on the Project upon execution of
a mutually acceptable contract and agree to complete the services as expeditiously as practicable.

Unpaved Street Improvements Page 5 of 5
Exhibit A - Engineering Scope of Services February 23, 2024



1

Lub1°k Exhibit B
Kimley>> Horn

TEXAS

Unpaved Streets
Fee Proposal Summary

Task Task Description KHA HRA Subtotal

1 Survey $ 4,400.00 $ 28,800.00 $ 33,200.00

2 Design Survey Processing $ 4,500.00 $ 4,500.00

3 Design $ 164,500.00 $ 164,500.00

4 Bid Phase Support $ 18,300.00 $ 18,300.00

TOTALS $ 191,700.00 $ 28,800.00 $ 220,500.00

The Engineer will not exceed the total maximum labor fee shown above without authorization from the City. Individual task amounts are provided for

budgeting purposes only. The Engineer reserves the right to reallocate amounts among tasks as necessary. Labor fee will be billed on an hourly basis

according to our then-current rates. As to these tasks, direct reimbursable expenses such as express delivery services, fees, travel, and other direct expenses
will be billed at 1.15 times cost. A percentage of Engineer labor fee (4.6%) will be added to each invoice to cover certain other expenses such as

telecommunications, in-house reproduction, postage, supplies, project related computer time, and local mileage.



N
AV

E
Q

D
R

CESAR E CHAVEZ DR

A
V

E
 N

I2
7

EMORY ST

ITASCA ST

MARSHALL ST

A
V

E
 U

EMORY ST

MARSHALL ST

CLOVIS RD

KEMPER ST

ERSKINE ST

N LOOP 289

B

AYLOR DR

N
U

N
IV

E
R

S
IT

Y
A

V

OBERLIN ST

A
V

E
 S

CORNELL ST

A
V

E
 T

A
V

E
 V

A
V

E
 U

N
 V

E
R

N
O

N
 A

V

N
 U

LR
IC

H
 A

V

A
V

E
 P

NIAGARA ST

N
 A

K
R

O
N

 A
V

LOOP 289

A
V

E
 T

A
V

E
 S

A
V

E
 R

A
V

E
 Q

A
V

E
 J

A
V

E
 K

A
V

E
 L

N
 A

K
R

O
N

 A
V

A
V

E
 X

DUKE ST

A
V

E
 X

N
 A

T
H

E
N

S
 A

V

QUEENS ST

A
V

E
 W

N
 A

VE
 Q

 F
R

JARVIS ST

A
V

E
 P

HARVARD ST

DUKE ST

EMORY ST

RICE ST

DARTMOUTH ST

COLGATE ST

DUKE ST

GRINNELL ST

FORDHAM ST FORDHAM ST

A
V

E 
J

STANFORD ST

PRINCETON ST

GRINNELL ST

A
V

E
 R

CORNELL ST

A
V

E
 K

Fordham Street from
Avenue L to Avenue J

Oberlin Street from N. University
Avenue to Cesar Chavez Drive

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this
product is for informational purposes and may not have be prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Unpaved Roads

Lubbock City Limits

Street Centerlines0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000
US Feet

Contract 17967 - Bond Unpaved Roads
North SectionÜ

Mars
ha S

harp
 Fwy

Interstate 27

N Loop 289

Clovis Rd

N
 U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
A

ve

N
. A

ve
 Q



73RD ST

LOOP 289

LOOP 289

77TH PL

82ND ST

87TH ST

90TH ST

88TH ST

A
V

E
 P

98TH ST

M
LK

 J
R

 B
D

83RD ST

A
V

E
 S I2

7

S LOOP 289

E SLATON RD

81ST ST

A
S

H
 A

V

SE LOOP 289

O
A

K
 A

V

A
V

E
 R

A
V

E
 P

96TH ST

A
V

E
 D

84TH ST

77TH ST

92ND ST

94TH ST

79TH PL

89TH ST

H
W

Y
 8

7

76TH ST
E 76TH ST

76TH ST

A
V

E
 L

IV
O

R
Y

 A
V

E 82ND ST

E 73RD ST

102ND ST

80TH ST

79TH ST

A
V

E
 N

A
V

E
 K

78TH ST

A
V

E
 S

C
E

D
A

R
 A

V

T
E

M
P

LE
 A

V

A
V

E
 F

S
H

O
R

T
 R

D

H
W

Y
 8

7

P
R

2
4

40

E
LM

 A
V

99TH ST

79TH ST

S
H

E
R

M
A

N
 A

V

E 77TH ST

E 74TH ST

T
E

M
P

LE
 A

V

M
A

G
N

O
LI

A
 A

VG
LO

B
E

 A
V

A
V

E
 J

A
V

E
 T

S
E

G
U

IN
 A

V

A
V

E
 Q

A
V

E
 M

A
V

E
 R A

V
E

 B

K
IN

G
 A

V

E 79TH ST

A
V

E
 O

75TH ST

80TH ST

Q
U

A
N

A
H

 A
V

77TH STP
A

R
IS

 A
V

A
V

E
 Q

81ST ST

PR 7130

100TH ST

H
IC

K
O

R
Y

 A
V

FI
R

 A
V

99TH PL

86TH ST

74TH ST

E 81ST ST

E 78TH ST

E 80TH ST

E 75TH ST

74TH ST

D
A

TE
A

V

78TH ST

Avenue T from 94th
Street to 98th Street

94th Street from
Avenue P to Avenue S

E 78th Street from King
Avenue to MLK Avenue

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this
product is for informational purposes and may not have be prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Unpaved Roads

Lubbock City Limits

Street Centerlines0 1,000 2,000 3,000
US Feet

Contract 17967 - Bond Unpaved Roads
South SectionÜ

Mars
ha S

harp
 Fwy

In
te

rs
ta

te
 2

7

S Loop 289

98th St

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

A
ve

82nd St

M
ar

ti
n 

L
ut

he
r 

K
in

g 
B

lv
d.



City of Lubbock
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
March 26, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92712
Capital Project Name: Transportation Improvements/Unpaved Roads

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Construction Contract 16211, West Texas Paving, Inc.,  $1,356,535 
Professional Service Agreement 16363 with Freese and Nichols  250,000 
Amendment 1 to Contract 16363 with Freese and Nichols  30,306 
Professional Service Agreement 16440 with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.  175,000 
Surveying Services by Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc.  13,974 
Advertising Costs  1,186 
City of Lubbock Staff Time  265,981 
Construction Contract 16919, Lone Star Dirt & Paving  2,118,230 
System Capital Improvements, Construction  39,053 
Construction Contract 17342, Lone Star Dirt & Paving  3,704,125 
ROW Dedication, north half of Erskine from Lublerry to Idalou Road  5,790 
Contract 17773 with Elm Meadows Addition LLC  8,663 
Funding provided by Community Development Grants  (1,522,666)

Agenda Item March 26, 2024
Contract 17967 with Kimley Horn  220,500 

Encumbered/Expended To Date  6,666,677 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Unimproved Roadway Construction and Design  2,392,485 

Remaining Appropriation  2,392,485 

Total Appropriation  $9,059,162 



Project Scope

This project  wil l  fund the paving and improvement of exist ing local residential and collector gravel roads in
exist ing subdivis ions where the roads were never improved by the developer.  Th is project  wil l  fund the
design  and construct ion  of various inadequate transportat ion  elements with in  these areas of the City
including un improved roadway surfaces, unsafe roadway widths, drainage improvements , street  l ight ing ,
and ADA compliance.

Project Justification

Areas of the City of Lubbock have existing local residential roadways that are gravel and not improved
with a paved surface. These roadways were part of developments where the roads were never
improved by the developer. These roadways do not meet the City’s Standard Specifications and this
project will help improve mobility and safety in these residential areas.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed: Growth and
Development, Public Safety, Community
Improvement

FY 2020-21 $9,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2020-O0077
FY 2022-23 $59,162 was appropriated by BCR#
2023-9

Project Dates Project Location

City-wide

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $9,059,162 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $9,059,162 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Fund Cash $59,162 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

General Fund CO Bonds $9,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $9,059,162 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92712CIP 92712 Transportation Transportation
Improvements/ Unpaved RoadsImprovements/ Unpaved Roads

Upgrade/Major MaintenanceUpgrade/Major Maintenance

Project Manager: Mike KeenumProject Manager: Mike Keenum  - Engineering- Engineering



Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12356 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 30. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Development
Agreement Contract 17488, with Red Canyon Development, LLC, 146th & Quaker, LLC, Chad Michael
Henthorn, 14th Texas Real Estate, LLC., and Bushland Springs, LLC., for the construction of a portion
of Quaker Avenue, from 146th Street to Woodrow Road.

Item Summary
This development agreement between the City of Lubbock and Red Canyon Development, LLC 146th &
Quaker, LLC, Chad Henthorn, 14 Texas Real Estate, LLC, and Bushland Springs, LLC, is for the
construction of a portion of Quaker Avenue from 146th Street to Woodrow Road. It is the intention of
this agreement that all parties participate financially in the construction efforts of a portion of Quaker
Avenue, with sole responsibility of the developers to construct the roadway improvements.

The bid from the contractor for Quaker Avenue from 146th Street to Woodrow Road, came in at the
amount of $4,249,500. This City's contribution in the development agreement is limited to $1,274,850.

Fiscal Impact
This agreement in the amount of $1,274,850, is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92828, Quaker
Avenue from 146th Street to Woodrow Road.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Development Agreement 
Location Exhibit 
92828 Spreadsheet 
92828 Budget Detail 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COuNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute fo:
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, the Development Agreement Contract No. 17488 for thc
construction of a 2-lane extension on Quaker Avenue from 146th Street to Woodrow Road, by anc
between the City of Lubbock and 146th & Quaker, LLC, Chad Henthorn, Red Canyor
Development, LLC, 14 Texas Real Estate, LLC, and Bushland Springs, LLC and relatec
documents. Said Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully se
forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

_________________________________

TRAY PAYNE. MAYOR

ATTEST:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

LL&)
elli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

ccdocs/RES.development agreement — Quaker 146th to Woodrow
2.27.24



STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF LUBBOCK §

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF

A PORTION OF QUAKER AVENUE

This Development Agreement (“Agreement”) Contract No. 17488 is entered into this_day
of , 2024 by and between the City of Lubbock, Texas, a Texas home rule municipal
corporation (the “City”) and Red Canyon Development, LLC, 146th & Quaker, LLC, Chad
Henthorn, 14 Texas Real Estate, LLC, and Bushland Springs, LLC (the “Developers”).

WHEREAS, Developers are the owners of certain real property adjacent to Quaker
Avenue, located within the corporate limits of the City; and

WHEREAS, in lieu of waiting for the City to construct a 2-lane extension on Quaker
Avenue from 146th Street to Woodrow Road (the “Project”), the Developers will construct the
Project in order that construction commence sooner, and in turn the Developers will receive
credits (in the amount of their respective participation) towards roadway impact fees that will
otherwise be due from the development at the time of platting; and

WHEREAS, the portion of Quaker Avenue that is the subject, details thereof, and the
associated opinion of probable cost (the “Contract Price”) of the Developers’ Project are
provided in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein; and

WHEREAS, each Developer’s participation shall be in the amount set forth in Exhibit
“B”, attached hereto and incorporated herein, including the County of Lubbock who shall not
be a party to this agreement, but have executed a separate agreement for funding a portion of the
Project, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “C”; and

WHEREAS, the City shall participate in the cost of the Project at an amount not to
exceed 30 percent (30%) of the total contract price, in accordance with the Texas Local
Government Code Sec. 21 2.702(b)(1).

WITNESSETH:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and
obligations set forth herein, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the City and
Developers hereby agree as follows:

SECTION 1 Developers Activities

1.01 Developers shall proceed in a diligent manner to completion of the Project in
accordance with all applicable federal and state laws, City of Lubbock Code of
Ordinances, and City of Lubbock policies. Completion of such improvements

Page 1 of 6



shall occur within eighteen (18) months after execution of this agreement.
Completion of the Project shall not be deemed to have occurred unless and until
the City shall have accepted such improvements as being in compliance with the
terms of this Agreement and federal, state, and local laws.

1.02 Developers shall comply with applicable laws related to private performance of
public improvements, including without limitation, Subchapter C of Chapter 212
of the Local Government Code.

SECTION 2 City Participation

201 The City shall, subject to the terms hereof, participate in the Project in an amount
not to exceed, one million two hundred seventy-four thousand eight hundred fifty
and 00/100 Dollars ($1,274,850.00), based on the actual bid prices of the Project.
It is expressly hereby represented and warranted by Developers to City that the
total Contract Price regarding this project is estimated to be four million two
hundred forty-nine thousand five hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($4,249,500.00).

202 The City shall pay to Developer the actual bid price amount, as limited herein
not to exceed $1,274,850.00 upon completion of the Project and inspection and
acceptance thereof by the City. It is expressly stipulated that the City shall owe
no funds to Developers unless and until the Project is completed in accordance
with all state laws, City of Lubbock Code of Ordinance provisions, and City of
Lubbock policies.

203 Under no circumstance or event shall the participation of the City exceed thirty
percent (3 0%) of the total Contract Price contemplated by subchapter C of
Chapter 212 of the Texas Local Government Code. In the event such
participation, as computed and limited herein by the “not to exceed” sum
provided in Section 2.01, above, shall so exceed thirty percent (3 0%) of the
Contract Price, the City shall only be obligated to pay the lesser of thirty percent
(30%) of the Contract Price, or the “not to exceed” sum provided in Section 2.01,
above. In the case that the Project costs exceed the Contract Price attached, the
Developers shall be solely responsible for any and all excess costs.

SECTION 3 Performance Bond

3.01 Developers shall execute a Performance Bond for the construction of the Project
to ensure completion of the Project. The bond must be executed by a corporate
surety in accordance with Chapter 2253 of the Texas Government Code. The
bond shall be submitted to the City Engineer of the City of Lubbock on or before
beginning any work on the Project. In the event such performance bond is not so
submitted, this Agreement shall be null and void and of no force and effect.

SECTION 4 Additional Safeguards

4.01 All of Developers’ books and other records related to the Developers’ construction

Page 2 of 6



of the Project shall be available for inspection by the City upon request. Developer
shall furnish actual contract documentation to the City that depicts the actual costs
of the Project prior to request for payment from the City.

SECTION 5 Term

5.01 The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date of execution of this
Agreement by City and end upon the complete performance of all obligations by
each party to this Agreement.

SECTION 6 Indemnity

6.01 Developers agree to defend, indemnify, and hold City, its officers, agents,
employees, and elected officials, harmless from and against any and all claims,
lawsuits, liabilities, judgments, costs and expenses for any harm for which
recovery of damages is sought that may arise out of, be occasioned by or related
to Developers’ breach of any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement.

SECTION 7 Events of Default / Remedies

7.01 A default shall exist if any party fails to perform or observe any material covenant
or obligation contained in this Agreement, or if any material representation and/or
warranty provided for herein is not true or correct. The non-defaulting party shall
notify the defaulting party in writing upon becoming aware of any event that
constitutes a default. Such notice shall specifi the nature of the default and what
action, if any, the non-defaulting party requires or proposes to require with respect
to curing the default.

7.02 If a default shall occur and be continuing, after ten (10) days written notice to cure
such default, the non-defaulting party may pursue any and all remedies it may be
entitled to at law, contract, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation,
termination of this Agreement. It is agreed that failure to declare this Agreement
terminated upon the default of Developers for any of the reasons set forth above
shall not be construed as a waiver of any of the City’s rights hereunder or
otherwise bar or preclude City from declaring this Agreement terminated as a
result of any subsequent violation of any of the terms or conditions of this
Agreement. All of such remedies are expressly cumulative and the exercise of
one or more remedies shall not preclude the simultaneous or subsequent exercise
of different or additional remedies.

SECTION 8 Miscellaneous

8.01 This Agreement is performable in Lubbock County, Texas, and venue for any
action arising out of this Agreement shall be exclusively in Lubbock County,
Texas. This Agreement shall governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of Texas.

8.02 Any notice required by this Agreement shall be deemed to be properly served, if:

Page 3 of 6



(i) Provided in person, email, or by telephonic facsimile; or
(ii) Deposited in the United States mail by certified letter, return receipt

requested, addressed to the recipient at recipient’s address shown below,
subject to the right of either party to designate a different address by notice
given in the manner just described.

Notice shall be deemed to be received when delivered if provided in person or by
telephonic facsimile or, if deposited in the United States mail, as set forth above,
(4) days after depositing such notice in the United States mail, as set forth above.

For City:

City Manager
City of Lubbock
P. 0. Box 2000
Lubbock, Texas 79457
Facsimile No. 806-775-2051
jatkinson@mylubbock.us

with copy to:
Mike Keenum
City Engineer
City of Lubbock
P.O. Box 2000
Lubbock, Texas 79457
Facsimile No. 806-775-3074
mkeenum@mylubbock.us

For Developers:

Red Canyon Development, LLC
Thomas K. Payne, Manager
P.O. Box 64664
Lubbock, Texas 79464

146th & Quaker, LLC
Attn: Jay Pickering
4901 Lakeridge Drive
Lubbock, Texas 79424
troypickering@yahoo.com

Chad Michael Henthorn
4204 104th Street
Lubbock, Texas 79423
chad@teiner.com

Page 4 of 6



14 Texas Real Estate, LLC
Attn: Andrew Mitchell
1201 South Taylor Street
Amarillo, Texas 79101
amitchell@tootntotum.com

Bushland Springs, LLC
8213 Alcove Avenue
Lubbock, Texas 79424
treystrong(hotmail.com

8.03 In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for
any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, except as
may otherwise be provided herein, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability
shall not in any way affect any other provision hereof and this Agreement shall be
considered as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been
contained in this Agreement.

8.04 City and Developers each bind themselves and their successors and assigns to the
other parties of this Agreement. Developers represents and warrant to City that it
(i) possesses the requisite power and authority to execute, deliver and perform this
Agreement; (ii) has taken all actions and formalities necessary to authorize
Developers to execute, deliver and perform this Agreement; and (iii) the party
executing for and on behalf of each Developer has been duly authorized to act in
such behalf for each Developer.

8.05 City and Developers herein recognize that the continuation of any agreement at
the close of any given fiscal year of the City of Lubbock, Texas, which fiscal year
ends on September 30 of each year, shall be subject to Council budget approval
of the City, providing for or covering such agreement item as an expenditure
therein. The City does not represent that said budget item will actually be adopted
as this determination is within the sole discretion of the City Council.

8.06 The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law,
contract, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any
and all forms of relief in a court of competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall
not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted right to
seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not
exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict
between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, this
provision shall control.

8.07 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original and constitute one and the same instrument.

Page 5 of 6



CITY OF LUBBOCK: DEVELOPERS:

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

ivision Di e or of Engineering/City Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Andrew Mitchell, Manager

BUSHLAND SPRINGS, LLC:

Robert Wood, Manager

Jack (Trey) F. Strong III, Manager

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

REDON DEVELOPMENT, LLC:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

146TH & QUAKER, LLC:

JPicring, Manager

CHAD HENTHORN:

Chad Henthom, Owner

14 TEXAS REAL ESTATE, LLC:

Page 6 of 6



)

CITY OF LUBBOCK: DEVELOPERS:

RED CANYON DEVELOPMENT, LLC:

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR

ATTEST:
Thomas Payne, Manager

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Blake Womble, Manager

146TH & QUAKER, LLC:

Michael Keenum, P.E., CFM
Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Jay Pickering, Manager

Kelli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

14 TEXAS REAL ESTATE, LLC:

Andrew Mitchell, Manager

BUSHLAND SPRINGS, LLC:

Robert Wood, Manager

Jack (Trey) F. Strong III, Manager

CHAD

Chad Henthorn, Owner

Page 6 of 6



CITY OF LUBBOCK: DEVELOPERS:

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR

RED CANYON DEVELOPMENT, LLC:

ATTEST:
Thomas Payne, Manager

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Blake Womble, Manager

146TH & QUAKER, LLC:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Kelli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

Jay Pickering, Manager

CHAD HENTHORN:

Chad Henthom, Owner

14 TEXAS REAL ESTATE, LLC:

Andrew Mitchell, Manager

BUSHLAND SPRINGS, LLC:

Robert Wood, Manager

Jack (Trey) F. Strong III, Manager

Michael Keenum, P.E., CFM
Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Page 6 of 6



CITY OF LUBBOCK: DEVELOPERS:

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR

RED CANYON DEVELOPMENT, LLC:

ATTEST:
Thomas Payne, Manager

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Blake Womble, Manager

146TH & QUAKER, LLC:

Michael Keenum, P.E., CFM
Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Jay Pickering, Manager

CHAD HENTHORN:

Chad Henthorn, Owner
Kelli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

14 TEXAS REAL ESTATE, LLC:

Andrew Mitchell, Manager

Strong III, Manager

Page 6 of 6





City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
March 26, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92828
Capital Project Name: Quaker Ave from 146th Street to Woodrow Road

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time  $- 

Agenda Items, March 26, 2024

Contract 15944 - Development Agreement for Construction of Quaker Ave  1,274,850 
Encumbered/Expended To Date  1,274,850 

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
No remaining cost  - 

Remaining Appropriation  - 

Total Appropriation  $1,274,850 



Project Scope

Quaker Avenue from 146th Street to Woodrow Rd. is currently unpaved and is designated in the 2018

Thoroughfare Master Plan to become a five-land modif ied principle arterial roadway. Continued growth in

south Lubbock has increased traff ic demands along the south Quaker Avenue corridor from 146th Street to

Woodrow Road, a roadway that’s currently unpaved. Safety concerns necessitate the construction of an all-

weather paved roadway. The new roadway wil l be constructed to a two lane mult imodal roadway with

drainage structures in the five lane ult imate configuration.

Project Justification

This project will provide construction of street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks,

utility line relocations, traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the

acquisition of land and rights of way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights  Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:

Public Safety

Community Improvement

Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $1,109,697 was appropriated by

Ord. 2023-O0089

FY 2022-23 $165,153 was appropriated by

Ord. 2023-O0095

Project Dates Project Location

Quaker Ave - 146th to Woodrow Road

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $1,274,850 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,274,850 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Fund Cash $1,274,850 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,274,850 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCIIIIIIIIIIIIIPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP 9999999999999999999992222222222222288888888888888888888888888888888888882222222222222222222222228888888888888888888888CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP 9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222228888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888822222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888CIP 92828   QQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaakkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeerrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee  ffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooommmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm 11111111111111111111111111111111111111111111144444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444446666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666ttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttthhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Quaker Ave from 146th
SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSStttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeetttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttt     ttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo  WWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWoooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooodddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooowwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwww RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaadddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddStreet to Woodrow Road

NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeewwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwww  RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRoooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaadddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaayyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyy    IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIInnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnfffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrraaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaassssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssstttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrruuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuucccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuurrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeNew Roadway Infrastructure

PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooojjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeecccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccttttttttttttttttttttttttttttt MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaannnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaagggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeerrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiikkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee KKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeennnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuummmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm ----------------------------- EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnneeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeerrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggggProject Manager: Mike Keenum - Engineering



 AI# 12355 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 31. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Water Utilities: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the City Manager, in
executing Purchase Order 22105341, for the emergency purchase of 720 Memcor Membrane Modules
from Du Pont (FilmTec Corporation), to replace failed membrane modules and to restore full production
capability of the South Water Treatment Plant.

Item Summary
In August 2012, the City of Lubbock began operating the South Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) in order
to begin using water from Lake Alan Henry. As part of the treatment process at the SWTP,
microfiltration (MF) membranes are used. The membrane process at this plant typically consists of six
membrane skids (240 membrane modules per skid) totaling 1,440 modules. As of January 2023, over
half of the membrane skids failed due to unknown causes. This failure has forced water treatment
operations to shut down 3 of the 6 membrane skids. To remedy this failure, the City Council approved
Purchase Order 22105280 as an emergency purchase for 720 membrane modules and installed by City
staff.  Before delivery of the membrane modules, the remaining 3 skids experienced similar membrane
module failure. Therefore, the water treatment capability of the SWTP had declined to near zero
production. It was determined that an additional 720 membrane modules would be required to restore
full production capability of the SWTP.
 
The water treated at the SWTP plays a vital role in meeting the City's peak water demand during the
summer months. Plant staff strategically redirected water distribution throughout the City, avoiding the
implementation of increased water restrictions. City staff requested that Du Pont, the sole source
provider for purchasing replacement Memcor membrane modules, proceed with acquiring an additional
720 membrane modules in anticipation of replacing the remaining failed units. Du Pont agreed to secure
the needed membrane modules from their Australia facility, in order to minimize long delivery
schedules. Du Pont confirmed delivery of the remaining 720 modules which are now available for
immediate purchase. This purchase completes the replacement of the remaining failed membrane
modules at the City of Lubbock SWTP.
 
This purchase order is for the procurement of 720 Du Pont (FilmTec Corporation) Memcor Membrane
Modules for $794,880. This purchase includes a shipping discount for the membrane modules and a
10-year warranty. In addition, the purchase includes technical installation consultation and shipping costs.
 
As the budget year progresses, staff will monitor the budget expenditures throughout the fiscal year and
determine if additional funding will be necessary due to this procurement.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 22105341 in the amount of $794,880 is funded in the Water /Wastewater FY 2023-24
Operating Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending



Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 
PO 22105341 FILMTEC REQ 61369 





 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 2/15/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 22105341 OP000
Branch/Plant         6349

FILMTEC CORPORATION CITY OF LUBBOCK
4118 COLLECTION CENTER DRIVE SOUTH TREATMENT PLANT

5114 EAST FM 1585CHICAGO IL 60693-0077
LUBBOCK TX 79404

Ordered .Freight2/15/2024
Taken ByRequested 2/27/2024  YBUSBY

  PUR 17926/RATIFIED SOLE SOURCEDelivery PER R MARTINEZ REQ 61369

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Module Spare L20N V2 720.000 1,100.0000 EA
O-Ring EPDM 9710 960.000 1.5000 EA
O-Ring EPDM 9710 BS3354 960.000 1.0000 EA
O-Ring EPDM 9710 52.1x5 960.000 .5000 EA

792,000.00 3/29/2024 
1,440.00 3/29/2024 

960.00 3/29/2024 
480.00 3/29/2024

Total Order

NET 30Terms 794,880.00

If you have any questions contact Renata Martinez: RMartinez@mylubbock.us Phone 806-775-2611

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $794,880.00 awarded to Filmtec Corporation of Chicago, 
IL, on _________________, 2024. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by 
reference: Quote dated April 05, 2023, from Filmtec Corporation of Chicago, IL, and a Ratified Sole Source.

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

_______________________________________ 

Tray Payne, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________________

Courtney Paz, City Secretary



  REV. 3/2022     

    Rev. 3/2022 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special 

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special 

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent 

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase.  

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices  

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees 

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give 

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two 

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer 

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a 

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in 

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance  

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid, 

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive 

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this 

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other 

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the 

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this 

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this 

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default 

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to 

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response 

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in 

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent 

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted 

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised 

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, 

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized 

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to 

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount 

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to 

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service 

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for 

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott 

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response.  

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. 

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it 

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that 

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us










 AI# 12276 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 32. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0025, amending Article
28.09 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the 2021 International Building Code.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The International Building Code is the City's adopted model building code, and governs the
construction, maintenance and repair of all buildings that are not within the scope of the International
Residential Code. The Code is promulgated by the International Code Council, updated triennially
through a legislative process involving input and voting by member jurisdictions nationwide, and further
amended by the City of Lubbock to suit unique local conditions. The proposed ordinance updates the
document from the 2015 edition to the 2021 edition.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Robert Wallace, Director of Development Services
Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board

Attachments
2021 International Building Code Ordinance 































































 AI# 12277 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 33. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0026, amending Article
28.10 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the 2021 International Plumbing
Code.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The International Plumbing Code is the City's adopted model plumbing code, and governs the
installation, maintenance and repair of plumbing systems within all buildings throughout the
jurisdiction. The Code is promulgated by the International Code Council, updated triennially through a
legislative process involving input and voting by member jurisdictions nationwide, and further amended
by the City to suit unique local conditions. The proposed ordinance updates the document from the 2015
edition to the 2021 edition.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Robert Wallace, Director of Development Services
Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board

Attachments
2021 International Plumbing Code Ordinance 









































































 AI# 12278 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 34. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0027, amending Article
28.11 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the 2021 International Mechanical
Code.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The International Mechanical Code is the City's adopted "model" mechanical code, and governs the
installation, maintenance and repair of mechanical systems (heating, ventilation and air conditioning)
within all buildings throughout the jurisdiction. The Code is promulgated by the International Code
Council, updated triennially through a legislative process involving input and voting by member
jurisdictions nationwide, and further amended by the City to suit unique local conditions. The proposed
ordinance updates the document from the 2015 edition to the 2021 edition.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Robert Wallace, Director of Development Services
Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board

Attachments
2021 International Mechanical Code Ordinance 



















 AI# 12279 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 35. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0028, amending Article
28.12 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the 2020 National Electrical Code.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The National Electrical Code is the City's adopted model electrical code, and governs the construction,
installation, maintenance and repair of electrical wiring, equipment and systems within all buildings and
premises throughout the jurisdiction. The Code is promulgated by the National Fire Protection
Association, updated triennially through a legislative process involving input and voting by member
jurisdictions nationwide, and further amended by the City to suit unique local conditions. The proposed
ordinance updates the document from the 2014 edition to the 2020 edition.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Robert Wallace, Director of Development Services
Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board

Attachments
2020 National Electrical Code Ordinance 

















































 AI# 12280 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 36. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0029, amending Article
28.14 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the 2021 International Residential
Code.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The International Residential Code is the City's adopted model residential construction code, and
governs the construction of single family houses, two-family houses (duplexes), and buildings consisting
of three or more townhouse units. The Code is promulgated by the International Code Council, updated
triennially through a legislative process involving input and voting by member jurisdictions nationwide,
and further amended by the City of Lubbock to suit unique local conditions. The proposed ordinance
updates the document from the 2015 edition to the 2021 edition.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Robert Wallace, Director of Development Services
Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board

Attachments
2021 International Residential Code Ordinance 

























































 AI# 12282 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 37. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0030, amending Article
28.15 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the 2021 International Fuel Gas Code.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The International Fuel Gas Code is the City's adopted model fuel gas code, and governs the construction,
maintenance and repair of fuel gas distribution piping and systems, throughout the jurisdiction. The
Code is promulgated by the International Code Council, updated triennially through a legislative process
involving input and voting by member jurisdictions nationwide, and further amended by the City of
Lubbock to suit unique local conditions. The proposed ordinance updates the document from the 2015
edition to the 2021 edition.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Robert Wallace, Director of Development Services
Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board

Attachments
2021 International Fuel Gas Code Ordinance 













 AI# 12283 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 38. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0031, amending Article
28.16 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the 2021 International Energy
Conservation Code.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The International Energy Conservation Code is the City's adopted model energy conservation code, and
governs the minimum energy conservation requirements for new buildings. The International Energy
Conservation Code addresses energy conservation requirements for all aspects of energy use in both
commercial and residential construction, including heating and ventilating, lighting, water heating, and
power usage for appliances and building systems. The Code is promulgated by the International Code
Council, updated triennially through a legislative process involving input and voting by member
jurisdictions nationwide, and further amended by the City to suit unique local conditions. The proposed
ordinance updates the document from the 2015 edition to the 2021 edition.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Robert Wallace, Director of Development Services
Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board

Attachments
2021 International Energy Conservation Code Ordinance 

































 AI# 12284 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 39. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0032, adding Article
28.17 to the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the 2021 International Existing
Building Code.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The International Existing Building Code is a model building code that covers repair, alteration, addition
and change of occupancy for existing buildings while achieving appropriate levels of safety without
requiring full compliance with the new construction requirements contained in the other International
Codes. The intent of this code is to provide flexibility to permit the use of alternative approaches to
achieve compliance with minimum requirements that provide a reasonable level of safety, health,
property protection and general welfare insofar as they are affected by the repair, alteration, change of
occupancy, addition and relocation of existing buildings. The Code is promulgated by the International
Code Council, updated triennially through a legislative process involving input and voting by member
jurisdictions nationwide, and further amended by the City of Lubbock to suit unique local
conditions. The proposed ordinance will be newly adopted with the 2021 edition being the initial code
reference.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Robert Wallace, Director of Development Services
Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board

Attachments
2021 International Existing Building Code Ordinance 



































 AI# 12285 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 40. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0033, adding Article 28.18
to the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with adoption of the 2021 International Swimming Pool and
Spa Code.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The International Swimming Pool and Spa Code is a model building code that establishes minimum
requirements for the design, construction, alteration, repair and maintenance of swimming pools, spas,
hot tubs and aquatic facilities. This code is founded on principles intended to establish provisions
consistent with the scope of a swimming pool and spa code that adequately protects public health, safety
and welfare. The Code is promulgated by the International Code Council, updated triennially through a
legislative process involving input and voting by member jurisdictions nationwide, and further amended
by the City of Lubbock to suit unique local conditions. Adoption of the International Swimming Pool
and Spa Code became mandatory for municipalities that elect to regulate pools or spas with the passage
of H.B. 2858 during the 86th legislative session in 2019. The proposed ordinance will be newly
adopted with the 2021 edition being the initial code reference.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Robert Wallace, Director of Development Services
Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board

Attachments
2021 International Swimming Pool and Spa Code Ordinance 





















 AI# 12286 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 41. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0034, amending Chapter
28 "Building Regulations" Articles 28.01 - 28.08 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances to reflect
adoption of the 2021 International Codes and 2020 National Electrical Code.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

Chapter 28 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances Articles 28.01 – 28.08 details the general
provisions related to all model building codes adopted in Articles 28.09 – 28.18. These include
provisions related to administration and enforcement, materials, equipment and methods, contractor
registration, permits and inspections, Certificate of Use and Occupancy, movement and relocation of
structures, and demolition of structures.
 
The proposed administrative amendments will update the current City of Lubbock ordinance provisions
to reference the 2021 International Building Code, 2021 International Residential Code, 2021
International Plumbing Code, 2021 International Mechanical Code, 2021 International Fuel Gas Code,
2021 International Energy Conservation Code, 2021 International Existing Building Code, 2021
International Swimming Pool and Spas Code, and 2020 National Electrical Code editions considered for
adoption.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Robert Wallace, Director of Development Services
Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board

Attachments
Articles 28.01-28.08 Ordinance 













































































 AI# 12289 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 42. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Lubbock Fire Rescue: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0035, amending
Article 10.01 and Article 10.03 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances with the adoption of the
2021 International Fire Code.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The International Fire Code is the City's adopted model fire code that works in congruence with the
International Building Code as it applies to new and existing structures in matters related to construction.
The Fire Code establishes regulations affecting or relating to occupancy and maintenance for the
protection of lives and property from fire. The Code is promulgated by the International Code Council,
updated triennially through a legislative process involving input and voting by member jurisdictions
nationwide, and further amended by the City of Lubbock to suit unique local conditions. The proposed
ordinance updates document from the 2015 edition to the 2021 edition.  

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Shaun Fogerson, Fire Chief
Alan Martin, Fire Marshal
Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board

Attachments
Fire Code 



























 AI# 12378 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 43. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution, pursuant to Chapter 42, Subchapter D, of the Texas Local
Government Code, releasing the area described as Property I.D. R135889 by the Lubbock County
Appraisal District, otherwise known as 5127 Woodrow Road, from the Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction
(ETJ) of the City of Lubbock.

Item Summary
On September 1, 2023, Senate Bill 2038 went into effect, allowing property owners to petition the City
of Lubbock to release their property from the City's ETJ. In order to be considered, the petition must be
signed and notarized by more than 50% of the registered voters of the property described by the petition
(as of the date of the preceding uniform election date); or a majority in value of the holders of title of
land of the property described by the petition (as indicated on the tax rolls of the Lubbock County
Appraisal District).

The petition submitted by Kendrick Oil Co. meets the requirements listed above. Additionally, if the
City Council denies or takes no action on the petition, the Texas Local Government Code deems the
petition automatically approved 60 days after it is filed and certified with the City of Lubbock.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
Resolution - Kendrick Oil Co. 
Map - Kendrick Oil Co. 
Petition - Kendrick Oil Co. 











 
 

 

 

UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENT 

OF SHAREHOLDERS OF KENDRICK OIL CO.,  

A TEXAS CORPORATION 
 

The undersigned, being the sole Shareholders of Kendrick Oil Co., a Texas corporation (the 

"Corporation"), in accordance with its Bylaws, hereby adopt the following written consent. 

 

WHEREAS, the Shareholders signing this consent are all of the Shareholders of the Corporation; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the undersigned desire to execute a written consent in lieu of formally holding a 

Shareholders’ meeting and agree that the adoption of the following resolutions shall be valid and 

have the same force and effect as though such resolutions had been adopted at a formal 

Shareholders' meeting; therefore, be it: 

 

RESOLVED, that it is confirmed that the undersigned are the sole Shareholders of the 

Corporation; 

 

RESOLVED, that it is confirmed that the sole members of the Board of Directors of the 

Corporation are Daniel M. Kendrick, Pamela Kendrick, Andrew Kendrick, and Matthew Kendrick.  

 

RESOLVED, that a copy of this Unanimous Written Consent be delivered to the City of Lubbock; 

and 

 

RESOLVED, that this Unanimous Written Consent shall have the same force and effect as a 

formal Shareholders' meeting for all purposes. The undersigned direct that this written consent 

may be executed in multiple counterparts, all of which shall be considered originals and that this 

written consent, including multiple counterparts, be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of 

the Corporation. 

 

DATED to be effective as of February 12, 2024 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Daniel M. Kendrick, Shareholder 

 

 

Chapparal Investments, Inc., a Texas Corporation, 

Shareholder 

 

 

 

By: _________________________________ 

      Daniel M. Kendrick, President 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 846DBE54-185F-4413-BBAA-9320A94C3965



 
 

 

UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENT 

OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KENDRICK OIL CO.,  

A TEXAS CORPORATION 
 

The undersigned, Directors of Kendrick Oil Co., a Texas corporation (the "Corporation"), in 

accordance with its Bylaws, hereby adopt the following written consent. 

 

WHEREAS, the Directors signing this consent are all of the members of the Board of Directors 

entitled to vote at the Corporation's Board of Directors’ meetings and on the following resolutions; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the undersigned desire to execute a written consent in lieu of formally holding a 

Directors’ meeting and agree that the adoption of the following resolutions shall be valid and have 

the same force and effect as though such resolutions had been adopted at a formal Directors' 

meeting; therefore, be it: 

 

RESOLVED, that Daniel M. Kendrick is authorized and directed to (i) execute and file with the 

City of Lubbock, Texas (the “City”), a Petition for an Area to be Release from Extraterritorial 

Jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City of Lubbock petitioning the City to release from its extraterritorial 

jurisdiction the property described in the attached Exhibit “A”, and (ii) take any and all actions 

and execute and accept any all documents and instruments related to such Petition for an Area to 

be Release from Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City of Lubbock;  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that this corporation ratifies the actions previously taken by Daniel M. 

Kendrick, in connection with said Petition for Release from Extraterritorial Jurisdiction and all 

other actions taken incidental thereto;  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that a copy of this Unanimous Written Consent be delivered to the City 

of Lubbock; and 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that this Unanimous Written Consent shall have the same force and 

effect as a formal Directors' meeting for all purposes. The undersigned direct that this written 

consent may be executed in multiple counterparts, all of which shall be considered originals and 

that this written consent, including multiple counterparts, be filed with the minutes of the 

proceedings of the Corporation. 

 

DATED to be effective as of February 12, 2024 

 

 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Daniel M. Kendrick, Director    Pamela J. Kendrick, Director 

 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Andrew Kendrick, Director    Matthew Kendrick, Director 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 846DBE54-185F-4413-BBAA-9320A94C3965



 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

(TO RESOLUTION ADOPTED BY UNANIMOUS  

WRITTEN CONSENT OF DIRECTORS) 

 

  

 

 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 846DBE54-185F-4413-BBAA-9320A94C3965



 AI# 12404 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 44. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Code Enforcement: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
17769, with Matthews Backhoe, Inc., for the demolition of the Coronado Apartments located at 1714
East Broadway. 

Item Summary
A Request for Proposal (RFP) was issued for demolition of property at 1714 East Broadway. The
current structure at that location is unsafe. It has become a hazard and is dangerous, due to the possibility
of it collapsing. Orders for Demolition have been issued by the City of Lubbock Municipal Court. 

In response to RFP 24-17769-YB, the following proposals were received.
  

Contractor Amount
Matthews Backhoe, Inc. $78,000
JAJ Concrete Solutions $148,000

The proposals were evaluated and ranked based on the following criteria: Price - 60 Points, Contractor
Qualifications - 30 Points, and Construction -10 Points, for a total of 100 Points.
  

Contractor Points
Matthews Backhoe, Inc., Lubbock, Texas 98.83
JAJ Concrete Solutions, Plainview, Texas 43.64

Staff recommends award of the contract to the highest ranked proposer, Matthews Backhoe, Inc. of
Lubbock, Texas, for $78,000.

Fiscal Impact
Funding for Contract 17769, for $78,000, is allocated in the Code Enforcement Operating Budget -
Special Projects - Demolition.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Stuart Walker, Director of Code Enforcement

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Project Summary 



Project Summary 















 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 24-17769-YB  

1714 E. Broadway Demo 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on December 24 & December 31, 2023. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from December 21 to January 16, 2024. 

4 individuals attended the pre-proposal meeting. 

52 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

5 vendors were notified separately.  

2 vendors submitted proposals. 

 



 AI# 12374 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 45. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Professional Services Agreement 17844, with PondMedics, Inc., for Cattail Removal and Control
throughout the Jim Bertram Canyon Lakes System.

Item Summary
In May 2022, the City Council approved American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding for the Parks and
Recreation Department, with $1,900,000 dedicated to cattail removal/dredging. The Parks and
Recreation Department held multiple meetings with City Management and staff from other departments,
including Engineering and Water, to determine the best course of action. Through collaboration, staff
determined that establishing a baseline cattail management plan would be an essential first step in
beginning the cattail mitigation and dredging process.

Cattail growth has taken over a significant portion of the Jim Bertram Canyon Lakes System and has
become a detriment to the experience of users of the City lakes and parks. Spreading across 28 acres,
cattail species extend across 11 public areas: Lake 1, Lake 2, Creek 1, Lake 3, Creek 2, Creek 4, Lake 4,
Creek 5, Creek 6, Lake 5 and Lake 6. 

The Parks and Recreation Department issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to complete this project.

In response to RFP 24-17844-TF, a sole response was received from PondMedics, Inc., of Gunter, Texas,
for $719,180.61. 

The Parks and Recreation Department Staff recommend award of Professional Services Agreement
17844 to the sole proposer, PondMedics, Inc., for $719,180.61, for Cattail Removal and Control.

Fiscal Impact
The contract totaling $719,180.61 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92764, ARPA - Cattail
Removal/Dredging.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 



Project Summary 





Contract 17844 
City of Lubbock 

Cattail Treatment of the Jim Bertram Canyon Lakes System 
Agreement 

This Service Agreement (this "Agreement") is entered into as of the _day of 2024 
("Effective Date") by and between PondMedics, LLC (the Contractor), and the City of Lubbock (the "City"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City has issued a Request for Proposals 24-17844-TF Cattail Treatment of the Jim 
Bertram Canyon Lakes System and 

WHEREAS, the proposal submitted by the Contractor has been selected as the proposal which best 
meets the needs of the City for this service; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor desires to perform as an independent contractor to provide Cattail Treatment 
of the Jim Bertram Canyon Lakes System, upon terms and conditions maintained in this Agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the City and 
Contractor agree as follows: 

City and Contractor acknowledge the Agreement consists of the following exhibits which are 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, listed in their order of priority in the event of 
inconsistent or contradictory provisions: 

1. This Agreement 
2. Exhibit A - General Requirements 
3. Exhibit B - Price Proposal Sheet 
4. Exhibit C-Insurance Requirements 

Scope of Work 

Contractor shall provide the services that are specified in Exhibit A. The Contractor shall comply with all 
the applicable requirements set forth in Exhibit B and Exhibit C attached hereto. 

Article 1 

1.1 The contract shall be for a term of eighteen (18) months, with the option of one (1), six (6) month 
extension, said date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew automatically 
for the additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to terminate the Contract. 
Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be determined by actual need. The City of 
Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum 
amount of services under this bid and resulting contract. The Contractor must maintain the insurance 
coverage required during the term of this contract including any extensions. It is the responsibility 
of the Contractor to ensure that valid insurance is on file with the Purchasing and Contract 
Management Department as required by contract or contract may be terminated for non-compliance. 

1.2 A) Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. The rate 
may be adjusted at the City' s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price Index (CPI) or 
Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate. 



B) Further, if the Contractor can provide documentation for actual charges for material, labor, etc. 
that demonstrates that the change in CPI or PPI is not sufficient, the Contractor shall provide such 
documentation to the City, and at the City' s sole discretion, the contractual rate may be further 
adjusted. If agreement regarding a new rate cannot be reached, the City shall terminate at the end of 
the current contract period. 

C) If an adjustment to pricing is granted under this section, the Contractor must provide the Director 
of Purchasing and Contract Management written, quarterly documentation to justify the ongoing 
adjustment. If no such documentation is timely received, the rate will automatically revert to the 
initial, awarded rate. 

1.3 This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: ( 1) the expiration date, (2) 
performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day written notice. 
The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the next lowest and best 
bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city. 

Article 2 

2.1 

2.2 

2.3 

2.4 

2.5 

2.6 

2.7 

2.8 

2.9 

Miscellaneous. 

This Agreement is made in the State of Texas and shall for all purposes be construed in 
accordance with the laws of said State, without reference to choice of law provisions. 

This Agreement is performable in, and venue of any action related or pertaining to this 
Agreement shall lie in, Lubbock, Texas. 

This Agreement and its Exhibits contains the entire agreement between the City and 
Contractor and supersedes any and all previous agreements, written or oral, between the 
parties relating to the subject matter hereof. No amendment or modification of the terms of 
this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties unless reduced to writing and signed by 
both parties. 

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. 

In the event any provision of this Agreement is held illegal or invalid, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

The waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by any parties or the failure of 
any parties otherwise to insist upon strict performance of any provision hereof shall not 
constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or of any subsequent failure to perform. 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their 
respective heirs, representatives and successors and may be assigned by Contractor or the 
City to any successor only on the written approval of the other party. 

All claims, disputes, and other matters in question between the Parties arising out of or 
relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof, shall be formally discussed and negotiated 
between the Parties for resolution. In the event that the Parties are unable to resolve the 
claims, disputes, or other matters in question within 30 days of written notification from the 
aggrieved Party to the other Party, the aggrieved Party shall be free to pursue all remedies 
available at law or in equity. 

At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit 
representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, 



reserves the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to 
the City under this Contract. In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or 
overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such 
overpayments within 30 days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the 
right to deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

2.10 The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 
otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court 
of competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process 
prior to exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein 
are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any 
conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, this 
provision shall control. 

2.11 The contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without 
written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. Should consent 
be given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof of insurance 
from the Subcontractor that complies with all contract insurance requirements document, this 
provision shall control. 

2.12 Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, 
fully understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the 
descriptive material contained herein and any additional associated documents and 
Amendments. The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless 
agreed upon in writing by the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and 
conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions 
provided herein shall prevail. The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms 
agreed upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

2.13 Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist 
Organization Prohibited. Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, 
prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The 
Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service with 
Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization. 

2.14 Texas Public Information Act. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 
Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be 
terminated if the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a 
requirement of that subchapter. To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code 
applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees to: (1) preserve all contracting information 
related to the contract as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the 
governmental body for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental 
body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession 
of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, 
either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to 
the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting 
information related to the contract as provided by the records retention requirements 
applicable to the governmental body. 

2.15 No Boycott oflsrael. Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This 
section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company 



with 10 or more full-time employees; and (2) has a value of S 100,000 or more that is to be 
paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity 
may not enter into a contract with a company for goods or services unless the contract 
contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) 
will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

2.16 Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) 
it does not, and will not for the duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, 
or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) 
the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply 
to the contract. If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this 
Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or 
directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not 
discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade 
association. 

2.17 Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 
contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of 
the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. If Contractor is a company with 
10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or 
more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does 
not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies during the term of the 
Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a governmental entity 
determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental entity' s 
constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt 
obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

2.18 Confidentiality. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or concerning the 
City and the City's business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to 
third parties without prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 

2.19 Indemnify. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the city of Lubbock and its 
elected officials, officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, 
claims, or liability of any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for 
injury or death to any person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any person 
or persons or property, to the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent 
acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the 
performance, operations or omissions under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of 
city owned property. The indemnity obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration 
or termination of this agreement. 



-----INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK-----



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be executed the 
day and year first above written. Executed in triplicate. 

CITY OF LUBBOCK 

Tray Payne, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

;)i{{VED AS TO CONTENT: 

I~ 
Colby Van Gundy, Director of Parks and 
Recreation ~of C, V 

Rae ael Foster, A~Gty Attorney 

CONTRACTOR 

Jarrod Conner - Chief Operating Officer 

Print Name 

PO Box 97 

Address 

Gunter, TX 75058 

City, State, Zip Code 



1. Background 

City of Lubbock, TX 
RFP 24-17844-TF 

Cattail Treatment of the Jim Bertram Canyon Lakes System 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

EXHIBIT A 

Cattail growth has taken over a significant portion of the Jim Bertram Canyon Lake System 
and has become a detriment to the experience of users of the City lakes and parks. 
Spreading for 28 acres of park land, cattail species extend across 11 public areas - Lake 1, 
Lake 2, Creek 1, Lake 3, Creek 2, Creek 4, Lake 4, Creek 5, Creek 6, Lake 5 and Lake 6. 
The American Rescue Plan Act provided funds allocated by the city for removal and 
treatment of the above cattail zones. 

Scope of Work 

2. Following the treatment plan below for each section of the lake, contractor will adhere to all 
specifications including equipment usage, chemical application and anticipated percentage of 
control. Treatments to be performed by a Texas Department of Agriculture (TDA) 
Commercial Pesticide Applicator with an Aquatic Applicators endorsement. Whereby 
aerial/drone treatments are to be made, it is required that, in addition to the TDA 
Applicator' s License, the company/contractor hold a Part 107 (and possibly a Part 135) FAA 
Airman's license. Insurance requirements of the Licensed Contractor should include, but not 
be limited to, Longshoreman's and Harbor Workers endorsements that include an 
environmental pollution prevention provision. Policies should include coverage for 
waterborne activities such as the ones described in the scope of work located herein. 
Additionally, where aerial/drone applications are performed, the company/contractor must 
provide proof of coverages for the aerial/drone application activities. 

3. Table 1.1 below details the estimated areas to be treated in sq. ft. and acres of each section. 

Parkland Section Sum of Area to be Sum of Area to be 
Treated (sq. ft.) Treated (Acres) 

Lake 1 13,437 0.31 

Lake2 35,518 0.82 

Creek 1 249,789 5.73 

Lake3 37,154 0.85 

Creek 2 3,020 0.07 

Creeks 81 ,273 1.87 

Creek6 10,531 0.24 

Lakes 70,020 l.61 

Lake 6-Sec 1 110,430 2.54 

Lake 6-Sec 2 48,782 1.12 

Estimated Total: 6S9,954 15.16 

Please see the document attached and titled "Cattail Treatment Plan Canyon Lakes System 
Lubbock Parks and Recreation" for additional information. 



Lite! 
l.Jlle2 
l.ate l 
Cnlolc 2 
Cnlolc 6 
late I 
l.aloe2 
Cteek I 
l.ala!3 
Cteek 2 
Cteek 5 
Cnlolc 6 
l.ala!5 
l.ate6 
Lill<el 
Late2 
Cnlolc I 
l.Jllel 
er..k2 
Cteek 5 
0"'1<6 
Lalce5 
l.'IR6 
Lib! I 
l.ate2 
Cnlolc I 
l.atel 
Oeelc 2 
Cnlolc 5 
0"'1<6 
I.ate s 
Llke6 
laR I 
Lill<e2 
Cteek I 
I.ate l 
Croek 2 
Cteek 5 
o.ek6 
lJJke5 
l.ol:l!6 
late I 
Lllke2 
Cteek I 
Lill<e l 
Creek 2 
Croek 5 
Cnlolc 6 
Lite 5 
l.ate6 

Jim Bertram Canyon Lake System - Cattail Treatment Plan 

Table 1.2 below details each lake with time of year, anticipated percentage of control, equipment 
to be used, and treatment solution requirements. Please note that the anticipated percentage of 
control will be measured via aerial drone surveying by an outside consultant hired by the City. 
The surveys will be done prior to any treatment taking place and after treatment is completed 
(approx. 60 days post application) in order to quantify results. Payment for each application is 
subject to meeting the percentage of control threshold established for each section of the lake per 
cycle. 

.. . . . . __ ,..,, ... UIYaidwat - ...... - ,_,,,,., ...... ~ IO. to. D. <> "'A<Jo --label HettlOOe Uta~ - tTW'I 1ruacre 
~21124 60 UIVll1d-~K-ortwhlnd- ..... 

"""; --· lmlDrncM 
la.I 0. 0. 0. ii> A<n! --- - 'W3I _,, • mh la/aae 

~202• 60 UlVand - T,.. ,,,_. lfl\Jll.,._ lrnazzrncm la.I 0. 0. <>. ii> 1'ae --label - .... - m11. ta acre 
~2024 60 U1V te. Tn- ...... ·~~. lmlDrncM la.I 0. 0. '"ii> 1'ae ---- lllEI' - min. la """ ....,2024 60 U1V T,.. ,,,_.. lmazaCM'. Imaatm la.I D. D • .. ii> 1'ae ---- .... - tnl"I. l a """ 5ummer 2024 80 U1V.., 'Nale1lGmr/-- D*Julllt, ~. 11'111 ~ lmazaPVr. lmazanax la. 0. • • 1'ae ---- ll'ID:·mil. l a """ 5ummer 2024 80 U1V and Wat - or 1w hind Mil ---~·-·--~ Jn_M_i&n_.c- ·-1'ae ---- uv - m.l'l. ta """ 5ummer 2024 60 Aeriol°"""'ondUIV ._..... _y,,., mM'. lmazaiM', lmazan:ac lo. 6o. 6o. 6o, 611 1'ae --uctlabel -"' "'·mi>. la """ 5ummer 2024 80 UlVand Wat - T,..-_, ..... .. -JrnazMnallilCl 6o. 6o. On/N;tt --- Herbode r-.'-- - min. lnl.ae 

5ummer 2024 80 U1V ·-~· -·~ ..... ,nu1~Jmaza.m la. I), 61>. 6o, 6ollae --- Hertldde • ___. - mln. to/acre 
Surrmor202460 NNAOroneandUIV ·~~-

~,..,.... ..,.._._ lrTUllnt.1'1111'. JmazaincDI: la. D. 61>. 6o. 6ollae --- HerbOde • ~ · mn. lat~ 
5ummer 2024 80 U1V ,,___ -T""' ~ ImaZllM', Imazammc 111. io. 6o. 6o. r.n!N;tt --- - =-. mln. IQ/ilD1! 
Surrmor202460 UlVandWat - ~•W• - ... te r,.-_,...,. __ I~ ... ...... Age --- Heftlioder-'lutt -f!W1. l aiacre 
5ummer 2024 60 UIV..t--K- ·~- ~·~ 

lnN#" UIUY.IHWI' lma.z.at"G la. I). io, 6• Age --- Heltlidde • ...,._. - nWi. lo/aae 
Fii 2024 85 UlV...SWat - .~ .... ""'1n'Cll.te T,.-, .,,,_- UTYl.7.IHWf'_ JmazarnDIC la. 0. .... .. Ntt --- Herbadt : Jr.llNV - mn. l o/acre 
Fii 2024 85 UlVand-~-orl>'lhlndweh-W- ~- Trvct~ ll'nalaaW. lmaz.m 111. io. p, 6o. O>N;tt --- - ::.raMr • mi1. IQ/acre 
fal2024 15 """'°"""'..tUIV - •WO r. --~ r ..... ,_...,.. Imazarnox ID 6o. " · Age --label Hertidde r_,._. -n'W1. Ia. acre 
Fol 2024 85 U1V and Woterllomo/-K - --·· nn1:31'•.T,......_lllUl7lUWl'_lmil.arll::m la. 6o. ... 0. aloe --- Hel1lidde :~Noes' ·RW\. l G .... 
fll 2024 90 U1V ,......., .. ~- T,.,....._.: Imaza°"r: Irnazat'IOll I• fin Age --- ttertJcide CatAlvU • aw.. lai """ Fii 2024 80 - °"""' and U1V 

-.G Wl'lmiab!. 1NClmM:. lmllzaEWC. knazarw:g lo.6o. 0. 0.6o/Aae --- _.__"*'-IG .... 
fll 2024 15 U1V ~- ----- lmaza1M: lmazamox ID. "'· o/f>ae FdlowA'odu<1label - r w.._ - min. I" """ Fol 2024 80 UlVandwat - Dlquai., --·~ .v-;·--r- la. 0. 0. "' nlf>ae --- -ODMl - nw1.1 .. """ Fal2024 85 UlVand - ~- -~re T"' - ,_.,..,.,.....,. lmazamax ... D. <> 60 . 

• -label 
Herbidder~ _. -mn. 1 acre 

"""'""2025 90 U1V and Wacsbamf/~K- Wl~•Trv-
- ·--- 1maanac 

la. "- 0. ... ---·~ 
--rMl. la .... 

- 2025 90 UlVand - ar bv hind With-~- M>n~ T,... -- lmiuaow. Imazarrox la. D. 0. io. Praductlabel 
-··~ 

uu · mn. la .... 
-2025 90 - DrCne and U1V 

" ... _ 
~~. T...-~ lmozaow, lmaanac 10. o. 0. 0. ----~ 

vv -min. ta .... 
~2025 90 U1V and - ·--·" ~- Tnr ..... !~. 1mozanD< la. 6 o . ...... 

D 1'ae - Ploductlabel Herbdde Cato YSt - IN"I. ta """ ~2025 90 U1V --·r. -•, lJYC ~ tmazanvr, lrnazanm: a. <>. la. 6 io, a Age ---_ ,._ 
Ul:P ·mi\. ta .... 

~2025 90 Aenal Drene and UIV ~-r. -t--·-·--i.........1a " 0. D 1'ae --- Herboade Olto""' - nw\. I .... 
Dllna 2025 90 U1V '-~-... ~., .... --, lmazaovr. lrnazanm la. 

0. " · 
"- a 1'ae --- - ~~-m. 1a """ ~2025 90 UlV..clWal. - '~~- .. ~T,... ~ ·-~ 1mozanD< la. 0. " '" a 1'ae --label Herbode r.3taNG · m11. ta """ ~2025 90 UlVand - ~.G - ·™ _.... ,~- IR'IBl.lml:* la. "- <>. io.M> 1'ae --- -OD""'·min. I<> .... 

5ummer 2025 92 UTV..tW. - -·- i.....-Tr- ...... ,_..,._ lrnaz:atnOX la. " 0. ... o/Aae --- Hetbade r~ · min. ICI .... 
5ummer 2025 92 UlVand vet*ie orb¥ hind Wlh -ft7Wllft -~y,... ,,,_._ Ima.~ Imazamoic la. o. " ... o/Aae --label Hetbkide ~ • mft. lCI .... 
- 2025 92 ....... °"""' . nd U1V ~~· -~·· .... ~--. .._ la. 6o. ..... o/Aae --- Herbode DltaNd - mn. lei .... 
5ummer 2025 92 UTV..t - --· --T--·--i.......... la. 6o. 6o. 6o. c/Age --label HerblcldeOllOIYSt · nwl.1• """ Surrmer 2025 92 U1V -•Wo ~-~te r .... ...__ ,_·-- I~ ... 6o. 6o. c/Aae --- -C...- · nw>. la/""" 
5ummtr202592 -Orone..tUIV lloquate, -~, Tr- ,,,_. lmazaDVL Irnazammc la. ........ c/Aae --- Hertldde 1U'2NV - mh. tolaae 
5ummer 2025 92 U1V '-~· 

~·~te ..... ~ lmazaDW. lmaDmait la. 0. 6o. 6o. c/lae --- Herbicide cata'vst • mn. lal«re 
5unmier2025 92 UIV..twat - ~· ' M~. Tr'JC l'llM'". lmlzaM. Irraumcx lo. 0. .... .... O{Aae --- Herbicide c..t.oMt - min. IQ/aae 
Surrmor202592 UlVandWat - ~ •• v .. ~.--..le Tl"'- ,_,..,.._ Iniazanicx 10. '-6oAge - - label -c.ia-....... .,..,., 
fll 2025 95 UlVand - --~ ~-T~ lmaDDW. Jn'llZ.lf!'IC3I lo. p, 0. io.6o 1'ae --- -""' VII • min. l a/acre 

Fii 2025 95 UlV and W -ortwhandwtil--- -·~ Tr--- lmazalM'. lmazamca G•• 10. '" 6o 1'ae FdlowPnlductlabel HerbodeC... ._.. _tnln. 10. ..... 
Fol 2025 95 MrlolOrone..tUIV 

___ ,. 

-··~·--~ l a. <>.;,, 6oAae --- -Olla ..,.m1n. 1a """ fal 2025 95 ·~-- - ·--· ·· ~ • ......__, 1nu1r.u•"' lmazanu la. o .... o. 6o Age --label -~ VICI'" . min. l <l .... 
fll 2025 95 U1V -- ~ .-.-J"'. I~- unantDllr (mazlft'IOC Ill. p, "" iD. 60 l>ae --- -OD yst - ft'll"I. l!;l """ fll 2025 95 AenalOroneandUIV --~ ~ ... T~ 1 ...... ~ r ... s .. •rncw la. o . 6o. 6o.. ...... ~ ,__...,.. -Olla Yit - min. lG ..... 
fll 2025 95 U1V ~ 

,_ la. a.,-.,. k. _fia ---- Herbicide'~ --min. la .... 
Fii 2025 95 UlV and - __ ,. 

~ Tr-- lmazarM. lmaz:arra: la. jo.M~61J Age FdlowPloductlabel -~ """"·mtl. l CJ aae 
Fii 2025 95 UlVandWat - ·--· .. ivnnncll'• T,,....._. Imlz.aDW. tmazamm: la. o. f;n_ fin_ 6D l>ae --- -~ VIZ• mift. l(l ..... 



Site Location 

• 

--
• 

..... .._....__ ................... 
-~_.. ..... 

Cattail Treatment Plan 
Canyon Lakes System 

Lubbock Parks and Recreation 

dredge:...., •• , .......... 
the dredging equation, solved. 

IV 

INDEX OF DRAWINGS 

SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION 
1 PARKS OVERVIEW 
2 LAKE 1 
3 LAKE 2 
4 CREEK 1 
5 LAKE 3 
6 CREEK 2 
7 CREEK 4 SHEET 1 
8 CREEK 4 SHEET 2 
9 CREEK 5 
10 LAKE 4 
11 CREEK 6 
12 LAKE 5 
13 LAKE 6 SHEET 1 
14 LAKE 6 SHEET 2 
15 TREATMENT SCHEDULE 

City of Lubbock Project Manager 

Kalee Robinson, CPRP 
Parks Development Supervisor 

1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401 
806-77S-2672 

CATTAIL MANAGEMENT CONSULTANT 

dredgeSMART 
P.O. Box 97 

Gunter, TX 75058 
TBPE Firm Registration Number F-8072 

Project Manager, Jeff Biggs 
Project Engineer, Emily Lewis, P.E. 

Senior Consultant, Trent Lewis, FPC. 
Director of Pond and Lake Management, Weston Jordon 



,~ 

; 
! 
,1 

-:tl - - . ', I 
~ - I, 

~ 

~ 
.~ ~rae' 

lul:lboc.t 

~ · 

!Lake 4t 

Lake6 

11 
~I 

i; 
ji 

Ji 
It 
i3 
; ~ 

" ' • 
~ ~ 
:1 
H 
H 
" i; ,,. 
:! ;; 
;3 
•1 
!; 

I 
i 
i 
-! 
! 

~' 
0 D>lllO l.SZO 1 ,~FMt 

Legend - """ CJ 

Observed cattails 
in 

Canyon Lakes 
System 

approximately 
28.03Acres 

General Notes: 

~1 

i 
~f ¥! 

~ 
S; ~ ,. ... 
ill~ 
Odf 
o.:c 

"O 

c 
..-:: .2 
CJ -0 cu 
..c ! 
..c CJ 

3~ _,, 
oc 
~cu 
· - fl) o~ 

cu 
0.. 

E 
.! ~ 
It) G> 
>.·-"' ~ G> G> 

..-:: > 
cu 0 

..J -c ·;; o= >. ftS co cu 
0 

6 

Diawil By: Jeff B. 

~~:;~~~;n;OJilScale: 1" = 1000' 
Mavk: 3. 
Of one Imagery liken on 

August llttl, 9lh 2023 """' 
OJI Mavic 2 

Imagery I« Lakn 1 and 2 1 I retrieved tom Texas Natwal 
Resource Information 1------- --l 
=~ ckJe to resbicted air 

Sheet No. 1 of 15 



LAKE 1 - 0.31 ACRES TREATMENT AREA 
- Treatment by a UTV spray from the outer shoreline, spraying into the cattails. 
- "Special treatment area" done by a vessel or amphibious equipment, sprayed from the inside Into the cattails. 
- The special treatment area is treated in this way to reduce the restricting areas Of flow, allowing the system to move more water quicker downstream. 
- This will be leaving cattails on the shoreline on the cut-banks as shoreline stabilization. 

lime of Year Anticipated % Control 
Spring 2024 60% 
Summer 2024 80% 
Fall 2024 85% 
Spring 2025 90% 
Summer 2025 92% 
Fall 2025 95% 

Equipment 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehide 
UTV and Waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and Waterborne/Amphibious Vehide 
UTV and Waterborne/Amphibious Vehide 

Active Ingredient 
Diquate, Gtyphosate, Tryciopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Dlquate, Gtyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryciopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Dlquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquata, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 

Minimum Rates 
1g, Sp, 6p, 6p, 6p/Aae 
1g, 6p, Sp, 6p, 6p/Acte 
1g, 6p, 6p, Sp, 6p/Aae 
1g, Sp, Sp, Sp, Sp/Aae 
1g, Sp, Sp, Sp, Sp/Aae 
19, 6p, Sp, Sp, 6p/Aae 

'Treatments to be performed by a Texas Department of Agriculture (TOA) Commercial Pesticide Applicator with an Aquatic Applicators endorsement 

Mixing Precautions 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 

Blocatalyst Info 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acte 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acte 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 

"VI/hereby aerisUdrone treatments are to be made, ii is required that, in addiUon to the TOA Applicator's License, the company/contractor hold a Part 107 (and possibly a Part 135) FAA Airman's license. 
•insurance requirements of the Licensed Contractor should indude, but not be limited to, Longshoreman's and Harbor Workers endorsements that include an environmental pollution prevention provision. Policies should 
include coverage for waterborne activities such as the ones described in the scope of worl< located herein. Additionally, where aeriaUdrone appfications are performed, the company/contractor must provide proof of coverages 

~ 
0 30«> 120 110 "" 

Levene! 
CJ '-* 

c -------

.... 

Observed cattails 
in 

Lake 1, 
Conquistador Lake 

total to 
31 ,355 Sq. Ft. 

Area of cattails 
recommended for 

treatment 
13,437 Sq Ft. 

Genmo!Notes: 

Lake 1, Imagery O<qJired 
from Texas Natlnl 
Recourses Information 
5yllem cattails absef\oed by 

., ll .... ~(!; c: :e 0 
~~~ 

~f 0 ~f~ 
a: § S; 

~ i 
"O 

c 
0 

..: ~ 
CJ ns 
0 ~ 
.a CJ .a Cl) 
:::s 0::: 

...J 
-'C oc 
>- ns 
~~ 
0 ... 

ns a. 

~ 
j ... 

'I'"' 0 
Cl) 'C 
..: J! 
ns "' ...J -:::s 

C" 
c 
0 
0 

\!) 

Drawn By: Jeff B. 

Scale: 1" = 130' 

tenHtrialverifiQtion 1-~~~~~~~~ 

Sheet No. 2 of 15 



LAKE 2 - 0.82 ACRES TREATMENT AREA 
- Treatment by a UTV spray from the outer shoreline, spraying into the cattails. 
- "Special treatment area• done by a vessel or amphibious equipmen~ sprayed from the inside into the cattails. 
- The special treatment area is treated in this way to reduce the restricting areas of ftow, aUowing the system to move more water quicker dov.flstream. 
- This wil be leaving cattails on the shoreline on the cut-banks as shoreline stabilization. 

lime of Year Anticipated% Control 
Spring 2024 60% 
summer 2024 80% 
Fal2024 85% 
Spring 2025 90% 
Summer 2025 92% 
Fall2025 95% 

Equipment Adive Ingredient 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle or by hand pressurized pump Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, tmazapyr, lmazamox 
UTV and W.tert>ome/Amphibious Vehicle or by hand pressurized pump Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle or by hand pressurized pump Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
UTV and waterbome/Amphbious Vehicle or by hand pressurized pump Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehide or by hand pressurized pump Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle or by hand pressurized pump Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 

"Traatments to be performed by a Texas Department of Agricu"ure (TOA) Commercial Pesticide Applicator with an Aquatic Applicators endorsement. 

Minimum Rates 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Acre 
1g, 6p, 6p, Sp, 6p/Aae 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Aae 
1g, 6p, Sp, 6 p, 6p/Aae 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Aae 
1g, 6p, 6p, Sp, 6p/Aae 

Special treatment area: 
Treatment of cattals along the 
central channel now leaving approx. 
1 rY of coverage along sho<etine for 
erosion prevention 

Mixing Precautions 
Folow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
FoUow PIOduct label 
Folow PIOduct label 
Follow Product label 

,, 

Biocatalyst Info 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/aCl8 
Herbicide Catalyst -min. 1g/acre 
Herbicide catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst- min. 1g/acte 

"Whereby aerial/drone treatments are to be made, tt is required that, In addition to the TOA Applicator's License, the oompany/oontractor hold a Part 107 (and possibly a Part 135) FAAAirman's icense. 
" Insurance requirements of the Licensed Contrador should indude, but not be limited to. Longshoreman's and Harbor Workers endorsements that Include an environmental pollution prevention provision. Policies should indude ooverage for 
watetbome activities such as the ones desaibed in the scope of v.ort k>cated herein. Additionalty, where aerial/drone applications are performed, the company/contrador must provide proof of coverages for the aeriaVdrone application activities. 

·--n.-'°ii:::',_'°...,''-

Legend 

CJ --
Cl -------

Observed cattails 
in 

Lake 2, Llano 
Estacado 
total to 

53,467 Sq. Ft. 

Area's or cattails 
recommended for 

treatment 
35,518 Sq Ft. 

General Notes: 

Lake 2 lmasiery acquired 
t om Texas N1tural 
Recoufles Information 
System 

- observed by Terrestrial verification 

c 
0 

~;; 
u ta 
0 Cl) .c .. 
.c u 
:::I Cl) 

..J a:: 
-"C oc 
>.ta 

- I/) ·-~ 0 .. 
ta 
ll.. 

~ 
ta 
..J 
0 

N"C 
Cl) ta 
~ CJ 
co B 
..J I/) w 

0 
c 
ta 

::::i 

Drawn By: Jeff B. 

Scale: 1" = 100• 

Sheet No. 3of15 



-Special treatment area: 
Treatment of cattails ak>ng the 
central channel flow leaving approx. 
20' of coverage along shoreline for 
erosion prevention 0 20CI 80 '20 ttO .... - -===-··"' 

= .-
c:::i ----------

Observed cattails 
in 

Creek 1 
total to 

301 ,638 Sq. Ft. 

Area of cattails 

c 
0 

~~ 
0 CD .c ... .c u 
::::S CD 

...J 0::: 

- 'O QC 
>- ns -(/) 
o~ 

ns 
D.. 

recommended for 1---------1 
treatment 

CREEK 1 - 5.73 ACRES TREATMENT AREA 
- Treatment by a UTV spray from the outer shoreline, spraying into the cattails. 
- " Speciel treatment area• done by a vessel or amphibious equipment, sprayed from the Inside into the cattails. 
- The special treatment ..-ea Is treated in this way to reduce the restricting areas of now, an owing the system to move more water quicker downstream. 
- This v.ill be leaving cattails on the shoreline on the cut-banks as shoreline stabilization. 

Time of Year Anticipated % Control 
Summer 2024 60% 
Fall 2024 85% 
Spring 2025 90% 
Summer 2025 92% 
Fall 2025 95% 

Equipment 
Aerial Drone and UTV 
Aerial Drone and UTV 
Aerial Drone and UTV 
Aerial Drone and UTV 
Aerial Orone and UTV 

Active Ingredient 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryctopyr. lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr. lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr. lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryctopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr. lmazapyr, lmazamox 

Minimum Rates 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, Sp/Acre 
1 g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p1Aae 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Aae 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Aae 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Acre 

'Treatments to be performed by a Texas Department of Agriculture (TOA) Commercial Pesticide Applicator with an Aquatic Applicators endOrsement. 

213,674 Sq Ft. 

Additional 
Incremental Shore 
line treatment of 

cattails at 
approximately 50' 

sections to 
._._ ..... ..._ __ _;;"""---'""'"..,_.-- -i increase access to 

waters 

Mixing Precautions 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 

Biocatalyst Info 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 
He<bicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/aae 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 
He<bicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/aae 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 

36, 115 Sq. Ft. 

General Notes; 

Creek 1 
Orone imagery taken on 
~19th 2023 ,..;111 OJI 
Mavtc2. 

'Whereby aerial/drone treatments are to be made, It is required that, in addition to the TOA Applicator's License, the company/contractor hold a Part 107 (and possibly a Part 135) FAA Airman's license. 
'Insurance requirements of the Licensed Contractor should include, but not be limited to, Longshoreman's and Harbor V\lorkers endorsements that include an environmental pollution prevention provision. Policies should 
Include coverage for waterborne activities such as the ones described in the scope of work located herein. Additionally, where aerial/drone applications a re performed, the company/contractor must provide proof of coverages 
for the aeriaUdrone application actlviUes. 

Drawn By: Jeff B. 

Scale: 1" = 100· 

Sheet No. 4of1 5 



I 

LAKE 3 - 0.85 ACRES TREATMENT AREA 
- Treatment by a UTV spray from the outer shoreline, spraying into the cattails. 

Special treatment area: 
Treatment of cattails along the 
central channel flow leaving approx. 
20' ol coverage along sho<eine for 
erosion prevention 

- "Special treatment area• done by a vessel or amphibious equipment, sprayed from the inside into the catla ils. 
- The special treatment area is treated In this way to reduce the restricting areas of flow, alowing the system to move more water quicker downstream. 
- This will be leaving cattails on the shoreline on the cut-banks as shoreline stabilization. 

Time of Year Anticipated % Control 
Spring 2024 60% 
Summer 2024 80% 
Fall 2024 85% 
Spring 2025 90% 
Summer 2025 92% 
Fall 2025 95% 

Equipment 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and Waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 

Active Ingredient 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Dlquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, TryclOpyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 

Minimum Rates 
1g, 6p. Sp, 6p, Sp/Acre 
1g, Sp, Sp. Sp, Sp/Aa-e 
1g, Sp, Sp, Sp, 6p/Aa-e 
1g, Sp, Sp, Sp, Sp/Acre 
1g, Sp, Sp. Sp. Sp/Acre 
1g, Sp, Sp, Sp, Sp/Aa-e 

"Treatments to be perfomned by a Texas Department of Agriculture (TOA) Commercial Pesticide Applicator with an Aquatic Applicators endorsement 

Mixing Precautions 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 

!' 
' i1 
I• 
J> 

l. 
•1 
l 
!' 1: 
!! .. 
•1 
!· 
1 

Biocatalyst Info 
Hert>icide Catalyst - min. 1 g/aa-e 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/aa-e 

"Whereby aeriaVdrone treatments are to be made, it is required that, In addition to the TOA Applicator's License, the company/contractor hold a Part 107 (and possibly a Part 135) FAAAlmnan's license. 
"Insurance requirements of the Licensed Contractor should include, but not be limited to, Longshoreman's and Harbor Workera endorsements that include an environmental pollution prevention provision. Policies should 
include coverage for waterborne activities such as the ones described in the scope of work located herein. Additionally, where aerial/drone applications are perfomned, the company/contractor must provide proof of coverages 

~-
01Sl0 eo ., 120 

Legend 

D """' 
c -

.... 

------
Observed cattails 

in 
Lake 3 

Comencheria Lake 
total to 

63,384 Sq. Ft. 

Area of cattails 
recommended for 

treatment 
37,154 Sq Ft. 

GenerolNotn: 

Long Lake C<eek Channel 
Orone imagery taken on 
IWgust 9th 2023 wlh OJI 
Mavic2 

Cl) I ... ~~ 
I ~~o 

.g~~ Q) , 
.git 

d ;i~ 
a:C~ 

~ -I 
u 

c 
0 

.ic: .. 
c.> C'U 
0 Q) .c a.. 
.c c.> 
~ Q) 
..J a:: 
-'C oc 
>- C'U 
... tn 
·- .ic: 0 a.. 

C'U 
Q. 

~ 
C'U 

..J 
C'U 

C') ·c: 
Cl) Q) 

.ic: .c 
ca c.> 
..J c 

Q) 

E 
0 
0 

""' (!) 

Drawn By: Jeff B. 

Scale: 1" = so· 

Sheet No. 5 of 15 



CEEK 2 - 0.07 ACRES TREATMENT AREA 
- Treatment by a UTV spray from the outer shoreUne, spraying Into the catta~s. 
- "Special treatment area" done by a vessel or amphibious equipment, sprayed from the inside into the cattails. 
- The special treatment area Is treated in this way to reduce the restricting areas of now, attowing the system to move more water quicker downstream. 
- This will be leaving cattails on the shoreline on the cut-banks as shoreline stabilization. 

nme of Year Anticipated % Control 
Spring 2024 60% 
Summer 2024 80% 
Fall 2024 85% 
Spring 2025 90% 
Summer 2025 92% 
Fall 2025 95% 

Equipment 
UTV 
UTV 
UTV 
UTV 
UTV 
UTV 

Active Ingredient 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 

Minimum Rates 
1 g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Acre 
1 g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Aae 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Acre 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, Sp/Acre 
1 g, 6p, 6p, Sp, Sp/Acre 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, Sp/Acre 

"Treatments to be perfonmed by a Texas Department of Agriculture (TOA) Commercial Pesticide Applicator with an Aquatic Applicators endorsemenl 

Mixing Precautions 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 

Biocatalyst Info 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 

"Whereby aeriaUdrone treatments are to be made, it is required that, in addition to the TOA Applicator's License, the company/contractor hold a Part 107 (and possibly a Part 135) FAAAinman's license. 
•insurance requirements of the Licensed Contractor should include, but not be limited to, Longshoreman's and Harbor Worlters endorsements that indude an environmental pollution prevention provision. Policies should 
include coverage for waterborne activities such as the ones described in the scope of work located herein. Additionally, where aeriaUdrone applications are performed, the company/contractor must provide proof of coverages 

01020 ..o eo ao --=-· ... 

Legend 

Cl 
Cl -------

Observed cattails 
in 

Creek 2 
total to 

6,779 Sq. Ft. 

Area of cattails 

c 
0 

..-:: :;; 
u ns 
0 CD 
.0 ... 
.0 u 
;::, CD 
..J 0::: _,, 
oc 
~= --~ 0 ... 

ns 
Q. 

recommended for 1--------1 
treatment 

3,020Sq Ft. 

General Noln: 

Cfeek 2 
Orone imagtfy taken on 
August 9tl1 2023 with OJI 
Mavic2. 

Drawn By: Jeff B. 

Scale: 1" = 50' 

Sheet No. 6 of 15 



'.a.· ti\ ··, ....-a.r&.ll#.~·~:.1(J ~ l .. '\. "-

CREEK 4 SHEET 1 - NO RECOMMENDED TREATMENT AREAS 

H I ~-
0 20«l ID 120 UiO .... 

~ 

CJ """' 
c:::i 

Observed cattails 
in 

Creek 4 Sheet 1 
total to 

10,686 Sq. Ft. 

No treatments 
recommended 

General Notn: 

Creek 4 Sheet 1 
Drone i~ taken on 
August 8th 2023 Yoith OJI 

.< Mavie 2. 

CD 

~l 
c;; f 

.... ti(!; 
~~o 
ill~~ 

g{ 0 :6~ 
a:§ S; 

f!? l 
"O 

c 
~·2 
(.) '1U 
0 C1) 
.Q ..... 
.Q (.) 

j~ 
--c oc 
>-cu 
~ ti) 

o~ 
cu 
ll.. 

~ .... 
~ .... 
C1) C1) 
C1) C1) 
..... .J: 
0 CJ) 

(!) 

Drawn By: Jeff B. 

Scale: 1" = 100' 

Sheet No. 7 of 15 



Special treatment area: 
Treatment of cattails along the 
central channel now leaving approx. 
30' of coverage along shoreline for 
erosion prevention 

CREEK 5 - 1.04 ACRES TREATMENT AREA 
- Treatment by a UTV spray from the outer shoreline, spraying into the cattails. 
- "Special treatment area• done by a vessel or amphibious equipment, sprayed from the inside into the cattails. 
- The special treatment area is treated in this way to reduce the reslricting areas of flow, allowing the system to move more water quicker downstream. 
- This will be leaving cattails on the shoreline on the cut-banks as shoreline stabilization. 

Time of Year Anticipated % Control 
Summer 2024 60% 
Falf 2024 80% 
Spring 2025 90% 
Summer 2025 92% 
Falf 2025 95% 

Equipment 
Aerial Drone 
Aerial Drone 
Aerial Drone 
Aerial Drone 
Aerial Drone 

Active Ingredient 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Dlquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 

Minimum Rates 
1g, Sp, Sp, Sp, Sp/Acre 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, Sp/Acre 
1g, Sp, Sp, Sp, Sp/Acre 
1g, Sp, Sp, Sp, Sp/Acre 
19, 6p, 6p, 6p, Sp/Acre 

"Treatments to be performed by a Texas Department of Agriculture (TOA) Commencial Pesticide Applicator with an Aquatic Applicators endorsement 

Mixing Precautions 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 

Biocatalyst Info 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 

"Whereby aerial/drone treatments are to be made, it is required that, in addition to the TOA Applicator's License, the company/contractor hold a Part 107 (and possibly a Part 135) FAA Airman's license. 
' Insurance requirements of the Licensed Contractor should Include, but not be limited to, Longshoreman's and Harbor Workers endorsements that include an environmental pollution prevention provision. Policies should 
indude coverage for waterborne activities such as the ones desetibed in the scope of work located herein. Addttionally, where aerial/drone applications are performed, the company/contractor must provide proof of coverages 
for the aerial/drone application activities. 

1' 
0 2040 '° 120 1' ... 

Legend 

CJ 
c -----~ ......... Mil 

Observed cattai ls 
in 

Creek 5 
total to 

78,467 Sq. Ft. 

Area or cattails 

!I 
:g,f 
~ j 
"C 

c 
0 

~.­
CJ ns 
0 Q) 
.Q ... 
.Q CJ 
~ Q) 
..J ~ 

- "C QC 

~= ·-~ 0 ... 
ns 
a.. 

CD .... .., 
~~~ 
~~~ . '-"'~ a.,,. 
0:§ ~ 

CJ 

recommended for i-------­
treatment 

45,158 Sq Ft. 

Genetal Notes: 

long Lake Creek Chamel 
Orone imagery taken on 
August 8th 2023 ..;th OJI 
MaYic 2. 

It) 

~ 
Q) 

! 
0 

Drawn By: Jeff B. 

Scaie:-1" =- 100' 

Sheet No. 9of15 



Incremental Shore line treatment to 
create additional access to waters. 
Long Term observations to shoretine 
required to determine additional 
erosion prior to expanding access 
sections. 

i-
·- eo 120 1t0 , ... 

Cl 

Cl -------- --==--

Observed cattails 
in 

Creek 5 
total to 

78,467 Sq. Ft. 

Area of cattails 

l 
I 

~f 
~ t 
"O 

c 
0 

.lll: :;::: 
u ca oe 
.a u .a Q) 
::::s 0::: 
..J 

- "C oc 
~= ·-~ 0 ... 

ca 
D.. 

CD 

.... ~~ 
~~q 
m f- ;:i; 
oaf~ 
0.:§ ~ 

l!l 

recommended for 1--------l 
treatment 

45,158 Sq Ft. 

Additional 
Incremental Shore 
line treatment of 

cattails at 
approximately 50' 

sections to 

1--~~~~~~..__~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-"-'-~~~_._~~~~~-1 increaseaccessto 
waters 

36,115 Sq. Ft. CREEK 5 - 1.87 ACRES TREATMENT AREA 
- Treatment by a UTV spray from the outer shoreline, spraying into the cattails. 
- "Special treatment area" done by a vessel or amphibious equipment, sprayed from the inside into the cattails. 
- The special treatment area is treated in this way to reduce the restricting areas of now, aHowing the system to move more water quicker downstream. 
- This will be leaving cattails on the shoreline on the cut-banks as shoreline stabilization. 

Time of Year Anticipated % Control 
Summer 2024 60% 
FaH 2024 80% 
Spring 2025 90% 
Summer 2025 92% 
Fall 2025 95% 

Equipment 
Aerial Drone and UTV 
Aerial Drone and UTV 
Aerial Drone and UTV 
Aerial Drone and UTV 
Aerial Drone and UTV 

Active Ingredient 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquale, Glyphosate, TrycJopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, TrycJopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 

Minimum Rates 
1g, 6p, Sp, 6p, 6p/Acre 
1 g, 6p, Sp, Sp, 6p/Acre 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Acre 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Acre 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Acre 

•Treatments to be performed by a Texas Department of Agriculture (TOA) Commercial Pesticide Applicator with an Aquatic Applicators endorsemenl 

Mixing Precautions 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 

Biocatalyst Info 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 

•Whereby aerial/drone treatments are to be made, it is required that, in addition to the TOA Applicator's License, the company/contractor hold a Part 107 (and possibly a Pert 135) FAA Airmen's license. 
•insurance requirements of the Licensed Contractor should Include, but not be limited to, Longshoreman's and Harbor Wor1<ers endorsements that include an environmental pollution prevention provision. Policies should 
Include coverage for waterborne activities sucll as the ones described In the scope of work located herein. Additionally, where aerial/drone applications are performed, the company/contractor must provide proof of coverages 
for the aerial/drone application activities. 

General Notes : 

Long Lake Creek Channel 
Orone imagery taken on 
August 8th 2023 - OJI 
Ma'llc2. 

Drawn By: Jeff B. 

Scale: 1" = 100' 

Sheet No. 9 of 15 



LAKE 4 - NO RECOMMENDED TREATMENT AREAS 

~ ~ 

"' 
0 1530 tD 80 120 a""'.C='"_,,,. 

Leoend 

CJ """" 
c:::i --------~ .... 

Observed cattails i1 

Lake 4 
4,282 Sq. Ft. 

No treatments 
recommended 

at this time 

General Notes: 

ii 
~1 
¥ ~ 
"O 

c 
0 

~;:; 
(J «! 
0 Cl> .c ... .c (J 
:::s Cl> 
..J ix: 

- "C oc 
~ «! 
·- en o~ 

«! 
0.. 

~ 
j 

..,. Cll 

.~Pi 
" c ..J ~ 

u 
ra 

:IE 

co 
.... ::;~ 
m :e ~ 
.g~~ 
d ~~ 
0.:§~ 

(!) 

Drawn By: Jeff B. 

Scale: 1•· = 68' 

Lake Hl•on• imoge<y taken I I 
on August 8th 2023 ~th OJI 
Mavle 2. 

Sheet No. 10 of 15 



CREEK 6 - 0.24 ACRES TREATMENT AREA 
- Treatment by a UTV spray from the outer shore~ne, spraying into the cattails. 
- 'Special treatment area' done by a vessel or amphibious equipment, sprayed from the inside into the catta~s. 
- The special treatment area is treated in this way to reduce the restricting areas of flow, allowing the system to move more water quicker downstream. 
- This will be leaving cattails on the shoreline on the cut-banks as shoreine stabilization. 

Time of Year Anticipated % Control 
Spring 2024 SO% 
Summer 2024 80% 
Fall 2024 85% 
Spring 2025 90% 
Summer 2025 92% 
Fall 2025 95% 

Equipment 
UTV 
UTV 
UTV 
UTV 
UTV 
UTV 

Active Ingredient 
Dlquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, tmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, tmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, tmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryciopyr, lmazapyr, tmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 

Minimum Rates 
1g, Sp, Sp, Sp, Sp/Acre 
1g, Sp, Sp, Sp, Sp/Acre 
1 g, Sp, Sp, Sp, 6p/Aae 
1g, Sp, Sp, Sp, Sp/Acre 
1g, Sp, Sp, Sp, Sp/Acre 
1 g, Sp, Sp, Sp, Sp/Aae 

"Treatments to be performed by a Texas Department of Agriculture (TOA) Commercial Pesticide Applicator with an Aquatic Applicators endorsement. 

Mixing Precautions 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 

Biocatalyst Info 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/aae 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/aae 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/aae 

"Whereby aerial/drone treatments are to be made, It Is required that, in addition to the TOA Applicator's License, the company/contractor hold a Part 107 (and possibly a Part 135) FAA Airman's license. 
"Insurance requirements of the Licensed Contractor should include, but not be limited to, Longshoreman's and Harbor Workers endorsements that indude an environmental pollution prevention provision. Policies should 
include coverage for weterbome activities such as the ones described in the scope of work located herein. Additionally, where aerial/drone applications are performed, the company/contractor must provide proof of coverages 

~ 
o 15 30 60 IO 1~HI 

Legend 

D '""" ------
Observed cattails 
in creek system 

total to 
31,818 Sq. Ft. 

Area of cattails 
recommended for 

t reatment 
10,531 Sq Ft. 

Gen...tNotes: 

Cf eek 6 Dfone imagery 
teken on July 19th 2023 
~OJI Mavic 3. 

POftiom of Long Lake 
Creek channel not observed 

"' - 1 ...... 

11 Si~~ ~~;,; 
· ~ ~ gf 0 <DN o.:c,.... 

~ i 
"O 

c 
.Iii: .2 
u-
0 ca 
.Q ~ 
.Q u 
.3~ 
- 'C oc 
>.ca 

:!::: in 
o~ 

ca 
0.. 

~ 
ca 
0.. 

co G> 
.Iii: .Iii: 
a> ca 
! ...J 
0C'l 

c 
0 
...J 

" "' (!) 

Drawn By: Jeff B. 

!Scale: 1" = 68' 

due to heavy canopy cover. 1--- --- --- -i 

Sheet No. 11of 15 



"' 

--
SpeciBI treatment area: 
Treatment ol cattails along 1he 

r J taking precautions to not effect 
non-target species 

LAKE 5-1.61 ACRES TREATMENT AREA 
- Treatment by a U"TV spray from the outer shoreline, spraying into the cattails. 
- "Special treatment area" done by a vessel or amphibious equipment, sprayed from the inside into the caltails. 
- The special treatment area is treated in this way to reduce the restricting areas of flow, allowing the system to move more water quid<er downstream. 
- This will be leaving cattails on the shoreline on the cut-banks as shoreline stabilization. 

Tome of Year Anticipated % Control 
Summer 2024 SO% 
Fall 2024 80% 
Spring 2025 90% 
Summer 2025 92% 
Fall 2025 95% 

Equipment 
U"TV and Waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
U"TV and Waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
U1V and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and wa1erborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
U"TV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 

Active Ingredient 
Dlquate, Glyphosete, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Dlquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr. lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 

Minimum Rates 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, Sp/Acre 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, Sp/Acre 
1 g, 6p, Sp, 6p, Sp/Aae 
1g, 6p, Sp, Sp, Sp/Acre 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, Sp/Acre 

"Treatments to be performed by a Texas Department of Agricutture (TOA) Commercial Pesticide Applicator with an Aquatic Applicators endorsement 

Special treatmenl area: 

tl 
; l 
!1 
" !I r d !; 
If 
H ,, 
1 

! 
,f 

Treatment of cattails along the 
central channel flow leaving approx. 
1 o• C1I coverage along shoreine for 
erosion prevention --

Mixing Precautions 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 

Biocatalyst Info 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/aae 
Herbicide Catalyst- min. 1g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/aae 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 

"'Mlereby aeriaVdrone treatments are to be made, ~is required that, in addition to the TOA Applicator's License, the company/contractor hold a Part 107 (and possibly a Part 135) FM Airman's license. 
"Insurance requirements of the Licensed Contractor should include, but not be limited to, Longshoreman's and Harbor Workers endorsements that include an environmental pollution prevention provision. Policies should 
include coverage for waterborne activities such as the ones described in the scope of work located herein. Additionally, where aerial/drone applications are performed, the oompany/contraclor must provide proof of coverages 
for the aerial/drone application activities. 

~-
020.t0 80 t20 I, ... 

Legend 

D """' • • ~Liiie --­s.oil ....... OllA!el 

Observed cattails 
in 

Mae Simmons 
Park 

total to 
133,432 Sq. Ft. 

Area of cattails 
recommended for 

treatment 
70,020Sq Ft. 

General Noles: 

"' It .... .., 
~~~ 
~~~ 

..... ~ "?: Q) p 
0 ""' e>f a:§ S; 

¥: 
'O 

c 
0 

~ .. 
u "' 0 Q) 
~ ... 
~u 
:::J Q) 
..J 0:: 

- "O oc 
~"' 
·-~ 0 ... 

"' D. 

~ ... 
"' D. 

'° ~ Q) 0 
~e 
jE 

Ci) 
Q) 

"' :E 

(!) 

Drawn By: Jeff B. 

Scale: 1"= 100' 

Lake 5 Orone imasiert tlken 1----------1 
on Mt 19111 2023 ""1h D.JI 
Mavlc3. 

Sheet No. 12of15 



Special treatment area: 
Treatment of cattails on 
shalow island in the middle 
ol the lake 

LAKE 6 SHEET 1 - 2.54 ACRES TREATMENT AREA 
- Treabnent by a UTV spray from the outer shoreline, spraying into the cattails. 
- "Special treatment area• done by a vessel or amphibious equipment, sprayed lrom the inside into the cattails. 
- The special treabnent area is treated in this way to reduce the restricting areas of flow, allowing the system to move more water quicker downstream. 
- This will be leavilg cattai ls on the shoreline on the cut-banks as shoreHne stabilization. 

Time of Year Anticipated % Control 
Summer 2024 SO% 
Fall 2024 85% 
Spring 2025 90% 
Summer 2025 92% 
Fall 2025 95% 

Equipment 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and Waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and Waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 

Active Ingredient 
Dlquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryclopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Tryctopyr, lmazapyr. lmazamox 
Dlquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Oiquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 

Minimum Rates 
1 g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Acre 
1g, Sp, 6p, Sp, 6p/Acre 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, Sp/Acre 
19, 6p, Sp, 6p, Sp/Acre 
1g, Sp, 6p, 6p, 6p/Acre 

"Treatments to be performed by a Texas Department of Agriculture (TOA) Commercial Pesticide Applicator with an Aquatic Applicators endorsement 

Mixing Precautions 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 

Biocatalyst Info 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 

"Whereby aerial/drone treabnents are to be made, it Is required that, In addition to the TOA Applicator's License. the company/contractor hold a Part 107 (and possibly a Part 135) FAA Airman's license. 
"Insurance requirements of the Licensed Contractor should Include, but not be limited to, Longshoreman's and Harbor Workers endorsements that include an environmental pollution prevention provision. Policies should 
include coverage for waterborne activities such as the ones described in the scope of work located herein. Additionally, where aerial/drone applications are performed, the cornpanykontractor must provide proof of coverages 
for the aerial/drone application activities. 

\ 
0 2S50 100 150 lO)FMt 

Cl 
c::J 

Legend 

_ ... ------
Observed cattails 

in 
Section one of 
Dunbar Lake 

total to 
195, 330 Sq. Fl 

Area of cattails 
recommended for 

treatment 
110,430 Sq Ft. 

General Notes: 

Lake 6 
Orone irnllgery taken on 
July 18th and 19th 2023 
~DJIMavic3. 

... l ;, 
~f 
~ ~ 
'O 

c 
0 .x:; 

CJ "' 0 Q) 
.Q ... 
.Q CJ 
~ Q) 

...I 0: 
- "C oc 
~: 
·- .x: 0 ... 

"' Q. 

~ 
.... 0 
~z 
GI QI 
~.II: 
U) Ill 
co ...I ... 

GI 111 
~.a 
Ill c 

...I :I 
c 

CD 

.... :;~ 
"'"'~ 
s8~ 
~ ~~ a .. .,. 
a.:§ Si 

(!) 

Drawn By: Jeff B. 

Scale: 1" = 120• 

Sheet No. 13of15 



LAKE 6 SHEET 2 - 1.12 ACRES TREATMENT AREA 
- Treatment by a UTV spray from the ouler shoreline, spraying into the cattails. 
- "Special treatment area" done by a vessel or amphibious equipment, sprayed from the inside into the cattails. 
- The special treatment area is treated in this way to reduce the restricting areas of now, allowing the system to move more water quicker downstream. 
- This will be leaving cattails on the shoreline on the wt-Oanl<s as shoreline stabilization. 

Time of Year Anticipated % Control 
Summer 2024 60% 
Fall 2024 85% 
Spring 2025 90% 
Summer 2025 92% 
Fall 2025 95% 

Equipment 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and Waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 
UTV and waterborne/Amphibious Vehicle 

Active Ingredient 
Dlquate, Glyphosale, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Dlquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Dlquate, Glyphosale, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, lmazamox 
Diquate, Glyphosate, Trydopyr, lmazapyr, tmazamox 

Minimum Rates 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Acre 
1g, 6p, 6p, Sp, 6p/Acre 
1 g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Acre 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Acre 
1g, 6p, 6p, 6p, 6p/Acre 

•Treatments to be performed by a Texas Department of Agriculture (TOA) Commercial Pesticide Applicator with an Aquatic Applicators endorsement. 

Mixing Precautions 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
Follow Product label 
F oltow Product label 

8iocatalyst Info 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 
Herbicide Catalyst - min. 1 g/acre 

•Whereby aerial/drone treatments are to be made, it is required that, in addition to the TOA Applicator's License. the company/contractor hold a Part 107 (and possibly a Part 135) FAA Airman's license. 
•insurance requirements of the Licensed Contractor should inciude, but not be limited to, Longshoreman's and Harbor Wor1<ers endorsements that include an environmental pollution prevention provision. Policies should 
include coverage for waterborne activities such as the ones described in the scope of Wllr1< located herein. Additionally, where aeriaVdrone applications are performed, the company/contractor must provide proof of coverages 
for the aeriaVdrone application activities. 

\ 
o 30 80 120 tao 2.,.,. 

Legend 
D .,.... 

c:::i -- - Mmllillt ------
Observed cattails 

in 
Section two 
Dunbar Lake 

total to 
154,710 Sq. Ft. 

Area of cattails 
recommended for 

treatment 
48,782 Sq Ft. 

Genlfll Notn: 

Lake 6 
Orone imagery taken on 
..kJly 18th and 19th 2023 
>Mth OJI Mavle 3. 

'-1 
~ 
"15 t 
~f ¥i 
u 

c: 
0 

..-:: ... 
U CV 
0 Cl,) .c .... 
.c u 

::::s Cl,) 
..J 0:: 
-"C 0 c: 
~CV 
·-~ 0 .... 

CV 
Q. 

.r. -N ::::S _o 
a> en 
Q) Cl,) 
.c .:iii: 
Ul CV 
co ..J 
Q) .... 

.:it:. CV 
«I .c 

..J c: ;:::, 
0 

Drawn By: Jeff B. 

Scale: 1" = 140' 

Sheet No. 14of15 



Lakel 60 -- S;~ ~ 11 ~ ... 
La~2 ro • q ·La~3 60 --- --- --- i ~~~ 
Creek 2 ro Q) f q .! r-i 
Creek6 ro .g °'§1» 
La~l ~ t (!) 

La~2 "C 
Creek 1 
La~3-

Creek2 
Creeks fSmime.'2024 ro 

Summer 2024 SO lli!"-- __ c 
5<.mmer 2024 ro UTV and Waterborne/Amphibious \/ehide O 
Summer 2024 ro UTV and Waterborne/Amphibious \/ehicle ~ ;:; 

85 UTV and W<t.e bious \/ehide (,,) ca 
85 UTV and Watertlome/Ampllibious Vehicle or by hand with pressurized pum ,& ! 
85 Aerial Orone and UTV .Q (.) 

:l Cl) 
...J a:: 
-'C oc 
>-ca 

- tll ·-~ o~ 
ca 
0.. 

:::Ew 
W...1 
I-:::> 
(I) 0 
>-w 
(I) ::c 
(I) 0 
Wtn 
~ .... 
:5 ffi 
Z:::E 

~5 zo:: 
~ .... 

Drawn By: Jeff B. 

Sheet No. 15 of 15 



# Item 

#1-1 Lake 1 

#1-2 Lake2 

#1 -3 Lake3 

#1-4 Creek2 

# 1-5 Creek 6 

City of Lubbock 
RFP 24-17844-TF 

EXHIBIT B 

Cattail Treatment of the Jim Bertram Canyon Lakes System 
Price Proposal Sheet 

Description 

0.31 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 60% control. 

0.82 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 60% control. 
0.85 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 60% control. 
0.07 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 60% control. 

0.31 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 60% control. 

Quantity 
Required 

(+/-) 

Location 
Total 

UOM 

Cycle 

Cycle 

Cycle 

Cycle 

Cycle 

PondMedics, LLC 
Prosper, TX 
$719,180.61 

Unit 
Price 

$17,595 

$18,807 

$19,011 

$17,406 

$17,542 

Total 
Cost 

$17,595.13 

$18,806.55 

$19,010.80 

$17,405.64 

$17,541.56 

2 Summer 2024 Treatment as per 

#2-1 Lake l 
0.31 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 80% control. 

$10,077 $10,076.82 

#2-2 Lake2 
0.82 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 80% control. 

Cycle $11 ,288 $11,288.24 

#2-3 Creek 1 
5.73 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 60% control 

Cycle $24,091 $24,091.13 

#2-4 Lake3 
0 .85 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 80% control. 

Cycle $11 ,492 $11 ,492.49 

#2-5 Creek 2 
0.07 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 80% control 

Cycle $9,887 $9,887.33 

#2-6 Creek 5 
1.04 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 60% control. 

Cycle $17,526 $17,525.96 

#2-7 Creek 6 
0.31 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 60% control. 

Cycle $10,023 $10,023 .25 

#2-8 Lake 5 
1.61 acres oftreatement area as 
per specified with 60% control. 

Cycle $12,961 $12,960.92 

Lake6 
2.54 acres of treatment area as per 

#2-9 
specified with 60% control. 

$18,050.38 

Lake l 
0.31 acres of treatment area as per 

#3-1 specified with 85% control. 
Cycle $10,077 $10,076.82 

Lake2 
0.82 acres of treatment area as per 

#3-2 specified with 85% control. 
Cycle $11,288 $11,288.24 

Creek 1 
5.73 acres of treatment area as per 

#3-3 specified with 85% control 
Cycle $24,321 $24,320.92 

Lake3 
0.85 acres of treatment area as per 

#3-4 
specified with 85% control. 

Cycle $11 ,492 $11 ,492.49 



#3-5 Creek 2 

#3-6 Creek 5 

#3-7 Creek 6 

#3-8 Lakes 

#3-9 Lake6 

City of Lubbock 
RFP 24-17844-TF 

Cattail Treatment of the Jim Bertram Canyon Lakes System 
Price Proposal Sheet 

0.07 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 90% control 

Cycle $9,887 

1.04 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 80% control. 

Cycle $17,756 

0.31 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 85% control. 

Cycle $10,023 

1.61 acres of treatement area as 
per specified with 80% control. 

Cycle $12,961 

2.54 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 85% control. 

Cycle $18,050 

4 Spring 2025 Treatment as per Table .24 

Cycle $10,077 Lake 1 
O .31 acres of treatment area as per 

#4-1 
specified with 90% control. 

Cycle $11,288 Lake2 
0.82 acres of treatment area as per 

#4-2 
specified with 90% control. 

Cycle $24,321 Creek I 
5.73 acres of treatment area as per 

#4-3 
specified with 90% control 

Cycle $11,492 Lake 3 
0.85 acres of treatment area as per 

#4-4 
specified with 90% control. 

Cycle $9,887 Creek 2 
0.07 acres of treatment area as per 

#4-5 
specified with 90% control 

Cycle $17,756 Creek 5 
1.04 acres of treatment area as per 

#4-6 
specified with 90% control. 

Cycle $10,023 Creek 6 
0.31 acres of treatment area as per 

#4-7 
specified with 90% control. 

Cycle $12,96 1 Lakes 
1.61 acres of treatement area as 

#4-8 
per specified with 90% control. 

Cycle $18,050 Lake6 
2.54 acres of treatment area as per 

#4-9 
specified with 90% control. 

Cycle 
0.31 acres of treatment area as per 
specified with 92% control. 

Cycle $11,288 Lake2 
0.82 acres of treatment area as per 

#5-2 
specified with 92% control. 

Cycle $24,321 Creek 1 
5.73 acres of treatment area as per 

#5-3 
specified with 92% control 

Cycle $11,492 Lake3 
0.85 acres of treatment area as per 

#5-4 
specified with 92% control. 

Cycle $9,887 Creek 2 
0.07 acres of treatment area as per 

#5-5 
specified with 92% control 

Cycle $1 7,756 Creek 5 
1.04 acres of treatment area as per 

#5-6 
specified with 92% control. 

Cycle $10,023 Creek6 
0.31 acres of treatment area as per 

#5-7 
specified with 92% control. 

Cycle $12,961 Lake 5 
1.61 acres of treatement area as 

#5-8 
per specified with 92% control. 

Cycle $18,050 Lake6 
2.54 acres of treatment area as per 

#5-9 
specified with 92% control. 

$9,887.33 

$17,755.75 

$10,023.25 

$12,960.92 

$ 18,050.38 

$10,076.82 

$11,288.24 

$24,320.92 

$11,492.49 

$9,887.33 

$17,755.75 

$10,023.25 

$12,960.92 

$18,050.38 

$10,076.82 

$11,288.24 

$24,320.92 

$11,492.49 

$9,887.33 

$17,755.75 

$10,023.25 

$12,960.92 

$18,050.38 



#6-1 Lake 1 

#6-2 Lake2 

#6-3 Creek 1 

#6-4 Lake3 

#6-5 Creek 2 

#6-6 Creek 5 

#6-7 Creek 6 

#6-8 Lake 5 

#6-9 Lake6 

City of Lubbock 
RFP 24-17844-TF 

Cattail Treatment of the Jim Bertram Canyon Lakes System 
Price Proposal Sheet 

0.31 acres of treatment area as per 
Cycle $10,077 

specified with 95% control. 
0.82 acres of treatment area as per 

Cycle $11,288 
specified with 95% control. 
5.73 acres of treatment area as per 

Cycle $24,321 
specified with 95% control 
0.85 acres of treatment area as per 

Cycle $11,492 
specified with 95% control. 
0.07 acres of treatment area as per 

Cycle $9,887 
specified with 95% control 
1.04 acres of treatment area as per 

Cycle $17,756 
specified with 95% control. 
0.31 acres of treatment area as per 

Cycle $10,023 
specified with 95% control. 
1.61 acres of treatement area as 

Cycle $12,961 
per specified with 95% control. 
2.54 acres of treatment area as per 

Cycle $18,050 
specified with 95% control. 

$10,076.82 

$11 ,288.24 

$24,320.92 

$11,492.49 

$9,887.33 

$17,755.75 

$10,023.25 

$12,960.92 

$18,050.38 



City of Lubbock, TX 
Purchasing and Contract Management 

Vendor Acknowledgement Form 

The City of Lubbock reserves the right to accept or reject any and all. 

The City of Lubbock Charter states that no officer or employee of the City can benefit from any contract, 
job, work or service for the municipality or be interested in the sale to the City of any supplies, equipment, 
material or articles purchased. Will any officer or employee of the City, or member of their immediate 
family, benefit from the award of this proposal to the above firm? 

YES ~NO 

THE OFFEROR HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

I, the undersigned Vendor certify that the insurance requirements this bid document have been reviewed 
by me and my Insurance Agent/Broker. If I am awarded this contract by the City of Lubbock, I will be 
able to, within ten (10) business days after being notified of such award by the City of Lubbock, furnish 
a valid insurance certificate to the City meeting all of the requirements defined in this bid. 

If the time requirement specified above is not met, the City has the right to reject this proposal and award 
the contract to another contractor. If you have any questions concerning these requirements, please contact 
the Director of Purchasing & Contract Management for the City of Lubbock at (806) 775-2572. 

SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

Federal Law (A-102 Common Rule and OMB Circular A-110) prohibits non-Federal entities from 
contracting with or making sub-awards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or 
debarred or whose principals are suspended or debarred. Covered transactions include procurement 
contracts for goods or services equal to or in excess of$25,000 and all non-procurement transactions (e.g., 
sub-awards to sub-recipients). 

Contractors receiving individual awards of $25,000 or more and all sub-recipients must certify that their 
organization and its principals are not suspended or debarred by a Federal agency. 
Before an award of $25,000 or more can be made to your firm, you must certify that your organization 
and its principals are not suspended or debarred by a Federal agency. 
I, the undersigned agent for the firm named below, certify that neither this firm nor its principals are 
suspended or debarred by a Federal agency. 

TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 2252.152 

The undersigned representative of the undersigned company or business, being an adult over the age of 
eighteen (18) years of age, pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 2252, Section 2252.152, certify 
that the company named above is not listed on the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas 
concerning the listing of companies that are identified under Section 806.051, Section 807.051 or Section 
2253.153. I further certify that should the above-named company enter into a contract that is on said listing 
of companies on the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas, which do business with Iran, Sudan 
or any Foreign Terrorist Organization, I will immediately notify the City of Lubbock Purchasing and 
Contract Department. 



TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 2271.002 

Company hereby certifies the following: 
1. Company does not boycott Israel; and 
2. Company will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

The following definitions apply to this state statute: 
(1) "Boycott Israel" means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking 
any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically 
with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does 
not include an action made for ordinary business purposes; and 
(2) "Company" means an organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited 
partnership, limited liability partnership, or limited liability company, including a wholly owned 
subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company, or affiliate of those entities or business 
associations that exists to make a profit. 

TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 2274 

By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of 
the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity 
or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government 
Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at 
least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it 
does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm 
trade association; and will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or 
firearm trade association. 

Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the contract, boycott 
energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code 
does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at 
least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it 
does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies during the term of the 
Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a governmental entity determines 
that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental entity' s constitutional or statutory duties 
related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt obligations or the deposit, custody, 
management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 



VENDOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

In compliance with this procurement, the undersigned offeror having examined the request for 
proposal, instructions to offerors, documents associated with the request for proposals, and being 
familiar with the conditions to be met, has reviewed the information regarding: 

• Insurance Requirements 
• Suspension and Debarment Certification 
• Texas Government Code Section 2252.152 
• Texas Government Code Section 2271.002 
• Texas Government Code 2274 

An individual authorized to bind the company must sign the following section. Failure to execute this 
portion may result in proposal rejection. 

Logistics Director 

Authorized Signature Title 

Beth Proctor 2/15/24 

Print/Type Name Date 

PondMedics, LLC 1251 N. Legacy Dr. 

Company Name Address 

Prosper, TX 75078 
City, State Zip Code 

Contact for questions, clarifications, etc. 

Name and Title: Weston Jordan 

Mailing Address: PO Box 97 

City, State, Zip: Gunter, TX 75058 

Telephone No: 972-334-0104 

Fax No: N/A 

E-Mail: weston@pondmedics.com 



INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS EXHIBIT C 

Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a completed Insurance Certificate 
to the City, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to bind the named underwriter(s) to the coverages, 
limits, and termination provisions shown thereon, and which shall furnish and contain all required information 
referenced or indicated thereon. THE CITY SHALL HA VE NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER 
THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY. 

The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section during the effective period of the 
contract and to require adjustment of insurance coverages and their limits when deemed necessary and prudent 
by the City based upon changes in statutory law, court decisions, or the claims history of the industry as well as 
the Contractor. 

Subject to the Contractor's right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts as are approved by the City, 
the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect for the duration of this contract, and any extension 
hereof, at Contractor's sole expense, insurance coverage written by companies approved by the State of Texas 
and acceptable to the City, in the following type(s) and amount(s) : 

Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence I $2M aggregate (can be combined with an 
Excess Liability to meet requirement) . CGL is required in ALL contracts. It is perhaps the most important of 
all insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures the Contractor has broad liability coverage for 
contractual activities and for completed operations. 

Commercial General Liability to include Products - Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising Injury, 
Contractual Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses (any one person). 

Automobile Liability Requirements: $IM/occurrence is needed 
Professional Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence I $2M aggregate 
Workers Compensation and Employer Liability Requirements: Statutory. If the vendor is an independent 
contractor with no employees and are exempt from providing Workers' Compensation coverage, they must 
sign a waiver (obtained from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's license. Employer Liability 
($1M) is required with Workers Compensation. Needs to include coverage under the Longshore Act and the 
Jones Act. 
Pollution Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence I $2M aggregate 
Umbrella Requirements: $3M occurrence 

Special Insurances 
Unmanned Aircraft Liability Requirements: $1 M occurrence and $2M aggregate coverage is needed for this 
project. 
Aircraft Aerial Application Liability Requirements: Aircraft Aerial Application Liability AND $1 M pollution 
protection are REQUIRED. Here are suggested coverages in order of preference: $500K CSL, $300K CSL, 
and no less than: $100K/person and $300K/occurrence for BI+ $100K for PD. 

*The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional insured 
status on a primary and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional liabilities and 
workers' comp. 

* Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC. 

* To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. 

* Carrier will provide a 30-day written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-payment. 



* Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better. 

* Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 

IMPORTANT: POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

The Contractor will provide copies of the policies without expense, to the City and all endorsements thereto 
and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification of particular policy terms, 
conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions are established by law or regulation 
binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter of any of such policies). Upon such request by the 
City, the Contractor shall exercise reasonable efforts to accomplish such changes in policy coverages, and shall 
pay the cost thereof. Any costs will be paid by the Contractor. 

REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts and certificate(s) 
of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its attachment, the following required 
provisions: 

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected representatives as additional 
insureds, (as the interest of each insured may appear) as to all applicable coverage; 

b. Provide for 30 days notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material change; 

c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail; 

d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Lubbock, its officers, employees, 
and elected representatives for injuries, including death, property damage, or any other loss to the 
extent same may be covered by the proceeds of insurance; 

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and standard of care together 
with the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by contractual liability coverage 
sufficient to include such obligations within applicable policies. 

NOTICES 

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such notices not less 
than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement CERTIFICATE OF 
INSURANCE. 

All notices shall be given to the City at the following address: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 
City of Lubbock 
1314Avenue K, 9th Floor 
Lubbock, Texas 79401 

Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by the Contractor shall not 
relieve the Contractor of full responsibility or liability for damages and accidents as set forth in the contract 
documents. Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial of liability by the insurance company exonerate 
the Contractor from liability. 



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

dredgeSMART contract 17433 89,400$                      

Gorman Outdoor Contract 17397 631,920

Newspaper Advertising 548

Agenda Item March 26, 2024

PondMedics Contract 17844 719,181                      

  Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,441,049                   

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Engineering and Design 458,951                      

  Remaining Appropriation 458,951                      

Total Appropriation 1,900,000$                 

Cattail Removal/Dredging- ARPA

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

March 26, 2024

92764



Project Scope

Complete removal of the 1,355,780 sq. ft .  of cattai l  growth from the Canyon Lake System. Contractor wil l  
ut i l ize any method of removal (physical, chemical, or a combination of different strategies) considered 
necessary to perform the outl ined job without harming the current landscape and fauna of the Canyon Lake 
System. Contractor must discuss with the cl ient any reasonably foreseeable consequences for actions taken 
in the removal process. The growth areas are specif ied on the table below and the fol lowing aerial views of 
the Canyon Lake System.

Project Justification

Cattail growth has taken over a significant portion of the Canyon Lake System and has become a 
detriment to the experience of users of the city lakes and parks. Spreading for 1.3 million square feet 
of park land, cattail species extend across 12 public areas – Aztlan Corridor, Aztlan Park, Buddy Holly 
Recreation Area, Carrillo Family Recreation Area, Comancheria Lake, Dunbar Historical Lake, Fiesta 
Plaza, Llano Estacado, Mackenzie Park (North), Mackenzie Park (South), Mae Simmons Park, and 
Vaquero Lake. The American Rescue Plan Act provided funds allocated by the city for removal of the 
cattail zones. 

Project Highlights  Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
This project will address Council Priorities, Public 
Health and Community Improvement as it will 
allow for full use of the Canyon Lake System 
allowing Lubbock citizens and visitors to kayak, 
fish, stand-up paddle board, etc. This will improve 
the surrounding parks in general as the cattails 
have clearly taken over.

FY 2021-22 $1,900,000 was appropriated by
Budget Amendment No. 24, Ord. 2022-O0071

Project Dates Project Location

Start Date: May 10, 2022

Bid Date: TBD

Bid Award Date: TBD

Project Start Date: TBD

Projected Project End Date: TBD

City-Wide

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

CIP 92764 ARPA Parks - CattailCIP 92764 ARPA Parks - Cattail  
Removal/DredgingRemoval/Dredging  

Upgrade/Major MaintenanceUpgrade/Major Maintenance

Project Manager: Kalee Robinson - Park DevelopmentProject Manager: Kalee Robinson - Park Development



Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $1,900,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,900,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

ARPA Funding $1,900,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,900,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 24-17844-TF  

Cattail Treatment of the Jim Bertram Canyon Lakes System 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on January 28 & February 4, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from January 28 to February 22, 2024. 

5 individuals attended the pre-proposal meeting. 

23 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

33 vendors were notified separately.  

1 vendor submitted a proposal. 

 



 AI# 12387 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 46. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
17817 with Green Plains Design, for turf management and mowing of Group 5 & 10 - Class C Parks and
Properties.

Item Summary
An Invitation to Bid (ITB) was issued for mowing of various City Parks and Properties. 

In response to ITB 24-17817-YB, seven (7) companies submitted the following bids for Group 5 & 10 -
Class C Parks and Properties.
  

Contractor Amount
Green Plains Design, White Deer, Texas $303,880.00
Gorman Outdoor, Inc, Shallowater, Texas $432,120.00
Turf Raider Lawn & Landscape, Lubbock, Texas $527,743.36
Fando Landscaping, Flower Mound, Texas $550,752.00
Mission Landscape and Maintenance, Lubbock, Texas $1,072,320.00
Sanford Federal, Inc., Stafford, Virginia $7,782,400.00
West Texas Mowing, LLC, Plainview, Texas Incomplete Bid

Staff recommends that Contract 17817 be awarded to the lowest bidder, Green Plains Design of White
Deer, Texas, for $303,880.00. This contract is a one-year contract with the option of 4, one-year
renewals.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 17817 for $303,880.00, is funded in the Custodial Services for Mowing and Maintenance
Contracts Account, in the Approved Parks Maintenance Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 17817 - Green Plains Design, LLC 
Contract 17817 - Green Plains Design, LLC 
Project Summary - Mowing Parks - Group 5 and 10 







Contract 17817 
City of Lubbock 

Contract for 
Mowing for Group 5 & 10 Class C 

Park Properties 

 

 
THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this   day of    , 2024, by and between the 
City of Lubbock ("City"), and    Green Plains Design LLC     , ("Contractor"). 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock duly advertised for bids for Mowing for Group 5 & 10 Class 
C Park Properties and bids were received and duly opened as required by law; and 

 WHEREAS, after careful consideration of the bid submitted by Contractor, the City authorized 
the execution, in the name of the City of Lubbock a contract with said Contractor covering the purchase 
and delivery of the said Mowing for Group 5 & 10 Class C Park Properties 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement contained herein, as well as the 
financial consideration hereinafter referred to, the parties hereby covenant and agree as follows: 

1. In accordance with City’s specifications and Contractor’s bid, copies of which are attached 
hereto and made part hereof, Contractor will deliver to the City, Mowing for Group 5 & 10 
Class C Park Properties, and more specifically referred to as Items 1-1 through 2-7 on the bid 
submitted by the Contractor or in the specifications attached hereto. 

2. The City promises and agrees to employ, and does employ, the Contractor to cause to be done 
the work provided for in this Contract and to complete and finish the same according to the 
attached specifications, offer, and terms and conditions contained herein. 

3. The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of four (4), one (1) year 
extensions, said date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew 
automatically for the additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to 
terminate the Contract. 
  

4. All stated annual quantities are approximations of usage during the time period to be covered by 
pricing established by this bid.  Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be 
determined by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of 
compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and resulting 
contract.  

5. The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this contract 
including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that valid insurance 
is on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management Department as required by contract or 
contract may be terminated for non-compliance.  

6. A) Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. The rate 
may be adjusted at the City’s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price Index (CPI) 
or Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate. 
 
 



B) Further, if the Contractor can provide documentation for actual charges for material, labor, 
etc. that demonstrates that the change in CPI or PPI is not sufficient, the Contractor shall provide 
such documentation to the City, and at the City’s sole discretion, the contractual rate may be 
further adjusted. If agreement regarding a new rate cannot be reached, the City shall terminate 
at the end of the current contract period. 

 
C) If an adjustment to pricing is granted under this section, the Contractor must provide the 
Director of Purchasing and Contract Management written, quarterly documentation to justify the 
ongoing adjustment.  If no such documentation is timely received, the rate will automatically 
revert to the initial, awarded rate. 
 

7. This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration date, 
(2) performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day written 
notice. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the next lowest 
and best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city. 

8. Contractor shall at all times be an independent contractor and not an agent or representative of 
City with regard to performance of the Services.  Contractor shall not represent that it is, or hold 
itself out as, an agent or representative of City.  In no event shall Contractor be authorized to 
enter into any agreement or undertaking for or on behalf of City. 

9. Insurance Requirements 

SECTION A.  Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a completed 
Insurance Certificate to the City, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to bind the named 
underwriter(s) to the coverages, limits, and termination provisions shown thereon, and which shall 
furnish and contain all required information referenced or indicated thereon.  THE CITY SHALL HAVE 
NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH CERTIFICATE 
SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY. 
SECTION B.  The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section during 
the effective period of the contract and to require adjustment of insurance coverages and their limits 
when deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes in statutory law, court decisions, 
or the claims history of the industry as well as the Contractor. 
SECTION C.  Subject to the Contractor's right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts as 
are approved by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect for the duration 
of this contract, and any extension hereof, at Contractor's sole expense, insurance coverage written by 
companies approved by the State of Texas and acceptable to the City, in the following type(s) and 
amount(s): 
 
Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence / $2M aggregate (can be combined 
with an Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required in ALL contracts. It is perhaps the 
most important of all insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures the Contractor has 
broad liability coverage for contractual activities and for completed operations.  Commercial General 
Liability to include Products – Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising Injury, Contractual Liability, 
Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses (any one person). 
 
Automobile Liability Requirements: $1M/occurrence is needed. 
 
Workers Compensation and Employer Liability Requirements: Statutory. If the vendor is an 
independent contractor with no employees and are exempt from providing Workers' Compensation 
coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's 
license. Employer Liability ($1M) is required with Workers Compensation. 



 
*  The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional 
insured status on a primary and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional 
liabilities and workers' comp. 
 
* Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC. 
 
* To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. 
 
* Carrier will provide a 30-day written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-payment. 
 
* Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better. 
 
* Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 
 

IMPORTANT:  POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

The Contractor will provide copies of the policies without expense, to the City and all endorsements 
thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification of particular policy 
terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions are established by law or 
regulation binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter of any of such policies).  Upon 
such request by the City, the Contractor shall exercise reasonable efforts to accomplish such changes in 
policy coverages, and shall pay the cost thereof. Any costs will be paid by the Contractor.  

REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts and 
certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its attachment, the 
following required provisions: 

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected representatives as additional 
insureds, (as the interest of each insured may appear) as to all applicable coverage; 

b. Provide for 30 days notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material change; 
c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail; 
d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Lubbock, its officers, employees, 

and elected representatives for injuries, including death, property damage, or any other loss to 
the extent same may be covered by the proceeds of insurance; 

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and standard of care 
together with the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by contractual liability 
coverage sufficient to include such obligations within applicable policies. 

NOTICES 

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such notices 
not less than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement 
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 
All notices shall be given to the City at the following address: 
    Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 
    City of Lubbock 
    1314 Avenue K, 9th Floor  
    Lubbock, Texas  79401 



SECTION D.  Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by 
the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility or liability for damages and accidents 
as set forth in the contract documents.  Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial of liability by 
the insurance company exonerate the Contractor from liability. 

10. Neither the City nor the Contractor shall assign, transfer or encumber any rights, duties or 
interests accruing from this Contract without the written consent of the other. 

11. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 
otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 
competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to 
exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are 
cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict 
between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, this provision shall 
control. 

12. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit 
representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves 
the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City 
under this Contract.  In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments 
by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within 30 
days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts 
owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

13. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an annual 
appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of non-appropriation of funds by the City 
Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City 
will terminate the contract, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the 
then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the goods 
or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any time funds 
are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the 
Seller on 30 days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the 
City shall not be obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

14. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without 
written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management.  Should consent be 
given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof on insurance from the 
Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements. 

15. Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 
understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive 
material contained herein and any additional associated documents and Amendments. The City 
disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by 
the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and conditions and any terms and 
conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall prevail. 
The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any 
prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

16. The Contractor (i) does not engage in business with Iran, Sudan or any foreign terrorist 
organization and (ii) it is not listed by the Texas Comptroller under Section 2252.153, Texas 
Government Code, as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services 



to a foreign terrorist organization. As used in the immediately preceding sentence, “foreign 
terrorist organization” shall have the meaning given such term in Section 2252.151, Texas 
Government Code. 

17. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, may apply to this 

contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the 

contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that 

subchapter. 
To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor 
agrees to:  (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contact as provided by the 
records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the 
contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental body any contracting information related to 
the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity on request of the governmental 
body; and (3) on completion of the contract, either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental 
body all contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession of the 
entity; or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract as provided by the 
records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 

18. Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This section applies only to a 
contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more full-time 
employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from 
public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract 
with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the 
company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the 
contract. 
 

19. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the 
duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 
a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 
of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 
If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 
value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 
Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 
a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not discriminate during the term of the 
contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 
Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 
contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the 
Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 
If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 
value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 
Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies 
during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a 
governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental 
entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of 
debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 
 



20. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City's 
business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without 
prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 
 
 

21. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the city of Lubbock and its elected officials, 
officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, claims, or liability of 
any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for injury or death to any 
person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any person or persons or property, to 
the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent acts of the Contractor, its 
agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the performance, operations or omissions 
under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of city owned property. The indemnity 
obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration or termination of this agreement. 
 

22. This Contract consists of the following documents set forth herein; Invitation to Bid No. 24-
17817-YB, Specifications, and the Bid Form. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-----INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK----- 

  





City of Lubbock, TX 

ITB 24-17817-YB 

Mowing for Group 5 & 10 Class C Park Properties  

Specifications 

 

MAINTENANCE STANDARDS 

 

      Class A, B, & C Maintenance Standards 
 

1. General: Successful Contractor shall actively proceed with the work as agreed and stated on 
the notice to proceed. Work shall not start until the notice to proceed is issued by the 
Purchasing and Contract Management department. The decision to end or suspend 
temporarily the maintenance season shall be made by the Owner's Representative Agent. The 
Contractor shall be notified of the Owner's decision by letter. 

 
a.  The areas to be serviced for each site include all right of ways adjoining the site and 

to the centerline of all alleys adjoining the site, and extending street-ward including 
the curb and ending six (6) inches beyond lip of gutter. Contractor is responsible for 
safe and careful operation of mowing equipment around plant material and structures 
to prevent damage and to prevent clippings from contaminating shrub or color beds, 
hard surfaces, streets, playgrounds and handicap ramps. If conditions are not 
conducive to blowing, sweeping and picking up of maintenance debris shall be 
required for these areas. Blowing of grass clippings or debris out to the street is 
prohibited. 

b. Contractor shall provide a maintenance schedule to the Parks Department within 
seven days from Notice to Proceed and will notify Owner no later than 2:00 pm on 
the day before any revised mowing schedule changes presentative or Agent(s) of 
any changes in the schedule prior to the schedule change. 

 
2. Mowing: Mowing commencement and conclusion shall be at the discretion of the 

Owner's Representative or Agent(s). Mowing frequency and height shall be 2 1/2" to 3" 
and occur up to once per calendar week, or every seven (7) calendar days, evenly spaced 
between Cycles. All hard surfaces, play areas, sidewalks and streets shall be cleared of 
all clippings after each service. 

 
3. Equipment: All equipment must be of appropriate size for each site and approved by 

the Owner's Representative or Agent(s). All clippings windrows or clumps will be bagged 
and removed. All required unit work which includes mowing, edging,  trim mowing, 
string trimming, sweeping, and clippings removal shall be 100% complete before 
commencing to another mowing site. If not completed, a Call Back will be initiated. 
Alternate mowing patterns are required every cycle to avoid turf damage. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



a. TENTATIVE MOWING FREQUENCIES: 
 

January 0 July 4 
February 0 August 5 
March 1 September 4 
April 4 October 4 
May 4 November 2 
June 4 December 0 

 
4. Edging: All sidewalks and curbs shall be edged to a depth of one inch and shall be 

performed concurrently with mowing operations. String trimmers or curb dressers may 
not be used for edging. 

 

a. Street curb and drainage channel edging shall be accomplished concurrently with 
mowing operations and all debris from this activity shall be removed the same day 
that the task is performed. 

 
5. Trimming: All string trimming must be done to achieve a height uniform with the 

mowing height. Maintenance of drains and exposed playa lake shorelines due to 
evaporation or receding of the lake and mowable areas that retain water shall be the 
Contractor's responsibility. Trimming must be performed around trees, plant beds, 
buildings, playground equipment, signs, fences, and any other plants or structures. All 
play surfaces, hard surfaces, sidewalks, streets, street medians, parking areas, parking 
lots and drainage channels must be kept free of grass, weeds and debris. This task must 
be completed the same day the mowing is performed. Optional spraying of six (6) inches 
away from the tree(s) main trunk is also permitted to eliminate tree bark damage. Four 
(4) to six (6) inch wide. Optional chemical edging only on chain link fence lines with 
Turf on either side of the fence is permitted on Class A, B, and C Parks. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GROUP  5        Class C 

NAME ADDRESS ACREAGE 

CARILLO PARK/ CANYON 
RIM REC AREA 

BATES 
&AVE K 

4.8 

GUADALUPE Entrance 1st  &AVE. 
J 

0.2 

GUADALUPE Park N. AVE. P & 2ND 3.2 
Guadalupe Strip N. AVE. P & 2ND 3.4 
MACKENZIE S+N / 
MACKENZIE CORRIDOR 

301 1-27 97.5 

N. AVE. Q STRIP N.AVE. Q 
DR. 

0.1 

PALLOTINE N. AVE. L & 1ST 1.3 
WOODS ERSKINE & 

ZENITH 
          8 

GROUP   10  Class  C 

NAME ADDRESS ACREAGE 

DUPREE 58TH & 
TOLEDO 

25.3 

GUY 87TH & 
MEMPHIS 

17 

HIGINBOTHAM 19TH & 
VICKSBUR

G 

16.5 

JENNINGS 73RD & 
WAYNE 

29 

LONG 56TH & 
ABERDEEN 

10 

MAHON 29TH & 
CHICAGO 

13.6 

STEVENS 75TH & 
SLIDE 

13.6 

 







































City of Lubbock
ITB 24-17817-YB

Mowing for Group 5 and 10 Class C 
Park Properties

Bid Form

Location

Total

#

Items

Approx.
Maintenance

/Mowable
Acreage

(+/-)
(A)

Cycle
Approx.

Per
Year
(+/-)
(B)

Maintenance
Cycle
Unit
Cost
(C)

Extended
Cost

=
(B
X
C)

1
#1-1 Carillo Park/Canyon Rim Rec. Area - Per Specifications 4.8 32 $374.50 $11,984.00 

#1-2 Guadalupe Entrance - Per Specifications 0.25 32 $160.50 $5,136.00 
#1-3 Guadalupe Park - Per Specifications 3.2 32 $321.00 $10,272.00 
#1-4 Guadalupe Strip - Per Specifications 3.4 32 $321.00 $10,272.00 
#1-5 Mackenzie S+N/Mackenzie Corridor - Per 

Specifications
97.5 32 $2,889.00 $92,448.00 

#1-6 N. Ave Q Strip - Per Specifications 0.1 32 $160.50 $5,136.00 
#1-7 Pallotine - Per Specifications 1.3 32  $ 187.25 $5,992.00 
#1-8 Woods - Per Specifications 8 32 $481.50 $15,408.00 
2
#2-1 Dupree - Per Specifications 25.3 32          909.50  $      29,104.00 
#2-2 Guy - Per Specifications 17 32  $ 615.25  $      19,688.00 
#2-3 Higinbotham - Per Specifications 16.5 32          588.50  $      18,832.00 
#2-4 Jennings - Per Specifications 29 32  $ 989.75  $      31,672.00 
#2-5 Long - Per Specifications 10 32          481.50  $      15,408.00 
#2-6 Mahon - Per Specifications 13.8 32  $ 508.25  $      16,264.00 
#2-7 Stevens - Per Specifications 13.6 32  $ 508.25  $      16,264.00 

White Deer, TX

Green Plains Design LLC

$303,880.00

Group 5 - Class C Park Properties

Group 10 - Class C Park Properties



2/22/241





 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
ITB 24-17817-YB  

Mowing for Group 5 & 10 Class C 

Park Properties 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on February 18 & February 25, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from February 16 to March 5, 2024. 

3 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 

38 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

20 vendors were notified separately.  

7 vendors submitted bids. 

 



 AI# 12373 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 47. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Memorandum of
Understanding between the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) and the City
of Lubbock, on behalf of the Lubbock Police Department, as it relates to the Lubbock Regional ATF
Task Force.

Item Summary
The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to investigate firearms trafficking,
investigate firearms related violent crime, gather and report intelligence data relating to trafficking in
firearms, conduct undercover operations where appropriate, and engage in other traditional methods
of investigation, in order for the Task Force’s activities to result in effective prosecution before the
courts of the United States and the State of Texas.
 
In accordance with the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) Order 3020.4,
dated June 2, 2022, and incorporated herein, Body-Worn Cameras (BWCs) may be worn by Task Force
Officers (TFOs) operating on a Federal Task Force when their parent agency mandates their use by
personnel assigned to the task force.  In such cases, the TFOs and parent agency must comply with all
Department of Justice (DOJ) and ATF policies, and the required procedures, documentation, and
reporting, while participating in the Task Force.  Additionally, TFOs must comply with the Task Force
Officers Body-Worn Cameras Memorandum of Understanding Addendum, included and incorporated
herein as Appendix A.

Fiscal Impact
LPD will remain responsible for the salary and benefits including overtime of the officers assigned to
ATF as TFOs.  ATF will, subject to available funds, reimburse the Lubbock Police Department (LPD)
for overtime payments made to its officers assigned as TFOs, up to $20,707.50.

Staff/Board Recommending
Gregory W. Rushin, Interim Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution -MOU with ATF 
MOU with ATF 
Addendum Appendix A with ATF 

























 AI# 12397 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 48. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - City Secretary: Consider an ordinance declaring the unopposed candidate in
the May 4, 2024, Special Election to fill a vacancy in City Council District No. 3, to be elected to office
and canceling said Special Election, providing a savings clause, and providing an effective date.

Item Summary
Pursuant to the Texas Election Code, the City Secretary has certified the office of City Council Member,
District 3, as unopposed for the May 4, 2024 Special City Election.  Upon receipt of said certification,
the governing body will act upon the certification by the City Secretary. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

Attachments
Ordinance - Cancellation of District 3 Special Election 









 AI# 12376 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 49. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - City Manager: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0036, amending Chapter 18,
"Taxation", of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, Texas by adding Article 18.05 to provide
for an exemption from property taxation for qualifying child-care facilities in accordance with Section
11.36 of the Texas Tax Code.

Item Summary
On March 5, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

During the 88th Texas Legislative Session, Senate Bill (SB) 1145 passed by the Senate with a vote of 25
Yeas and 6 Nays, and subsequently the House, with a vote of 109 Yeas and 33 Nays. Specifically from
Lubbock's local delegation, one Senator and one Representative were in favor, while one Representative
was opposed. The bill was signed into law to be effective January 1, 2024, subject to the favorable
passage of a constitutional amendment by Texas voters in November 2023. The constitutional
amendment proposition passed statewide by a margin of 65 percent in favor and 35 percent opposed, and
by a margin of 67 percent in favor and 33 percent opposed in Lubbock County.

SB 1145 amends the Tax Code to entitle a property owner from municipal taxation of all or part of the
appraised value of the real property the person owns and operates as a qualifying child-care facility or
the portion of the real property that the person owns and leases to a person who uses the property to
operate a qualifying child-care facility. This property tax exemption is qualified and allowable only if the
City Council takes official action to adopt the exemption.

SB 1145 defines "child-care facility" and "qualifying child-care facility" as follows: 
"Child-care facility" as a facility licensed by the Health and Human Services Commission to
provide assessment, care, training, education, custody, treatment, or supervision for a child who is
not related by blood, marriage, or adoption to the owner or operator of the facility, for all or part of
the 24-hour day, whether or not the facility is operated for profit or charges for the services it
offers; and
"Qualifying child-care facility" as a child-care facility: 

the owner or operator of which participates in the Texas Workforce Commission's (TWC)
Texas Rising Star Program for that facility; and
at which at least 20 percent of the total number of children enrolled at the facility receive
subsidized child-care services provided through the child-care services program administered
by TWC.

To qualify for the exemption, the property would have to be used exclusively to provide developmental
and educational services for children attending the child-care facility and be reasonably necessary for the
operation of the child-care facility. Property that was used for functions other than those established by
the bill would not result in the loss of an exemption if such functions were incidental to providing
developmental and educational services to children and would benefit the children or the faculty and staff
of the child-care facility. The exemption would apply only to the value of the portion of the property



that was used for these purposes.

A person claiming an exemption would have to include with the person’s application an affidavit
certifying to the chief appraiser that the person had disclosed to the child-care facility the amount by
which taxes were reduced and the method and amount by which rent was reduced reflecting the
reduction. The affidavit also would be required to certify that the person did not charge rent for the lease
in an amount that exceeded that which was charged to other tenants for similar space or the average rent
for a comparable property.

The bill would prohibit a person from claiming the exemption if the person received a homestead
exemption on that property or if any part of that property was leased to another person for use as
a principal residence. The bill would not subject exempted property with a leasehold interest to certain
statutory requirements for leaseholds and other possessory interests.

The bill authorizes the Lubbock City Council to adopt the exemption as a percentage, which may not be
less than 50 percent of the property's appraised value and can be up to 100 percent. To qualify for the
exemption, the property must be reasonably necessary for the operation of the child-care facility and
used exclusively to provide developmental and educational services for children attending the child-care
facility, unless the use is for another function that is incidental to the use of the property for providing
those services to those children and benefits those children or the facility's staff and faculty. The bill
establishes that property is not ineligible for the exemption if a portion of the property is used for
functions other than those described by the bill; however, the exemption does not apply to the value of
the portion of the property that is used for those other functions.

The action underneath this item is both to consider the ordinance, and if Council wants to adopt this
property tax exemption for qualifying child-care facilities, Council will need to specify the amount of
the exemption, which will be no less than 50 percent and up to 100 percent.

Fiscal Impact
The current estimated 2023 tax year value of all child-care facilities in the City of Lubbock is
$25,000,000. If an exemption is adopted by the City Council, the fiscal impact to the City of Lubbock at
the minimum 50% exemption would be a loss of $57,042 to the General Fund. At the maximum 100%
exemption, the loss to the General Fund is $114,084.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Ordinance - Child Care Prop Tax Exemption 









 AI# 12409 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 50. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution ratifying the acts of the City Manager in executing
an application for the Texas State and Local Cybersecurity Grant Program.

Item Summary
Cybersecurity is one of the most serious threats faced by municipalities across the country. Through the
Federal Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL), Texas has allocated over $20 million in Fiscal Year 2023,
for local governments to fund eligible cybersecurity projects. The City of Lubbock seeks grant funding
from the Texas State and Local Cybersecurity Grant Program (SLCGP)
for project Darktrace Cybersecurity Assessment and Evaluation. The Darktrace Software will assist in
analyzing and identifying anomalies and threats to the network system.   

Fiscal Impact
The total project cost in the grant application is $120,000, with $94,000 requested from the State of
Texas in grant funding, and $24,000 in required matching funds from the City of Lubbock. The
matching funds consist of $20,000 in-kind personnel costs and $4,000 cash. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - Authorization Letter 
SLCGP CM Application Approval Letter 
Application - SLCGP 









���������������	
 ��
�������	
�����������
���
��������� !��"#!���$%&��	����'''(

)��*�����+
����,+�-,��.��,+�-��**�*
�������
���	
/���01������
�,��*.2	
/��"�3�456+)4���5��"7��8�99�:;�:5��:����99�<9����;:�<<�����=6	
> ����

	
/���$)/��	�+�����?@ABCD�EFGAH�IJKL�MN�OPQQMRS�TUFBVW?XXH�YZ[[\][��̂VFUV�_FVAH�̀a[aZ]Z\��bBc�_FVAH�dae[aZ]ZY��fUghACV�ijVkAH�lmnS�onmRp�ILQpn�qpRPnJKL�rsspsstpuK�muv�wxmyPmKJMu�V̂FVz{H�r||yJRmKJMu�}puvJu~�qPQtJssJMu�bkj@j�jkjVD��B�gUGFVjgB����������������������������������������������������������� �����¡��¢�£������¤¢�����¢����¥����¦��§̈©ª«©¬�­®̄°±�±²�²³�²̄³°̄� �́µ�¶·̄ ©̧¹©ººª�»©¹¹fUg�jkA��B�gUGFVjgB¡��¢�£����¡���£��������§¼«·�­½�¾¿¹¹­ºÀ���Á�£�����¢���Âª̈À�Ã̈ªº©�§·¹©̈�Ä©º¿̈¼«·�ÅÆÆ©ÆÆÇ©®«�ª®¬�ÈÉªÊ¿ª«¼­®��Ë���������Ì�������¡Í����������Î�����Á�£���Ï®½­̈Çª«¼­®�Ã©ºÐ®­Ê­Ñ·¡ÍÍ�����Ò����Ó���°�³�ÅÉ©�Ô¡ÍÍ�����Ò����Õ�¥����Ö�����×����¾¿¹¹­ºÀ�Ã©ØªÆ�� ³��Ù³����Ö����������� ±�±²�²³¤�Í�������Ú±°�±²�²�Û������¢�¥���£�¢��¦�Ü�Ë�������Ý¥ÞÜß�à��Î����Î�����Á�£��������£��¡�����Ä­¿«Ð�́Êª¼®Æ�ÅÆÆ­º¼ª«¼­®�­½�á­É©̈®Ç©®«Æâ��Íã�������¥�������¾¿¹¹­ºÀ¥��������à��Î������Á�£��������£��¡�����¾¿¹¹­ºÀÜ�����Þ¦¦�£��¢��¡��Î�����Í�Þ¦¦�£��¢������»ä�åª̈ ©̈««�Å«À¼®Æ­®¤���¢��æª«À¼®Æ­®çÇ·Ê¿¹¹­ºÀä¿Æ¡ÍÍ�����Ó��́äèä�¶­Ø�²���¡ÍÍ�����Ó�¥�����¾¿¹¹­ºÀé�Ã©ØªÆ�� ³���Î�����Ú��Ù���Ù²����è«Ð©̈�́Ð­®©̄ê����Ú��Ù���Ù° ²³���¢���µ̈äÖ�¢���������µ̈ä����������§¼«·�µª®ªÑ©̈ê����£��¢�Þ¦¦�£��¢������èÊÊ¼©�§­̈«©ë¤���¢��­º­̈«©ëçÇ·Ê¿¹¹­ºÀä¿Æ¡ÍÍ�����Ó���°�³�ªÉ©�Ô¡ÍÍ�����Ó�¥�����¾¿¹¹­ºÀé�Ã©ØªÆ�� ³���Î�����Ú��Ù���Ù²�Ú°�è«Ð©̈�́Ð­®©̄�Ú��Ù³�³Ù°�³Úê����Ú��Ù���Ù°²�°���¢���µ̈äÖ�¢���������µ̈ä����������Ô̈­®­Æ�ª®¬�á̈ª®«Æ�µª®ªÑ©̈���Á�£������£���������§Ð̈¼Æ�ì©ÊÆ­®¤���¢��ºí®©ÊÆ­®çÇ·Ê¿¹¹­ºÀä¿Æ¡ÍÍ�����Ó���°�³�ÅÉ©®¿©�Ô¡ÍÍ�����Ó�¥�����¾¿¹¹­ºÀé�Ã©ØªÆ�� ³���Î�����Ú��Ù���Ù²° ��è«Ð©̈�́Ð­®©̄ê������¢���µ̈äÖ�¢���������ÙÙÙ�Ä©Ê©º«�è®©�ÙÙÙ����������Ä©®¼­̈�Ï®½­̈Çª«¼­®�Ä©º¿̈¼«·�Å®ªÊ·Æ«



���������������	
 ��
�������	
�����������
���
��������� !��"#!���$%&��	����'''(

)��*�����+
����,+�-,��.��,+�-��**�*
�������
���	
/���01������
�,��*.2	
/��"�3�456+)4���5��"7��8�99�:;�:5��:����99�<9����;:�<<�����=6	
> ����

?@ABC�D@ECF@GAHFI�JKLKMMN�OKLLPHAEQI�RSKLLTUVWXLLYMZ[X\]̂ @̂F__�̀I�abac�deK�f]̂ @̂F__�̀IgEChI�iXLLYMZj�kKlN\�mncoapqrBFI�sotummvuwcwn�xyzKR�{zY|K}�wacunstuvcbt~A�I�ECQFI��\[�AQ�CACErBI��\[pr_ECErBI��RN|y�OR�yKR�������������������������@�ABE�ACErB��h�FI��|�y�Y��iYMNW��YeKR|UK|y����yVj�kYS|j�YR���WWN�K��@�ABE�ACErB���CErBI�N��WV�|��yY��RYe��K�\KRe�MK\�yY�NWW�YyzKR\]��QE ABC�]�FB h¡_��CACF�pAhFF�¢̂FBCE£E ACErB�G�H¤F@�¥F¦�¦§�~F̂ F@AQ�PH�QrhF@¡_�¢̂FBCE£E ACErB�¥~P¢̈�G�H¤F@�r@©FB̂ r@�¢ª̈ I�amvtooovnotooo«BE¬�F�PBCECh�¢̂FBCE£EF@�¥«P¢̈I�i­®̄ °fOJ�f±t²������³�������������� F́@́EFµxXR�|Ny�Y|��NMK\�X|�RKMK�K|yK��MVLKR\KMXR�yV�R�\Z\j��|MWX��|���|MRKN\�|�WV�\Y�z�\y�MNyK��N�eKR\NR�K\jS��K\�RKN��eXW|KRNL�W�y�K\��|�MYUUY|WV�X\K��zNR�SNRK�N|��\Y�ySNRKj�N|��LRYN���K�K|�K|M�K\�Y|�|KySYRZK�yKMz|YWY��K\��YR�yzK��NVuyYu�NV�Y�KRNy�Y|�Y��MR�y�MNW��|�RN\yRXMyXRK[��VLKR�R�\Z�UN|N�KUK|y��\��XRyzKRMYU�W�MNyK��LV�yzK�NL�W�yV�Y��UNW�M�YX\�NMyYR\�yY�Y�KRNyK�RKUYyKWVj�W�|ZN�K\�LKySKK|�MVLKR�N|���zV\�MNW\V\yKU\j�N|��yzK������MXWyV�Y��RK�XM�|��eXW|KRNL�W�y�K\[kz�\��RY�RNU�S�WW�\X��YRy�K��YRy\�yY�N��RK\\��UU�|K|y�MVLKR\KMXR�yV�yzRKNy\�yY�\yNyK�N|��WYMNW��|�YRUNy�Y|\V\yKU\�LV��RYe���|���X|��|��yY��U�WKUK|y��|eK\yUK|y\�yzNy�\X��YRy�WYMNW��YeKR|UK|y\�S�yz�UN|N��|��N|�RK�XM�|��\V\yKU�M�MVLKR�R�\Z�N\\YM�NyK��S�yz�yzK�YL¶KMy�eK\�W�\yK��LKWYS}�¤·F CÉF�̀�̧�?ŕ F@BAB F�AB̂ �pQABBEB�I�®KeKWY��N|��K\yNLW�\z�N��RY�R�NyK��YeKR|N|MK�\yRXMyXRK\j�|MWX��|���KeKWY��|�j��U�WKUK|y�|�j�YR�RKe�\�|��MVLKR\KMXR�yV��WN|\j�yY��U�RYeK�MN�NL�W�y�K\�yY�RK\�Y|��yYMVLKR\KMXR�yV��|M��K|y\�N|��K|\XRK�MY|y�|X�yV�Y��Y�KRNy�Y|\[�¤·F CÉF�¹�º�]__F__HFBC�AB̂ �Ṕ AQ�ACErBI��|�KR\yN|��yzK�MXRRK|y�MVLKR\KMXR�yV��Y\yXRK�N|��NRKN\��YR�U�RYeKUK|y�LN\K��Y|�MY|y�|XYX\�yK\y�|�j�KeNWXNy�Y|j�N|��\yRXMyXRK��N\\K\\UK|y\[�¤·F CÉF�»�̧�¼ECE�ACErBI�½U�WKUK|y�\KMXR�yV��RYyKMy�Y|\�MYUUK|\XRNyK�S�yz�R�\Z[�¤·F CÉF�¾�º�Dr@¿£r@ F�ªF́ FQr�HFBCI�°|\XRK�YR�N|�ÀNy�Y|��KR\Y||KW�NRK�N��RY�R�NyKWV�yRN�|K���|MVLKR\KMXR�yVj�MYUUK|\XRNyK�S�yz�RK\�Y|\�L�W�yV[PQE�E¤EQECh�ÁF¬�E@FHFBC_



���������������	
 ��
�������	
�����������
���
��������� !��"#!���$%&��	����'''(

)��*�����+
����,+�-,��.��,+�-��**�*
�������
���	
/���01������
�,��*.2	
/��"�3�456+)4���5��"7��8�99�:;�:5��:����99�<9����;:�<<�����=6	
> ����

?@ABCDBEFCGH@�ICJGKGKL�MBNFGCBOBKHPQRST�UVWXY�QZ�[Q\]̂V_]VXY�_UYX�RQ_ T̀a�bWXc�Xc]�dae]̂Y]RÛWXa�f̂SWVWV[�̂]gUŴ]_]VXY�h]YR̂We]h�WV�i]RXWQVjjklmnk�SVh�i]RXWQV�kmoplonqn�QZ�Xc]�f]rSY�sQ\]̂V_]VX�dQh]l�PQRST�[Q\]̂V_]VXY�h]X]̂_WV]h�XQ�VQX�e]�WVRQ_ T̀WSVR]�bWXc�Xc]�Rae]̂Y]RÛWXa�̂]gUŴ]_]VXY�̂]gUŴ]h�ea�i]RXWQV�kmoplonqn�QZ�Xc]�f]rSY�sQ\]̂V_]VX�dQh]Ŝ]�WV]TW[WeT]�ZQ̂�tts�[̂SVX�ZUVhY�UVXWT�Xc]�Y]RQVh�SVVW\]̂YŜa�QZ�Xc]�hSX]�Xc]�TQRST�[Q\]̂V_]VX�WY�h]X]̂_WV]hWV]TW[WeT]l�sQ\]̂V_]VX�]VXWXW]Y�_UYX�SVVUSTTa�R]̂XWZa�Xc]Ŵ�RQ_ T̀WSVR]�bWXc�Xc]�X̂SWVWV[�̂]gUŴ]_]VXY�UYWV[�Xc]dae]̂Y]RÛWXa�f̂SWVWV[�d]̂XWZWRSXWQV�ZQ̂�iXSX]�SVh�PQRST�sQ\]̂V_]VXl�u�RQ̀a�QZ�Xc]�f̂SWVWV[�d]̂XWZWRSXWQV�_UYXe]�ÙTQSh]h�XQ�aQÛ�]ŝSVXY�S̀ T̀WRSXWQVl�vQ̂�_Q̂]�WVZQ̂_SXWQV�Q̂�XQ�SRR]YY�S\SWTSeT]�X̂SWVWV[�̀ Q̂[̂S_Yw�\WYWXXc]�f]rSY�x]̀ ŜX_]VX�QZ�yVZQ̂_SXWQV�z]YQÛR]Y�iXSX]bWh]�dae]̂Y]RÛWXa�ubŜ]V]YY�f̂SWVWV[�̀S[]l?CGOGKJ{�|GDH}C@�MB~}CHGKL�VXWXW]Y�̂]R]W\WV[�ZUVhY�ẐQ_��it�_UYX�e]�TQRSX]h�WV�S�RQUVXa�XcSX�cSY�SV�S\]̂S[]�QZ�qm��Q̂�SeQ\]�QV�eQXcShUTX�SVh��U\]VWT]�hWỲQYWXWQVY�]VX]̂]h�WVXQ�Xc]�RQ_ ÙX]̂W�]h�R̂W_WVST�cWYXQ̂a�hSXSeSY]�_SWVXSWV]h�ea�Xc]f]rSY�x]̀ ŜX_]VX�QZ��UeTWR�iSZ]Xa��x�i��SY�hŴ]RX]h�WV�Xc]���������������������������������������������l�fc]hWỲQYWXWQV�RQ_ T̀]X]V]YY�̀]̂R]VXS[]�WY�h]ZWV]h�SY�Xc]�̀]̂R]VXS[]�QZ�Ŝ ]̂YX�RcŜ[]Y�S�RQUVXa�̂]̀ Q̂XY�XQ�x�i�ZQ̂bcWRc�S�hWỲQYWXWQV�cSY�e]]V�YUeY]gU]VXTa�̂]̀ Q̂X]h�SVh�]VX]̂]h�WVXQ�Xc]�RQ_ ÙX]̂W�]h�R̂W_WVST�cWYXQ̂aYaYX]_ldQUVXW]Y�S̀ T̀aWV[�ZQ̂�[̂SVX�SbŜhY�ẐQ_�Xc]�tZZWR]�QZ�Xc]�sQ\]̂VQ̂�_UYX�RQ__WX�XcSX�Xc]�RQUVXa�bWTT�̂]̀ Q̂X�SXT]SYX�qm��QZ�RQV\WRXWQVY�bWXcWV�ZW\]�eUYWV]YY�hSaY�XQ�Xc]�d̂W_WVST��UYXWR]�yVZQ̂_SXWQV�iaYX]_�SX�Xc]x]̀ ŜX_]VX�QZ��UeTWR�iSZ]Xal�KG�}CO�?CGOB�MB~}CHGKL���?M �TW[WeT]�S̀ T̀WRSVXY�Q̀ ]̂SXWV[�S�TSb�]VZQ̂R]_]VX�S[]VRa�_UYX�e]�RÛ ]̂VX�QV�̂]̀ Q̂XWV[�RQ_ T̀]X]�¡dz�hSXS�SVhXc]�f]rSY�Ỳ]RWZWR�̂]̀ Q̂XWV[�_SVhSX]h�ea�pnnlmpk�fsdw�XQ�Xc]�f]rSY�x]̀ ŜX_]VX�QZ��UeTWR�iSZ]Xa��x�i��ZQ̂WVRTUYWQV�WV�Xc]�SVVUST�d̂W_]�WV�f]rSY��dyf��̀UeTWRSXWQVl�fQ�e]�RQVYWh]̂]h�]TW[WeT]�ZQ̂�ZUVhWV[w�S̀ T̀WRSVXY�_UYXcS\]�YUe_WXX]h�S�ZUTT�Xb]T\]�_QVXcY�QZ�SRRÛSX]�hSXS�XQ�x�i�ZQ̂�Xc]�_QYX�̂]R]VX�RST]VhŜ�a]Ŝ�ea�Xc]h]ShTWV]�Y��]YXSeTWYc]h�ea�x�il�xU]�XQ�Xc]�W_ Q̀̂XSVR]�QZ�XW_]Ta�̂]̀ Q̂XWV[w�S̀ T̀WRSVXY�Ŝ]�̂]gUŴ]h�XQ�YUe_WXRQ_ T̀]X]�SVh�SRRÛSX]�¡dz�hSXSw�SY�b]TT�SY�Xc]�f]rSY¢_SVhSX]h�̂]̀ Q̂XWV[w�QV�S�VQ�T]YY�XcSV�_QVXcTa�eSYWYSVh�̂]ỲQVh�̀ Q̂_ X̀Ta�XQ�̂]gU]YXY�ẐQ_�x�i�̂]TSX]h�XQ�Xc]�hSXS�YUe_WXX]hl£KHGHGBD�I¤JH�?}{{BEH�¥B¦FJ{�§DDJF{Ḧ¥B¦�©��BKDB�£ªG«BKEB�}C�¬KªBDHGLJHB̈ ­C}DBEFHB�¥B¦FJ{�§DDJF{H}C�©H¤BC�¥B¦�©��BKDBDyV�SRRQ̂hSVR]�bWXc�f]rSY�sQ\]̂V_]VX�dQh]w�i]RXWQV�pkmlm®pw�SVa�ZSRWTWXa�Q̂�]VXWXa�XcSX�RQTT]RXY�]\Wh]VR]�ZQ̂Y]rUST�SYYSUTX�Q̂�QXc]̂�Y]r�QZZ]VY]Y�Q̂�WV\]YXW[SX]Y�Q̂�̀ Q̂Y]RUX]Y�S�Y]rUST�SYYSUTX�Q̂�QXc]̂�Y]r�QZZ]VY]�ZQ̂bcWRc�]\Wh]VR]�cSY�e]]V�RQTT]RX]hw�_UYX�̀ŜXWRẀSX]�WV�Xc]�YXSX]bWh]�]T]RX̂QVWR�X̂SR̄WV[�YaYX]_�h]\]TQ̀]h�SVhW_ T̀]_]VX]h�ea�Xc]�f]rSY�x]̀ ŜX_]VX�QZ��UeTWR�iSZ]Xal�°WYWX�x�i±Y�i]rUST�uYYSUTX��\Wh]VR]�f̂SR̄WV[��̂Q[̂S_b]eYWX]�ZQ̂�_Q̂]�WVZQ̂_SXWQV�Q̂�XQ�Y]X�Ù�SV�SRRQUVX�XQ�e][WV�̀ŜXWRẀSXWV[l�uhhWXWQVSTTaw�̀]̂�i]RXWQV�pkmlmpk²u�TSb�]VZQ̂R]_]VX�S[]VRa�XcSX�̂]R]W\]Y�]\Wh]VR]�QZ�S�Y]rUST�SYYSUTX�Q̂�QXc]̂�Y]r�QZZ]VY]lllYcSTT�YUe_WX�XcSX]\Wh]VR]�XQ�S�̀UeTWR�SRR̂]hWX]h�R̂W_]�TSeQ̂SXQ̂a�ZQ̂�SVSTaYWY�VQ�TSX]̂�XcSV�Xc]�®mXc�hSa�SZX]̂�Xc]�hSX]�QV�bcWRcXcSX�]\Wh]VR]�bSY�̂]R]W\]hl²�u�TSb�]VZQ̂R]_]VX�S[]VRa�WV�̀QYY]YYWQV�QZ�S�YW[VWZWRSVX�VU_e]̂�QZ�i]rUST�uYYSUTX�\Wh]VR]�³WXY��iu�³��bc]̂]�Xc]�®m¢hSa�bWVhQb�cSY�̀SYY]h�_Sa�e]�RQVYWh]̂]h�VQVRQ_ T̀WSVXw­C}LCJO�MBNFGCBOBKHD



���������������	
 ��
�������	
�����������
���
��������� !��"#!���$%&��	����'''(

)��*�����+
����,+�-,��.��,+�-��**�*
�������
���	
/���01������
�,��*.2	
/��"�3�456+)4���5��"7��8�99�:;�:5��:����99�<9����;:�<<�����=6	
> ����

?@ABCDCE@BCFG�CG�HIJKALKDMACBI�N�OGPA@LBAMDBMAK�QKDMACBI�RSKGDI�THOQRU�LKAVCDKLWXX�YZ[\]̂ _̂�̀aXX�b̂�ẐcdaẐe�]f�g[Z]ahag[]̂�a\�[�Xaia]̂e�\dib̂Z�fj�jẐ �̂_̂Zkaĥ_�bl�mnoWp�qfZ�]r̂ _̂�ẐcdaẐe_̂Zkaĥ_�[\e�i îb̂Z_rag_s�gX̂[_̂�\f]̂�]r[]�g[Z]ahag[]af\�a_�\f]�ẐcdaẐe�jfZ�_dbia__af\�[\e�[ggZfk[X�fj�[YZ[\]�bd]�a_�[�gf_]t[̀ [Ze�ẐcdaẐi \̂]puv�wKJ�REExCD@BCFG�QD@GGCGS�a_�[\�ya\]̂Z\̂]�_h[\\a\Yt[_t[t_̂Zkaĥpz�{ra_�_̂Zkaĥ�[__̂__̂_�]r̂�yr̂[X]rz�fjlfdZ�gdbXahXl�[hĥ__abX̂�̀ b̂�[ggXah[]af\_�bl�hr̂h|a\Y�jfZ�|\f̀ \�kdX\̂Z[baXa]â_�[\e�̀ [̂|�hf\jaYdZ[]af\_pWeea]af\[XXls�mnoW�h[\�Ẑhfii \̂e�̀[l_�]f�̂\r[\ĥ�_̂hdZa]l�a\�[hhfZe[\ĥ�̀a]r�a\ed_]Zl�[\e�Yfk̂Z\i \̂]�b̂_]gZ[h]aĥ_�[\e�_][\e[Ze_p}v�~MxGKA@JCxCBI�QD@GGCGS�̂k[Xd[]̂_�̂�]̂Z\[X�\̂ ]̀fZ|�gẐ_̂\ĥ�bl�̂�̂hd]a\Y�hf\]a\dfd_�_h[\_�fj�gdbXahs_][]ah�n�_�jfZ�[hĥ__abX̂�_̂Zkaĥ_�[\e�kdX\̂Z[baXa]â_p�{ra_�_̂Zkaĥ�gZfkaê_�̀^̂|Xl�kdX\̂Z[baXa]l�ẐgfZ]_�[\e�[etrfh�[X̂Z]_p{f�ẐYa_]̂Z�jfZ�]r̂ _̂�_̂Zkaĥ_s�̂i[aX�kdX\̂Z[baXa]l�a\jf�ha_[per_pYfk�̀a]r�]r̂�_db�̂h]�Xa\̂�y�̂ cd̂_]a\Y�mlb̂Z�lYâ\̂�ô Zkaĥ_���o�m��z�]f�Ŷ]�_][Z]̂ep�n\eah[]̂�a\�]r̂�bfel�fj�lfdZ�̂i[aX�]r[]�lfd�[Ẑ�Ẑcd̂_]a\Y�]ra__̂Zkaĥ�[_�g[Z]�fj�]r̂�o��m�p�qfZ�ifẐ�a\jfZi[]af\s�ka_a]�mnoW�_�mlb̂Z��lYâ\̂�n\jfZi[]af\��[Ŷ�@BCFG�C�K�HIJKA�QKDMACBI��KVCK��Z[\]̂ _̂�̀aXX�b̂�ẐcdaẐe�]f�hfigX̂]̂�]r̂��[]af\̀ aê�mlb̂Z_̂hdZa]l��̂ kâ �̀��mo��s�̂\[bXa\Y�[Ŷ\hâ_�]fb̂\hri[Z|�[\e�i [̂_dẐ�gZfYẐ__�fj�aigZfka\Y�]r̂aZ�hlb̂Z_̂hdZa]l�gf_]dẐp�{r̂�mrâj�n\jfZi[]af\��jjaĥZ�mn��s�mrâj�n\jfZi[]af\�ô hdZa]l��jjaĥZ��mno��s�fZ�̂cdak[X̂\]�jfZ�̂[hr�Ẑhagâ\]�[Ŷ\hl�_rfdXe�hfigX̂]̂�]r̂�mo�p�nj�]r̂ Ẑ�a_�\f�mn��fZ�mno�s�]r̂�if_]�_̂\afZ�hlb̂Z_̂hdZa]l�gZfĵ__af\[X�_rfdXe�hfigX̂]̂�]r̂�[__̂__i \̂]p{r̂��mo��a_�[k[aX[bX̂�[]�\f�hf_]�]f�]r̂�d_̂Z�[\e�][|̂_�[ggZf�ai[]̂Xl��t��rfdZ_�]f�hfigX̂]̂p�qfZ�ifẐa\jfZi[]af\�[bfd]�]r̂��mo�s�ka_a]��r]]g_���̀ `̀ pha_̂hdZa]lpfZY�i_ta_[h�_̂Zkaĥ_�\h_Z�p�K�@L�OGPFA�@BCFG�Q�@ACGS�@G��RG@xILCL��AS@GC�@BCFG�T���OQR�U�XaYabX̂�[ggXah[\]_�[Ẑ�ẐcdaẐe�]f��fa\�]r̂�{̂�[_�n\jfZi[]af\�or[Za\Y�[\e�W\[Xl_a_��ZY[\a�[]af\��{ tnoW����[jẐ �̂i îb̂Z_rag�]f�[�jfZdi�jfZ�̂\]a]â_�a\�{̂�[_�]f�_r[Ẑ�a\jfZi[]af\�ẐY[Zea\Y�hlb̂Z_̂hdZa]l�]rẐ[]_s�b̂_]gZ[h]aĥ_s�[\e�Ẑi êa[]af\�_]Z[]̂Yâ_p�{f�Ẑcd̂_]�i îb̂Z_rags�ka_a]��r]]g_���c[]peaZp]̂�[_pYfk�Ẑcd̂_]tXa_]t[hĥ__pr]iXp�VKA@xx�HKABCPCD@BCFG�[hr�[ggXah[\]�[Ŷ\hl�id_]�ĥZ]ajl�]f�]r̂�_ĝhajah�ẐcdaẐi \̂]_�ê][aX̂e�[bfk̂�[_�̀ X̂X�[_�]f�hfigXl�̀a]r�[XXẐcdaẐi \̂]_�̀a]ra\�]r̂��o��qd\ea\Y�W\\fd\ĥi \̂]s�]r̂�¡¢£¤¥�¦§�¡̈©ª¦«s�]r̂�¡̈©ª¦¥¥�¬§ª¤£¦£§ª«�©ª¤­¥«®§ª«£̄£°£¦£¥«s�[\l�[d]rfZa�a\Y�fZ�[ggXah[bX̂�_][]̂�[\e�ĵêZ[X�_][]d]̂_�[\e�ẐYdX[]af\_�]f�b̂ �̂XaYabX̂�jfZ�]ra_gZfYZ[ip��O�DKABCPI�BF�@xx�FP�B�K�@EExCD@BCFG�DFGBKGB�@G��AK±MCAK�KGBLv?AF²KDB�QM��@AI�³ŹâjXl�_dii[Za�̂�]r̂�gZf�̂h]s�a\hXdea\Y�gZfgf_̂e�[h]aka]â_�[\e�a\]̂\êe�aig[h]p{r̂�ma]l�fj��dbbfh|�_̂ |̂_�]f�_aY\ajah[\]Xl�̂\r[\ĥ�a]_�hlb̂Z_̂hdZa]l�ê ĵ\_̂_�]f�gZf]̂h]�[Y[a\_]�_fgra_]ah[]̂e�hlb̂Z�]rẐ[]_]r[]�][ZŶ]�]r̂�ma]l�_�hZa]ah[X�a\jZ[_]Zdh]dẐp�µa]r�]r̂�Za_a\Y�a\haê\]_�fj�hlb̂Z[]][h|_�f\�id\ahag[X�̂\]a]â_s�a]�a_�aiĝZ[]ak̂�]f[efg]�[ek[\ĥes�WnteZak̂\�hlb̂Z_̂hdZa]l�_fXd]af\_p�µ �̂gZfgf_̂�]r̂�[hcda_a]af\�fj�¶[Z|]Z[ĥ�hlb̂Z_̂hdZa]l�_fj]̀[ẐsX̂k̂Z[Ya\Y�[Z]ajaha[X�a\]̂XXaŶ\ĥ�]f�̂_][bXa_r�[�d_̂�g[]]̂Z\�fj�\̂ ]̀fZ|�Ẑ_fdZĥ_s�]r̂ Ẑbl�̂\[bXa\Y�fdZ�_l_]̂i�]f�ê ]̂h]sẐ_gf\es�[\e�\̂d]Z[Xa�̂�hlb̂Z�]rẐ[]_�a\�Ẑ[X�]ai p̂�{ra_�YZ[\]�gZfgf_[X�Ẑcd̂_]_�jd\ea\Y�fj�·̧ ¹sººº�]f�hfk̂Z�]r̂�gdZhr[_̂saigX̂i \̂][]af\s�[\e�]Z[a\a\Y�hf_]_�[__fha[]̂e�̀a]r�êgXfla\Y�¶[Z|]Z[ĥ�_fj]̀[Ẑ�̀a]ra\�]r̂�ma]l�_�eaYa][X�a\jZ[_]Zdh]dẐp?AFJxK��QB@BK�KGB�³�Zfkaê�[�ê][aX̂e�[hhfd\]�fj�]r̂�a__d̂_s�]rẐ[]_�fZ�r[�[Ze_�]r[]�lfdZ�gZf�̂h]�̀aXX�][ZŶ]p�qfZ�ĵêZ[X��fi X̂[\e�ô hdZa]l�Z[\]_s�a\hXdê�_ĝhajah�ẐĵẐ\ĥ_�]f�]r̂�ẐYaf\[X�fZ�_][]̂�»¼̈¥©¦�©ª¤�½©¾©̈¤�¿¤¥ª¦£À£Á©¦£§ª�©ª¤�­£«Â�Ã««¥««Ä¥ª¦�Å»½¿­ÃÆs[_�[ggXah[bX̂p{r̂�ma]l�fj��dbbfh|�a_�]r̂�Çº]r�if_]�gfgdXfd_�ha]l�a\�]r̂�o][]̂�fj�{̂�[_s�[\e�_̂Zk̂_�[_�[�ĥ\]Z[X�rdb�jfZ�̂hf\fiahsêdh[]af\[Xs�[\e�r̂[X]rh[Ẑ�_̂Zkaĥ_�a\�]r̂�µ _̂]�{̂�[_�ẐYaf\p�È[\l�_dZZfd\ea\Y�ZdZ[X�hfiid\a]â_�ẐXl�f\�]r̂�ma]l�_id\ahag[X�a\jZ[_]Zdh]dẐ�jfZ�hZa]ah[X�_̂Zkaĥ_�_dhr�[_�̀[]̂Zs�gf̀ Ẑs�[\e�_fXae�̀[_]̂�ea_gf_[Xp�µa]r�[\�a\hẐ[_a\Y�ẐXa[\ĥ�f\eaYa][X�]̂hr\fXfYâ_s�]r̂�ma]l�_�hlb̂Z_̂hdZa]l�jZ[i^̀ fZ|�j[ĥ_�ifd\]a\Y�Za_|_�jZfi�hlb̂Zt[]][h|_�]r[]�]rẐ[]̂\�]ra_a\jZ[_]Zdh]dẐs�hZa]ah[X�_̂Zkaĥ_s�[\e�_̂\_a]ak̂�e[][p�{r̂��º���{rẐ[]�[\e��[�[Ze�nê\]ajah[]af\�[\e��a_|�W__̂i \̂]��{�n�W��̂ gfZ]�jZfi�]r̂�ofd]r��X[a\_�W__fha[]af\�fj��fk̂Z\i \̂]_��o�W���aê\]ajâ_�hlb̂Z_̂hdZa]l�[_�[�]rẐ[]�fZ�r[�[Ze�]r[]�if_]hr[XX̂\Ŷ_�]r̂�ẐYaf\�_�[baXa]l�]f�[hrâk̂�Yf[X_�a\�[�i[�fZa]l�fj�]r̂��Ç�m[g[baXa]l�{[ZŶ]�h[]̂YfZâ_�[_�̀ X̂X�[_�mlb̂Z_̂hdZa]lb̂a\Y�a]_�f̀ \�m[g[baXa]l�{[ZŶ]s�g[Ŷ�ÇÉp�Weea]af\[XXls�]r̂�{rẐ[]��[�[Ze�¶̂ _hZag]af\_�[\e�nig[h]_�̂�[igX̂�f\�g[Ŷ �̧fd]Xa\̂_�[\�a\haê\]�fj�hfigZfia_̂e�o�W��̂igXfl̂ �̂hẐê\]a[X_�]r[]�̀fdXe�b̂�aê\]ajâe�[\e�ia]aY[]̂e�̀a]r�]ffX_�_dhr�[_¶[Z|]Z[ĥ�a\�gX[ĥp�µ �̂_̂ |̂�]f�aê\]ajl�kdX\̂Z[baXa]â_�̀a]ra\�fdZ�hdZẐ\]�hlb̂Z_̂hdZa]l�jZ[i^̀ fZ|s�a\hXdea\Y�a\_djjahâ\]]rẐ[]�ê ]̂h]af\�h[g[baXa]â_�[\e�[�X[h|�fj�gZf[h]ak̂�a\haê\]�Ẑ_gf\_̂�i ĥr[\a_i_p��̂ ĥ\]�YXfb[X�[\e�ẐYaf\[Xhlb̂Z_̂hdZa]l�a\haê\]_�raYrXaYr]�]r̂�dZŶ\]�\̂ ê�jfZ�[ek[\ĥe�_fXd]af\_�]f�_[ĵYd[Ze�[Y[a\_]�_fgra_]ah[]̂e�[]][h|_pÊ�CLBCGS�H@E@JCxCBI�ËKVKxL�³¶̂ _hZab̂�]r̂ �̂�a_]a\Y�h[g[baXa]l�X̂k̂X_s�a\hXdea\Y�Ẑ_fdZĥ_�]r[]�[Ẑ�hdZẐ\]Xl�a\�gX[ĥ�]f�_dggfZ]�]ra_�gZf�̂h]�gZafZ�]f�]r̂�d_̂



���������������	
 ��
�������	
�����������
���
��������� !��"#!���$%&��	����'''(

)��*�����+
����,+�-,��.��,+�-��**�*
�������
���	
/���01������
�,��*.2	
/��"�3�456+)4���5��"7��8�99�:;�:5��:����99�<9����;:�<<�����=6	
> 8���

?@�ABCDE�@FDGHIJKL�MNEO�?@�PFQQ?RS�RFBBLDETO�?ULBCELH�VNEK�C�ROQLBHLRFBNEO�@BCWLV?BS�EKCE�NDRTFGLH�HECDGCBG�UB?ELRENXL�WLCHFBLH�HFRK�CH@NBLVCTTHY�CDENZXNBFH�H?@EVCBLY�CDG�ULBN?GNR�HLRFBNEO�CHHLHHWLDEHI�JKL�[J�GLUCBEWLDE�R?DGFREH�BLAFTCB�EBCNDNDA�HLHHN?DH�?DROQLBHLRFBNEO�CVCBLDLHH�@?B�?XLB�\Y]̂ �̂MNEO�LWUT?OLLH�CDG�KCH�NWUTLWLDELG�QCHNR�EKBLCE�GLELREN?D�CDG�BLHU?DHLUB?E?R?THI�_LHUNEL�EKLHL�L@@?BEHY�EKL�L̀NHENDA�ROQLBHLRFBNEO�RCUCQNTNENLH�CBL�UBNWCBNTO�BLCRENXLY�VNEK�TNWNELG�CQNTNEO�E?UB?CRENXLTO�NGLDEN@O�CDG�DLFEBCTNaL�CGXCDRLG�ROQLB�EKBLCEH�QL@?BL�EKLO�NWUCRE�MNEO�?ULBCEN?DHIbcdcefgfhi�jcdkl_LHRBNQL�EKL�RCUCQNTNEO�ACUH�VKNRK�VNTT�QL�CGGBLHHLG�QO�EKL�UB?mLREI�n?B�@LGLBCT�o?WLTCDG�pLRFBNEO�qBCDEHY�NDRTFGL�HULRN@NRBL@LBLDRLH�E?�EKL�BLAN?DCT�?B�HECELVNGL�pECEL�rBLUCBLGDLHH�sLU?BE�tprsuIJKL�MNEO�?@�PFQQ?RSY�VNEK�NEH�V?BS@?BRL�?@�CUUB?̀NWCELTO�\Y]̂ �̂MNEO�LWUT?OLLH�CDG�?XLB�v�WNTTN?D�NDHECDRLH�?@�DLEV?BSCRENXNEO�C�OLCBY�RBLCELH�HNADN@NRCDE�ROQLBHLRFBNEO�RKCTTLDALHI�JKL�R?WUTL̀NEO�CDG�X?TFWL�?@�GCEC�@T?V�DLRLHHNECELH�C�B?QFHEYCGCUENXL�H?TFEN?D�E?�CGGBLHH�L̀NHENDA�RCUCQNTNEO�ACUH�L@@LRENXLTOI�JKL�MNEOwH�L̀NHENDA�ROQLBHLRFBNEO�WLCHFBLH�TCRS�EKLCGXCDRLG�CDCTOENRH�CDG�WCRKNDL�TLCBDNDA�RCUCQNTNENLH�DLRLHHCBO�E?�NGLDEN@O�H?UKNHENRCELG�ROQLB�EKBLCEH�UB?CRENXLTOI_CBSEBCRL�H?@EVCBLY�VNEK�NEH�CGXCDRLG�x[ZGBNXLD�RCUCQNTNENLHY�NH�FDNyFLTO�U?HNEN?DLG�E?�CTT?V�EKL�MNEO�E?�LHECQTNHK�C�UCEELBD?@�D?BWCT�FHCAL�EKCE�VNTT�CTT?V�FH�E?�GLELRE�CD?WCTNLH�ND�BLCT�ENWLY�NGLDEN@ONDA�U?ELDENCT�EKBLCEH�QL@?BL�EKLO�RCD�LHRCTCELIzO�FDGLBHECDGNDA�EKL�DFCDRLH�?@�EKL�MNEOwH�GNANECT�LDXNB?DWLDEY�_CBSEBCRL�RCD�UNDU?NDE�HFQETL�HNADH�?@�CEECRS�EKCE�V?FTG?EKLBVNHL�A?�FDD?ENRLGI�JKL�\̂ \v�pECSLK?TGLB�rBLUCBLGDLHH�sLXNLV�tprsu�@B?W�EKL�p?FEK�rTCNDH�xHH?RNCEN?D�?@q?XLBDWLDEH�tprxquY�UCAL�{]Y�?FETNDLH�ROQLBHLRFBNEO�ECBALEH�EKCE�EKL�BLAN?D�BLCH?DCQTO�L̀ULREH�E?�CRKNLXL�ND�EKL�DL̀E�vZ]OLCBHI�|HECQTNHKNDA�C�UCEELBD�?@�D?BWCT�CRENXNEO�ND�?BGLB�E?�NGLDEN@O�CD?WCTNLH�?B�EKBLCEH�NH�C�RBNENRCT�@NBHE�HELU�ND�CRKNLXNDAEKLHL�A?CTH�ND�UTCDDNDAY�?BACDNaCEN?DY�LyFNUWLDEY�EBCNDNDAY�CDG�L̀LBRNHLHI�xH�EKL�MNEO�?@�PFQQ?RS�AB?VHY�NEH�GNANECTND@BCHEBFREFBL�QLR?WLH�NDRBLCHNDATO�R?WUTL̀I�JKL�L̀NHENDA�ROQLBHLRFBNEO�H?TFEN?DH�G?�D?�LCHNTO�HRCTLY�WCSNDA�NE�GN@@NRFTE�E?UB?ELRE�DLV�GLXNRLH�CDG�HOHELWH�CH�EKLO�CBL�CGGLGI�_CBSEBCRLwH�x[ZGBNXLD�CUUB?CRK�NH�NDKLBLDETO�HRCTCQTLY�GLHNADLG�E?CGCUE�CDG�AB?V�CT?DAHNGL�EKL�MNEOwH�GNANECT�ND@BCHEBFREFBLI�zO�FENTNaNDA�CGXCDRLG�E??TH�HFRK�CH�_CBSEBCRLY�EKL�MNEO�VNTT�QLQLEELB�CQTL�E?�FENTNaL�BLH?FBRLH�E?�GL@LDG�CACNDHE�NDRBLCHNDATO�H?UKNHENRCELG�CEECRSHI}~dc�h��hch�~��h�l_LHRBNQL�EKL�UB?mLRE�A?CTH�?QmLRENXLH�CDG�K?V�EKNH�UB?mLRE�VNTT�WCNDECND�RCUCQNTNENLH�?B�BLGFRL�RCUCQNTNEO�ACUHIJKL�ACUH�ND�PFQQ?RSwH�ROQLBHLRFBNEO�RCUCQNTNENLH�L̀U?HL�EKL�MNEO�E?�HNADN@NRCDE�BNHSHI�x�HFRRLHH@FT�ROQLBZCEECRS�R?FTG�TLCG�E?EKL�GNHBFUEN?D�?@�LHHLDENCT�HLBXNRLHY�HFRK�CH�LWLBALDRO�BLHU?DHL�HOHELWHY�UFQTNR�FENTNENLHY�CDG�A?XLBDWLDE�?ULBCEN?DHYGNBLRETO�C@@LRENDA�EKL�VLT@CBL�CDG�HC@LEO�?@�EKL�MNEOwH�BLHNGLDEHI�nFBEKLBW?BLY�QBLCRKLH�NDX?TXNDA�EKL�EKL@E�?@�HLDHNENXLND@?BWCEN?D�R?FTG�LB?GL�UFQTNR�EBFHE�CDG�BLHFTE�ND�HFQHECDENCT�@NDCDRNCT�T?HHLH�GFL�E?�BLR?XLBO�L@@?BEH�CDG�U?ELDENCT�TLACTTNCQNTNENLHI��NEK�CGXCDRLG�H?TFEN?DH�TNSL�_CBSEBCRLY�VL�VNTT�QL�CQTL�E?�NGLDEN@O�CDG�LHECQTNHK�D?BWCT�FHL�UCEELBDH�EKCE�VNTTCTT?V�FH�E?�yFNRSTO�NGLDEN@O�FDFHFCT�CRENXNEO�ND�?BGLB�E?�NH?TCEL�CDG�WNENACEL�BNHSH�CDG�UB?ELRE�EKL�R?WWFDNEOI��~�gc��������fhi���f��fhi���hf��kl[GLDEN@O�EKL�JL̀CH�o?WLTCDG�pLRFBNEO�rBN?BNEO�xREN?D�W?HE�RT?HLTO�CTNADLG�VNEK�EKNH�UB?mLREI�|CRK�rBN?BNEO�xREN?D�NH�TNDSLGVNEK�CD��������������������������������� �¡��¢���£�¡�����¤���¥����¦�¡¡¥§I�PNHE�EKL�rBN?BNEO�xREN?D�QO�DFWQLB�CDG�EL̀EtLIAI�̈©ª©«�¬�­�� ��� ����������������®��̄�����¢������¢��������������­���� �� ������ ��� �������������������������̄�®������¢�­���� ������������� ���������������­�����IuvI\I{I�|DR?FBCAL�EKL�NWUTLWLDECEN?D�?@�T?RCTZTLXLT�WNENACEN?D�UB?mLREH�EKCE�WC̀NWNaL�EKL�NWUCRE�?@�UBLZGNHCHELB�CDG�U?HEZGNHCHELB�@FDGNDAI°c�±�h�j���d�l[GLDEN@O�EKL�ECBALE�AB?FU�CDG�U?UFTCEN?D�L̀ULRELG�E?�QLDL@NE�@B?W�EKNH�UB?mLREIJKL�UBNWCBO�ECBALE�AB?FU�@?B�EKNH�ROQLBHLRFBNEO�LDKCDRLWLDE�UB?mLRE�NDRTFGLH�CTT�NDGNXNGFCTH�CDG�GLXNRLH�EKCE�NDELBCRE�VNEKEKL�MNEO�?@�PFQQ?RS�DLEV?BS�NDRTFGNDA�MNEO�LWUT?OLLHY�R?DEBCRE?BHY�RNENaLDHY�CDG�LTLRELG�?@@NRNCTHI�[WUTLWLDENDA�_CBSEBCRLVNTT�GNBLRETO�QLDL@NE�MNEO�LWUT?OLLH�QO�UB?XNGNDA�EKLW�VNEK�C�W?BL�HLRFBL�GNANECT�V?BSNDA�LDXNB?DWLDEY�EKLBLQO�LDKCDRNDAEKLNB�UB?GFRENXNEO�CDG�HC@LAFCBGNDA�R?D@NGLDENCT�ND@?BWCEN?DI�xTT�BLHNGLDEH�CDG�XNHNE?BH�?@�EKL�MNEO�?@�PFQQ?RS�CDGHFBB?FDGNDA�R?WWFDNENLH�CBL�L̀ULRELG�E?�QLDL@NE�@B?W�EKL�HLRFBL�CDG�FDNDELBBFUELG�CRRLHH�E?�MNEO�HLBXNRLHY�UB?ELRELG�@B?WEKL�GNHBFUEN?DH�CDG�KCaCBGH�U?HLG�QO�ROQLBZCEECRSHI²��±³°��~��dd��c�́ l_LHRBNQL�K?V�EKL�CUUTNRCDE�CALDRO�VNTT�WCNDECND�EKL�RCUCQNTNENLH�HFUU?BELG�QO�EKNH�UB?mLRE�VNEK?FE�CGGNEN?DCT�@LGLBCT�?B�HECEL@FDGHI�[@�HFHECNDWLDE�NH�GLULDGLDE�FU?D�@LGLBCT�?B�HECEL�ABCDEHY�GLHRBNQL�EKL�?DA?NDA�DLLG�@?B�@FEFBL�ABCDEHY�CH�CUUTNRCQTLIµHNDA�EKL�JL̀CH�pPMqr�ABCDE�@?B�EKL�NDNENCT�_CBSEBCRL�HLEFU�CDG�HRCDDNDA�GCEC�R?TTLREN?D�VNTT�LDCQTL�EKL�MNEO�?@�PFQQ?RS�E?LHECQTNHK�C�QCHLTNDL�?@�DLEV?BS�CRENXNEO�EKCE�VNTT�CTT?V�HEC@@�E?�yFNRSTO�NGLDEN@O�CDG�CGGBLHH�CD?WCTNLH�CDG�EKBLCEHEKB?FAK?FE�EKL�DLEV?BSI�xE�EKL�R?DRTFHN?D�?@�EKL�ABCDE�ULBN?GY�EKL�MNEO�?@�PFQQ?RS�VNTT�CTT?RCEL�DLRLHHCBO�@NDCDRNCTBLH?FBRLH�@B?W�NEH�CDDFCT�QFGALE�E?�R?XLB�EKL�?DA?NDA�R?HEH�?@�TNRLDHNDAY�H?@EVCBL�FUGCELHY�CDG�CDO�DLRLHHCBO�KCBGVCBLFUABCGLH�E?�HFUU?BE�EKL�_CBSEBCRL�HOHELW�?B�?EKLB�DLRLHHCBO�HOHELWI�JKNH�CTT?RCEN?D�VNTT�QL�BLXNLVLG�CDG�CGmFHELG�CHDLLGLG�E?�BL@TLRE�EKL�RKCDANDA�ROQLBHLRFBNEO�TCDGHRCUL�CDG�EKL�HULRN@NR�DLLGH�?@�EKL�MNEOwH�[J�ND@BCHEBFREFBLI¶·̧¹º»¼�½»¼¾¿¾¼¾ºÀ�ÁÂÃ̧·ÄÅ¼¾̧Â�²bj��}�kh���hf��k�Æ������Ç��h���hfÈfhi���g��hf��pECEL�CDG�P?RCT�MOQLBHLRFBNEO�qBCDE�rB?ABCW�tpPMqru�CUUTNRCDEH�HK?FTG�?DTO�HLTLRE�?DL�UB?mLRE�CRENXNEOI�JKLLqBCDEH�HOHELW�VNTT�CTT?V�WFTENUTL�HLTLREN?DHY�QFE�LCRK�pPMqr�HFQBLRNUNLDE�UB?mLRE�WFHE�@NE�NDE?�?DL�CDG�?DTO?DL�?@�EKL�[DXLHEWLDE�MCELA?BNLH�EKCE�CBL�TNHELG�CH�UB?mLRE�CRENXNENLH�FDGLB�EKL�ÉxRENXNEO�PNHEÉI



���������������	
 ��
�������	
�����������
���
��������� !��"#!���$%&��	����'''(

)��*�����+
����,+�-,��.��,+�-��**�*
�������
���	
/���01������
�,��*.2	
/��"�3�456+)4���5��"7��8�99�:;�:5��:����99�<9����;:�<<�����=6	
> 7���

?@A@BC@D�EFGH@BC�IBCJKJCJ@LMINOPQPOR ESTNSUOIVSMWS?NTPEOPXUYZ[\]̂Z_�̀Z]�â bcdZb̂ef̀ZZ\Zg hiijii k[̀Z�̀Z]�\]̂Z_\lm�c̀__̂nZb�dl�̀[_\o\_m�\Z�dn]̂n�_d�cf̀Z�̀Z]�n̂bcdZ]�_d\Z[\]̂Z_bpqrstuqs�vwxyuzr{|yw}~�̂[_\ô�}�_c�_��̂ b̀�n̂bX�OE�O��SI?�TS OITVSO�SQS����~̂n�dl�̂�̂n[\b̂b�[dZ]�[_̂]j h���~̂n�dl�\Z]\o\]�̀fb�c̀n_\[\c̀_\Zg�\Z�̂̂n[\b̂bj ��ii���~̂n�dl�ĉdcf̂�_ǹ\Ẑ]j ����~̂n�dl�cf̀Zb�]̂ ôfdĉ]�dn��c]̀ _̂]j ����~̂n�dl�n\b��̀bb̂bb� Ẑ_�_̂[�Z\[̀fb̀b\b_̀Z[̂�b̂bb\dZb�[dZ]�[_̂]j �i���~̂n�dl�n\b��̀bb̂bb� Ẑ_b�[dZ]�[_̂]j ��ii���~̂n�dl�_ǹ\Z\Zgb�[dZ]�[_̂]j �}~�̂[_\ô�}�_[d� �̂�̂ b̀�n̂bX�ONX�S��SI?�TS OITVSO��SQS���b_d��}�_c�_��̂ b̀�n̂bN�?OX��X�OE�O��SI?�TS OITVSO��SQS���b_d��}�_[d� �̂�̂ b̀�n̂bN�?OX��X�ONX�S��SI?�TS OITVSO��SQS�



���������������	
 ��
�������	
�����������
���
��������� !��"#!���$%&��	����'''(

)��*�����+
����,+�-,��.��,+�-��**�*
�������
���	
/���01������
�,��*.2	
/��"�3�456+)4���5��"7��8�99�:;�:5��:����99�<9����;:�<<�����=6	
> 9���

?@ABCDEFBG�HIBJ�KBL@IGFGM�NBOPQRRSTUVWTXYZ�[\X]�YXYR\X[TW�UX\RX\VWTXYẐ�SXUVS�_YTWZ�X[�̀Xab\Y]bYWẐ�VYc�XWdb\�RXSTWTUVS�Z_ecTaTZTXYZ�]_ZWTYUS_cb�V�\bZXS_WTXY�WdVW�UXYWVTYZ�Wdb�[XSSXfTỲghi�Q_WdX\TjVWTXY�ek�kX_\�̀Xab\YTỲ�eXck�[X\�Wdb�Z_e]TZZTXY�X[�Wdb�VRRSTUVWTXY�WX�Wdb�l_eSTU�mV[bWk�n[[TUbolmnp�WdVW�USbV\Sk�TcbYWT[TbZ�Wdb�YV]b�X[�Wdb�R\XqbUW�[X\�fdTUd�[_YcTỲ�TZ�\br_bZWbcsti�Q�UX]]TW]bYW�WX�R\XaTcb�VSS�VRRSTUVeSb�]VWUdTỲ�[_YcZsui�Q�cbZT̀YVWTXY�X[�Wdb�YV]b�VYcvX\�WTWSb�X[�VY�V_WdX\Tjbc�X[[TUTVS�fdX�TZ�̀TabY�Wdb�V_WdX\TWk�WX�VRRSk�[X\̂VUUbRŴ�\bqbUŴ�VSWb\̂�X\�Wb\]TYVWb�V�̀\VYW�owXWbg�x[�V�YV]b�TZ�R\XaTcbĉ�kX_�]_ZW�_RcVWb�Wdb�lmn�ZdX_ScWdb�X[[TUTVS�UdVỲb�c_\TỲ�Wdb�̀\VYW�Rb\TXcips�VYcyi�Q�f\TWWbY�VZZ_\VYUb�WdVŴ�TY�Wdb�babYW�X[�SXZZ�X\�]TZ_Zb�X[�̀\VYW�[_YcẐ�Wdb�̀Xab\YTỲ�eXck�fTSS�\bW_\Y�VSS[_YcZ�WX�lmnizRXY�VRR\XaVS�[\X]�kX_\�V̀bYUk{Z�̀Xab\YTỲ�eXck̂�_RSXVc�Wdb�VRR\Xabc�\bZXS_WTXY�WX�b|\VYWZ�ek�̀XTỲ�WX�Wdb}~CB�O��FC@A�WVe�VYc�[XSSXfTỲ�Wdb�TYZW\_UWTXYZ�XY�zRSXVcTỲ�b|\VYWZ��TSbZi�BGEI��E��BJ~CF�G�@�TSS�lmn�̀\VYW�[_YcZ�eb�_Zbc�WX�Z_RRX\W�VYk�UXYW\VUWZ�[X\�R\X[bZZTXYVS�Zb\aTUbZ�mbSbUW�Wdb�VRR\XR\TVWb�\bZRXYZbg���bZ��wX�X\�VRRSTUVYW�V̀bYUTbZ�WdVW�ZbSbUWbc��@A�VeXab̂�cbZU\Teb�dXf�kX_�fTSS�]XYTWX\�Wdb�VUWTaTWTbZ�X[�Wdb�Z_e�UXYW\VUWX\oZp�[X\�UX]RSTVYUb�fTWd�Wdb�UXYW\VUW�R\XaTZTXYZ�oTYUS_cTỲ�br_TR]bYW�R_\UdVZbZp̂�cbSTab\VeSbẐ�VYc�VSSVRRSTUVeSb�ZWVW_WbẐ�\_SbẐ�\b̀_SVWTXYẐ�VYc�̀_TcbSTYbZ�̀Xab\YTỲ�WdTZ�R\XqbUWi�YWb\�V�cbZU\TRWTXY�[X\�]XYTWX\TỲ�UXYW\VUW�UX]RSTVYUbg�db��TWk�X[��_eeXU��fTSS�_WTSTjb�TWZ�WbV]�X[�xY[X\]VWTXY�VYc�mbU_\TWk�VYc��X]RSTVYUb�QYVSkZWZ�WX�bYZ_\b��V\�W\VUb�UXYW\VUWUX]RSTVYUb�VYc�]VTYWVTY�V�W\VYZRV\bYŴ�VUUX_YWVeSb�\bSVWTXYZdTR�fTWd��V\�W\VUb̂�bYZ_\TỲ�WdVW�Wdb�ZX[WfV\b�cbSTab\Z�VZR\X]TZbc�VYc�UXYWTY_bZ�WX�]bbW�Wdb�baXSaTỲ�Ukeb\ZbU_\TWk�YbbcZ�X[�Wdb��TWki��XYTWX\TỲ�R\VUWTUbZ�fTSS�TYUS_cb�\b̀_SV\Rb\[X\]VYUb�\baTbfZ�TYUS_cTỲ�ckYV]TU�cVZdeXV\cZ�WdVW�]bbW�Wdb��TWk�Z�YbbcZi��X]RSTVYUb�V_cTWZ�fTSS�TYUS_cb�VUWTaTWk�SX̀ ẐVYc�cVTSk�]XYTWX\TỲ�X[�VUWTaTWk�\bUX]]bYcVWTXYZi��XYc_UWTỲ�\b̀_SV\�ZWV�bdXScb\�]bbWTỲZ�VYc�WbUdYTUVS�VZZTZWVYUb�fTSSVZZ_\b�WdVW��V\�W\VUb�TZ�Rb\[X\]TỲ�VZ�b�RbUWbc�VYc�VZZTZWTỲ�TY�Wdb��TWk�Z�VZZbZZ]bYW�VYc�baVS_VWTXY�̀XVSZi�B��PFGM�X\�VRRSTUVYW�V̀bYUTbZ�\br_bZWTỲ �̀\VYW�[_YcZ�TY�b�UbZZ�X[��h��̂���̂�dVab�VYk�[bcb\VSSk�VRR\XR\TVWbc�[_YcZebbY�RVTc�X\�fTSS�eb�RVTc�WX�VYk�Rb\ZXY�[X\�TY[S_bYUTỲ�X\�VWWb]RWTỲ�WX�TY[S_bYUb�VY�X[[TUb\�X\�b]RSXkbb�X[�VYkV̀bYUk̂�V�]b]eb\�X[��XỲ\bZẐ�VY�X[[TUb\�X\�b]RSXkbb�X[��XỲ\bZẐ�X\�VY�b]RSXkbb�X[�V�]b]eb\�X[��XỲ\bZZTY�UXYYbUWTXY�fTWd�Wdb�VfV\cTỲ�X[�VYk�[bcb\VS�UXYW\VUŴ�Wdb�]V�TỲ�X[�VYk�[bcb\VS�̀\VYŴ�Wdb�]V�TỲ�X[�VYk[bcb\VS�SXVŶ�Wdb�bYWb\TỲ�TYWX�X[�VYk�UXXRb\VWTab�V̀\bb]bYŴ�VYc�Wdb�b�WbYZTXŶ�UXYWTY_VWTXŶ�\bYbfVŜV]bYc]bYŴ�X\�]XcT[TUVWTXY�X[�VYk�[bcb\VS�UXYW\VUŴ�̀\VYW�SXVŶ�X\�UXXRb\VWTab�V̀\bb]bYW�mbSbUW�Wdb�VRR\XR\TVWb�\bZRXYZbg���bZ��wX��wvQ�X\�VRRSTUVYW�V̀bYUTbZ�WdVW�ZbSbUWbc�bTWdb\��B�X\�����VeXab̂�dVab�VYk�YXY�[bcb\VS�[_YcZ�ebbY�RVTc�X\�fTSS�ebRVTc�WX�VYk�Rb\ZXY�[X\�TY[S_bYUTỲ�X\�VWWb]RWTỲ�WX�TY[S_bYUb�VY�X[[TUb\�X\�b]RSXkbb�X[�VYk�V̀bYUk̂�V�]b]eb\X[��XỲ\bZẐ�VY�X[[TUb\�X\�b]RSXkbb�X[��XỲ\bZZ�TY�UXYYbUWTXY�fTWd�WdTZ�[bcb\VS�UXYW\VUŴ�SXVŶ�X\�UXXRb\VWTabV̀\bb]bYW����bZ��wX��wvQ�FA��C��@�Il\XaTcb�Wdb�eb̀TY�VYc�bYc�cVWb�[X\�Wdb�VRRSTUVYW�V̀bYUk{Z�[TZUVS�kbV\�obìî���v�hvt����WX���vuhvt���pi�YWb\�Wdb��b̀TY��VWb��]]vccvkkkk gh�vhvt�tu�YWb\�Wdb��Yc��VWb��]]vccvkkkk g�vu�vt�ty¡BDI�@A�BH��FG�G�F�C�¡D~~BIE�VUd�VRRSTUVYW�]_ZW�R\XaTcb�Wdb�V]X_YW�X[�̀\VYW�[_YcZ�b�RbYcbc�c_\TỲ�Wdb�]XZW�\bUbYWSk�UX]RSbWbc�[TZUVSkbV\�[X\�Wdb�[XSSXfTỲ�ZX_\UbZg�YWb\�Wdb�V]X_YW�oTY��dXSb��XSSV\Z��p�X[��bcb\VS�|\VYW��_YcZ�b�RbYcbcg



���������������	
 ��
�������	
�����������
���
��������� !��"#!���$%&��	����'''(

)��*�����+
����,+�-,��.��,+�-��**�*
�������
���	
/���01������
�,��*.2	
/��"�3�456+)4���5��"7��8�99�:;�:5��:����99�<9����;:�<<�����=6	
> ?���

@ABCDDEFGHIJK�ILJ�MNOPHI�QRH�SLOTJ�UOTTMKV�WX�OY�ZIMIJ�[KMHI�\PH]V�Ĵ_JH]J]̀EF@CCCCabcdef�ghibjk__TRlMHIV�mLO�Ĵ_JH]�TJVV�ILMH�WFnopooo�RH�YJ]JKMT�qKMHI�YPH]RHq�OK�TJVV�ILMH�WFnopooo�RH�VIMIJ�qKMHIYPH]RHq�MKJ�ĴJN_I�YKON�ILJ�ZRHqTJ�kP]RI�klI�MH]�lMHHOI�lLMKqJ�MP]RI�lOVIV�IO�M�rZs�qKMHIt�uOmJvJKp�rZsNMw�KJxPRKJ�M�TRNRIJ]�VlO_J�MP]RI�MV�]JYRHJ]�RH�A�y\z�rMKI�Aoop�ZP{_MKI�\�|�kP]RI�zJxPRKJNJHIVtuMV�ILJ�M__TRlMHI�MqJHlw�Ĵ_JH]J]�YJ]JKMT�qKMHI�YPH]RHq�OY�WFnopooo�OK�NOKJp�OK�VIMIJ�qKMHI�YPH]RHq�OYWFnopooo�OK�NOKJ�]PKRHq�ILJ�NOVI�KJlJHITw�lON_TJIJ]�YRVlMT�wJMK}ZJTJlI�ILJ�M__KO_KRMIJ�KJV_OHVJ̀~��JV���Ok__TRlMHI�MqJHlRJV�ILMI�VJTJlIJ]��f��M{OvJp�_KOvR]J�ILJ�]MIJ�OY�wOPK�OKqMHR�MIROH�V�TMVI�MHHPMT�VRHqTJ�MP]RIp_JKYOKNJ]�{w�MH�RH]J_JH]JHI�MP]RIOK�RH�MllOK]MHlJ�mRIL�ILJ�ZIMIJ�OY��ĴMV�ZRHqTJ�kP]RI�yRKlPTMK��OK�y\z�rMKIAoop�ZP{_MKI�\�|�kP]RI�zJxPRKJNJHIVtGHIJK�ILJ�]MIJ�OY�wOPK�TMVI�MHHPMT�VRHqTJ�MP]RÌB��o�AoA��f����fcjGMlL�M__TRlMHI�MqJHlw�mRTT�lJKIRYw�ILMI�RI�MH]�RIV�_KRHlR_MTV�QMV�]JYRHJ]�RH�A�y\z�rMKI�ECotBBnX̀kKJ�HOI�_KJVJHITw�]J{MKKJ]p�VPV_JH]J]p�_KO_OVJ]�YOK�]J{MKNJHIp�]JlTMKJ]�RHJTRqR{TJp�VJHIJHlJ]�IO�M�]JHRMTOY�\J]JKMT�{JHJYRIV�{w�M�ZIMIJ�OK�\J]JKMT�yOPKIp�OK�vOTPHIMKRTw�ĴlTP]J]�YKON�_MKIRlR_MIROH�RH�ILRV�IKMHVMlIROH�{wMHw�YJ]JKMT�]J_MKINJHI�OK�MqJHlw�uMvJ�HOI�mRILRH�M�ILKJJ|wJMK�_JKRO]�_KJlJ]RHq�ILRV�M__TRlMIROH�{JJH�lOHvRlIJ]�OY�OK�LM]�M�lRvRT��P]qNJHIKJH]JKJ]�MqMRHVI�ILJN�YOK�lONNRVVROH�OY�YKMP]�OK�M�lKRNRHMT�OYYJHVJ�RH�lOHHJlIROH�mRIL�O{IMRHRHqp�MIIJN_IRHqIO�O{IMRHp�OK�_JKYOKNRHq�M�_P{TRl�QYJ]JKMTp�VIMIJp�OK�TOlMTX�IKMHVMlIROH�OK�lOHIKMlI�PH]JK�M�_P{TRl�IKMHVMlIROH�vROTMIROH�OY�YJ]JKMT�OK�VIMIJ�MHIRIKPVI�VIMIPIJV�OK�lONNRVVROH�OY�JN{J��TJNJHIp�ILJYIp�YOKqJKwp�{KR{JKwpYMTVRYRlMIROH�OK�]JVIKPlIROH�OY�KJlOK]Vp�NM�RHq�YMTVJ�VIMIJNJHIVp�OK�KJlJRvRHq�VIOTJH�_KO_JKIw��OKkKJ�HOI�_KJVJHITw�RH]RlIJ]�YOK�OK�OILJKmRVJ�lKRNRHMTTw�OK�lRvRTTw�lLMKqJ]�{w�M�qOvJKHNJHIMT�JHIRIw�QYJ]JKMTpVIMIJp�OK�TOlMTX�mRIL�lONNRVVROH�OY�MHw�OY�ILJ�OYYJHVJV�JHPNJKMIJ]�RH�ILJ�M{OvJ�{PTTJI��MH]�LMvJ�HOI�mRILRH�MILKJJ|wJMK�_JKRO]�_KJlJ]RHq�ILRV�M__TRlMIROH�LM]�OHJ�OK�NOKJ�_P{TRl�IKMHVMlIROHV�QYJ]JKMTp�VIMIJp�OK�TOlMTXIJKNRHMIJ]�YOK�lMPVJ�OK�]JYMPTItZJTJlI�ILJ�M__KO_KRMIJ�KJV_OHVJ̀~���yJKIRYw���HM{TJ�IO�yJKIRYwGHIJK�ILJ�]J{MKNJHI��PVIRYRlMIROH̀��g�g��f�jb�b��jb�c�f�jb�b��jb�c�����f�b�bfcj��bd�e������fc��jfi����b�f������LJ�\J]JKMT�\PH]RHq�kllOPHIM{RTRIw�MH]�KMHV_MKJHlw�klI�Q\\k�kX�KJxPRKJV�rKRNJ�zJlR_RJHIV�QuZ[UX�IO�KJ_OKI�ILJ�HMNJV�MH]�IOIMT�lON_JHVMIROH�OYJMlL�OY�ILJ�YRvJ�NOVI�LRqLTw�lON_JHVMIJ]�OYYRlJKV�QMt�tMt�_OVRIROHVX�OY�JMlL�VP{�KJlR_RJHI�OKqMHR�MIROH�YOK�ILJNOVI�KJlJHITw�lON_TJIJ]�YRVlMT�wJMK�_KJlJ]RHq�ILJ�wJMK�RH�mLRlL�ILJ�qKMHI�RV�MmMK]J]�RY�ILJ�VP{KJlR_RJHIMHVmJKV�� a�IO�ILJ��¡�a��VIMIJNJHI�{PI�¢��IO�ILJ�a ��¢��VIMIJNJHI�TRVIJ]�{JTOmt�H�ILJ�VP{�KJlR_RJHI£V�_KJlJ]RHq�lON_TJIJ]�YRVlMT�wJMKp�]R]�ILJ�VP{�KJlR_RJHI�KJlJRvJ̀�QEX�Co�_JKlJHI�OK�NOKJ�OYRIV�MHHPMT�qKOVV�KJvJHPJ�YKON�\J]JKMT�lOHIKMlIV�QMH]�VP{lOHIKMlIVXp�TOMHVp�qKMHIV�QMH]�VP{qKMHIVX�MH]lOO_JKMIRvJ�MqKJJNJHIV��k�U�QAX�WAnpooopooo�OK�NOKJ�RH�MHHPMT�qKOVV�KJvJHPJ�YKON�\J]JKMT�lOHIKMlIV�QMH]VP{lOHIKMlIVXp�TOMHVp�qKMHIV�QMH]�VP{qKMHIVX�MH]�lOO_JKMIRvJ�MqKJJNJHIV}���JV~��OUOJV�ILJ�_P{TRl�LMvJ�MllJVV�IO�RHYOKNMIROH�M{OPI�ILJ�lON_JHVMIROH�OY�ILJ�VJHROK�ĴJlPIRvJV�ILKOPqL�_JKRO]RlKJ_OKIV�YRTJ]�PH]JK�ZJlIROH�E�QMX�OK�EnQ]X�OY�ILJ�ZJlPKRIRJV�ĜlLMHqJ�klI�OY�EB�@�QEn��tZtyt�FCNQMXp�FCOQ]XXOK�ZJlIROH�DEo@�OY�ILJ��HIJKHMT�zJvJHPJ�yO]J�OY�EBCD}~��JV���O�Y�wOP�MHVmJKJ]�� a�IO�ILJ��¡�a��VIMIJNJHI�MH]�¢��IO�ILJ�a ��¢��VIMIJNJHIp�_TJMVJ�_KOvR]J�ILJ�HMNJMH]�IOIMT�lON_JHVMIROH�MNOPHI�OY�JMlL�OY�ILJ�YRvJ�NOVI�LRqLTw�lON_JHVMIJ]�OYYRlJKV�QMt�tMt�_OVRIROHVX�mRILRHwOPK�MqJHlw�YOK�ILJ�lPKKJHI�lMTJH]MK�wJMKt��Y�wOP�MHVmJKJ]��s�IO�ILJ�YRKVI�VIMIJNJHI�wOP�MKJ��s��KJxPRKJ]�IO_KOvR]J�ILJ�HMNJ�MH]�lON_JHVMIROH�MNOPHIVt��s�G̀�¤¤�OIMT�lON_JHVMIROH££�NJMHV�ILJ�lON_TJIJ�_Mw�_Ml�MqJOY�JMlL�OY�ILJ�VP{�KJlR_RJHI£V�lON_JHVMIJ]�OYYRlJKVp�RHlTP]RHq�MTT�YOKNV�OY�NOHJwp�{JHJYRIVp�VJKvRlJVp�MH]�RH|�RH]�_MwNJHIV�QVJJ�ZGy�zJqPTMIROHV̀�EF�yyz�AABt@oAXt



���������������	
 ��
�������	
�����������
���
��������� !��"#!���$%&��	����'''(

)��*�����+
����,+�-,��.��,+�-��**�*
�������
���	
/���01������
�,��*.2	
/��"�3�456+)4���5��"7��8�99�:;�:5��:����99�<9����;:�<<�����=6	
> ;���

?@ABCB@D�E�F�GHIJKLBMMBHI�NHOOJCC�PCQBDA@D?@ABCB@D�E�F�R@CHM�S@ITJDAHCB@D�UVWKXYZ[\Y?@ABCB@D�]�F�GHIJKN@JM�̂BOQ�_̀a?@ABCB@D�]�F�R@CHM�S@ITJDAHCB@D�UVWKXXb\\\?@ABCB@D�X�F�GHIJKcH̀Bd�e�fHCCJOghBCJ?@ABCB@D�X�F�R@CHM�S@ITJDAHCB@D�UVWK]b\X\E?@ABCB@D�Z�F�GHIJKĴMB�N@hDA@D�fgHD?@ABCB@D�Z�F�R@CHM�S@ITJDAHCB@D�UVWK]Y\\\E?@ABCB@D�Y�F�GHIJKiBMMa�N�j@gJOC@D�NO?@ABCB@D�Y�F�R@CHM�S@ITJDAHCB@D�UVWK]XZ\kElmnopq�rpsptmqmuv�wxyz{|pumzx}~�������������������������������������������?���_R�S��?��PR_�Gf��G�������DCJO�ChJ��@MM@gBD��̀HM�JA�BD�@OdJO�C@�A��IBC�ChJ�HTTMB�HCB@D�DCJO�ChJ��JHO�BD�ghB�h�ChJ�S@OT@OHCB@D�gHA��@�DdJdK�\�DCJO�ChJ�cHCJ�ChHC�ChJ�_�f��JCCJO��OHDCJd�Y\EU�WUXW�RH����JITCB@D�fCHC�AK�\E�\E�E�\\�DCJO�ChJ��ITM@aJO�_dJDCB�B�HCB@D�G�I�JO�PAAB�DJd��a�ChJ�_�fK�\�DCJO�ChJ�ShHOCJO�G�I�JO�HAAB�DJd��a�ChJ�RJ�HA�fJ�OJCHOa�@��fCHCJK�\�DCJO�ChJ��JHO�BD�ghB�h�ChJ�S@OT@OHCB@D�gHA��@�DdJdK�DCJO�ChJ�cHCJ�ChHC�ChJ�_�f��JCCJO��OHDCJd�Y\EU�WUXW�RH����JITCB@D�fCHC�AK�DCJO�ChJ��ITM@aJO�_dJDCB�B�HCB@D�G�I�JO�PAAB�DJd��a�ChJ�_�fK�DCJO�ChJ�ShHOCJO�G�I�JO�HAAB�DJd��a�ChJ�RJ�HA�fJ�OJCHOa�@��fCHCJK}~��������� ���¡������}¢£�~�RhJ��OHDCJJ�@O�HDB¤HCB@D�I�AC�BD�@OT@OHCJ�HD�H��@�DCBD��AaACJI�ChHC�gBMM�COH�Q�dBOJ�C�HDd�BDdBOJ�C��@ACA��@O�ChJ@O�HDB¤HCB@D�U�JDJOHM�MJd�JOW�HA�gJMM�HA�dBOJ�C�HDd�BDdBOJ�C��@ACA��a�TO@¥J�C�UTO@¥J�C�MJd�JOW¦�RhJ��OHDCJJ�I�ACJACH�MBAh�H�CBIJ�HDd�J��@OC�AaACJI�C@�COH�Q�TJOA@DDJM��@ACA��a�TO@¥J�C¦�RhBA�Ah@�Md��J�OJT@OCJd�@D�HD�h@�OMa�HABA§�@O�BD�BD�OJIJDCA�@��HD�h@�O¦_A�ChJOJ�H�MBAC�@��a@�O�@O�HDB¤HCB@D̈A�H��@�DCA�BdJDCB�BJd��a�H�ATJ�B�B��D�I�JO�UB¦J¦§�H��JDJOHM�MJd�JO�@�H��@�DCAW©fJMJ�C�ChJ�HTTO@TOBHCJ�OJAT@DAJKª��JAª�G@c@JA�ChJ�H��@�DCBD��AaACJI�BD�M�dJ�H�TO@¥J�C�MJd�JO�C@�OJ�@Od�J�TJDdBC�OJA��@O�JH�h�?O@�OHI��a�OJ«�BOJd��d�JC��@AC��HCJ�@OBJA©fJMJ�C�ChJ�HTTO@TOBHCJ�OJAT@DAJKª��JAª�G@_A�ChJOJ�H�CBIJQJJTBD��AaACJI�ChHC�HMM@gA��@O��OHDC�TJOA@DDJM�C@�BdJDCB�a�H�CB̀BCa�HDd�OJ«�BOJA�AB�DHC�OJA��aChJ�JITM@aJJ�HDd�hBA�@O�hJO�A�TJÒBA@O©fJMJ�C�ChJ�HTTO@TOBHCJ�OJAT@DAJKª��JAª�G@_��a@��HDAgJOJd�̈G@̈�C@�HDa�«�JACB@D�H�@̀J�BD�ChJ�P��@�DCBD��faACJI�AJ�CB@D§�BD�ChJ�ATH�J�TO@̀BdJd��JM@gJ�TMHBD�ghHC�H�CB@D�gBMM��J�CHQJD�C@�JDA�OJ�H��@�DCH�BMBCa¦�DCJO�a@�O�J�TMHDHCB@DK



���������������	
 ��
�������	
�����������
���
��������� !��"#!���$%&��	����'''(

)��*�����+
����,+�-,��.��,+�-��**�*
�������
���	
/���01������
�,��*.2	
/��"�3�456+)4���5��"7��8�99�:;�:5��:����99�<9����;:�<<�����=6> �5���

?@ABCDE�FG�HCEIEACIJ�KILIMCJCBNOPQRS�QTURVWUX�XYZ[\]�̂PÛQPU�QRR[Q\�_WRQRVWQ\�XSQSÙ URSXa�bS�Q�̀ WRẀ [̀ c�V[PPURS�WRSUPRQ\�dQ\QRVU�XYUUS�QR]WRVZ̀ U�XSQSÙ URSX�QPU�PUe[WPU]a�b�dQ\QRVU�XYUUS�WX�Q�XSQSÙ URS�Z_�_WRQRVWQ\�̂ZXWSWZR�_ZP�Q�TPQRS�QTURVf]WXV\ZXWRT�QXXUSXc�\WQdW\WSWUXc�QR]�PUSQWRU]�UQPRWRTX�QS�Q�TWgUR�̂ZWRS�WR�SẀUa�bR�WRVZ̀ U�XSQSÙ URS�WX�Q�X[̀ `QPfZ_�PUgUR[U�QR]�UĥURXUX�_ZP�Q�TPQRS�QTURVf�][PWRT�Q�_WXVQ\�fUQPaiQX�SYU�TPQRS�QTURVf�[R]UPTZRU�QR�WR]ÛUR]URS�Q[]WSjkU\UVS�SYU�Q̂ P̂ẐPWQSU�PUX̂ZRXUlm�nUXm�oZpZUX�SYU�ZPTQRWqQSWZR�̂PÛQPU�_WRQRVWQ\�XSQSÙ URSX�QS�\UQXS�QRR[Q\\fjkU\UVS�SYU�Q̂ P̂ẐPWQSU�PUX̂ZRXUlm�nUXm�oZbVVZP]WRT�SZ�SYU�ZPTQRWqQSWZRrX�̀ ZXS�PUVURS�b[]WS�ZP�sQ\QRVU�kYUUSc�QPU�SYU�V[PPURS�SZSQ\�QXXUSX�TPUQSUP�SYQRSYU�\WQdW\WSWUXjkU\UVS�SYU�Q̂ P̂ẐPWQSU�PUX̂ZRXUlm�nUXm�oZt_�fZ[�XU\UVSU]�roZr�SZ�QRf�e[UXSWZR�QdZgU�[R]UP�SYU�uWRQRVWQ\�vQ̂QdW\WSf�XUVSWZRc�WR�SYU�X̂QVU�̂PZgW]U]�dU\ZwUĥ\QWR�wYQS�QVSWZR�wW\\�dU�SQxUR�SZ�URX[PU�QVVZ[RSQdW\WSfayRSUP�fZ[P�Uĥ\QRQSWZRl?@ABCDE�zG�{|}~@BI�N�KDEB�DJ�OPQRS�QTURVWUX�XYZ[\]�UXSQd\WXY�Q�XfXSÙ �SZ�SPQVx�UĥUR]WS[PUX�QTQWRXS�d[]TUS�QR]���ZP�_[R]U]�Q̀ Z[RSXabPU�SYUPU�d[]TUSQPf�VZRSPZ\X�WR�U__UVS��UaTac�VZ̀ Q̂PWXZR�Z_�d[]TUS�wWSY�QVS[Q\�UĥUR]WS[PUX�ZR�Q�̀ ZRSY\fdQXWX��SZ�WRV\[]U�]PQwWRT�]ZwR�TPQRS�_[R]X�WR�UhVUXX�Z_lQ���ZSQ\�_[R]X�Q[SYZPWqU]�ZR�SYU�kSQSÙ URS�Z_�OPQRS�bwQP]jm�nUXm�oZd���ZSQ\�_[R]X�QgQW\Qd\U�_ZP�QRf�d[]TUS�VQSUTZPf�QX�XSŴ[\QSU]�ZR�SYU�kSQSÙ URS�Z_�OPQRS�bwQP]jm�nUXm�oZt_�fZ[�XU\UVSU]�roZr�SZ�QRf�e[UXSWZR�QdZgU�[R]UP�SYU�s[]TUSQPf�vZRSPZ\X�XUVSWZRc�WR�SYU�X̂QVU�̂PZgW]U]�dU\Zw\̂UQXU�Uĥ\QWR�wYQS�QVSWZR�wW\\�dU�SQxUR�SZ�URX[PU�QVVZ[RSQdW\WSfayRSUP�fZ[P�Uĥ\QRQSWZRl?@ABCDE��G��EB@�EIJ�KDEB�DJ�OPQRS�QTURVWUX�̀ [XS�XQ_UT[QP]�VQXY�PUVUŴSXc�]WXd[PXÙ URSXc�QR]�URX[PU�Q�XUTPUTQSWZR�Z_�][SWUX�UhWXSa�uZPUhQ̀ \̂Uc�ZRU�̂UPXZR�XYZ[\]�RZS�YQgU�Q[SYZPWqQSWZR�SZ�XWTR�VYUVxX�QR]�̀ QxU�]ÛZXWSXabPU�QVVZ[RSWRT�URSPWUX�X[̂ ẐPSU]�df�Q̂ P̂ẐPWQSU�]ZV[̀ URSQSWZR��UaTac�̂[PVYQXU�ZP]UPXc�gZ[VYUPXc�PUVUŴSXcWRgZWVUX�jkU\UVS�SYU�Q̂ P̂ẐPWQSU�PUX̂ZRXUlm�nUXm�oZtX�SYUPU�XÛQPQSWZR�Z_�PUX̂ZRXWdW\WSf�WR�SYU�PUVUŴSc�̂Qf̀ URSc�QR]�PUVZP]WRT�Z_�VZXSXjkU\UVS�SYU�Q̂ P̂ẐPWQSU�PUX̂ZRXUlm�nUXm�oZt_�fZ[�XU\UVSU]�roZr�SZ�QRf�e[UXSWZR�QdZgU�[R]UP�SYU�tRSUPRQ\�vZRSPZ\X�XUVSWZRc�WR�SYU�X̂QVU�̂PZgW]U]�dU\Zw\̂UQXU�Uĥ\QWR�wYQS�QVSWZR�wW\\�dU�SQxUR�SZ�URX[PU�QVVZ[RSQdW\WSfayRSUP�fZ[P�Uĥ\QRQSWZRl



���������������	
 ��
�������	
�����������
���
��������� !��"#!���$%&��	����'''(

)��*�����+
����,+�-,��.��,+�-��**�*
�������
���	
/���01������
�,��*.2	
/��"�3�456+)4���5��"7��8�99�:;�:5��:����99�<9����;:�<<�����=6> �����

?@ABCD�ECDFGHI�JKLMNOFDGMKPQRSTU�VWXYZ[\U]YW�̂_�PQRSTU�̀]WT�VUT[abcdefghi jk?�bcdefghi EejbhJldJgm ggf bcjnocdbn JmpqJmEocdbn flJ dgdcr kmJdstuvwxyzzv{ |z}{~x�����vw��xvx� |z}{~x��x}{}w�vx��}����{{�y�vwxvv��v�v�vw��xvx ����� �������������������� ���������� ���yz�w}���}{}z�uwy�vxx�yz}{�vw���vx ���u������|��yy{x���v��yw���{zvw}��{��~���}zz�z��}w��w}�v��}zz�z��y���}wv ������������������� ����������� ��������� �jM@N¡C�ML�oFD¡¢�JKLMNOFDGMK£TU\]¤�¥YQZ¦T�YX�§\U¦̈ ©ª«Va£¬¥­®V«̄ V°± §²̄ ­³�̄ «́¬ ²§°µ±̄¶·̧ ¹º»º̧�¼½�¾º¿·ÀÁ»Â�Ã·Ä̧¾ ÅÆ¾Ç�ÈÆ»¿Ç ÉÊËÌÌÌÍÌÌ¶·̧¹º»º̧�¼½�ÆÄÆÎÂ¾»�¾ÆÎÆÀÂ ¼Ä�ÏÁÄ̧�ÈÆ»¿Ç ÉÐÌËÌÌÌÍÌÌ¥Q[[\Z_�¥YQZ¦T�YX�§\U¦̈ ©ª«VaȲU\¤�®TÑYZU ­\Ò̈ �§\U¦̈ VW�Ó]WR ª«V�ÔTRTZ\¤�¥̈ \ZT ª«V�¥U\UT�¥̈ \ZTÉÐÊËÌÌÌÍÌÌ ÉÊËÌÌÌÍÌÌ ÉÐÌËÌÌÌÍÌÌ ÉÌÍÌÌ ÉÌÍÌÌ?@ABCD�j@OOFNÕ�JKLMNOFDGMKPQRSTU�¥Q[[\Z_�VWXYZ[\U]YW�̂_�PQRSTU�­\UTSYZ_a­²̄ ¬ª°®́ °°ª ­²¥³�§²̄ ­³ V±ÖÓV±£�§²̄ ­³ ª«V °̄ ²̄̀Å×Ä»ÀÆ¿»·ÆÎ�ÆÄ̧�ØÀ×Ãº¾¾Á×ÄÆÎ�ÙºÀÚÁ¿º¾ ÉÛÜËÌÌÌÍÌÌ ÉÊËÌÌÌÍÌÌ ÉÌÍÌÌ ÉÌÍÌÌ ÉÝÌÌËÌÌÌÍÌÌØºÀ¾×ÄÄºÎ ÉÌÍÌÌ ÉÌÍÌÌ ÉÐÌËÌÌÌÍÌÌ ÉÌÍÌÌ ÉÐÌËÌÌÌÍÌÌPQRSTU�ªZ\WR�̄YU\¤�VWXYZ[\U]YWa°°ª ­²¥³�§²̄ ­³ V±ÖÓV±£�§²̄ ­³ ª«V °̄ ²̄̀ÉÛÜËÌÌÌÍÌÌ ÉÊËÌÌÌÍÌÌ ÉÐÌËÌÌÌÍÌÌ ÉÌÍÌÌ ÉÝÐÌËÌÌÌÍÌÌ



���������������	
 ��
�������	
�����������
���
��������� !��"#!���$%&��	����'''(

)��*�����+
����,+�-,��.��,+�-��**�*
�������
���	
/���01������
�,��*.2	
/��"�3�456+)4���5��"7��8�99�:;�:5��:����99�<9����;:�<<�����=6> �����

?@ABCDC@A�EF�GHABCAIJ�KAF@LMNDC@AOPQRSTSPQ�PU�VWQRSQX�Y�Z[P\]̂T�_]̀ WS[]a]QT bcT]�O[]cT]R bcT]�d]T ePfR�VWQRg ePfR�hSQ]�iT]a�VWQRgjkl�mno�pkqqor�st�mu�vg][�wca]x�nyzo{{



 AI# 12401 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 51. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution establishing a policy to permit developers to be
credited for impact fees assessed in a service area for all developments being constructed by a developer
within that service area.  

Item Summary
On October 27, 2020, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 2020-O0136, amending Title II
Buildings; Development; Property Maintenance, of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, by adding
Chapter 41, Impact Fees.  This ordinance ultimately established impact fees for the City of Lubbock. 
The ordinance currently includes wastewater, water, and roadways.  However, the impact fees for
wastewater and water are currently set at $0.  The City of Lubbock is only collecting impact fees on
roadways.  The original ordinance was amended on April 22, 2022 by adopting Ordinance No.
2022-O0068, which addressed annexations and the changing of the boundaries at that time, as well as
annexations and boundary changes in the future.  

The resolution being considered would establish a policy to allow developers to be credited for impact
fees assessed in the service area for all developments being constructed by a developer within that same
service area.  The resolution is in line with the existing ordinances and simply defines the policy. 
Establishing this policy will further encourage developers to contribute towards building roadways
within the City of Lubbock.  

Following this memo, you will find a copy of the proposed resolution establishing the policy, as well as a
copy of the prior ordinances adopted by the City Council in 2020 and 2022.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 

Attachments
Resolution 
Adopted Ordinances 







First Reading
April 12, 2022

Item No. 8. 19

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-00068

Second Reading
April 26, 2022

Item No. 7. 21

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 41, IMPACT FEES; ADOPTING AN

UPDATED IMPACT FEE STUDY; UPDATING ROADWAY IMPACT FEE

COLLECTION RATES; ADDING A SECTION FOR ANNEXED AREAS; PROVIDING
A PENALTY; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR

PUBLICATION. 

WHEREAS, Chapter 395, Texas Local Government Code ( the Statute) provides the
requirements and procedures for the adoption of land use assumptions, a capital improvements
plan, and Impact Fees; and

WHEREAS, on October 27, 2020 the City Council of the City of Lubbock ( the " City
Council") adopted an Impact Fee Ordinance No. 2020-00136; and

WHEREAS, since ordinance adoption, the City of Lubbock ( the " City") has accepted

large areas of land as voluntary petition annexations from various landowners, thereby changing
the size and boundaries of the City; and

WHEREAS, said increase necessitated an update to the capital improvements plan and
the service areas for Roadway Impact Fees as well as an Impact Fee Ordinance amendment to
address any future annexations ofproperty; and

WHEREAS, after notice of a public hearing was given, as required by the Statute, the
City Council held a public hearing on March 22, 2022, to discuss an update to the capital
improvements plan, Service Area map, and Impact Fee Ordinance amendments; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it to be in the best interest of the citizens of the City
of Lubbock to adopt and approve the amendments to the Impact Fees Ordinance herein; NOW, 
THEREFORE: 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

SECTION 1. THAT Section 41. 02.001 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Lubbock, Texas
is hereby amended as follows: 

Sec. 41. 02.001 Study adopted

The updated impact fee study dated December 2021 ( which includes an updated Roadway
Service Area map) is hereby approved, adopted, and incorporated herein for all purposes
consistent with this chapter. 



SECTION 2. THAT Section 41. 02.003( c) of the Code of Ordinances, City of Lubbock, 
Texas is hereby amended as follows: 

41.02.003. Impact Fees Adopted. 

c) A Roadway Impact Fee shall be assessed and charged against New Development in the
Service areas as set forth below. The number of service units applicable are identified in the

LUVMET table contained within the adopted study. 

Roadway Max Roadway Impact Collection Rate Collection Rate

Service Fee Per Service Unit

Area Effective before Updated Study) 
10/ 01 /2022* 

Effective on or after

10/ l/ 2022* 

A 855 439 427.50

B 655 327.50 327.50

C 825 412.50 412.50

D 623 319.50 311. 50

E 1, 011 497.50 503

F 1, 188 589.00 594

G 22 0 0

H 77 0 0

Impact Fee Reductions for Collection Rates. 

Roadway Impact Fees: Service Areas G & H shall receive a one hundred percent ( 100%) 

discount from the Maximum Impact Fee rate shown above in Sec. 41. 02.003( c) for all land uses. 

Roadway Impact Fees: All other Service Areas shall receive a fifty percent (50%) discount from

the Maximum Impact Fee rate shown above in Sec. 41. 02.003( c) for all land uses. 

$505.50



SECTION 3. THAT Section 41. 03.003 of the Code of Ordinances, City ofLubbock, Texas
is hereby amended by adding a section, to be numbered 41. 03. 003( g), which said section reads

as follows: 

41. 03.003. Assessment of Impact Fees

g) Newly Annexed Territories: Upon annexation, a newly annexed area shall be
immediately added into the nearest, adjacent Roadway Service Area so long as in doing so the
Roadway Service Area still complies with the distance requirements in Chapter 395 of the Texas
Local Government Code. The collection rate shall be assessed at the rate of the existing Roadway
Service Area and may be adjusted upon a future study update. 

In the event that said addition to the nearest, adjacent Roadway Service Area brings that
Roadway Service Area out of compliance with the distance requirements in Chapter 395 of the
Texas Local Government Code, a new impact fee study shall be commenced as soon as possible, 
and upon adoption of an updated study, the Roadway Service Areas shall be adjusted to
incorporate the newly annexed area. 

SECTION 4. THAT violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall be deemed a
misdemeanor punishable by a fine not to exceed applicable fines in accordance with Section
1. 01. 004 of the City Code of Ordinances. 

SECTION 5. THAT should any paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or work of this
Ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the remainder ofthis Ordinance
shall not be affected thereby. 

SECTION 6. THAT the City Secretary is hereby authorized to cause publication of the
descriptive caption of this Ordinance as an alternative method provided by law. 

AND IT IS SO ORDERED. 

Passed by the City Council on first reading this 12th day of April , 2022. 

Passed by the City Council on second reading this26th day of it , 2022. 

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

ATTEST: 

Q., 24, X, 
Rebec a Garza, City Secre



AS TO CONTENT: 

Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

i Leisure, Assistant City Attorney

AmendOrd. ImpactFees_ 2022

3. 29.22



































 AI# 12329 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 0804-C, a request of Westar
Commercial Realty for Cross Timber Land Holdings, LLC, for a zone change from Low Density
Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 219 and 301 Regis Street, located
south of Regis Street and west of North Interstate 27, on 3.524 acres of land including Teal Addition, the
south portion of the east 173.17 feet of Lot 5, and Teal Addition, the south portion of Lot 8, and the
South portion of the west 86.73 feet of Lot 5 and approximately 2.40 acres of unplatted land out of
Block A, Section 9, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on March 7, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
ZC804-C Ordinance 
ZC804-C_Report 
ZC804-C Documentation 











Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 0804-C 
City Council Meeting     March 26, 2024 

 
Applicant Westar Commercial Realty   
 
Property Owner  Cross Timber Land Holdings, LLC    
 
Council District   1 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of this request. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• September 11, 1958, Ordinance No. 2536: The subject properties were annexed into the City limits and 
zoned Transition District (T). 

• April 6, 1960, Zone Case 0804, Ordinance No. 3093: The subject properties were rezoned from T to 
Single-Family District (R-1). 

• April 24, 2014, Zone Case 2824-A, Ordinance No. 2014-O0050: The subject property was part of a larger 
zone change request from R-1 to Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI) on a total of 16.6 acres. 
The City Council removed the subject property from the request before the second reading of the 
ordinance and only approved the IHI zoning on the remaining 12.5 acres.  

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject properties were 
rezoned from R-1 to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with the adoption of the Unified 
Development Code. 

• March 7, 2024, Zone Case 0804-C: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
request to rezone the subject property from SF-2 to Heavy Commercial District (HC) by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 12 
• Received In Favor: 0 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The north portion of the subject properties was platted as Teal Subdivision, Section 9, Block A, Lots 5 and 8 on 
April 6, 1940. The remainder of the properties are unplatted. Overall, the properties remain vacant.  
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the north are zoned SF-2, vacant and Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) developed with 
a restaurant. To the east, the property is zoned Industrial Park District (IP) and is developed with a truck stop. 
To the south and west, the properties are zoned SF-2 and remain vacant.  
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject properties are addressed as 219 and 301 Regis Street, located south of Regis Street, and west of 
North Interstate 27. The applicant requests a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy 
Commercial District (HC).   
 
Current zoning:  Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2)  
 
Requested zoning:  Heavy Commercial District (HC). 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Intent Statements 
The purpose of the Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) District is to provide two types of residential subdivisions: 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is 
located on private lots. 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with an increased percentage of common open 
space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the 
district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well 
as for recreational amenities and resources protection. 
 

The intent of the proposed Heavy Commercial (HC) District zoning is, “… to provide for development of heavy 
vehicle repair, wholesale trade, and warehousing and freight movement uses that typically are characterized 
by outside storage of materials or merchandise. The district should be located away from residential areas or, 
if unavoidable, should be heavily buffered.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along Regis Street. The Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018, designates Regis 
Street, as a Principal Arterial. Arterial streets are continuous routes whose function is to serve the high-volume 
needs of local traffic and regional traffic.  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area, is appropriate adjacent to the current land 
uses, and will not change the character of the existing development.   
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Commercial” land uses. The proposed zone change to HC 
would be in conformance with the Commercial designation. This request would be appropriate next to adjacent 
land uses and zoning to the north and east, near a retail node, and fronting along an Arterial Street.    
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located along a major 
thoroughfare and is appropriately adjacent to the nearby land uses. 
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and may need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the Heavy Commercial (HC) District, as a portion of the properties are unplatted.  
 
Attachments 
A. Case Information      
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  
C.  Aerial Map 
D.  Zoning Map 
E.  Future Land Use Map 
F.  Photos 
G.  Application and supporting documentation 
 
 
Staff Contacts 
Ashley Padilla    Victor Escamilla 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2107    806-775-3029 
ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us    vescamilla@mylubbock.us  

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 

 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 0804-C 

 

Allowable Uses:   Heavy Commercial (HC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has an access point from Regis Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 

Development Plan 

Regis Street,  

Principal Arterial, 

Partially Completed 

R.O.W. 120 feet, two-lane, 

undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-

lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: 

 District 1 

3.1     Zone Case 804-C: Westar Commercial Realty for Cross Timber Land Holdings, LLC, request for a zone 

change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at:  

• 219 and 301 Regis Street, located south of Regis Street and west of North Interstate 27, on 3.524 

acres of land including Teal Addition, the south portion of the east 173.17 feet of Lot 5, and Teal 

Addition, the south portion of Lot 8 and the South portion of the west 86.73 feet of Lot 5 and 

approximately 2.40 acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 9.  

 

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA stated there were twelve (12) notifications sent out and none returned. Staff shared 

the location of the property, including pictures and maps, and discussed the surrounding properties. Staff 

recommends approval of the request. 

APPLICANT KEVIN WATT, 5709 79th Street, representing Westar Commercial Realty, advised they are requesting 

the zone change in order to sell the property at a later date. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

 

JORDAN WHEATLEY advised there are other commercial uses nearby and this would be a nice addition to the 

area. CHAIR BELL agreed. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 804-C, a motion was made by TANNER NOBLE and seconded by ZACH SAWYER to 

approve the zone case. The commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. The case 

will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 











0804-C 

 

Subject property. View to the south. 

 

 

View to the west.   

View to the north. 

 

View to the east. 









 AI# 12330 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 2565-G, a request of DLC
Designs, LLC for JGK, LLC, for a zone change from Heavy Commercial District (HC) to Neighborhood
Commercial District (NC), at 2728 and 2730 Texas Avenue, located west of Texas Avenue and north of
29th Street, Texas Avenue Addition, Block 1, Lots 1 and 2, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on March 7, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
ZC2565-G_Ordinance 
ZC2565-G_Report 
ZC2565-G Documentation 







Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report Zone Case 2565-G 
City Council Meeting  March 26, 2024 

 

Applicant DLC Designs, LLC 
 

Property Owner JGK, LLC 
 

Council District 1 

 
Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 
Prior Board or Council Action 

 April 22, 1909, Ordinance No. V1 P12: The subject property was established as part of the original City 
limits. 

 March 13, 1941, Ordinance No. 661: The subject property was zoned Light Manufacturing District (M-1).   

 May 22, 1952, Zone Case 350, Ordinance No. 1217: The subject property was rezoned from M-1 to 
Commercial District (C-4). 

 August 14, 1986, Zone Case 2565, Ordinance No. 8947: The subject property was rezoned from C-4 to 
Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC). 

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 
from IHC to Heavy Commercial District (HC) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code.   

 March 7, 2024, Zone Case 2565-G: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
request to rezone the subject property from HC to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) by a vote of 
8-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 18 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was originally platted as Texas Avenue Addition, Block 1, Lots 1 and 2 on April 24, 1939. 
The property is currently undeveloped vacant land.  

 
Adjacent Property Development 

The properties to the north, south and west are vacant commercial buildings zoned Heavy Commercial (HC). To 

the east is Heavy Commercial (HC) zoning developed with a commercial building.  

 

Item Summary 

The subject property is located at 2728 and 2730 Texas Avenue, located west of Texas Avenue and north of 29th 

Street, Texas Avenue Addition, Block 1, Lots 1 and 2. The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from 

Heavy Commercial District (HC) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC).    

 
Current zoning: Heavy Commercial District (HC)  

 
Requested zoning: Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 

 
Purpose Statements 
The purpose of Heavy Commercial District “is to provide or development of heavy vehicle repair, wholesale 
trade, warehousing and freight movement uses that typically are characterized by outside storage of materials 



Page 2 of 2 
 

or merchandise. The district should be located away from residential areas or, if unavoidable, should be heavily 
buffered.  
 
The purpose of Neighborhood Commercial District “is to provide for small-scale retail and moderate density 
residential uses located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design standards that are 
compatible and have adjacent residential uses.  

 
   Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The location is along Texas Avenue which is designated as a Collector Street, by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 
2018. Collector streets provide access and movement within residential, commercial, and industrial areas.  

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The subject property is located on Texas Avenue and near I-27 and surrounded by commercially zoned districts. 

The zoning change to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) will not change the surrounding area or the 

character of the existing development.     

 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The future land use map designates this property for commercial land uses. The proposed zone change to NC 

would be in conformance with the Future Land Use Plan and the Comprehensive Plan Principles.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed zoning of NC, but would require rezoning to meet width standards of NC 
zoning prior to related building permits being issued.  

 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Map 

C. Aerial Map 

D. Zoning Map 

E. Future Land Use Map 

F. Photos 

G. Application and supporting documentation 

 

 
Staff Contacts 

Gregory Hernandez Victor Escamilla 

Planner Planning and Zoning Manager  

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-3147 806-775-3029 

ghernandez@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

  
 
 
 
 

mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A     Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 2565-G 

Allowable Uses:  Neighborhood Commercial (NC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has point of access from Texas Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Texas Avenue, 
Collector Street, 

Completed  

R.O.W. 30 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 20 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments: No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 1 

3.2 Zone Case 2565-G: DLC Designs, LLC for JGK, LLC, request for a zone change from Heavy 
Commercial District (HC) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), at: 

• 2728 and 2730 Texas Avenue, located west of Texas Avenue and north of 29th Street,
Texas Avenue Addition, Block 1, Lots 1 and 2.

PLANNER GREG HERNANDEZ stated there were eighteen (18) notifications sent out and none returned. Staff 
shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding property. Staff 
recommends approval of this request. 

TANNER NOBLE asked why the zone change was needed. MR. HERNANDEZ advised the UDC requires a minimum 
lot width of 100 feet in the HC District and the property does not meet that requirement. 

APPLICANT AMANDA KING, 1318 North King Avenue, with DLC Designs, LLC, advised the lot width does not meet 
the requirement, which is the reason for the request. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2565-G, a motion was made by BRANDON HARDAWAY and seconded by JORDAN 
WHEATLEY to approve the zone case as presented. The commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 
approve the motion. The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-579










2565-G 
 
 

 

      View of subject property to the west.                       View to the east. 
  
 

 

 

View to the south.    View to the north. 





 AI# 12331 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 2): Consider a request for Zone Case 3497, a request of Martin
Meza for Beatriz Torres, for a Neighborhood Infill Overlay District (NIO) on property zoned Low
Density Single-Family District (SF-2), at 2402 East 29th Street, located south of East 29th Street and
east of Walnut Avenue, Manhattan Heights Addition, Lot 249, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends denial of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on March 7, 2024, and recommended denial of the request by a vote of 1-7-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
ZC3497_Ordinance 
ZC3497_Report 
ZC3497_Documentation 







Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3497 
City Council Meeting  March 26, 2024 

 

Applicant Martin Meza   

 

Property Owner  Beatrice Torres 

 

Council District   2 

 

Recommendations   

• Staff recommends Denial of this request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• April 9, 1953, Ordinance No. 1339: The subject property was annexed into city limits. 

• November 24, 1953, Zone Case 457, Ordinance No. 1486: The subject property was zoned Single-Family 

District (A). 

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 

from Single-Family District (R-1) to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with the adoption of the 

Unified Development Code. 

• March 7, 2024, Zone Case 3497: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of a request 

for a Neighborhood Infill Overlay District (NIO) on property zoned Low Density Single-Family District 

(SF-2) by a vote of 1-7-0. 

Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 78 

• Received In Favor: 2 

• Received In Opposition: 2 

 

Site Conditions and History 

This property was platted as Manhattan Heights Addition, Lot 249 on April 7, 1960. The structure on the property 

was built in 1960 as well. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The surrounding properties are single family homes and are zoned Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2). 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 2402 East 29th Street, located south of East 29th Street and east of Walnut 

Avenue. The applicant is requesting a Neighborhood Infill Overlay District (NIO) in order to permit a new accessory 

dwelling unit on property with a lot area less than 10,000 square feet. 

 

Current zoning:  Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 

 

Requested zoning:  Neighborhood Infill Overlay District (NIO) 

 

Intent Statements 

The purpose of the Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) district is to provide two types of residential subdivisions: 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space 

is located on private lots. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with in increased percentage of common 
open space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended 
character of the district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent 
neighborhoods, as well as for recreational amenities and resources protection.” 

 
The intent of the proposed Neighborhood Infill Overlay District is “…to promote infill and redevelopment that 
ensures compatibility between uses, encourages and protects future development, and promotes, stabilizes, and 
enhances a neighborhood.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  
The location is along East 29th Street and Walnut Avenue which are both designated as Local Streets. Local Streets 
provide access to smaller, destination oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business 
districts. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed Neighborhood Infill Overlay District (NIO) would not be compatible with the surrounding property 
as the surrounding area is built out and the purpose of the request does not pertain to infill or redevelopment. 
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed NIO is not in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The NIO would permit an accessory dwelling 
unit on a lot of 6,000 square feet or greater. Otherwise, the accessory dwelling unit would only be permitted on 
lots of 10,000 square feet or greater.   
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed residential use, though a total of 3 off-street parking spaces would be 
required as there is currently only one provided. 
 
Attachments 

A.  Case Information      
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  
C. Notification Map 
D.  Location Map 
E. Aerial Map 
F.  Zoning Map 
G.  Photos 
H.  Application and supporting documentation 
I. Notification Responses 
 

 
Staff Contacts 
Shane Spencer     Victor Escamilla 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2103    806-775-3029 
sspencer@mylubbock.us  vescamilla@mylubbock.us 
 
 
 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A     Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 3497 

Allowable Uses: Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with a Neighborhood Infill Overlay (NIO) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from East 29th Street and Walnut 
Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

East 29th Street, Local 
Street, Complete 

R.O.W. 35 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 35 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

Walnut Avenue, Local 
Street, Complete 

R.O.W. 35 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 35 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 2 

3.3 Zone Case 3497: Martin Meza for Beatriz Torres, request for a Neighborhood Infill Overlay District 
(NIO) on property zoned Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2), at: 

• 2402 East 29th Street, located south of East 29th Street and east of Walnut Avenue,
Manhattan Heights Addition, Lot 249.

PLANNER SHANE SPENCER stated there were seventy-eight (78) notifications sent out with two (2) returned in 
favor and two (2) returned in opposition. Those opposed expressed concerns regarding an increase in trash and 
lack of parking. Staff shared the location of the property, including pictures and maps and discussed the 
surrounding properties. Staff recommends denial of the request. 

ZACH SAWYER asked if the accessory dwelling unit was new. SHANE SPENCER advised it does appear to be a 
garage that has been converted into a dwelling unit.  

APPLICANT MARTIN MEZA, 2409 Hickory Avenue, representing Ms. Torres, advised the project to turn the garage 
into a dwelling unit was underway when Ms. Torres purchased the property. They now need permission to finish 
the conversion to a dwelling unit. No one has been living in the structure and it has been vacant. Ms. Torres does 
not currently live on the property. It will have a restroom, kitchen, and two bedrooms. There is a renter currently 
living in the main home on the property.  

MS. CAGE asked if there is enough room to add the additional required parking spaces. MR. MEZA advised there 
is room. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1827
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1668


Zone Case 3497 

Attachment A     Page 2 of 2 

PLANNING DIRECTOR KRISTEN SAGER advised that a two-car, off-street parking requirement is a standard 
requirement for each residential property. However, the subject property shows to only have one off-street space. 
Approval of an accessory dwelling unit requires a third off-street parking space, so the applicant would have to 
provide two additional paved spaces. MR. MEZA replied they could meet the requirement. 

TANNER NOBLE asked staff whether the recommendation of denial was related, not to the lot size or parking 
requirements, but rather the Overlay request. SHANE SPENCER replied the Overlay is the reason for 
recommending denial.  

OPPOSED – KATHYL ANDERSON, 2914 Ute Avenue, advised this request will bring more traffic and on-street 
parking. This is not the type of new development they need in this neighborhood. 

OPPOSED – ROSE WILLIAMS, 2122 East 30th Street, advised this building used to be an open garage.  
There are many homes that are not requesting permission in this neighborhood. A daycare is run out of her 
neighbor’s house with 10 to 15 kids. There is a lot of traffic blocking the driveways and congesting the streets. 
Some people put trailer homes in the rear of the properties to live in.  
No one spoke in favor of the request. 

JORDAN WHEATLEY advised if someone is trying to make the property better and can meet the parking 
requirement, then he is in favor. The structure has clearly been there a long time. It looks like it would work. 

ZACH SAWYER asked if there was no other option for the applicant to get the project going but to request an Infill 
Overlay. DIRECTOR KRISTEN SAGER advised they could request a variance to vary the minimum lot area 
requirement, but it is much harder to meet the requirements necessary to get an approval on a variance. 

SCOTT GLOYNA advised this is not an area that needs infill. It is someone trying to put a small apartment in the 
back. This is not what the neighborhood needs and is not what the Overlay intended to do. 

TANNER NOBLE advised he agrees with Mr. Gloyna. This is not infill. CHAIR BELL agreed. RENEE CAGE advised 
they cannot meet the requirements. TERRI MORRIS agreed. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3497, a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by ZACH SAWYER to 
approve the request. The Commission members voted 1 (in favor) to 7 (in opposition) to approve the motion. The 
case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

JORDAN WHEATLEY cast the vote in favor. 













3497 

 

 

View to the south. Subject Property. 

 

  

View to the east.  

 

View to the north.  

 

View to the west.  

 



3497 

 

 

View of Detached Garage 

 













 AI# 12333 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 3298-E, a request of Hugo
Reed & Associates for Ford Development, for a zone change from Industrial Park District (IP) to
Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), at 14202, 14204, 14206, 14208, 14210, 14212, 14214 and
14216 Indiana Avenue, south of 141st Street and west of Indiana Avenue, Eastwick Commercial
Addition, Tracts B-1-A through B-3-C, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on March 7, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
ZC3298-E_Ordinance 
ZC3298-E_Report 
ZC3298-E_Documentation 









Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3298-E 
City Council Meeting March 26, 2024 

 
Applicant Hugo Reed & Associates, Inc. 
 
Property Owner  Ford Development  
 
Council District   4 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of this request. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• April 28, 2016, Ordinance No. 2016-O0054: The subject properties were annexed into City limits and 
zoned Transition District (T). 

• December 5, 2016, Zone Case 3298, Ordinance No. 2016-O0180: The subject properties were rezoned 
from T to Industrial Park District (IDP). 

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject properties were rezoned 
from IDP to Industrial Park District (IP) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

• March 7, 2024, Zone Case 3298-E: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
request to rezone the subject property from IP to Neighborhood Commercial (NC) by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 51 
• Received In Favor: 2 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject properties were originally platted as Eastwick Commercial Addition, Tract D on April 23, 2019 and 
later replatted as Eastwick Commercial Addition, Tracts B-1-A through B-3-C on July 13, 2020. The subject 
properties consist of 3.6 acres of vacant land.  

 
Adjacent Property Development  
The area surrounding the subject properties consist of vacant land zoned Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 
to the north, single-family residences zoned Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to the west, vacant land 
zoned SF-2 and NC to the east, and a self-storage facility zoned Heavy Commercial District (HC) to the south. 
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is located south of 141st Street and west of Indiana Avenue, Eastwick Commercial Addition, 
Tracts B-1-A through B-3-C. The applicant is requesting a zone change from Industrial Park District (IP) to 
Neighborhood Commercial District (NC).  
 
Current zoning:  Industrial Park District (IP)  
 
 
Requested zoning:  Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 
 
  



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Intent Statements 
The purpose of the Industrial Park District (IP) is “to provide for low-impact manufacturing, wholesaling, 
warehousing, and distribution activities that occur within enclosed buildings, typically within industrial park 
settings.  
  
The intent of the proposed Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) zoning is “to provide for small-scale retail 
and moderate density residential uses located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site 
design standards that are compatible and have adjacent residential uses.  
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located south of 141st Street, which is designated as a local street and west of Indiana Avenue, 
which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local streets typically provide 
access to smaller, oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts. Arterials are 
continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of local and regional traffic. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Residential Low-Density land uses. While the proposed zone 
change to NC is not in conformance with this designation, it is appropriate at this location due to the mixture 
of zoning districts surrounding the property and is located along a thoroughfare. 
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map  
The proposed zone change to NC is in harmony with the surrounding area and will not change the character of 
the existing development. The requested zone change is appropriate being a less intense zoning district that is 
adjacent to NC and residential uses and along a thoroughfare.  
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change request to NC is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate 
at the proposed location.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed zoning of NC and would not require additional infrastructure 
improvements to accommodate the uses allowed in the NC zoning district.  
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Notification Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E. Zoning Map 
F. Future Land Use Map 
G. Photos 
H. Application and Supporting Documentation 
I. Notification Responses 

 
Staff Contacts 
Cassie Bermea    Victor Escamilla  
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2096    806-775-3029 
cassiebermea@mylubbock.us  vescamilla@mylubbock.us 
 
 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=812
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=812
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=770
mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3298-E 

 

Allowable Uses:   Neighborhood Commercial (NC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Indiana Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Indiana Avenue, 
Principal Arterial  

 

R.O.W. 70 feet, three-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

   
  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

      District 4 

3.4 Zone Case 3298-E: Hugo Reed & Associates, Inc., for Ford Development, request for a zone change 
from Industrial Park District (IP) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), at: 

• 14202, 14204, 14206, 14208, 14210, 14212, 14214 and 14216 Indiana Avenue, South 
of 141st Street and west of Indiana Avenue, Eastwick Commercial Addition, Tracts B-
1-A through B-3-C. 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA stated there were fifty-one (51) notifications sent out with two (2) returned in favor 
and none in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property, including pictures and maps and discussed 
the surrounding properties. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

APPLICANT TERRY HOLEMAN, 1601 Avenue N, with Hugo Reed & Associates, Inc., discussed the history of the 
property. It was zoned Industrial Park District (IDP) limited to C-2 uses and warehouses. However, they now 
need to replat the property and will not be compliant with the IP zoning in the UDC. The request is a downzone 
and will allow a small commercial retail park. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition of the request.  
 
In the matter of Zone Case 3298-E, a motion was made by BRANDON HARDAWAY and seconded by ZACH SAWYER 
to approve the case as presented. The Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the 
motion. The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 
 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx?secid=579&keywords=nc%27s%2Cnc#secid-579












3298-E

East View.

North View. South View.

West View.







 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

PROPOSED NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL ZONING 
 
 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of an approximate 3.6 acre tract of land located in Section 4, Block AK, 
Lubbock County, Texas, being further described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a point in the West right-of-way line of Indiana Avenue for the Northeast corner of Tract “A”, 
Discount Storage at Kelsey Park and the Southeast corner of this tract which bears N. 01°45'55” E. a distance of 
613.00 feet and N. 88°12’49” W. a distance of 55.00 feet from the Southeast corner of Section 4, Block AK, 
Lubbock County, Texas; 
 
THENCE N. 88°12'49” W., along the Northern boundary of said Tract “A”, a distance of 288.40 feet to a point for the 
Southeast corner of Tract “C”, Eastwick Commercial and the Southwest corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE N. 01°47'11” E., along the Eastern boundary of said Tract “C” and the Eastern boundary of Tract “B”, 
Eastwick at Kelsey Park, for a total distance of 544.50 feet to a point for the Southwest corner of Tract “D”, said 
Eastwick Commercial and the Northwest corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 88°12'49” E., along a Southern boundary of said Tract “D”, a distance of 288.20 feet to a point in the 
West right-of-way line of said Indiana Avenue, at the Southeast corner of said Tract “D” and the Northeast corner of 
this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 01°45'55” W., along the West right-of-way line of said Indiana Avenue, a distance of 544.50 feet to the 
Point of Beginning. 
 
PREPARED FOR ZONE CHANGE PURPOSES. DOES NOT REPRESENT AN ACTUAL SURVEY. 
 
Prepared for Ford Development  
Contains: 3.6 Acres 
January 31, 2024 
 
 









 AI# 12335 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 5. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Consider a request for Zone Case 2985-E, a request of
Seventeen Services, LLC for Cody Craig Custom Homes, LLC, for a zone change from High Density
Residential District (HDR) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Low Density Single-Family
(SF-2), generally located North of 114th Street and west of Elkhart Avenue, on 7.44 acres of unplatted
land out of Block E2, Section 25, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on March 7, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
ZC2985-E_Ordinance 
ZC2985-E_Report 
Zone Case 2985-E Documentation 









BEING a 2.21 acre tract of land out of the proposed Elkhart Townhomes Addition to the City of 
Lubbock, said Elkhart Townhomes Addition, being the same as a 7.44 acres tract of land 
described in a Special Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien to Cody Craig Custom Homes, LLC., 
recorded in County Clerk File Number 2023030032, Official Public Records, Lubbock County, 
Texas, situated in Section 25, Block E2, of the LA PATILLO Survey, Abstract 269, Lubbock 
County, Texas and being further described by metes and bounds as follows; 

BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch iron rod with yellow cap stamped “HUGO REED & ASSOC.” (N: 
7,242,421.07', E: 920,906.65') found for the southwest corner of this tract on the north line of 
114th Street (110 feet Right-of-Way), as described in a Street Dedication Deed, recorded in 
County Clerk File Number 2010019980, Official Public Records, Lubbock County, Texas, from 
which a 1/2 inch iron rod with yellow cap stamped “HUGO REED & ASSOC.” found for a corner 
of the remainder of a called 17.43 acres tract of land described in a Special Warranty Deed to 
Panhandle Land Investments I, LP., recorded in County Clerk File Number 2021000735, Official 
Public Records, Lubbock County, Texas, bears North 88°43’35” West, 361.87 feet; 

THENCE North 01°45’38” East, along the west line of Tract B of said Elkhart Townhomes 
Addition, a distance of 180.24 feet to a Point for a corner of this tract and being the same as the 
southwest corner of Tract C of said Elkhart Townhomes Addition and Northwest corner of said 
Tract B; 

THENCE South 88°29’36” East, a distance of 538.46 feet to a Point for the northeast corner of 
this tract and being the same as the northeast corner of Tract A and southeast corner of Tract E 
of said of said Elkhart Townhomes Addition, on the west line of Elkhart Avenue (56 feet Right-of-
Way), as shown on the 114th & Elkhart Office Park Addition, recorded as County Clerk’s File 
Number 2021002807 of the Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas; 

THENCE South 01°31’10” West, along the common east line of said Tract A and west line of 
said Elkhart Avenue, a distance of 163.05 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with yellow cap stamped 
“HUGO REED & ASSOC.” found for the most eastern southeast corner of this tract and being 
the same as a corner of said 114th & Elkhart Office Park Addition; 

THENCE South 46°21’59” West, along said common line, a distance of 21.23 feet to a 1/2 inch 
iron rod with yellow cap stamped “HUGO REED & ASSOC.” found for the most southern 
southeast corner of this tract on the north line of said 114th Street; 

THENCE North 88°43’35” West, along the north line of said 114th Street, a distance of 524.25 
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing within these calls a calculated area of 2.21 
acres (96,412 square feet) of land. 

Exhibit "A"
NC Zoning Request



BEING a 5.23 acre tract of land out of the proposed Elkhart Townhomes Addition to the City of 
Lubbock, said Elkhart Townhomes Addition being the same as a 7.44 acres tract of land 
described in a Special Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien to Cody Craig Custom Homes, LLC., 
recorded in County Clerk File Number 2023030032, Official Public Records, Lubbock County, 
Texas, situated in Section 25, Block E2, of the LA PATILLO Survey, Abstract 269, Lubbock 
County, Texas and being further described by metes and bounds as follows; 

BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch iron rod with red cap stamped “AMD ENGINEERING found for the 
northeast corner of this tract and being the same as the northeast corner of said Elkhart 
Townhomes Addition, the northeast corner of Tract E of said Elkhart Townhomes Addition, and a 
corner of the Springfield Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, as shown in 
County Clerk File Number 2014013666, Official Public Records, Lubbock County, Texas, on the 
west Right-of-Way line of Elkhart Avenue (56 feet Right-of-Way) as shown on said Springfield 
Addition; 

THENCE South 01°31’10” West, along the common east line of the plat limits of said Elkhart 
Townhomes Addition and west line of said Elkhart Avenue, a distance of 385.00 feet to a Point 
for the southeast corner of this tract and being the same as the southeast corner of said Tract E; 

THENCE North 88°29’36” West, a distance of 538.46 feet to a Point for the southwest corner 
of this tract on the west line of said Elkhart Townhomes Addition and being the same as the 
southwest corner of Tract C of said Elkhart Townhomes Addition; 

THENCE North 01°45’38” East, along the west line of said Elkhart Townhomes Addition, a 
distance of 79.84 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with yellow cap stamped “COBB FENDLEY 
BOUNDARY” set for a corner of this tract and being the same as a corner for said Elkhart 
Townhomes Addition; 

THENCE North 88°29’25” West, along a south line of said Elkhart Townhomes Addition, a 
distance of 67.68 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with cap stamped “HUGO REED & ASSOC.” found 
for a corner of this tract and being the same as a corner of said Elkhart Townhomes Addition 
and southwest corner of Lot 25 of said Elkhart Townhomes Addition; 

THENCE North 01°45’59” East, along the west line of said Elkhart Townhomes Addition, a 
distance of 305.16 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with cap stamped “HUGO REED & ASSOC.” found 
for the northwest corner of this tract and being the same as the northwest corner of said Elkhart 
Townhomes Addition and Lot 16 of said Elkhart Townhomes Addition on the south line of a 20 
feet wide alley dedicated by said Springfield Addition; 

THENCE South 88°29’36” East, along the common north line of said Elkhart Townhomes 
Addition and said 20 feet wide alley, a distance of 604.49 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING 
and containing within these calls a calculated area of 5.23 acres (227,643 square feet) of land. 

Exhibit "A"
SF-2 Zoning Request



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2985-E 
City Council Meeting March 26, 2024 

 

Applicant   Seventeen Services, LLC 

Property Owner  Cody Craig Custom Homes, LLC 

 

Council District   5 

 

Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• January 14, 1999, Ordinance No. 10117: The subject property was annexed into City limits and zoned 

Transition District (T). 

• December 18, 2003, Zone Case 2985, Ordinance No. 2003–O0129: The property was rezoned from T to 

Single-Family District (R-1) and High-Density Apartment District (A-2). 

• December 15, 2016, Zone Case 2985-B, Ordinance No. 2016–O0179: The property was rezoned from R-1 

and A-2 to High-Density Apartment District (A-2). 

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 

from A-2 to High Density Residential District (HDR) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

• March 7, 2024, Zone Case 2985-E: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

request to rezone the subject property from HDR to Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) and Neighborhood 

Commercial (NC) by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 112 

• Received In Favor: 3 

• Received In Opposition: 2 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property consists of 7.44 acres of un-platted vacant land out of Block E2, Section 25.  

 

Adjacent Property Development  

Properties to the north and east are single-family houses and a daycare center zoned Low Density Single-Family 

District (SF-2) and HDR. The southern properties are developed with offices zoned Office District (OF). The 

western property is un-platted vacant land zoned Auto-Urban Commercial (AC).  

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 5720 114th Street, generally located north of 114th Street and west of Elkhart 

Avenue. The applicant requests a zone change from High Density Residential District (HDR) to both Low Density 

Single-Family District (SF-2) and Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), to allow for a new subdivision and 

commercial development. 

Current zoning:  High Density Residential (HDR) 

 

Requested zoning:  Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) and Neighborhood Commercial (NC) 

 

  



Page 2 of 3 

 

Intent Statements 

 

The intent of the current HDR zoning is to provide for three subdivision types: 

A. Conventional. Single-family detached, cottage, or garden homes on public utilities with open space 

provided on private lots. 

B. Village. Mixed housing types, including townhouses, detached single-family garden homes, and low- 

to mid-rise apartments, located in a planned development or adjacent to a mixed-use district or 

center. Buildings are typically in close proximity to the street edge. The building mass, height, and scale 

transition to the neighboring land uses. 

C. Mixed-Use. Mid- to high-rise apartment development in a mixed-use district or center. The district 

consists of detached single-family garden homes, live-work buildings, and other vertically mixed-use 

buildings.  Urban open space may be used for plazas and squares. 
 

The intent of the proposed NC zoning is “to provide for small-scale retail and moderate density residential uses 

located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design standards that are compatible and 

have adjacent residential uses.” 

 

The intent of the proposed SF-2 zoning is to provide for two subdivision types: 

 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is located 

on private lots.     

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with an increased percentage of common open 

space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the 

district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well 

as for recreational amenities and resource protection.   

 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located north of 114th Street, which is designated as a Minor Arterial (Partial), and west of Elkhart 
Avenue, which is designated as a Local Street by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Minor Arterials (Partial) 
provide connectivity across the transportation network serving high volume needs of local and regional traffic. 
Local streets typically provide access to smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions, 
or local business districts. 
 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for both Medium Density Residential and Commercial land uses. 

The proposed zone change is moderately compatible with this designation. The proposed Neighborhood 

Commercial zoning is along a major street, blocking the residential development from high traffic and SF-2 is 

more restrictive than MDR. Therefore, these proposed zoning requests comply with the Comprehensive Plan 

Principles.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed district, as it would not change the characteristics of the existing 

neighborhood. 

 

  



Page 3 of 3 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and Supporting Documentation 

I. Notification Responses 

 

 

Staff Contacts 

Victoria Lewelling   Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2021    806-775-3029 

vlewelling@mylubbock.us  vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

 

 



Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2985-E 

 

Allowable Uses: Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) | Neighborhood Commercial District (AC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 114th Street and Elkhart 
Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

114th Street, Minor 
Arterial, Partial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 7 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

Elkhart Avenue, Local 
Street, Complete 

R.O.W. 50 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. N/A 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 5 
 

3.6       Zone Case 2985-E: Seventeen Services, LLC for Cody Craig Custom Homes, LLC, request for a zone 
change from High Density Residential District (HDR) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 
and Low Density Single-Family (SF-2), at: 

• Generally located north of 114th Street and west of Elkhart Avenue, on 7.44 acres of 
unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 25. 

PLANNER VICTORIA LEWELLING stated there were one-hundred and twelve (112) notifications sent out with one 
(3) returned in favor and two (2) returned in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property, including 
pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding properties. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

APPLICANT K’LEIGH HERNANDEZ, with Seventeen Services, LLC, 1500 Broadway, Suite 203, advised she was 
available for questions. 

JORDAN WHEATLEY asked if the plan was to develop townhomes. MS. HERNANDEZ advised that was correct, 
but the property would be zoned SF-2 and be adjacent to the existing SF-2 to the north. Each structure varies 
from 4-6 units and they were a combination of one and to two-story units.   

No one spoke in favor or in opposition of the request.  

JORDAN WHEATLEY advised he likes that there is a buffer of townhomes between the proposed commercial 
and existing single-family. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1827
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-579


Zone Case 2985-E 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

CHAIR BELL stated the townhomes look to be a good fit with the surrounding area. 
 
In the matter of Zone Case 2985-E, a motion was made by ZACH SAWYER and seconded by SCOTT GLOYNA to 
approve the case as presented. The Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the 
motion. The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 

 













2985-E. 5720 114th Street.

View to the north. Subject Property. View to the south. 

View to the east. View to the west. 



K'Leigh Hernandez01/26/2024

01/29/2024



K'Leigh Hernandez01/26/2024

01/29/2024













 

3301 101st Street                                              Lubbock, Texas 79423                                     806.780.7000 
24K.health 

 
 
March 1, 2024 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission 
City of Lubbock 
Via email: CityPlanning@mylubbock.us 
 
RE: P&Z Case Number 2985-E  R336235 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
I write in favor of the above referenced case pending before the Planning and 
Zoning Commission, with a hearing scheduled for March 7, 2024. 
 
I write in my capacity as Practice Administrator of Theerapol Prasertsuntarasai 
MD PA d/b/a West Texas Arthritis Clinic, which is located at 5609 114th Street, 
Lubbock, Texas 79424. 
 
We appreciate the Planning and Zoning Commission’s support in the continued 
growth and development of this area of the city.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Greg Bruce, MPA 
Practice Administrator, West Texas Arthritis Clinic  
Co-Founder, 24 Karat Health Solutions 
 
 



https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download


 AI# 12336 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 6. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Consider a request for Zone Case 3498, a request of Hot and
Juicy Seafood, LLC for Texas Brothers, LLC, for a zone change from Industrial Park District (IP) to
Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 5004 Frankford Avenue, Suite 460-A, located west of Frankford
Avenue and south of 50th Street, Frankford Business Park Addition, Lots 4-A and 5, and consider an
ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on March 7, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
ZC3498_Ordinance 
ZC3498_Report 
ZC3498_Documentation 







Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report Zone Case 3498 
City Council Meeting March 26, 2024 

 

Applicant Hot and Juicy Seafood, LLC 
 

Property Owner Texas Brothers, LLC 
 

Council District 5 

 
Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 
Prior Board or Council Action 

 September 11, 1958, Ordinance No. 2535: The subject property was annexed into the City limits and 
zoned Single-Family District (R-1).   

 August 9, 1990, Zone Case 2651, Ordinance No. 9368: The subject property was rezoned from R-1 to 
Industrial Park District (IDP). 

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 
from IDP to Industrial Park District (IP) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code.   

 March 7, 2024, Zone Case 3498: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
request to rezone the subject property from IP to Heavy Commercial District (HC) by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 24 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was originally platted as Frankford Business Park Addition, Lots 4 and 5 on January 14, 
2002. Frankford Business Park Addition, Lot 4 was replatted on August 26, 2004. The property is currently 
developed as a shopping center, built in 2006.  

 
Adjacent Property Development 

The properties to the west are zoned IP developed with a commercial building, and Low Density Single-Family 

District (SF-2) as part of a public park. To the north, properties are zoned Heavy Commercial District (HC), and 

Light Industrial District (LI) developed with commercial buildings. The property to the east is zoned HC and 

developed with a commercial building. The property to the south is zoned IP and is developed with a 

commercial building. 

 

Item Summary 

The subject property is located at 5004 Frankford Avenue, Suite 460-A, located west of Frankford Avenue and 

south of 50th Street, Frankford Business Park Addition, Lots 4-A and 5. The applicant is requesting to rezone the 

property from Industrial Park District (IP) to Heavy Commercial District (HC).    

 
Current zoning: Industrial Park District (IP)  

 
Requested zoning: Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

 
Purpose Statements 
The purpose of Industrial Park District “is to provide for low-impact manufacturing, wholesaling, warehousing, and 
distribution activities that occur within enclosed buildings, typically within industrial park settings.” 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

The purpose of Heavy Commercial District “is to provide or development of heavy vehicle repair, wholesale 
trade, warehousing and freight movement uses that typically are characterized by outside storage of materials 
or merchandise. The district should be located away from residential areas or, if unavoidable, should be heavily 
buffered.  

 
   Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The location is along Frankford Avenue which is designated as a minor arterial, and 50th Street which is 
designated as a local street by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial streets are continuous routes whose 
function is to serve high volume needs of local traffic and regional traffic. Local streets provide access to 
smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts.  

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The subject property is located on Frankford Avenue and is developed with commercial uses. The down zoning 

to the proposed Heavy Commercial District will not change the surrounding area or the character of the existing 

development.     

 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The future land use map designates this property for commercial land uses. The proposed zone change to HC 

would be in conformance with the Future Land Use Plan and the Comprehensive Plan Principles.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed zoning of HC and would not require additional infrastructure 
improvements to accommodate the uses allowed in the HC zoning district.  

 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Map 

C. Aerial Map 

D. Zoning Map 

E. Future Land Use Map 

F. Photos 

G. Application and supporting documentation 

 
Staff Contacts 

Gregory Hernandez Victor Escamilla 

Planner Planning and Zoning Manager  

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-3147 806-775-3029 

ghernandez@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

  
 
 
 
 

mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3498 

 

Allowable Uses:    Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Frankford Avenue and 50th 

Street.    

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 

Development Plan 

Frankford Avenue, 

Minor Arterial Street, 

Completed  

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-lane, 

undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-lane, 

undivided, paved 

50th Street, 

Local Street,  

Completed 

 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-lane,  

undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-lane, 

Undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 5 

 

3.7   Zone Case 3498: Hot and Juicy Seafood, LLC for Texas Brothers, LLC, request for a zone change 

from Industrial Park District (IP) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at: 

• 5004 Frankford Avenue, Suite 460-A, located west of Frankford Avenue and south of 

50th Street, Frankford Business Park Addition, Lots 4-A and 5. 

PLANNER GREG HERNANDEZ stated there were twenty-four (24) notifications sent out with none returned. 

Staff shared the location of the property, including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding properties. 

Staff recommends approval of the request.  

TANNER NOBLE asked staff why the applicant was requesting a lesser zoning designation. 

GREG HERNANDEZ advised that under the UDC, the IP designation does not stack as the equivalent zoning in 

the previous code did. The land use request is for personal service, specifically a massage parlor, which is not a 

permitted use in IP.    

JOHNNY ZARAZUA, 1905 44th Street, representing the property owner, advised they are wanting to rezone the 

suite in order to open a massage parlor. 

 



Zone Case 3498 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 

 

 

TANNER NOBLE noted for clarification that the request is only on the suite and not the whole property. GREG 

HERNANDEZ said he tried to contact the owner to see if he would like to include the entire property in the 

request. The owner never responded. The down-zone is specific to Suite 460-A. 

 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 3498, a motion was made by ZACH SAWYER and seconded by TANNER NOBLE to 

approve the request. The Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. The 

case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 











3498 
 
 

 

      View of subject property to the west.                       View to the east. 
  
 

 

 

View to the south.    View to the north. 





 AI# 12337 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 7. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 6): Consider a request for Zone Case 2573-T, a request of Parkhill
for UMC Health System, for a zone change from High Density Residential District (HDR) to
Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 5406 Colgate Street, located north of Colgate Street and west
of North Slide Road, North Park Addition, Tract K-1, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on March 7, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a vote
of 6-0-2.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
ZC2573-T_Ordinance 
ZC2573-T_Report 
ZC2573-T Documentation 







Page 1 of 3 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2573-T 
City Council Meeting March 26, 2024 

 

Applicant   Parkhill 

Property Owner  UMC Health System 

 

Council District   6 

 

Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• September 11, 1958, Ordinance No. 2536: The subject property was annexed into City limits and zoned 

Single-Family District (R-1). 

• May 6, 2004, Zone Case 2573-F, Ordinance No. 2004–O0051: The property was rezoned from R-1 to High-

Density Apartment District (A-2). 

• June 11, 2015, Zone Case 2573-O, Ordinance No. 2015–O0062: The property was rezoned from A-2 to 

Apartment-Medical District (AM). 

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 

from AM to High Density Residential District (HDR) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

• March 7, 2024, Zone Case 2573-T: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

request to rezone the subject property from HDR to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) by a vote of 

6-0-2. 

 

Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 114 

• Received In Favor: 0 

• Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was originally platted as North Park Addition, Tract K on June 2, 2016. On June 18, 2018, 

the property was replatted as North Park Addition, Tract K-1. There is an existing rehabilitation hospital, South 

Plains Rehabilitation Hospital, which was constructed on the property in 2022. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

Properties to the north and west are duplexes and townhouses (undeveloped) zoned Medium Density Residential 

(MDR). The eastern and southern properties are developed with a UMC hospital and apartments, zoned HDR.  

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 5406 Colgate Street, located north of Colgate Street and west of North Slide 

Road. The applicant requests a zone change from High Density Residential (HDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial 

District (AC), to allow for a new medical facility. 

Current zoning:  High Density Residential District (HDR) 

 

Requested zoning:  Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 

 

  



Page 2 of 3 

 

Intent Statements 

 

The intent of the current HDR zoning is to provide for three subdivision types: 

A. Conventional. Single-family detached, cottage, or garden homes on public utilities with open space 

provided on private lots. 

B. Village. Mixed housing types, including townhouses, detached single-family garden homes, and low- 

to mid-rise apartments, located in a planned development or adjacent to a mixed-use district or 

center. Buildings are typically in close proximity to the street edge. The building mass, height, and scale 

transition to the neighboring land uses. 

C. Mixed-Use. Mid- to high-rise apartment development in a mixed-use district or center. The district 

consists of detached single-family garden homes, live-work buildings, and other vertically mixed-use 

buildings.  Urban open space may be used for plazas and squares. 
 

The intent of the proposed AC zoning is “to provide for a broad range of single-use and multi-tenant centers that 

vary in scale, and that provide for retail, service, and office uses typically with on-site surface parking. The 

district may be located along major thoroughfares or at nodes with increased intensity.” 

 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located north of Colgate Street, which is designated as a local street, and west of North Slide 
Road, which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Principal Arterials 
provide connectivity across the transportation network serving high volume needs of local and regional traffic. 
Local streets typically provide access to smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions, 
or local business districts. 
 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. An existing UMC medical facility was developed in 2022 on the subject property and Tract 

K-2 of the same development. The applicant is requesting the zone change in order to accommodate an expansion 

of the hospital by 26 beds (16,200 sqft addition).  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Commercial land uses. The proposed zone change is compatible 

with this designation.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed district, as it would not change the characteristics of the existing 

neighborhood. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Aerial Map 

D. Zoning Map 

E. Future Land Use Map 

F. Photos 

G. Application and Supporting Documentation 

 

 

  



Page 3 of 3 

 

Staff Contacts 

Victoria Lewelling   Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2021    806-775-3029 

vlewelling@mylubbock.us  vescamilla@mylubbock.us 



Attachment A  Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 2573-T 

Allowable Uses: Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Colgate Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 

Development Plan 

Colgate Street, Local 

Street, Complete 

R.O.W. 60 feet, 2 lane, 

undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 60 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved.  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

3.8  Zone Case 2573-T: Parkhill for UMC Health System, request for a zone change from High Density 

Residential District (HDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at: 

• 5406 Colgate Street, located north of Colgate Street and west of North Slide Road,

North Park Addition, Tract K-1.

PLANNER VICTORIA LEWELLING stated there were one-hundred and fourteen (114) notifications sent out with 

none returned. Staff shared the location of the property, including pictures and maps and discussed the 

surrounding properties. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

APPLICANT JOHNA ANTHONY, 4222 85th Street, with Parkhill, advised this facility has been a rehabilitation 

center since 2018 and they are looking to expand the facility. In the HDR district, the use is limited to 5 acres, 

but their property is over 6 acres, thus the need for the zone change. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2573-T, a motion was made by SCOTT GLOYNA and seconded by TANNER NOBLE to 

approve the request. The Commission members voted 6 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. The 

case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

CHAIR JAMES BELL and ZACH SAWYER recused from the vote. 











2573-T. 5406 Colgate Street.

View to the north. Subject Property. View to the south. 

View to the east. View to the west. 



6.36 Acres



 

A:\2023\42067.23\03_DSGN\Z_TO\04_COL\OFFICE-Memo.docx 

 
 

MEMO  TO:    City of Lubbock Planning Department 

FROM:    Parkhill 

PROJECT NAME:   Encompass Rehab Hospital 

PROJECT NO.:  42067.23 

DATE:    01/04/2024 

 
The South Plains Rehabilitation Hospital located 5406 Colgate Street requests to change the zoning of their 
property (6.37 total acres) from High Density Residential (HDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial (AC). The facility has 
served as a leading provider of inpatient physical rehabilitation for complex neurological and orthopedic conditions 
since 2018 and seeks to expand the hospital with a 26 bed (16,200 SF) addition. As rehabilitative care is a 
specific use within the HDR zone and is limited to 5 acres, this addition requires a zone change from the existing 
classification to a more fitting AC in which rehabilitative care is a permitted use. According to the City’s zoning 
maps, AC appears to be a good fit into the surrounding land uses with its proximity to N Slide Road.   
 

 

6.36



 

Page 1 of 1   Texas Registered Surveying Firm # 10194091 

 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION OF 
TRACT “K-1”, NORTH PARK, 

AN ADDITION TO THE CITY OF LUBBOCK, 
LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 

 
All of Tract “K-1”, North Park, an addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, according to the map, 
plat and/or dedication deed thereof recorded in Plat and Dedication Number 2018022702 of the Plat Records of 
Lubbock County, Texas, said Tract “K-1” contains 6.36 acres, being further described by metes and bounds as 
follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2-inch iron rod with a plastic cap marked “H.R. & ASSOC.” found in the west line of a 20-foot 
wide alley, dedicated with the plat of Fountain Wood, an addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, 
according to the map, plat and/or dedication deed thereof recorded in Volume 8137, Page 345 of the Real Property 
Records of Lubbock County, Texas, at the northwest corner of said Tract “K-1”; 
 
(1) THENCE South 88 degrees 06 minutes 33 seconds East a distance of 363.53 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with a 
plastic cap marked “PSC RPLS 6453” set for the most northerly northeast corner of said Tract “K-1”; 
 
(2) THENCE South 01 degrees 51 minutes 34 seconds West a distance of 485.59 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with a 
plastic cap marked “PSC RPLS 6453” set for an ell corner of said Tract “K-1”; 
 
(3) THENCE South 88 degrees 06 minutes 33 seconds East a distance of 28.50 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with a 
plastic cap marked “PSC RPLS 6453” set for the most easterly northeast corner of said Tract “K-1”; 
 
(4) THENCE South 01 degrees 51 minutes 34 seconds West a distance of 259.40 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with a 
plastic cap marked “PSC RPLS 6453” set in the north right-of-way line of Colgate Street, dedicated with the plat of 
North Park, Tract “F”, an addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, according to the map, plat and/or 
dedication deed thereof recorded in Plat and Dedication Number 2010029571 of the Official Public Records of 
Lubbock County, Texas, for the southeast corner of said Tract “K-1”; 
 
(5) THENCE North 88 degrees 06 minutes 33 seconds West, along the north right-of-way line of said Colgate Street, 
a distance of 379.03 feet to a point for the most southerly southwest corner of said Tract “K-1”; 
 
(6) THECE North 43 degrees 14 minutes 25 seconds West a distance of 14.17 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with a 
plastic cap marked “PSC RPLS 6453” set in the east right-of-way line of said 20-foot wide alley dedicated with said 
plat of Fountain Wood, for the most westerly southwest corner of said Tract “K-1”; 
 
(7) THENCE North 01 degrees 37 minutes 43 seconds East, along the east right-of-way line of said 20-foot wide 
alley, a distance of 735.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Bearings called in this description are based on the 
Texas Coordinate System, North Central Zone 4202, North American Datum of 1983. Distances called in this 
description are at surface. Areas called in this description are based on calculations made from surface distances.  
 
This description was prepared from an actual survey of the property and the information hereon represents the 
findings of this survey to the best of my knowledge and belief. 
 
Surveyed December 21, 2017 
Signed: January 29, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Samuel Wyatt, R.P.L.S. 6453 

 

SAMUEL WYATT

6453

L

A

N

D

 

S

UR

V

E

Y

O

R

S

T

A

T

E

 

O
F

 

T

E

X

A

S

R

E

G

I

S
T

E

R

E

D

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L



COLGATE STREET

N
O

RT
H

 S
LI

D
E 

RO
AD

DARTMOUTH STREET

COLGATE STREET
COLGATE STREET

TBPLS FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 10194091
4222 85TH STREET

LUBBOCK, TX.  79423
806.473.2200

TRACTS "K-1" & "K-2"

NORTH PARK
AN ADDITION TO THE CITY OF LUBBOCK,

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS
BEING A RE-PLAT OF TRACT "K", NORTH PARK ADDITION

(P&D #2016019249 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS)

VICINITY MAP

L
A

N
D

S U R V E Y

O
R

S
TA

TE OF TEXA
SREG ISTERED

P
ROFESS I ONA

L

SAMUEL WYATT

6453



 AI# 12402 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 8. 
03/26/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - City Council: Consider an ordinance amending the City of Lubbock Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 22, "UTILITIES", Article 22.04 "Wastewater System" of the Code of Ordinances
of the City of Lubbock, Texas, in order to delineate sewer line repair and maintenance responsibilities.

Item Summary
The City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2023-O0119 on October 10, 2023, amending Chapter 22 of the
City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances.  The ordinance allows licensed plumbers to work within public
right-of-way to fully repair the private sewer lateral line between the house or business structure, and the
City main located in the right-of-way.  Under the previous ordinance adopted in 2006, licensed plumbers
were not allowed to perform this work within the public right-of-way, and these repairs were performed
by City of Lubbock Pipeline Maintenance Crews.

The proposed ordinance would allow only the City and its designated contractors to work on the sewer
lateral in the public right-of-way, which is in line with the practice that was in place prior to October 10,
2023.  Following this memo you will find a copy of the proposed ordinance, a redline outlining the
changes to Chapter 22, and a chart showing the type of work completed by Pipeline Maintenance Crews
by percentage.

Fiscal Impact
There are sufficient funds in the budget at this time to cover the change in policy.  However, a budget
amendment may be needed later in the fiscal year to continue covering material costs for sewer lateral
repairs.  

Staff/Board Recommending
Latrelle Joy, Council Member, District 6
Steve Massengale, Council Member, District 4

Attachments
Ordinance - Chapter 22, Utilities 
Ch. 22 Provisions - Redline 
Activity Chart 



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 22 “UTILITIES”, ARTICLE 22.04
“WASTEWATER SYSTEM” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF
LUBBOCK, TEXAS, IN ORDER TO DELINEATE SEWER LINE REPAIR AND
MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING
A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION.

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock maintains the City’s sanitary sewer mains throughout
the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lubbock finds that it is for the public good,
public health and safety, and for a public purpose, that the City shall make any necessary repairs
to sewer lateral lines located in the public rights-of-way in order to maintain the integrity of the
City’s sanitary sewer system as a whole; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas deems it in the best interest
of the citizens of Lubbock to make the following amendments to Article 22.04 of the Code for
the reasons stated above; NOW THEREFORE:

BE IT ORDAINED BY TIlE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

SECTION 1. THAT Article 22.04, Section 22.04.09 of the Code of Ordinances of the
City of Lubbock, l’cxas, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 22.04.009 Sanitary sewer later line maintenance.

jgj The city and its designated contractors shall be the only authorized entities or persons to
repair or replace the sewer wyc, tee, or tapping saddle connection to the city sewer main for an
existing property with current sewer service and to replace the customer’s lateral service line
located in the city’s right-of-way.

ffij The customer shall be responsible for cleaning, clearing, removing obstructions,
maintenance, and operation of the customer’s sanitary sewer lateral line from the home, business,
facility, or other point of service, to the sewer wyc, tee or tapping saddle connection at the public
sewer main. The customer shall be responsible for the repair and replacement of the customer’s
lateral sewer service line from the point of service to the property line.

(ci. The customer or the customer’s contractor shall acquire the proper permits and comply
with all applicable la\vs, ordinances, and policies for the maintenance, repair and operation of this
lateral sewer service line. Physical obstructions in the city’s alley right-of-way, such as
landscaping, irrigation systems, fencing, or other such surface or subsurface obstructions may
potentially be damaged by excavation activity and are prohibited. All repairs and construction of
the sewer service line or pavement within city right-of-way or alleyways shall be performed in

Page 1 of3



accordance with all applicable ordinances and Ihe City of Lubbock Engineering Minimum Design
Standards and Specifications.

f4j The custumets utility contractor shall perform the proper cite—call notification pursuant to
Texas State Utility Code title 5, chapter 251. Such notification requires a 4$-hour advance notice
before excavation can begin. In addition, prior to excavation, the customer’s utility contractor
shall complete a permit with the City of Lubbock right-of-way department.

jj Repairs:

(jj Emergency repairs.
An emergency rcpair request is one where the customer does not have sewer service and
the lack of wastewater flows creates a potential health concern. The city shall respond to
emergency repairs if the customer’s utility contractor determines there is a problem with
the connection at the city’s sanitary sewer main, and a sanitary sewer overflow is imminent
or discharging in the residence or place of business. Once both conditions have been
confimed the utility contractor shall contact the city for emergency repairs of the city’s
main.

(j_ Repair of an existing sewer wye, tee, or tapping saddle:
The city shall he responsible for replacing the wye, tee, or tapping saddle if it is found to
he inoperable or in disrepair. A contractor of the customer shall not make these repairs.
Rather, requests for repair shall be macic directly- to the water utility department by the
contractor making the sanitary sewer Lateral line repairs.

(a) Routine repair:
A routine repair request is one where there is service, but the tap is in need of repair. The
tap repair will he scheduled and placed on the repair priority list based upon whether the
service is an emergency or routine repair, City’ personnel or its contractors ‘viII perform
all paving and concrete repair.

SECTION 2. THAT should any paragraph, section, clause, phrase or word of this
Ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the remainder of the Ordinance
shall not be affected thereby.

SECTION 3. THAT a violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall be deemed a
misdemeanor punishable in accordance with state law and Section 1.01.004 of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Lubbock.

SECTION 4. THAT the City Secretary of the City of Lubbock, Texas, is hereby
authorized and directed to cause publication of the descriptive caption of this Ordinance as an
alternative means of publication provided by law.

AND IT IS SO ORDKREI).

Passed by the City Council on first reading this

____________

day of

_______________,

2024.

Page 2 of3



Passed by the City Council on second reading this

_________

day of

_____________,

2023.

ATTEST:

TRAY PAYNE. MAYOR

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

‘--1trel e Joy, Councilwomaj4, Ditrict

ck(fl
6

SteveMjdnk)1lerCLjlman. District 4

cedocs!! OrdAineiid
3. 19. 24

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

cnor Assistant City Attorney

2024 (Jh 22 Amendments

Page 3 of3



§ 22.04.009Sanitary sewer lateral line maintenance. 
(a)  
The city and its designated contractors shall be the only authorized entities or persons to 
repair or replace the sewer wye, tee, or tapping saddle connection to the city sewer main 
for an existing property with current sewer service and to replace the customer’s lateral 
service line located in the city’s right-of-way. 

(b)  
The customer shall be responsible for cleaning, clearing, removing obstructions, 
maintenance, and operation of the customer's sanitary sewer lateral line from the home, 
business, facility, or other point of service, to the sewer wye, tee or tapping saddle 
connection at the public sewer main. The customer shall be responsible for the repair and 
replacement of the customer's lateral sewer service line from the point of service to the 
property line. 

(c)  
The customer or the customer's contractor shall acquire the proper permits and comply 
with all applicable laws, ordinances, and policies for the maintenance, repair and 
operation of this lateral sewer service line. Physical obstructions in the city's alley right-
of-way, such as landscaping, irrigation systems, fencing, or other such surface or 
subsurface obstructions may potentially be damaged by excavation activity and are 
prohibited. All repairs and construction of the sewer service line or pavement within city 
right-of-way or alleyways shall be performed in accordance with all applicable ordinances 
and the City of Lubbock Engineering Minimum Design Standards and Specifications. 

(d)  
The customer's utility contractor shall perform the proper one-call notification pursuant to 
Texas State Utility Code title 5, chapter 251. Such notification requires a 48-hour advance 
notice before excavation can begin. In addition, prior to excavation, the customer's utility 
contractor shall complete a permit with the City of Lubbock right-of-way department. 

(e)  
Repairs: 
(1) 
Emergency repairs. 

An emergency repair request is one where the customer does not have sewer service 
and the lack of wastewater flows creates a potential health concern. The city shall respond 
to emergency repairs if the customer's utility contractor determines there is a problem 
with the connection at the city's sanitary sewer main, and a sanitary sewer overflow is 
imminent or discharging in the residence or place of business. Once both conditions have 

https://ecode360.com/38871247#38871247
https://ecode360.com/43709710#43709710
https://ecode360.com/43709711#43709711
https://ecode360.com/43709712#43709712
https://ecode360.com/43709713#43709713
https://ecode360.com/43709714#43709714
https://ecode360.com/43709719#43709719


been confirmed the utility contractor shall contact the city for emergency repairs of the 
city's main. 

(2)  
Repair of an existing sewer wye, tee, or tapping saddle: 

  
The city shall be responsible for replacing the wye, tee, or tapping saddle if it is found to 
be inoperable or in disrepair. A contractor of the customer shall not make these repairs. 
Rather, requests for repair shall be made directly to the water utility department by the 
contractor making the sanitary sewer lateral line repairs. 
(3)  Routine repair: 

A routine repair request is one where there is service, but the tap is in need of repair.  
The tap repair will be scheduled and placed on the repair priority list based upon 
whether the service is an emergency or routine repair.  City personnel or its contractors 
will perform all paving and concrete repair. 

 

 

(Ordinance 2010-O0049, sec. 13, adopted 6/24/2010; Ordinance 2023-
O0119 adopted 10/10/20 

 

https://ecode360.com/43709720#43709720



	Agenda
	4.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_1.24.2024 S LEDA
	       ATT_2.12.2024 S EUB
	       ATT_2.27.2024
	5.01.__Budget Amendment 15
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 15
	5.01.1.__Berl Huffman Well
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_CIP Budget Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary
	5.02.__Budget Amendment 14
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 14
	5.03.__Budget Amendment 16
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 16
	5.03.1.__Accept Donation of Funds for Tornado Memorial
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Donation Form
	5.04.__Budget Amendment 17
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 17
	5.05.__Budget Amendment 18
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 18
	5.06.__Budget Amendment 19
	       ATT_Budget Amendment _19
	5.07.__Budget Amendment 20
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 20
	5.08.__Airport Owners & Operators Liability 
	       ATT_Resolution - Airport
	       ATT_Airport Coverage
	5.09.__Workers Compensation 
	       ATT_Resolution - Workers' Comp
	       ATT_Workers' Comp Coverage
	5.10.__Excess Policy
	       ATT_Resolution - Layered Excess Coverage
	       ATT_Layered Excess Coverage
	5.11.__COL Boiler & Machinery
	       ATT_Resolution - Boiler and Machinery
	       ATT_Boiler and Machinery Coverage
	5.12.__COL Terrorism
	       ATT_Resolution - Terrorism
	       ATT_Terrorism Coverage
	5.13.__COL Property
	       ATT_Resolution - COL Property
	       ATT_COL Property Coverage
	5.14.__Cyber
	       ATT_Resolution - Cyber
	       ATT_Cyber Coverage
	5.15.__Professional Services
	       ATT_Resoution - Property Appraisals
	       ATT_Contract - Property Appraisals
	5.16.__504 Avenue G Downtown Facade Grant 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	1 Cover Page 504 Ave G (Brad Green) Combined
	2 MLI Downtown Grants presented to MLI Board 504 Ave G (Brad Green) Combo
	3 MLI DT Grant App 504 Ave G 2.5.24 JQ
	Initial app 2-4-22

	4 504 Ave G Overhead Pic
	5 20231120 502-504 AveG Construction Budget
	6 504 Ave G Architectural Plans

	5.17.__504 Avenue G Downtown Permittable Grant 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	1 Cover Page 504 Ave G (Brad Green) Combined
	2 MLI Downtown Grants presented to MLI Board 504 Ave G (Brad Green) Combo
	3 MLI DT Grant App 504 Ave G 2.5.24 JQ
	Initial app 2-4-22

	4 504 Ave G Overhead Pic
	5 20231120 502-504 AveG Construction Budget
	6 504 Ave G Architectural Plans

	5.18.__505 Avenue Q Downtown Facade Grant 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	1 Cover Page 505 Ave Q Facade 2024
	2 MLI Downtown Grants presented to MLI Board 505 Ave Q Facade
	3 DT Grant App 505 Ave Q (Double Tree) JQ 2.8.24
	2.8.24

	4 505 Ave Q Before Pics 2.8.24
	5 505 Ave Q Parking Lot Bids 2.8.24

	5.19.__1219 Avenue A CRG Facade 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	1 Cover Page CRGP East 1219 Ave A (CC Electric) Facade
	2 MLI CRGP East 1219 Ave A (CC Electric) Facade
	3 CRGP App 1219 Ave A 2.21.24
	2.21.24

	4 1219 Ave A Bids and Permit
	5 1219 Ave A Before Pics

	5.20.__3532 34th Street CRG Facade
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	1 Cover Page 3532 34th St. Facade
	2 MLI CRGP presented to MLI Board 3532 34th St.
	3 CRGP Grant App 3532 34th St. JQ 2.25.24
	4 3532 34th Parking Lot Bid
	5 3532 34th St Pictures Before

	5.21.__Vulpes Corp. LEDA Incentive 
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_LEDA Resolution 
	       ATT_Project Summary 
	5.22.__Contract 17662 Water Well Coverings 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	Untitled

	       ATT_Project Summary 
	5.23.__DuraLine Abatement Amendment 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Dura Line - Request for Extension (scan)
	       ATT_Dura Line Request Letter (scan)
	5.24.__Clutter Block 4, Lot 8 - Alley Closure
	       ATT_Blk 4, Lot 8, Clutter Ordinance
	       ATT_Blk 4, Lot 8, Clutter GIS Map
	       ATT_Blk 4, Lot 8 Clutter Adjacent Land Owner Letter
	5.25.__Morning Side Block 10 Alley Clolsure
	       ATT_Block 10, Morning Side - ordinance
	       ATT_Block 10, Morning Side - GIS Map
	5.26.__Blocks 136 & 137 Original Town, ROW Closures
	       ATT_Blks 136 and 137 - Ordinance
	       ATT_Blks 136 and 137 GIS Map
	5.27.__NBB Investments Street Use License
	       ATT_Resolution 50th St. and Flint Ave. Hulen
	       ATT_SUL 50th St. and Flint Ave. Hulen
	       ATT_GIS Map SUL 50th St. and Flint Ave. Hulen
	5.28.__Construction Contract 17870 with UCA for Water line Change Out Phase 6
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract 17870
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_Budget Detail2
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_17870 - Project Summary
	5.29.__Contract 17967 with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Unpaved Road Improvements
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract 17967
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet - 92712
	       ATT_92712 Budget Detail
	5.30.__Contract 17488 - Development Agreement for Quaker Ave from 146th Street and Woodrow Ave
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Development Agreement
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_92828 Spreadsheet
	       ATT_92828 Budget Detail
	5.31.__South Water Treatment Plant memcor membrane modules
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_PO 22105341 FILMTEC REQ 61369
	5.32.__2021 International Building Code
	       ATT_2021 International Building Code Ordinance
	5.33.__2021 International Plumbing Code
	       ATT_2021 International Plumbing Code Ordinance
	5.34.__2021 International Mechanical Code
	       ATT_2021 International Mechanical Code Ordinance
	5.35.__2020 National Electrical Code
	       ATT_2020 National Electrical Code Ordinance
	5.36.__2021 International Residential Code
	       ATT_2021 International Residential Code Ordinance
	5.37.__2021 International Fuel Gas Code
	       ATT_2021 International Fuel Gas Code Ordinance
	5.38.__2021 International Energy Conservation Code
	       ATT_2021 International Energy Conservation Code Ordinance
	5.39.__2021 International Existing Building Code
	       ATT_2021 International Existing Building Code Ordinance
	5.40.__2021 International Swimming Pool and Spa Code
	       ATT_2021 International Swimming Pool and Spa Code Ordinance
	5.41.__Building Regulations - Administrative Amendments
	       ATT_Articles 28.01-28.08 Ordinance
	5.42.__2021 International Fire Code Adoption
	       ATT_Fire Code 
	5.43.__ETJ - Kendrick
	       ATT_Resolution - Kendrick Oil Co.
	       ATT_Map - Kendrick Oil Co.
	       ATT_Petition - Kendrick Oil Co.
	5.44._12404
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Project Summary
	5.45.__Canyon Lake System Cattail Removal
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary
	5.46.__Mowing of City Parks and Properties - Group 5 & 10
	       ATT_Resolution 17817 - Green Plains Design, LLC
	       ATT_Contract 17817 - Green Plains Design, LLC
	       ATT_Project Summary - Mowing Parks - Group 5 and 10
	5.47.__MOU with ATF Body Worn Camera Program Addendum
	       ATT_Resolution -MOU with ATF
	       ATT_MOU with ATF
	       ATT_Addendum Appendix A with ATF
	5.48.__City Secretary - Declaration of Unopposed Candidate
	       ATT_Ordinance - Cancellation of District 3 Special Election
	5.49.__Prop 2 Childcare Facility Property Tax Exemption
	       ATT_Ordinance - Child Care Prop Tax Exemption
	5.50.__Approval to Submit Grant Application - Cybersecurity
	       ATT_Resolution - Authorization Letter
	       ATT_SLCGP CM Application Approval Letter
	       ATT_Application - SLCGP
	5.51.__Impact Fees
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Adopted Ordinances 
	6.01.__ZC 0804-C
	       ATT_ZC804-C Ordinance
	       ATT_ZC804-C_Report
	       ATT_ZC804-C Documentation
	6.02.__ZC 2565-G
	       ATT_ZC2565-G_Ordinance
	       ATT_ZC2565-G_Report
	       ATT_ZC2565-G Documentation
	6.03.__ZC 3497
	       ATT_ZC3497_Ordinance
	       ATT_ZC3497_Report
	       ATT_ZC3497_Documentation
	3497 Staff Report_VE Edit
	3497 Case INFO
	3497_1locator
	3497 Response map
	3497_2imag
	3497_3zoning
	3497_4flup
	3497 Photos
	3497 Photos 2
	3497 App
	3497 letter 1

	6.04.__ZC 3298-E
	       ATT_ZC3298-E_Ordinance
	       ATT_ZC3298-E_Report
	       ATT_ZC3298-E_Documentation
	Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	6.05.__ZC 2985-E
	       ATT_ZC2985-E_Ordinance
	       ATT_ZC2985-E_Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 2985-E Documentation
	Zone Case pages to combine
	Section 2 to combine
	Section 3 to combine

	6.06.__ZC 3498
	       ATT_ZC3498_Ordinance
	       ATT_ZC3498_Report
	       ATT_ZC3498_Documentation
	6.07.__ZC 2573-T
	       ATT_ZC2573-T_Ordinance
	       ATT_ZC2573-T_Report
	       ATT_ZC2573-T Documentation
	app document.pdf
	PZC Application
	PZC Application Checklist

	Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	6.08.__Chapter 22
	       ATT_Ordinance - Chapter 22, Utilities
	       ATT_Ch. 22 Provisions - Redline 
	       ATT_Activity Chart

